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City Council Regular Meeting

Regular Meeting
Tuesday, January 17, 2023
6:00 PM
City Council Chambers and Zoom

ELECTED OFFICIALS
Mayor Steve Napolitano

Mayor Pro Tem Richard Montgomery
Councilmember Joe Franklin
Councilmember Amy Howorth
Councilmember David Lesser
City Treasurer Tim Lilligren

EXECUTIVE TEAM
City Manager Bruce Moe
City Attorney Quinn Barrow

City Clerk Liza Tamura Information Technology Director Terry Hackelman
Finance Director Steve Charelian Parks and Recreation Director Mark Leyman

Fire Chief Michael Lang Police Chief Rachel Johnson

Human Resources Director Lisa Jenkins Public Works Director Erick Lee

Acting Community Development Director Talyn Mirzakhanian

MISSION STATEMENT:
Our mission is to provide excellent municipal services,
preserve our small beach town character, and enhance the quality of life for our
residents, businesses and visitors.
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MANHATTAN BEACH’S CITY COUNCIL WELCOMES YOU!

By participating in City Council meetings, you are participating in the process of representative government. To
encourage that participation, the City Council provides an early opportunity for public comments under “Public
Comments,” at which time speakers may comment on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
City Council, including items on the agenda.

The City continues to offer an opportunity to participate in Council meetings via Zoom. The City Council
encourages the public to participate by submitting comments in advance of the meeting, no later than 12:00 PM,
January 17, 2023, (the day of the meeting), via:

1) eComment at http://www.manhattanbeach.gov/ecomment
2) email to cityclerk@manhattanbeach.gov or
3) telephone message recorded at (370) 802-5030.

All of your comments provided by the deadlines above will be available to the City Council and the public prior to
the meeting.

In addition, you may participate by joining Zoom during the meeting. Instructions are provided on item G (Public
Comments).

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred to on this agenda
are available for review on the City's website at www.manhattanbeach.gov, the Police Department located at 420
15th Street, and are also on file in the Office of the City Clerk for public inspection. Any person who has any
question concerning any agenda item may call the City Clerk's office at (310) 802-5056.

Meetings are broadcast live through Manhattan Beach Local Community Cable, Channel 8 (Spectrum), Channel
35 (Frontier), and live streaming via the City's website.

In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting,
you should contact the Office of the City Clerk at (310) 802-5056 (voice) or (310) 546-3501 (TDD). Notification 36
hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this
meeting. The City also provides closed captioning of all its Regular City Council Meetings for the hearing impaired.

CERTIFICATION OF MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA POSTING

I, Liza Tamura, City Clerk of the City of Manhattan Beach, California, state under penalty of perjury that this notice/
agenda was posted on Wednesday, January 11, 2023, on the City's Website and on the bulletin boards of City
Hall, Joslyn Community Center and Manhattan Heights.
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BELOW ARE THE AGENDA ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED. THE RECOMMENDED
COUNCIL ACTION IS LISTED IMMEDIATELY AFTER THE TITLE OF EACH ITEM IN
BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE CITY COUNCIL MAY ACT ON ANY ITEM LISTED ON THE
AGENDA.

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
B. PLEDGE TO THE FLAG
C. ROLL CALL

D. CEREMONIAL CALENDAR

1. Presentation of Recognition Awards for Longstanding Local Businesses 23-0037
(Finance Director Charelian).
PRESENT

Attachments: PowerPoint Presentation

E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND WAIVER OF FULL READING OF ORDINANCES

This is the time for the City Council to:

(a) notify the public of any changes to the agenda;

(b) remove items from the consent calendar for individual consideration; or
(c) rearrange the order of the agenda.

MOTION TO APPROVE AGENDA AND WAIVE FULL READING

F. CITY COUNCIL AND COMMUNITY ORGANIZATION ANNOUNCEMENTS OF
UPCOMING EVENTS (1 MINUTE PER PERSON)

City Councilmembers and community organization representatives may inform the public about upcoming events.
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G. PUBLIC COMMENTS (3 MINUTES PER PERSON)

Speakers may provide public comments on any matter that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City
Council, including items on the agenda. The Mayor may determine whether an item is within the subject matter
jurisdiction of the City Council. While all comments are welcome, the Brown Act does not allow City Council to
take action on any item not on the agenda.

The City Council encourages the public to participate by submitting comments in advance of the meeting, no
later than 12:00 PM, January 17, 2023, (the day of the meeting), via:

1) eComment at http://www.manhattanbeach.gov/ecomment
2) email to cityclerk@manhattanbeach.gov or
3) telephone message recorded at (370) 802-5030.

All of your comments provided by the deadlines above will be available to the City Council and the public prior to the
meeting.

IN PERSON PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Please complete the "Request to Address the City Council" card by filling out your name, city of residence, the
item(s) you would like to offer public comment, and returning it to the City Clerk.

ZOOM PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
If you wish to speak on any item on the agenda, please register in advance by clicking the following link:
https://citymb.seamlessdocs.com/f/publiccomment, even when submitting this request you will need to use

the ‘raise hand” feature via Zoom during the presentation of that Agenda Item in order to confirm with the City
Clerk’s Office that you wish to provide comments.

1) Join Zoom Meeting via the internet:
Direct URL: https://citymb-info.zoom.us/j/93376200363, Meeting ID: 933 7620 0363

During the meeting you will need to use the ‘raise hand” button through Zoom at the time the Agenda ltem is
being presented for City Council consideration.

2) Join Zoom Meeting via Phone Conference (Voice Only):

Phone Number: (669) 900-6833, Meeting ID: 933 7620 0363

During the meeting you will need to enter *9 on the phone’s dial pad to "raise your hand" at the time the Agenda
Item is being presented for City Council consideration.

Please note, the City is not responsible for the public’s use of Zoom as it relates to the software, configuration,
and setting on a personal device. The public is encouraged to visit the Zoom website for information on use of this
software. The City’s use of Zoom is consistent with the platform features and functions as described on the Zoom.
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H. CONSENT CALENDAR (APPROVE)

Items on the Consent Calendar are routine and customary items and are enacted by a single motion with the
exception of items previously removed by a member of the City Council during "Approval of the Agenda" for
individual consideration. Any items removed shall be individually considered immediately after taking action on
the Consent Calendar.

2. City Council Minutes: 23-0002
This Item Contains the City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of January 3,
2023 (Cancelled) (City Clerk Tamura).
APPROVE

Attachments:  City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of January 3, 2023 (Cancelled)

3. Financial Reports: 23-0003
a) Schedule of Demands December 8, 2022, December 15, 2022,
December 22, 2022, December 29, 2022
b) Investment Portfolio for the Month Ending November 30, 2022
c) Month End Report for November 30, 2022
(Finance Director Charelian).
ACCEPT REPORTS AND DEMANDS

Attachments:  Schedule of Demands December 8, December 15, December 22 and
December 29, 2022
Investment Portfolio for the Month Ending November 30, 2022

Month End Report for November 30, 2022

4. Status Update on Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 Chamber of Commerce Work 23-0004
Plan Contract (City Manager Moe).
RECEIVE REPORT

Attachments:  Semi Annual Work Plan Progress/Update (Provided by Chamber of
Commerce)

Agreement - Chamber of Commerce (2022)

5. a. Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance No. 23-0002: 23-0054
An Ordinance of the City of Manhattan Beach Amending Title 1 (General
Provisions) of the Manhattan Beach Municipal Code to add Chapter
1.14 Regarding Rehearings

b. Adoption of Urgency Ordinance No. 23-0003-U:
An Urgency Ordinance of The City of Manhattan Beach Amending Title
1 (General Provisions) of the Manhattan Beach Municipal Code to add
Chapter 1.14 Regarding Rehearings and Declaring the Urgency Thereof

c. Making a Determination of Exemption under the California
Environmental Quality Act (City Manager Moe).

ADOPT ORDINANCE NOS. 23-0002 AND 23-0003-U

Attachments:  Urgency Ordinance No. 23-0003-U
Ordinance No. 23-0002
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10.

Consideration of a Resolution Declaring an Intention to Provide for Annual 23-0039
Levy and Collection of Assessments for the North Manhattan Beach

Business Improvement District and Setting February 21, 2023, for a Public

Hearing (Finance Director Charelian).

ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 23-0011

Attachments:  Resolution No. 23-0011
2023 Annual Budget and Activity Plan
Revised North MB BID Bylaws

Consider Awarding Bid No. 1290-23 to McGovern Commercial for the 23-0042
Purchase of Seven Patrol Vehicles for the Police Department in the Amount

of $289,691 and Approving an Additional Appropriation of $178,043 from

the Fleet Management Fund (Finance Director Charelian).

A) APPROVE

B) APPROPRIATE FUNDS

Attachments: Bid No. 1290-23 Comparison for Patrol Vehicle

Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Finance 23-0005
Director Charelian).
RECEIVE AND FILE

Attachments: Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)

Report on Internal Control (Management Letter)

Audit Communication Letter

Consideration of a Resolution Accepting 2021 State Homeland Security 23-0007
Program Grant Funds in the Amount of $72,000 for the Purchase of Law

Enforcement Equipment (Police Chief Johnson).

A) ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 23-0002

B) APPROPRIATE FUNDS

Attachments:  Resolution No. 23-0002

Agreement - State Homeland Security Program Grant (2021)

Approval of a Purchase of “Circles” Sculpture by CJ Rench, and Allocate 23-0008
$25,000 from the Public Art Trust Fund (Parks and Recreation Director

Leyman).

A) APPROVE

B) ALLOCATE FUNDS FROM PUBLIC ART TRUST FUND

Attachments: Agreement - CJ Rench

PowerPoint Presentation
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1. Consideration of a Resolution Approving Amendment No. 2 to the 23-0010
Professional Services Agreement with Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering,
Inc. for $96,480 for Additional Design Services for the Larsson 2nd Street
Booster Pump Station Upgrade Project (Public Works Director Lee).
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 23-0005

Attachments:  Resolution No. 23-0005

Amendment No 2 - Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering, Inc. (PACE)

Agreement and Amendment No.1 - Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering,

Inc. (PACE)

Budget and Expenditures Summary Report

12. Consideration of a Resolution Approving Amendment No. 2 to the 23-0012
Professional Services Agreement with Butier Engineering, Inc. for
Additional Construction Management and Inspection Services in the
Amount of $435,537 for the Peck Reservoir Replacement Project (Public
Works Director Lee).
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 23-0006

Attachments:  Resolution No. 23-0006

Amendment 2 - Butier Engineering, Inc.

Agreement and Amendment No. 1 - Butier Engineering, Inc.

Location Map

13. Consideration of a Resolution Approving an Agreement with HF&H 23-0014
Consultants, LLC to Perform Up to Five Biennial Compliance Audits on the
City’s Franchise Agreement with Waste Management During the
Agreement Term and Appropriate $100,000 in Mostly-Reimbursable Funds
from the General Fund (Public Works Director Lee).
A) ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 23-0008
B) APPROPRIATE FUNDS

Attachments:  Resolution No. 23-0008
Agreement - HF&H Consultants, LLC.

14, Consideration of Resolution Approving an Agreement with HF&H 23-0015
Consultants, LLC. in the Amount of $25,000 to Conduct a Senate Bill (SB)
1383 Grant-Funded Gap Analysis Regarding New Statewide Organic
Waste Regulations and Appropriating $50,347 in Grant-Reimbursable
Funds for the Analysis and Other Reimbursable Expenditures (Public
Works Director Lee).
A) ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 23-0009
B) APPROPRIATE FUNDS

Attachments:  Resolution No. 23-0009
Agreement - HF&H Consultants, LLC.
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15. Consideration of Resolutions to Accept Agreements of Easement 23-0016
Dedication and Covenants and Temporary Construction Easement Deeds
for Properties at 1100 and 1120 N. Sepulveda Boulevard for the Manhattan
Beach Boulevard and Sepulveda Boulevard Intersection Improvement
Project (Public Works Director Lee).
A) ACCEPT
B) AUTHORIZE
C) ADOPT RESOLUTION NOS. 23-0012 AND 23-0013

Attachments:  Resolution No. 23-0012

Agreement - Irrevocable Offer of Dedication and Covenants - 1100 N.

Sepulveda Boulevard
Temporary Construction Easement Deed - 1100 N. Sepulveda Boulevard

Resolution No. 23-0013

Agreement - Irrevocable Offer of Dedication and Covenants - 1120 N.

Sepulveda Boulevard
Temporary Construction Easement Deed - 1120 N. Sepulveda Boulevard

Resolution No. 6122

. ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR

Each speaker may speak for up to 2 minutes on each item pulled from the agenda.

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS

At the discretion of the Mayor, each speaker may speak for up to 3 minutes on each public hearing item.

16. Urgency Ordinance No. 23-0001-U: 23-0017
An Interim Ordinance Of The City Of Manhattan Beach Extending Urgency
Ordinance No. 22-0002-U, Which Amended The Manhattan Beach
Municipal Code To Clarify Provisions For The Preservation Of Historic
Resources (Acting Community Development Director Mirzakhanian).
(Estimated Time: 15 Mins.)
A) CONDUCT PUBLIC HEARING
B) ADOPT URGENCY ORDINANCE NO. 23-0001-U EXTENDING
THE INTERIM ZONING ORDINANCE FOR A MAXIMUM OF ONE

YEAR
Attachments:  Urgency Ordinance No. 23-0001-U
PowerPoint Presentation
City of Manhattan Beach Page 8 Printed on 1/11/2023
City Council Meeting Page 9 of 948

January 17, 2023


http://manhattanbeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6460
http://ManhattanBeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=15e7b870-12e1-4c3e-adb2-65f87ff54068.pdf
http://ManhattanBeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c9c3ef0f-bb20-4d6e-81b5-f60a8028bcdc.pdf
http://ManhattanBeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8094fc79-3a79-4d4b-ac50-428019075922.pdf
http://ManhattanBeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f94aae1d-26bf-4f84-b977-425175fb488c.pdf
http://ManhattanBeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bad08455-77f1-45c3-94bd-c01f5bec9cbc.pdf
http://ManhattanBeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b4728482-c680-44d4-a084-30f445eb49cf.pdf
http://ManhattanBeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ba627297-fe21-4cf0-9a71-beec0c079990.pdf
http://manhattanbeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=6461
http://ManhattanBeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8711d2fe-32fc-4671-ad42-2b1742478a1f.DOCX
http://ManhattanBeach.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bcb91251-a2b9-4ac6-8685-eefbf8387874.pdf

City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Final January 17, 2023

K. GENERAL BUSINESS

Each speaker may speak for up to 2 minutes on each general business item.

17.

18.

19.

Consideration of Final Design for Bruce’s Beach Plaque Monument 23-0048
Landscaping (City Manager Moe).

(Estimated Time: 30 Mins.)

APPROVE

Attachments: Hardscape and Planting Plans

Rough Cost Estimate

PowerPoint Presentation

Discussion of Options for Temporary Encroachment Permits for Street 23-0021
Dining and Business Uses and Outdoor Facilities Permits for Outdoor Uses

on Private Property After Expiration of COVID-19 Emergency Orders

(Acting Community Development Director Mirzakhanian).

(Estimated Time: 60 min.)

DISCUSS AND PROVIDE DIRECTION

Attachments:  Outdoor Street Dining/Business Use Encroachment Area Chronology

PowerPoint Presentation

Discussion Regarding Placing Cameras at Public Facilities, Public Areas 23-0019
and Parks (Public Works Director Lee).

(Estimated Time: 45 Mins.)

DISCUSS AND PROVIDE DIRECTION

Attachments:  Map Depicting Scope of Current Citywide Security Cameras Project

PowerPoint Presentation
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20. Consideration of Resolutions Awarding a Construction Agreement to 23-0030
Pavement Coatings Co. for the Slurry Seal Project Encompassing the North
Area of the Sand Section (Area 7) for $1,188,249; Approving a
Construction Inspection Professional Services Agreement with Z & K
Consultants, Inc. for $52,224; and Approving an Additional Appropriation of
$177,448 from the Capital Improvements Program (CIP) Fund and a Public
Arts Trust Fund Allocation of $326,822 for the Project (Public Works
Director Lee).

(Estimated Time: 15 Mins.)

A) ADOPT RESOLUTION NOS. 23-0003 AND 23-0004
B) APPROPRIATE FUNDS

C) DISCUSS AND PROVIDE DIRECTION

Attachments:  Resolution No. 23-0003

Agreement — Pavement Coatings Co.

Bid Proposal - Pavement Coatings Co.

Resolution No. 23-0004

Agreement — Z & K Consultants, Inc.

Plans and Specifications (Web-Link Provided)

Budget and Expenditures Summary Report

Location Map

PowerPoint Presentation

L. CITY COUNCIL REQUESTS AND REPORTS INCLUDING AB 1234 REPORTS

In addition to providing reports of meetings and conferences attended by Councilmembers in connection with
their official duties at City expense as required by AB 1234, Councilmembers requested at a previous City
Council meeting that the following item(s) be placed on the agenda for discussion.

M. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Councilmembers may request that items be placed on a future agenda with the concurrence of one other
Councilmember.

N. CITY MANAGER REPORT
O. CITY ATTORNEY REPORT

P. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

This section is for items that do not require City Council action.

21. Agenda Forecast (City Clerk Tamura). 23-0022
INFORMATION ITEM ONLY
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City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Final January 17, 2023

Q. CLOSED SESSION

I. ANNOUNCEMENT IN OPEN SESSION OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED
SESSION

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL (EXISTING LITIGATION)
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1))

Name of Case: Highrose El Porto, LLC. v City of Manhattan Beach
Los Angeles County Superior Court
Case No: 22STCP03962

This lawsuit challenges the City Council’s decision regarding the
Highrose El Porto project.

Il. RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION
lll. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION
IV. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENT IN OPEN SESSION

R. ADJOURNMENT
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City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Final

January 17, 2023

S. FUTURE MEETINGS

CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS

January 18, 2023 - Wednesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council and Planning Commission and Parking and Public
Improvements Commission Work Plan Meeting

January 19, 2023 - Thursday -- 6:00 PM - Adjourned Regular Meeting (Highrose)
February 7, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

February 21, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

March 7, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

March 14, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - Adjourned Regular Meeting (Work Plan Meeting)
March 21, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting (Reorganization)
April 4, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

April 18, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

May 2, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

May 16, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

June 6, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

June 20, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

July 4, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

July 18, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

August 1, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

August 15, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

September 5, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

September 19, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

October 3, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

October 17, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

November 7, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

November 21, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

December 5, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

December 19, 2023 - Tuesday -- 6:00 PM - City Council Meeting

City of Manhattan Beach Page 12
City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023
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City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Final January 17, 2023

BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

January 23, 2023 - Monday - 4:00 PM - Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting

January 25, 2023 - Wednesday - 3:00 PM - Planning Commission Meeting

January 26, 2023 - Thursday - 4:00 PM - Parking and Public Improvements Commission Meeting
January 30, 2023 - Monday - 4:00 PM - Cultural Arts Commission Meeting (Rescheduled from January 16, 2023)
February 8, 2023 - Wednesday - 3:00 PM - Planning Commission Meeting

February 13, 2023 - Monday - 4:00 PM - Library Commission Meeting

February 20, 2023 - Monday - 4:00 PM - Cultural Arts Commission Meeting

February 22, 2023 - Wednesday - 3:00 PM - Planning Commission Meeting

February 23, 2023 - Thursday - 4:00 PM - Parking and Public Improvements Commission Meeting
February 27, 2023 - Monday - 4:00 PM - Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting

March 8, 2023 - Wednesday - 3:00 PM - Planning Commission Meeting

March 13, 2023 - Monday - 4:00 PM - Library Commission Meeting

March 20, 2023 - Monday - 4:00 PM - Cultural Arts Commission Meeting

March 22, 2023 - Wednesday - 3:00 PM - Planning Commission Meeting

March 23, 2023 - Thursday - 4:00 PM - Parking and Public Improvements Commission Meeting
March 27, 2023 - Monday - 4:00 PM - Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting

April 10, 2023 - Monday - 4:00 PM - Library Commission Meeting

April 12, 2023 - Wednesday - 3:00 PM - Planning Commission Meeting

April 17, 2023 - Monday - 4:00 PM - Cultural Arts Commission Meeting

April 24, 2023 - Monday - 4:00 PM - Parks and Recreation Commission Meeting

April 26, 2023 - Wednesday - 3:00 PM - Planning Commission Meeting

April 27, 2023 - Thursday - 4:00 PM - Parking and Public Improvements Commission Meeting

T. CITY OFFICES CLOSED

CITY HOLIDAYS:

February 20, 2023 - Monday - Presidents Day

May 29, 2023 — Monday — Memorial Day

July 4, 2023 - Tuesday - Independence Day

September 4, 2023 - Monday - Labor Day

October 9, 2023 — Monday — Columbus Day

November 10, 2023 — Friday — Veterans Day (Observance of November 11, 2023)
November 23-24, 2023 - Thursday & Friday - Thanksgiving Holiday

December 25, 2023 - Monday - Christmas Day Observed

January 1, 2024 — Monday — New Years Day Observed

January 15, 2024 — Monday — Martin Luther King Day
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1400 Highland Avenue Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 STAF F RE Po RT

www.manhattanbeach.gov ¢ (310) 802-5000

Agenda Date: 1/17/2023

TO:
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH:
Bruce Moe, City Manager

FROM:

Steve S. Charelian, Finance Department Director
Libby Bretthauer, Financial Services Manager
Emy-Rose Hanna, Revenue Services Supervisor

SUBJECT:
Presentation of Recognition Awards for Longstanding Local Businesses (Finance Director

Charelian).
PRESENT

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council recognize businesses that have been providing
longstanding operations and services to the community for a number of years.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
The cost for the plaques, proclamations and certificates is approximately $2,300. Sufficient
funding is available in the Finance department budget.

BACKGROUND:

City Council established an award program to recognize and applaud longstanding businesses
that have continuously maintained a commercially-zoned premise providing services to our
community for many years.

On May 1, 2018, City Council updated the Longstanding Business Award Program by
identifying five (5) incremental milestones recognizing 10, 25, 30, 40, and 50 years of
continuous service.

On September 9, 2021, City Council directed staff to expand the Program by including
additional milestone years (5, 15 and 20 years) to the Longstanding Local Business Award

Program.
City of Manhattan Beach Page 1 Printed on 1/11/2023
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File Number: 23-0037

Based on these changes to the Program, the City will be recognizing eight (8) incremental
milestones with 5, 10, 15, 20, 25, 30, 40, and 50 years of continuous service in the community.
Plaques will be awarded to businesses that achieve the 20, 25, 30, 40, and 50 year milestones.
Special proclamations will be presented to businesses with 10 and 15 years and certificates will
be mailed to businesses with 5 years.

The table below shows the number of businesses receiving recognition under the new expanded
milestones, as well as the previous year for comparison:

Year Plaques Proclamations Certificates Total

2022 43 62 45 150

2021 32 47 43 122

DISCUSSION:

This year, City Council will present a total of 43 plaques in the 50, 40, 30, 25, and 20 year
categories:

50 Years

1. Sloopy's Beach Cafe
2. The Copy Shop

40 Years
1. Hennessey's Tavern
2. Kinecta Federal Credit Union
3. Montage Skincare
4. Salvatore's Shoe Repair

30 Years
1. Bank Of America #1081
City Wide Property Mgt.
Downtown Manhattan Beach Business + Professional Association
Fino Manhattan
Manhattan Beach Chamber of Commerce
Nick's Tailor
Skechers USA, Inc

Nooakowbd

25 Years
1. Artwork Conversion Software
Check The Do! Hair Salon
Custom Quality Construction Inc
David J. Lesser, Attorney At Law
Int'l Cosmetics & Regulatory Specialists LLC
Joyce G Flood & Associates
Money Matters Tax Service
Noah's Bagels #2546

© NGO RWN
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9. Orbit Satellite Service

10. Pacific Acupuncture & Healing Center
11. Peet's Coffee & Tea

12. Power Karate Mbk, Inc.

13. R M Davis/Mike Davis

14. Reback, Mcandrews, & Blessey

15. West Coast Orthopedic Design

20 Years
1. American Martyrs Preschool
2. Bear Imagination
3. Chevron #1959
4. Dennis P Levine
5. Manhattan Beach Creamery
6. Manhattan Pizzeria
7. Manhattan Village Dental Group Inc
8. Michele Dugan
9. Oirigins - Elc Beauty LLC
10. P C Help? Professionals
11. Palm Consulting Services, Inc
12. Studio 5 Hair Designs
13. Torrance Memorial Physicians Network
14. Wallender & Associates
15. Williams-Sonoma #218

Additionally, the following establishments have maintained their businesses within Manhattan
Beach for 15 and 10 years and will be presented with special proclamations:

15 Years
1. American Hearing & Balance
2. B.R. Nail Spa
3. Bubbles Pet Spa LLC
4. Cami

5. Chex Usa, Inc

6. Citizens Business Bank

7. Family Orthodontics

8. Jenny Craig Weight Loss Center #142

9. Law Offices of Joel D Ruben

10. Law Offices of Keith F Simpson, APC

11. Lisz Dom Salon

12. Manhattan Beach Dermatology

13. Massage Envy

14. Michelle Ehrlich MD Inc

15. My Gym Children's Fitness

16. Nathan, Terry & Company, Inc.

17. Office Depot Inc #2740

18. Planet Beauty Manhattan Beach
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19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.

Posh Nails

Premier Business Centers

Robert V. Masenga

Schlee Intellectual Property International P.C.
Sepulveda Treats, Inc.

Silver Scissors

South Bay Business Management Inc

Study Hut Tutoring

The Dragon And Phoenix Healer

West Coast Sports Physical Therapy

10 Years

1.

© NGO RWN

9.

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.

28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.

Amy's Hallmark #443

Beach Cities Accounting Inc
Champ Camp LLC

Clothing From Heaven, Inc.
David Watson, Architect

Erick Bartolome DDS, Inc.
Evolution Construction

Fifth Row Center Performing Arts
Hmr Life Center, LLC

James Thomas Productions Events & Entertainment, Inc

Kiehl's Since 1851

Kreation Juicery

Law Office of R. Brian Kramer
Lemonade Restaurant

Manhattan Beach Covenant Church
Manhattan Beach Surgery Center LLC

Manhattan Beach Watch Repair & Vintage Watches

Manhattan Torah Center

Marcia A. Matika Dpm, Inc

Nikau Kai Waterman Shop

Pale Blue Design, Inc.

Philippe H. Lemoine, MD, APC

Pitfire Artisan Pizza

R Friend Financial

Rice

Richard J. Cordes, CPA, JD, LLM
Saks Of Manhattan

Salon Mar

Simplify Your Life Referral Agency Inc
Skylar Orthopedics

Super Mario Mobile Detail

Torrance Memorial Physician Network
Waterfront Sound

White House Pilates

City of Manhattan Beach Page 4
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The following establishments have served the community continuously for 5 years and will

receive certificates by mail:

5 Years

1.

® N OR WD

9.

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
20.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.

4 Corners Deposition Summaries Inc
Andrika King Design LLC

AR&F LLC

Artistic Endeavors

Balanced By Julie

Bayview Pediatric Dental Group

Beach Cities Orthopedic Surgery Center LLC
Beach Cities Shave Spa

Blackacre Law Group

Blue Skies Aviation Services Inc
Breathe Center

Brown Clinic for Attention and Related Disorders
Cafe Wild, LLC

Christine Kumiko Calligraphy

Coastal Pacific Landscapes Services Inc
Commerce Commercial Properties
Cookie Cutters

Edible Arrangements

El Porto Surfboards

Ernst & Co Wealth Management LLC
First Light Development Inc

Frontier California, Inc
Greene-Holenstein Homes, Inc @ Sotheby's
Heavy Iron Studios, Inc

Matern Law Group P.C.

Mb Nails & Spa

Motorsports World LLC

Musette LLC

Optic-Mistic Outlook Optometry

Pasich LLP

Periodontics & Oral Surgery of Manhattan Beach
Sass Hair Salon

South Bay Automation

South Bay Spinal Decompression
Strand Hill/Christie's Int'l| Real Estate
Suite 6

Taylor & Ring, LLP

The Complete Real Estate Solution LLC
The Garden Thai

The Knowlton Group

The Pilates Nook

City of Manhattan Beach Page 5
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42. Threehands Beauty Company, LLC
43. Tomaro Custom Homes

44. Turning Point Properties LLC

45. Wolf Glass Corp

All businesses contribute to the vitality of the community and it is through this program that we
recognize the contributions of these establishments.

PUBLIC OUTREACH:

City Staff contacted each business and notified them of their Longstanding Business Award.
Additionally, 43 plaques will be awarded to businesses that have achieved 20, 25, 30, 40, and
50 years of continuous service in the community.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

The City has reviewed the proposed activity for compliance with the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) and has determined that there is no possibility that the activity may have a
significant effect on the environment; therefore, pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the State
CEQA Guidelines the activity is not subject to CEQA. Thus, no environmental review is
necessary.

LEGAL REVIEW:

The City Attorney has reviewed this report and determined that no additional legal analysis is
necessary.

ATTACHMENT:
1. PowerPoint Presentation
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City of Manhattan Beach

LONGSTANDING LOCAL BUSINESS AWARD
The City gratefully recognizes

BUSINESS NAME

in providing 5+ years of dedicated service to our community

o

Bruce Moe, City Manager

Steve Napolitano, Mayor
Dated this 17th Day of January, 2023

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023
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City of Manhattan Beach

LONGSTANDING LOCAL BUSINESS AWARD

City of Manhattan Beach

LONGSTANDING LOCAL BUSINESS AWARD
The City gratefull the contribution made by

BUSINESS NAME

in providing 25+ years of dedicated service to our community

The City gratefully recognizes the contribution made by

BUSINESS NAME

In providing 20+ years of dedicated service to our community

=St Jis
“":l..b.m 20 Bruce Moe, City Manager
e =

w Presented this 17th day of January, 2023
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1400 Highland Avenue Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 STAF F RE Po RT

www.manhattanbeach.gov ¢ (310) 802-5000

Agenda Date: 1/17/2023

TO:
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH:
Bruce Moe, City Manager

FROM:
Liza Tamura, City Clerk
Patricia Matson, Deputy City Clerk

SUBJECT:

City Council Minutes:

This Item Contains the City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of January 3, 2023 (Cancelled)
(City Clerk Tamura).

APPROVE

RECOMMENDATION:
The attached minutes are for City Council approval:

Attachment(s):
1. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes of January 3, 2023 (Cancelled)
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City of Manhattan Beach

1400 Highland Avenue
Manhattan Beach, CA 90266

L7

Meeting Minutes - Draft

Tuesday, January 3, 2023
6:00 PM

Regular Meeting

CANCELLED

City Council Regular Meeting

ELECTED OFFICIALS
Mayor Steve Napolitano
Mayor Pro Tem Richard Montgomery
Councilmember Joe Franklin
Councilmember Amy Howorth
Councilmember David Lesser

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023
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City Council Regular Meeting Meeting Minutes - Draft

January 3, 2023

AT THE NOVEMBER 15, 2022, CITY COUNCIL MEETING, THE CITY
COUNCIL CANCELLED THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING ON JANUARY 3,
2023.

ON JANUARY 3, 2023, AT 6:15 PM, ASSISTANT CITY CLERK MARTHA
ALVAREZ ANNOUNCED THAT THE JANUARY 3, 2023, CITY COUNCIL
MEETING WAS BEING CANCELLED FOR LACK OF A QUORUM AND

THAT THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED TO JANUARY 9, 2023, AT 6:00
PM.

City of Manhattan Beach Page 1

City Council Meeting

January 17, 2023

Page 38 of 948



1400 Highland Avenue Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 STAF F RE Po RT

www.manhattanbeach.gov ¢ (310) 802-5000

Agenda Date: 1/17/2023

TO:
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH:
Bruce Moe, City Manager

FROM:

Steve S. Charelian, Finance Director

Julie Bondarchuk, Financial Controller

Libby Bretthauer, Financial Services Manager

SUBJECT:

Financial Reports:

a) Schedule of Demands December 8, 2022, December 15, 2022, December 22, 2022,
December 29, 2022

b) Investment Portfolio for the Month Ending November 30, 2022

¢) Month End Report for November 30, 2022

(Finance Director Charelian).

ACCEPT REPORTS AND DEMANDS

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council accept the attached reports and demands.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

The financial report included herein is designed to communicate fiscal activity based upon
adopted and approved budget appropriations. No further action of a fiscal nature is requested
as part of this report.

The total value of the warrant registers for December 8, 2022, December 15, 2022, December
22,2022, and December 29, 2022, is $10,165,694.28.

BACKGROUND:
Finance staff prepares a variety of financial reports for City Council and the Finance
Subcommittee. A brief discussion of the attached report follows.

DISCUSSION:
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Schedule of Demands:

Every week staff prepares a comprehensive listing of all disbursements with staff certification
that the expenditure transactions listed have been reviewed and are within budgeted
appropriations.

Investment Portfolio:

Detailed Investment reports are provided to the Finance Subcommittee with summary reporting
to City Council. The month end portfolio includes a certification by the Finance Director that all
investments comply with established Investment Policies (or with Finance Subcommittee
approved exceptions), and there is sufficient liquidity to support projected expenditures.

Month End Report:

This package includes summary level financial information for the month ending November 30,
2022. This report marks the fifth month of fiscal year 2022-2023 and reflects the annual budget
adopted by City Council. The report provides monthly and year-to-date activity for all funds and
departments presenting a snapshot of budget performance. A report highlighting the
performance of key revenue sources is also included.

Lastly, a summary of balance sheet accounts managed by the City is included to provide the
balances as of November 30, 2022. Balance sheet accounts record funds collected from private
parties for a specific use together with the various expenditures that result from associated
projects and activities. This report shows a brief description of each account along with its
purpose, month-end balance, and the managing department.

PUBLIC OUTREACH:
After analysis, staff determined that public outreach was not required for this issue.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

The City has reviewed the proposed activity for compliance with the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) and has determined that the activity is not a “Project” as defined under
Section 15378 of the State CEQA Guidelines; therefore, pursuant to Section 15060(c)(3) of the
State CEQA Guidelines the activity is not subject to CEQA. Thus, no environmental review is
necessary.

LEGAL REVIEW:
The City Attorney has reviewed this report and determined that no additional legal analysis is
necessary.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Schedule of Demands for December 8, 2022, December 15, 2022, December 22, 2022, and
December 29, 2022

2. Investment Portfolio for the Month Ending November 30, 2022

3. Month End Report for November 30, 2022
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City of Manhattan Beach

Finance Department

Schedule of Demands
December 8, 2022,December 15, 2022,
December 22, 2022, and December 29, 2022
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
WARRANT REGISTER

WARRANT(S) AP120822, AP121522, AP122222 & AP122922
DATED: 12/08/2022, 12/15/2022, 12/22/2022 & 12/29/2022

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE CLAIMS OR DEMANDS COVERED BY THE ABOVE WARRANT (S) IN THE
AMOUNT OF  $10,165,694.28 HAVE BEEN REVIEWED AND THAT SAID CLAIMS OR DEMANDS ARE ACCURATE,
ARE IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE ADOPTED BUDGET, AND THAT THE FUNDS ARE AVAILABLE THEREOF.

THIS 17TH DAY OF JANUARY 2023
REVIEWED, CERTIFIED AND APPROVED
BY CITY MANAGER BRUCE MOE AND
BY FINANCE DIRECTOR STEVE CHARELIAN

WARRANT(S) AP120822 1,117,423.56
AP121522 1,301,066.82
AP122222 755,480.77
AP122922 1,857,530.74
WARRANT REGISTER (S) PREPAID WIRES / MANUAL CKS AP120822 758,841.93
AP120822, AP121522, AP122222 & AP122922 AP122222 1,693,775.49
AP122922 289,861.82
SUBTOTAL WARRANTS 7,773,981.13
PAYROLL PE 12/2/2022 PY 1,288,292.45
PAYROLL PE 12/16/2022 PY 1,103,420.70
TOTAL WARRANTS 10,165,694.28
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH AR
WARRANT REGISTER N
WARRANT #: AP120822
CHECK # DATE TYPE  PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
804223 8/4/2022 W CALPERS FIRE PEPRA UAL FY 2022-23 POLICE 814.00
90804221 8/4/2022 W CALPERS CLASSIC UAL FY 2022-23 POLICE 103,358.00
90804222 8/4/2022 W CALPERS PEPRA UAL FY 2022-23 FIRE CLASSIC 882.00
90804224 8/4/2022 W CALPERS UAL FY 2022-23 MISCELLANEOUS 110,013.00
908042022 8/4/2022 W CALPERS CALPERS UAL PE 12-02-2022 149,828.00
912082022 12/8/2022 W UNION BANK PAYROLL WITHHOLD FLEX 387,197.05
912132022 12/13/2022 W CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH CONTRIBUTION 6,749.88

SUB-TOTAL WARRANT WIRE $ 758,841.93
552012 12/8/2022 P ABBA TERMITE & PEST CONTROL BEE REMOVAL & RELOCATION SERVI 1,560.00
552013 12/8/2022 P THE ABY MANUFACTURING GROUP INC. PUBLIC SAFETY CUSTOM BADGES 504.06
552014 12/8/2022 P ADMINSURE INC GENERAL LIABILITY CLAIMS ADMIN 4,519.00
552015 12/8/2022 P ADVANCED IMAGING STRATEGIES 5YR MULTIFUNCTION COPIERS & PR 7,352.26
552016 12/8/2022 P ALL AMERICAN ASPHALT CONTRACT WITHHOLDING: 9202202 36,512.57
552017 12/8/2022 P ARAKELIAN ENTERPRISES INC STREET SWEEPING AND PRESSURE W 13,266.40
552018 12/8/2022 P ASPEN ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP ASPEN (SKECHERS) OCT 2022 INVO 567.50
552019 12/8/2022 P AT&T MOBILITY AT&T INVOICE COVERING SEPT 25 2,635.27
552020 12/8/2022 P BARR COMMERCIAL DOOR REPAIR THREE YEAR COMMERCIAL DOOR REP 3,855.42
552021 12/8/2022 P BARR COMMERCIAL DOOR REPAIR THREE YEAR COMMERCIAL DOOR REP 654.83
552022 12/8/2022 P BODY & MIND COE DYNAMICS INC FALL 2022 COE DYNAMICS INVOICE 1,480.00
552023 12/8/2022 P CANEWSPAPER PARTNERSHIP BEACH REPORTER 9-8-22 PLN PUBL 1,230.69
552024 12/8/2022 P CALIFORNIA HEALTH & SAFETY INC F.D. SAFETY EQUIPMENT TESTING 2,985.76
552025 12/8/2022 P CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING LLC DARK FIBER MAINTENANCE 412520
552026 12/8/2022 P CIVICPLUS LLC MUNICIPAL CODE CODIFICATION SE 1,678.70
552027 12/8/2022 P COMPANY NURSE LLC WORK INJURY TRIAGE HOTLINE 660.00
552028 12/8/2022 P CONOR CONSULTING LLC POLICE DEPARTMENT STRATEGIC PL 12,000.00
552029 12/8/2022 P CORELOGIC INFO SOLUTIONS INC ONLINE SERVICES-PROPERTY OWNER 9,313.80
552030 12/8/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND PE-22-00069 PAR REFUND OVERPAY 2,069.00
552031 12/8/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REFUND FEE PLMB-21-00507, 421 102.00
552032 12/8/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REFUND FEE PLMB-21-00472, 205 111.69
City Council Meeting P@&fe4l3 of 948

January 17, 2023



CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

WARRANT REGISTER

WARRANT #: AP120822

CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552033 12/8/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REFUND PERMIT PLMB-21-00409, 4 469.45
552034 12/8/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REFUND PERMIT MECH-22-00554, 1 763.75
552035 12/8/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REFUND ROW DEPOSIT - 2605 N. P 465.00
552036 12/8/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND GROUNDROW-21-00609 PARTIAL REF 641.00
552037 12/8/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REFUND ROW DEPOSIT - 1441 MANH 465.00
552038 12/8/2022 P D & H FIRE PROTECTION INC FIRE PROTECTION SERVICES 1,775.00
552039 12/8/2022 P DANA STAGGS BEGG POOL MASTERS PAYMENT 495.00
552040 12/8/2022 P DEMARIA ELECTRIC MOTOR SERVICES INC EMERGENCY PUMP REPAIR 23RD & P 15,536.09
552041 12/8/2022 P DONNOE & ASSOCIATES INC TEST BOOKLETS AND EXAM RENTAL 1,030.00
552042 12/8/2022 P DUDEK DUDEK (HOUS ELMNT CONTR) INV A 15,920.00
552043 12/8/2022 P EBIX INC INSURANCE CERTIFICATE DATA MAN 60.67
552044 12/8/2022 P ELEVATORS ETC LP ELEVATOR AND ESCALATOR MAINTEN 620.00
552045 12/8/2022 P EMPLOYEE REFUND VENDOR REIMBURSEMENT - TRAVEL EXPENSE 92.00
552046 12/8/2022 P EMPLOYEE REFUND VENDOR 11/27/22 KDOHERTY PE RENEWAL - 180.00
552047 12/8/2022 P EMPLOYEE REFUND VENDOR REIMBURSEMENT - TRAVEL EXPENSE 97.25
552048 12/8/2022 P EQUINIX INC DATA CENTER SECURE RACK SERVIC 1,470.00
552049 12/8/2022 P E SOURCE COMPANIES LLC WATER LOSS AUDIT VALIDATION SE 2,500.00
552050 12/8/2022 P ARMENA JEHANIAN COOKING WORKSHOPS FOR THE REC 1,200.00
552051 12/8/2022 P FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC INTERNET SERVICES 2,886.20
552052 12/8/2022 P FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS OF AMERICA INTERNET SERVICES 11,189.35
552053 12/8/2022 P FUSUS FUSUS VIDEO STORAGE & INVESTIG 24,500.00
552054 12/8/2022 P GAIL MINDY WINTHROP WATER AEROBICS PAYMENT 405.00
552055 12/8/2022 P GOVERNMENTJOBS COM INC SUBSCRIPTION FEE TO GOVERNMENT 1,919.76
552056 12/8/2022 P HADRONEX INC SMARTCOVER SEWER TECHNOLOGY 1,009.16
552057 12/8/2022 P HANSON BRIDGETT LLP WORKPLACE & ADMINISTRATIVE INV 1,002.50
552058 12/8/2022 P HARRIS & ASSOCIATES INC STREET LIGHTING/LANDSCAPE ASSE 9,500.00
552059 12/8/2022 P HDR ENGINEERING INC 1200479227 3/27-10/22/22 CORRO 3,625.88
552060 12/8/2022 P IDS GROUP INC 22X081.00-1 SEISMIC SURVEY LOT 22,980.00
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

WARRANT REGISTER

WARRANT #: AP120822

CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552061 12/8/2022 P INFOSEND INC ELECTRONIC BILL PRESENTMENT - 10,232.24
552062 12/8/2022 P IPS GROUP INC PARKING METER FEES, PARTS & LA 4,351.14
552063 12/8/2022 P K-9 SERVICES LLC MAINTENANCE TRAINING NOV 2022 1,000.00
552064 12/8/2022 P KCM HAMBURGER LLC CATERER FOR EMPLOYEE EVENTS 3,461.00
552065 12/8/2022 P KEVIN GRES CITATIONS 1,440.00
552066 12/8/2022 P KEVORK ENTERPRISES INC AUTO BODY REPAIRS 385.88
552067 12/8/2022 P LA COUNTY CLERK/RECORDER SEPT 2022 LA COUNTY ELECTRONIC 230.00
552068 12/8/2022 P LEBO AUTOMOTIVE 2023 TOYOTA SIENNA FOR PD 49,999.13
552069 12/8/2022 P LEIGHTON CONSULTING INC 53724 OCT'22 FIRE STATION NO. 2,624.00
552070 12/8/2022 P LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE LEGAL SERVICES FOR EMPLOYMENT 4,250.00
552071 12/8/2022 P LISA KAY GALLATIN CONTRACTED BACKGROUND INVESTIG 3,105.30
552072 12/8/2022 P LOS ANGELES COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF ANNUAL ADMINISTRATIVE FEE OF $ 888.00
552073 12/8/2022 P MELAD AND ASSOCIATES INC PC HRLY - OCT 2022 3,825.00
552074 12/8/2022 P MERCHANTS LANDSCAPE SVCS INC LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 30,267.26
552075 12/8/2022 P MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERV 3,050.80
552076 12/8/2022 P MEREDITH R MILLER HEALTH & WELLNESS PROGRAM 880.00
552077 12/8/2022 P NAVIA BENEFIT SOLUTIONS INC FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT ADMI 294.40
552078 12/8/2022 P NAVIA BENEFIT SOLUTIONS INC FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT ADMI 294.40
552079 12/8/2022 P NELLY KORENEVSKY FALL 2022 ZUMBA INVOICE 599.40
552080 12/8/2022 P PACIFIC ADVANCED CIVIL ENG 6602 OCT' 22 LARSSON STREET PU 1,002.50
552081 12/8/2022 P PK HEALTHCARE SERVICES INC ANNUAL ONSITE EMPLOYEE FLU SHO 2,425.00
552082 12/8/2022 P RACE TELECOMMUNICATIONS INC INTERNET SERVICES/SOUTH BAY FI 4,622.80
552083 12/8/2022 P REGENTS UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA LOS NURSE EDUCATOR CONTRACT 2,856.20
552084 12/8/2022 P ROBERT MICHAEL SCHWIEGER BROADCAST SERVICES FOR CITY ME 6,595.00
552085 12/8/2022 P ROSEMARY A LACKOW PC 11-9-22 MTG MINS SECRETARY 280.00
552086 12/8/2022 P SABLE COMPUTER INC NETWORK SECURITY SERVICES 740.00
552087 12/8/2022 P SEA CLEAR POOLS INC BEGG POOL MAINTENANCE AND REPA 675.00
552088 12/8/2022 P SHOETERIA INC SAFETY BOOTS 195.45
552089 12/8/2022 P SMART SOURCE OF CALIFORNIA LLC WINTER MANHAPPENINGS POSTCARD 4,335.76
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

WARRANT REGISTER

WARRANT #: AP120822

CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552090 12/8/2022 P SOUTH BAY POLICE TRAINING CMTE SOUTH BAY POLICE TRAINING COMM 630.00
552091 12/8/2022 P SPOK INC SCADA PAGERS FOR WATER PLANT O 24.86
552092 12/8/2022 P STATE OF CALIFORNIA LIVE SCAN SERVICES FOR OCTOBER 737.00
552093 12/8/2022 P SUEZ WTS SERVICES USA INC WATER SYSTEMS TECHNOLOGY 146.81
552094 12/8/2022 P T MOBILE USA MONTHLY SERVICE 61.60
552095 12/8/2022 P TAIT & ASSOCIATES 153500 THRU 10/16/22 ROWELL AV 2,955.69
552096 12/8/2022 P TINA KATCHEN GALL 148 OCT'22 CDBG ADMIN AND LABO 1,755.00
552097 12/8/2022 P UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT OF UNDERGROUND SCHEMATIC NOTIFICA 305.09
552098 12/8/2022 P UNITED RENTALS NORTHWEST INC BOOM RENTAL 3,787.87
552099 12/8/2022 P US BANCORP CARD SERVICES INC PCARD CHARGES FOR OCT. 2022 485,309.08
552100 12/8/2022 P VAN LINGEN BODY SHOP INC TOWING SERVICES 112.00
552101 12/8/2022 P VASILU INC #5 CYCLE 2 SEWER INFRASTRUCTUR 76,000.00
552102 12/8/2022 P VERIZON CALIFORNIA INC SCADA COMMUNICATIONS 6,865.19
552103 12/8/2022 P VERIZON CALIFORNIA INC AMI TABLETS MONTHLY SERVICE CH 2,000.34
552104 12/8/2022 P VITAL MEDICAL SERVICES LLC OK TO BOOK, BLOOD DRAW & TESTI 6,191.00
552105 12/8/2022 P WALTERS WHOLESALE ELECTRIC CO ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES 6,357.09
552106 12/8/2022 P WATER REPLENISHMENT DISTRICT SEPT 2022 32,292.15
552107 12/8/2022 P WECK ANALYTICAL ENVIRONMENTAL LABORATORY SERVICES FOR WATER 1,375.00
552108 12/8/2022 P WEST COAST TENNIS CAMPS INC FALL 2022 THANKSGIVING CAMP IN 4,582.50
552109 12/8/2022 P CA TEAMSTERS LOCAL 911 TEAMSTERS DUES 5,188.00
552110 12/8/2022 P FRANCHISE TAX BOARD EARNINGS WITHHOLDING-PE 12-02- 275.00
552111 12/8/2022 P ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST - 401 DEFERRED COMP 401A PLAN 1,397.48
552112 12/8/2022 P ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST - 457 DEFERRED COMP 457 & LOAN REPAY 75,194.04
552113 12/8/2022 P ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 401 DEFERRED COMP 401A PLAN 14,402.51
552114 12/8/2022 P M B POLICE MGMT ASSC MPPMA DUES 450.00
552115 12/8/2022 P M B POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIA MBPOA DUES 3,404.42
552116 12/8/2022 P MANHATTAN BEACH PART TIME EMPLOYEES MBPTEA DUES 100.00
552117 12/8/2022 P MARCELO SERRANO PE 12-2-22 MBMEA DUES 792.00
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH AR
WARRANT REGISTER N
WARRANT #: AP120822
CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552118 12/8/2022 P PORAC RETIREE MEDICAL TRUST MED TRUST CONTRIBUTION 3,375.00
552119 12/8/2022 P PREPAID LEGAL SERVICES INC PREPAID LEGAL 15.95
552120 12/8/2022 P ROBIN L VARGAS EARNINGS WITHHOLDING 553.85
552121 12/8/2022 P STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT PE 12-2-22 GARNISHMENT 680.76
552122 12/8/2022 P STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT PE 12-2-2022 GARNISHMENT 160.15
552123 12/8/2022 P U.S. BANK PARS CONTRIBUTION 3,281.19
552124 12/8/2022 P VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS RET HEALTH SAVINGS 1,777.07

SUB-TOTAL WARRANT AP120822: 1,117,423.56

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

TOTAL WARRANT(S):

$ 1,876,265.49
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

DISBURSEMENT BY FUND
DATED 12/08/2022

Fund
100
205
210
211
230
234
401
402
501
502
503
520
521
522
601
605
610
615
802

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

Fund Description

General Fund

Streets, Highways & Sidewalks
Asset Forfeiture Fund

Police Safety Grants Fund
Prop. A Fund

Measure M

Capital Improvement Fund
Bond Construction Fund
Water Fund

Stormwater Fund

Wastewater Fund

Parking Fund

County Parking Lots Fund
State Pier and Parking Lot Fun
Insurance Reserve Fund
Information Technology Fund
Fleet Management Fund
Building Maintenance & Operati
Special Deposits Fund

GRAND TOTAL:

Amount
1,486,151.89
32,150.31
12,000.00
24,500.00
4,282.20
2,955.69
2,520.00
2,624.00
51,110.52
23,085.25
83,031.84
18,287.09
215.44
6,446.05
10,645.62
49,344.12
52,917.57
12,078.39
1,919.51

1,876,265.49
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH O\

L s
WARRANT REGISTER @
WARRANT #: AP121522
CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552125 12/15/2022 P ADAMSON POLICE PRODUCTS LAW EMFORCEMEMT SUPPLIES 694.50
552126 12/15/2022 P ADMIMSURE IMC WC CLAIMS ADMIMISTRATION 22,493.00
o52127 12/15/2022 P ADVANCED IMAGING STRATEGIES SYR MULTIFUNCTION COPIERS & PR 2,304.43
552128 12/15/2022 P ARDURRA GROUP IMNC 130397 OCT'22 ON-CALL PROJECT 3815500
552129 12/15/2022 P ATE&T MOBILITY MOBILE CHARGES: HR & RISK 470,05
552130 12/15/2022 P BEACHFROMT BUSIMESS SERVICES MME BID ADVISORY BOARD EXECLUTI 1,260.00
252131 12/15/2022 P BELL EVENT SERVICES 2022 PIER LIGHTING LIGHTS AND 2,500.00
552132 12/15/2022 P CA MEWSPAPER PARTMERSHIP ADVERTISING 10,283.83
552133 12/15/2022 P CA WATER SERVICE COMPANY WATER SERVICE 142.05
552134 12/15/2022 P CHARTER COMMUMNICATIOMNS HOLDING LLC CABLE SERWVICE 109.48
552135 12/15/2022 P CITY OF HAWTHORME JAIL SERVICES - SEPTEMEER 2022 2,400.00
552136 12/15/2022 P COMCENTRA HEALTH SERVICES IMC DOT RAMDOM TESTING 50.00
552137 12/15/2022 P CONTEMPORARY SERVICES CORP CROWD MGMT SERVICES - MEBE AMEBAS 8,864.00
552138 12/15/2022 P CULLIGAM ART CENTER FOUMNTAIMN SERVICING 142.90
552139 12/15/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUMND REIMBURSEMEMT FOR HOLIDAY STRO 157.88
552140 12/15/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REFLIND PERMIT FEES - 111 M. SE 335.70
552141 12/15/2022 P EMPLOYEE REFUMND VENDOR GAS REIMBURSEMENT FOR M. BERAM 62.40
552142 12/15/2022 P EMVIROMNMEMNTAL SYSTEMS RESEARCH INSTITUTE  GIS ENTERPRISE LICEMSE SOFTWAR 35,000.00
552143 12/15/2022 P FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION DELWVERY SERVICE 117.14
552144 12/15/2022 P FROMTIER CALIFORMIA INC TELEPHOME SERVICE 8,602.22
552145 12/15/2022 P HAZEM AMND SAWYER 20036-003-19 OCT'22 WATER INFR S40.00
552146 12/15/2022 P ID5 GROUP INC T19X043.00-8 10/27-11/30/22 GAS 4 460.00
552147 12/15/2022 P IPS GROUP INC SINGLE-SPACE PARKING METER REP 2,080.50
552148 12/15/2022 P JEMMIFER JAYMNE NOOMNAMN BEGG POOL MASTERS PAYMENT FOR 150.00
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH R

L s
WARRANT REGISTER @;
WARRANT #: AP121522
CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552149 12/15/2022 p KO& CORPORATION IC12067-5 OCT'22 SLURRY SEAL P 4 215.00
552150 12/15/2022 p MAUREEMN DAVIS FALL 2022 SESSION |l INVOICE §35.03
552151 12/15/2022 p MELAD AMD ASSOCIATES INC PC HRLEY-- MOV 2022 2,850.00
552152 12/15/2022 p MNAMCY K BOHL INCORPORATED EMPLOYEE SERVICES FOR NOVEMEER S00.00
552153 12/15/2022 p ROSEMARY & LACKOW MIMUTES SECRETARY, LIBRARY COM 312.00
552154 12/15/2022 p SA ASS0OCIATES PMSHG-17 MOWV'22 PROJECT MAMNAGE 35,227.50
552155 12/15/2022 p SANTIAGO A CORNEIO NOVEMBER 2022 RACQUET COURT CL 1,190.00
552156 12/15/2022 p SBLC INC FALL 2022 BOOST LACROSSE INVOI 1,664.00
552157 12/15/2022 p SBRPCA QUARTERLY ASSESSMEMT-3RD QUART 401,641.25
552158 12/15/2022 p SELECTIVE GIFT INSTITUTE EMPLOYEE SERVICE AWARDS 136.88
552159 12/15/2022 p SO CA MUNICIPAL ATHLETIC FED 2022 SCMAF CLASS INSURAMNCE 3,995.00
552160 12/15/2022 p SOUTHERM CALIFORMNIA EDISON STREET LIGHTING CHARGES 27323.56
552161 12/15/2022 p SOUTHERM CALIFORMNIA EDISON MOMTHLY ELECTRIC CHARGES 4(,083.53
552162 12/15/2022 p SOUTHERM CALIFORMNIA GAS CO MOMTHLY GAS CHARGES 017426
552163 12/15/2022 p STAMDARD INSURAMCE COMPANY MNOB 2022 3,396.80
552164 12/15/2022 p TERRELL LYMNMN THOMPSOM YOGA FOR BETTER POSTURE #38816 2,242 .50
552165 12/15/2022 p THE ART BOX ACADENY THE ART BOX ACADEMY PAYMEMNT 2,593.00
552166 12/15/2022 p THOMAS J BROXTERMANM REGISTRATIOM-MAINTAIMNING ETHIC 150.00
552167 12/15/2022 p TODD ELLIOT MNORTH ME BID HOLIDAY STROLL 850.00
552168 12/15/2022 p UMIFIRST CORPORATION MAT REMTAL F48.72
552169 12/15/2022 p UMITED SITE SVCS OF CA INC PORTAELE RESTROOMS 132047
552170 12/15/2022 p US BAMNK TRUST/CUSTODY CHARGES 201.67
552171 12/15/2022 p VAN LIMGEMN BODY SHOP INC TOWIMNG SERVICE 19.00
552172 12/15/2022 p VERIZOMN CALIFORMIA IMC MOMTHLY SERVICE 177.28
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
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WARRANT REGISTER —
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WARRANT #: AP121522
CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552173 121572022 P VISIOM SERVICE PLAM - (CA4A) VISIOMN PREMIUMS-DECEMEBER. 2022 3.824.14
552174 121572022 P WEST BASIN MUMNICIPAL WATER DIS MOMTHLY WATER PURCHASES 589.011.90
552175 121572022 P WOLFF LAMG CHRISTOPHER CO0000000037 NOV'Z2 FIRE STATI 4 77925

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

SUB-TOTAL WARRANT AP121522:
TOTAL WARRANT(S):

1,301,066.82

1,301,066.82
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

DISBURSEMENT BY FUND
DATED 12/15/2022

Fund
100
201
205
230
231
401
501
502
503
520
601
605
610
615

802

City Council Meeting

January 17, 2023

Fund Description

General Fund

Street Lighting & Landscape Fu
Streets, Highways & Sidewalks
Prop. A Fund

Prop. C Fund

Capital Improvement Fund
Water Fund

Stormwater Fund

Wastewater Fund

Parking Fund

Insurance Reserve Fund
Information Technology Fund
Fleet Management Fund
Building Maintenance & Operati

Special Deposits Fund

GRAND TOTAL:

Amount
562,271.80
3040546
1,402.50
70.65
7,672.50
12,051.75
610,997.42
694.28
4.290.29
5742.27
22,702.24
35,177.28
81.40
7,364.08

142.90

1,301,066.82
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

WARRANT REGISTER

WIRES
CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
992222 12/22/2022 W CA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIRMENT SYSTEM HEALTH PREMIUM JANUARY 2023 439,456.61
9121922 12/19/2022 W CMB RISK MGMT LIABILITY LIAB ACCOUNT REIMBURSEMENT 180,999.03
9122222 12/22/2022 W CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH PE 12-16-2022 FLEX CONTRIBUTIO 6,680.20
912152022 12/15/2022 W PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM PE 11-18-2022 CALPERS CONTRIBUTION 288,960.96
912192022 12/19/2022 W CMB RISK MGMT WORKERS COMP REIMBURSE WCOMP ACCT 459,216.74
912222022 12/22/2022 W PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM PE 12-02-2022 CALPERS CONTRIBU 318,461.95
SUB-TOTAL : 1,693,775.49
WARRANT #: AP122222
CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552176 12/22/2022 P 1 800 PACK RAT LLC PUMPKIN RACE STORAGE RELOCATIO 122.83
552177 12/22/2022 P ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COOP NOVEMBER 2022 SUPPLEMENTAL CAB 947.73
552178 12/22/2022 P ADMINSURE INC WC CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION 17,974.00
552179 12/22/2022 P AM-TEC TOTAL SECURITY INC MONTHLY MONITORING SERVICE 826.50
552180 12/22/2022 P AT&T T1 LINE TO RCC 12/7/22-1/6/23 348.46
552181 12/22/2022 P AT&T MOBILITY AT&T FIRSTNET 1,907.85
552182 12/22/2022 P BARR COMMERCIAL DOOR REPAIR THREE YEAR COMMERCIAL DOOR REP 912.39
552183 12/22/2022 P BRINKS INCORPORATED ARMORED CASH TRANSPORT 1,296.62
552184 12/22/2022 P BRIT WEST SOCCER INC BRIT WEST SOCCER FALL 2022 INV 8,775.00
552185 12/22/2022 P BUSINESS RECOVERY SERVICES REMOTE PAYMENT PROCESSING SERV 620.23
552186 12/22/2022 P CA NEWSPAPER PARTNERSHIP ADVERTISING 1,878.25
552187 12/22/2022 P CCS LOS ANGELES JANITORIAL INC JANITORIAL CONTRACT SERVICES 49,907.60
552188 12/22/2022 P CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING LLC CABLE SERVICE (DECEMBER 2022) 4,047.40
552189 12/22/2022 P CHRISTOPHER CUTRONEO PAYMENT FOR POTTERY SALES AT T 338.65
552190 12/22/2022 P CINDY GREBLIUNAS FALL SESSION Il VOLLEYBALL INS 2,064.00
552191 12/22/2022 P CODE 5 GROUP LLC BAIT TRACKING SERVICES 450.00
552192 12/22/2022 P CONOR CONSULTING LLC POLICE DEPARTMENT STRATEGIC PL 5,612.50
552193 12/22/2022 P CORAL BAY HOME LOANS SKATEDOGS FALL SESSION Il INVO 2,020.20
552194 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND CHUNG-HARPS; CITE 70013344 53.00
552195 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND PULSIPHER; CITE 74011434 53.00
552196 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND MIAN; CITE 72010921 53.00
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

WARRANT REGISTER

WARRANT #: AP122222

CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552197 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND DIEHL; CITE 69010536 53.00
552198 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND DEMARCO; CITE 70013731 53.00
552199 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND AMB REFUND - NOT BILLABLE - TA 117.52
552200 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND FENG; CITE 75012049 53.00
552201 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND UB OVERPAYMENT REFUND - 1347 G 84.88
552202 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND TARNAY; CITE 73014120 53.00
552203 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REFUND CITATION CODE-22-01615 1,000.00
552204 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND WHITELEY; CITE 76007358 53.00
552205 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND 2022 REFUND - AL 00268236 8.20
552206 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND VAZQUEZ; CITE 74012066 53.00
552207 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND AMB REFUND - PATIENT OVERPAID 97.50
552208 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND AMB REFUND - PATIENT OVERPAID 102.33
552209 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND PE-22-00067 PARTIAL REFUND AP 4,176.40
552210 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND FENG; CITE 71012417 53.00
552211 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND AMB REFUND - PATIENT OVERPAID 929.36
552212 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REFUND FEE ELECT-21-00636, 441 102.00
552213 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND UB OVERPAYMENT REFUND - 609 27 2,328.43
552214 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND MAAS; CITE 74012133 53.00
552215 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REFUND PERMIT BLDR-22-01429 - 644.09
552216 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REID; CITE 74011391 53.00
552217 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND SOELLER; CITE 67012310 53.00
552218 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND KORCSMARQS; CITE 62011135 53.00
552219 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND REES; CITE 74013624 53.00
552220 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND OKSAS; CITE 72011459 53.00
552221 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND SHEEHY; CITE 75011614 53.00
552222 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND NEDWICH; CITE 75013038 53.00
552223 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND PARANAWITANE; CITE 67012077 53.00
552224 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND 2022 REFUND BL-23950 161.10
552225 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND SHARPLESS; CITE 74003429 53.00
552226 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND FOLEY; CITE 67011858 84.00
552227 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND MASK CITATION REFUND; MACIULA 100.00
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

WARRANT REGISTER
WARRANT #: AP122222

CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552228 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND GARCIA; CITE 72011254 53.00
552229 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND GONZALEZ; CITE 66009227 53.00
552230 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND LOPEZ; CITE 70013232 53.00
552231 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND MURPHY; CITE 62009760 74.00
552232 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND TOPPING; CITE 74011922 53.00
552233 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND SCHUGEL; CITE 74012763 53.00
552234 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND ROSE; CITE 71012568 53.00
552235 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND WARSTLER; CITE 75012907 53.00
552236 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND MEHL; CITE 72011621 53.00
552237 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND RIDDLE; CITE 73014058 74.00
552238 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND LEE; CITE 74012624 53.00
552239 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND MCMARTIN; CITE 64010421 53.00
552240 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND MEJIA; CITE 64010422 53.00
552241 12/22/2022 P CUSTOMER REFUND 2022 REFUND - AL 00281576 22.00
552242 12/22/2022 P DEWEY SERVICES INC INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT SER 4,860.00
552243 12/22/2022 P DEWEY SERVICES INC INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT SER 850.00
552244 12/22/2022 P EDEN SERINA SENIOR YOGA #38817 AND #38818 2,708.86
552245 12/22/2022 P ELEANOR RAMOS PAYMENT FOR POTTERY SALES AT T 211.25
552246 12/22/2022 P ELEVATORS ETC LP ELEVATOR AND ESCALATOR MAINTEN 620.00
552247 12/22/2022 P EMPLOYEE REFUND VENDOR DATKISSON - ICC CERTIFICATE RE 95.00
552248 12/22/2022 P EMPLOYEE REFUND VENDOR REIMBURSEMENT-HOILIDAY PARTY 149.96
552249 12/22/2022 P EMPLOYEE REFUND VENDOR DRINKING WATER OPERATOR LICENS 105.00
552250 12/22/2022 P EMPLOYEE REFUND VENDOR REIMBURSEMENT-CLASS A LICENSE 87.00
552251 12/22/2022 P EMPLOYEE REFUND VENDOR PD HOLIDAY EVENT 12/08/22 408.73
552252 12/22/2022 P EQUINIX INC DATA CENTER SECURE RACK SERVIC 1,470.00
552253 12/22/2022 P FRANCHISE TAX BOARD EARNINGS WITHHOLDING-PE 12-16- 275.00
552254 12/22/2022 P ARMENA JEHANIAN FROM SCRATCH BAKERS COOKING WO 1,200.00
552255 12/22/2022 P FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC TELEPHONE SERVICE 414.31
552256 12/22/2022 P FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS OF AMERICA INC INTERNET SERVICES 2,621.08
552257 12/22/2022 P GEOSYNTEC CONSULTANTS INC PROJECT MANAGEMENT BEACH CITIE 42,922.11
552258 12/22/2022 P GOLDEN BELL PRODUCTS INC INSECTA TREATMENT OF SEWER MAN 22,313.72
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

WARRANT REGISTER

WARRANT #: AP122222

CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552261 12/22/2022 P HISTORY ASSOCIATES INCORPORATED HISTORICAL COLLECTION SERVICES 6,545.00
552262 12/22/2022 P ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST - 401 PE 12-16-2022 DEFERRED COMP 40 1,397.48
552263 12/22/2022 P ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST - 457 PE 12-16-2022 DEFERRED COMP 45 70,136.86
552264 12/22/2022 P ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST 401 PE 12-16-2022 DEFERRED COMP 40 14,404.18
552265 12/22/2022 P INDEPENDENT CITIES ASSOCIATION ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP FOR FY2022/2 1,777.50
552266 12/22/2022 P INFOSEND INC POSTAGE - NOVEMBER 2022 3,990.31
552267 12/22/2022 P IPS GROUP INC PARKING METER FEES, PARTS & LA 22,739.52
552268 12/22/2022 P IRON MOUNTAIN INFO MNGMT INC RECORDS STORAGE - PERM & ARCHI 1,776.23
552269 12/22/2022 P ITERIS INC 152097 THRU NOV'22 CROSSWALK | 1,010.00
552270 12/22/2022 P JAYCOX CONSTRUCTION CNG CNG STATION MAINTENANCE SERVIC 3,117.33
552271 12/22/2022 P JAYNE JUSTICE FALL SESSION Il CARDIO INVOICE 193.50
552272 12/22/2022 P JESSE CONNER FALL SESSION Il BEACH VOLLEYBA 1,348.00
552273 12/22/2022 P JING NIU PAYMENT FOR POTTERY SALES AT T 28.60
552274 12/22/2022 P KATHRYN HILLIER PAYMENT FOR POTTERY SALES AT T 371.80
552275 12/22/2022 P KOA CORPORATION JC22054-1 NOV'22 MBB & AVIATIO 11,254.00
552276 12/22/2022 P KYUNG L STANFILL PAYMENT FOR POTTERY SALES AT T 679.24
552277 12/22/2022 P L A COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TRAFFIC SERVICES 455.25
552278 12/22/2022 P LA COUNTY CLERK/RECORDER FILING FEE - NOE RESO NO 22-01 75.00
552279 12/22/2022 P LARA ODELL PAYMENT FOR POTTERY SALES AT T 255.45
552280 12/22/2022 P LAZ KARP ASSOCIATES LLC SUPPLEMENTAL PARKING ENFORCEME 29,573.85
552281 12/22/2022 P M & M LIFTS INC PW AERIAL TRUCK REPAIRS 15,051.62
552282 12/22/2022 P M B POLICE MGMT ASSC PE 12-16-2022 MPPMA DUES 450.00
552283 12/22/2022 P M B POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIA PE 12-16-2022 MBPOA DUES 3,404.42
552284 12/22/2022 P MANHATTAN STITCHING COMPANY JACKETS FOR STAFF UNIFORMS 1,429.33
552285 12/22/2022 P MCGOWAN CONSULTING LLC ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVI 15,448.50
552286 12/22/2022 P MERRIMAC ENERGY GROUP BULK FUEL 26,996.70
552287 12/22/2022 P MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL BAKER INTL 11-23-22 INV RE SCO 11,013.55
552288 12/22/2022 P NICHOLAS S DIMATTEO BEACH VOLLEYBALL INSTRUCTION 3,796.00
552289 12/22/2022 P NV 5 INC 300766 OCT'22 UNDERGROUND UTIL 1,600.00
552290 12/22/2022 P ONWARD ENGINEERING 6640 THRU NOV'22 MBB AND SEPUL 11,236.50
552291 12/22/2022 P PACIFIC ADVANCED CIVIL ENG 6710 NOV'22 VOORHEES/PACIFIC P 25,300.00
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

WARRANT REGISTER

WARRANT #: AP122222

CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552294 12/22/2022 P RK SPORTS LLC SPORTBALL FALL SESSION Il INVO 2,544.75
552295 12/22/2022 P ROBERT SIMCIK PAYMENT FOR POTTERY SALES AT T 65.00
552296 12/22/2022 P ROBIN L VARGAS EARNINGS WITHHOLDING-PE 12-16- 553.85
552297 12/22/2022 P ROSEMARY A LACKOW MINUTES SECRETARY - AMENDMENT 408.00
552298 12/22/2022 P SELECTIVE GIFT INSTITUTE EMPLOYEE SERVICE AWARD 27.38
552299 12/22/2022 P YUNEX LLC LIGHT POLE REMOVAL, REPAIR AND 2,806.18
552300 12/22/2022 P SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON MONTHLY ELECTRIC CHARGES 53,455.88
552301 12/22/2022 P STANTEC CONSULTING INC 2020183 OCT'22 PECK RESERVOIR 4,528.00
552302 12/22/2022 P STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT EARNINGS WITHHOLDING-PE 12-16- 160.15
552303 12/22/2022 P STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT EARNINGS WITHHOLDING-PE 12-16- 680.76
552304 12/22/2022 P SULLY MILLER CONTRACTING CO ASPHALT/EMULSION 446.99
552305 12/22/2022 P SUSAN F GOLDSTEIN PAYMENT FOR POTTERY SALES AT T 42.90
552306 12/22/2022 P T MOBILE USA MONTHLY SERVICE 60.64
552307 12/22/2022 P THE PITNEY BOWES BANK INC POSTAGE METER 8,000.00
552308 12/22/2022 P THERESA (TERRI) MCCAUL PAYMENT FOR POTTERY SALES AT T 126.75
552309 12/22/2022 P TURBO DATA SYSTEMS INC CITATION PROCESSING 11,928.26
552310 12/22/2022 P TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC MUNIS ERP IMPLEMENTATION - UTI 7,000.00
552311 12/22/2022 P U.S. BANK PE 12-16-2022 PARS CONTRIBUTIO 3,554.05
552312 12/22/2022 P UNIFIRST CORPORATION UNIFORM AND SAFETY MAT RENTAL 1,547.30
552313 12/22/2022 P VAN LINGEN BODY SHOP INC TOWING SERVICES 104.50
552314 12/22/2022 P VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS PE 12-16-22 RET HEALTH SAVINGS 1,777.07
552315 12/22/2022 P VITAL MEDICAL SERVICES LLC OK TO BOOK, BLOOD DRAW AND TES 6,524.00
552316 12/22/2022 P WALTERS WHOLESALE ELECTRIC CO ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES 23RD & PEC 3,483.45
552317 12/22/2022 P WATER REPLENISHMENT DISTRICT MONTHLY WATER PURCHASES 32,522.43
552318 12/22/2022 P WECK ANALYTICAL ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES INC LABORATORY SERVICES FOR WATER 895.50
552319 12/22/2022 P WEST COAST TENNIS CAMPS INC WCT TENNIS CLASSES KEVIN - FAL 34,348.93
552320 12/22/2022 P WESTMED AMBULANCE INC EMERGENCY AMBULANCE TRANSPORT 28,880.00
552321 12/22/2022 P WILLDAN ENGINEERING INV 00227792 - HRLY PC THRU 11 1,494.53
552322 12/22/2022 P LA COUNTY CLERK/RECORDER NOTICE OF EXEMPTION-RESOLUTION 75.00
SUB-TOTAL WARRANT AP122222: 755,480.77
TOTAL WARRANT(S): $ 2,449,256.26
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

DISBURSEMENT BY FUND
DATED 12/22/2022

Fund
100
201
205
210
230
231
233
234
401
403
501
502
503
520
521
522
601
605

610

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

Fund Description

General Fund

Street Lighting & Landscape Fu
Streets, Highways & Sidewalks
Asset Forfeiture Fund

Prop. A Fund

Prop. C Fund

Measure R

Measure M

Capital Improvement Fund
Underground Assessment Distric
Water Fund

Stormwater Fund

Wastewater Fund

Parking Fund

County Parking Lots Fund
State Pier and Parking Lot Fun
Insurance Reserve Fund
Information Technology Fund

Fleet Management Fund

Amount
1476,712.79
2,806.18
159.90
5,000.00
947.73
11.271.50
470.00
11,254.00
540.00
1,600.00
40,832.30
60,325.18
48,474.20
26,866.84
1,221.69
10,722.94
658,189.77
1527545

45,497.73
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH RN
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DISBURSEMENT BY FUND —
LINANCE
DATED 12/22/2022
615 Building Maintenance & Operati 31,088.06
GRAND TOTAL: 2,449,256.26
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH AR

e

WARRANT REGISTER @
WIRES
CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
912272022 12/27/2022 W UMNIOMN BAMK F.LT. /51T, AND MEDICARE 289 8617.82

SUB-TOTAL : 289,861.82
WARRANT #: AP122922
CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
552323 12/29/,2022 P BIG BELLY SOLAR LLC BIG BELLY SOLAR TRASH/RECYCLIMN 2,323.29
552324 12/29/2022 p BUTIER. EMGIMEERING IMC 27 MAMNHATTAN NOV'22 PECK RESER 81,927.50
552325 12/29/,2022 P DELL MARKETING LP M365 SUBSCRIPTION ADDOM 1,078.00
552326 12/29/,2022 P EMPLOYEE REFUMND VEMDOR REIMBURSEMEMT COSTCO 83.67
552327 12/29/,2022 P EMPLOYEE REFUMND VEMDOR REIMBURSEMEMT FOR, SBCCOG LUMCH ac.00
552328 12/29/,2022 P GLEMM & RICK ENGINEERING & DEVELOPMEMNT 91898 10/29-11,/25/22 DESIGM 5E 4630.20
552329 12/29/,2022 P L & COUNTY DEPARTMEMT OF PUBLIC WORKS TRAFFIC SIGMNAL MAINTANENCE 10,072.10
552330 12/29/,2022 P MELAD AMD ASSOCIATES INC PC - NOV 2022 44 885.63
552321 12/29/2022 p MERCHANTS LANDSCAPE SVCS INC LAMDSCAPE MAINTEMNAMCE SERVICES 109,439.54
552332 12/29/,2022 P ORAMGE COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT REGISTRATIOM-ARREST & COMNTROL 15.00
552333 12/29/,2022 P PACIFIC HYDROTECH CORPORATIOMN C2016-024 NOV'22 8 MG PECK RES 1,445 686.54
552334 12/29/,2022 P PROFORCE MARKETIMNG IMNC POLICE DEPT SUPPLIES a45.18
552335 12/29/,2022 p QUICK CRETE PRODUCTS CORP 126583 BERUCE BEACH PLAQUE (PED 9,.862.67
552336 12/29/,2022 P SOUTH COAST AQMD EM ELEC GEM DIESEL PECK RESERV 620.61
552337 12/29/,2022 P SOUTHERM CALIFORMIA EDISOM MOMTHLY ELECTRIC CHARGES 165.37
552338 12/29/,2022 P SUPERIOR COURT OF CA-CO OF LA CITATION SURCHARGE - NOVEMEBER 62,241.80
552330 12/29/,2022 P THE CODE GROUP IMNC PC NOWV 2022 30,0038
552340 12/29/,2022 P UMIFIRST CORPORATION UMIFORM AMD MAT RENTAL AUG 22 1,846.20
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

X [
e
WARRANT REGISTER —
LInanck-
WARRANT #: AP122922
CHECK # DATE TYPE PAYEE NAME DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
252341 12/28/2022 p WILLDAMN ENGIMEERIMG NV 00713054 - MITRCOMPL THRU 21,634.26
SUB-TOTAL WARRANT AP122922: 1,857,530.74
TOTAL WARRANT(5): 2,147,392.56
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

DISBURSEMENT BY FUND
DATED 12/29/2022

Fund Fund Description

100 General Fund

233 Measure R

501 Water Fund

502 Stormwater Fund

503 Wastewater Fund

520 Parking Fund

521 County Parking Lots Fund
522 State Pier and Parking Lot Fun
605 Information Technology Fund
610 Fleet Management Fund

615 Building Maintenance & Operati
802 Special Deposits Fund

GRAND TOTAL:

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

Amount
590,897.46
4,630.20
1,531,947.69
1,549.06
403.16
2,620.86
2,453.48
590.40
1,078.00
67.12
1,292.46

9,862.67

$2,147,392.56
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH PAYROLL
PAY PERIOD: 11/19/22 TO 12/02/22
PAY DATE: 12/09/22

NET PAY 1,288,292.45
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

F I
DISBURSEMENT BY FUND %ﬁ
~Eaeh

DATED 12/02/2022
Fund Fund Description Amount
100 General Fund 1,683,898.54
230 Prop. A Fund 16,547.69
501 Water Fund 47,439.73
502 Stormwater Fund 6,296.18
503 Wastewater Fund 18,035.18
520 Parking Fund 5,796.33
521 County Parking Lots Fund 1,165.54
522 State Pier and Parking Lot Fun 1,165.57
601 Insurance Reserve Fund 15,72509
605 Information Technology Fund 59,688.85
610 Fleet Management Fund 15,062.90
615 Building Maintenance & Operati 20,545.61
801 Pension Trust Fund 7,669.60

GRAND TOTAL: 1,899,036.81

LESS: DEDUCTIONS 610,744.36

NET PAYROLL $1,288,292.45
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH PAYROLL
PAY PERIOD: 12/03/22 TO 12/16/22
PAY DATE: 12/23/22

NET PAY 1,103,420.70
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH =0
DISBURSEMENT BY FUND %ﬁ
~Eaeh
DATED 12/16/2022
Fund Fund Description Amount
100 General Fund 1,358,051.67
230 Prop. A Fund 16,899.51
501 Water Fund 42,284.40
502 Stormwater Fund 403446
503 Wastewater Fund 17,376.05
520 Parking Fund 5,506.86
521 County Parking Lots Fund 1,09540
522 State Pier and Parking Lot Fun 1,095.41
601 Insurance Reserve Fund 1572507
605 Information Technology Fund 97.467.72
610 Fleet Management Fund 13,705.26
615 Building Maintenance & Operati 21,256.31
801 Pension Trust Fund 7,669.60
GRAND TOTAL: 1,602,167.72
LESS: DEDUCTIONS 498,747.02

NET PAYROLL

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

$1,103,420.70
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City of Manhattan Beach

Finance Department

Investment Portfolio
November 2022

As Finance Director for the City of Manhattan Beach, | hereby certify that these
investments are in compliance with the City’s investment policy (unless
otherwise noted). Sufficient liquidity has been maintained to meet budget
expenditure requirements for the current six month period.

By 4

Steve S. Charelian, Finance Director

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

Portfolio Management
Portfolio Summary

November 1, 2022 through November 30, 2022

Par Market Book % of Days to YT™M YT™M

Investments Value Value Value  Portfolio Term Maturity 360 Equiv. 365 Equiv.
LAIF 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 32.11 1 1 1.980 2.007
Medium Term Notes 13,000,000.00 12,335,720.00 12,700,666.52 10.20 1,677 734 2.501 2.536
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 34,000,000.00 32,801,740.00 33,962,952.67 27.27 1,462 658 2.227 2.258
Treasury Securities - Coupon 39,000,000.00 35,757,320.00 37,889,425.44 30.42 1,571 1,106 1.775 1.800

126,000,000.00 120,894,780.00 124,553,044.63 100.00% 1,048 591 2.038 2.066
Investments
Cash
Passbook/Checking 4,878,053.08 4,878,053.08 4,878,053.08 1 1 0.000 0.000
(not included in yield calculations)
Total Cash and Investments 130,878,053.08 125,772,833.08 129,431,097.71 1,048 591 2.038 2.066

Total Earnings

November 30 Month Ending

Fiscal Year To Date

Current Year

179,954.61

STEVE S. CHARELIAN, FINANCE DIRECTOR

Reporting period 11/01/2022-11/30/2022

Run Date: 01/06/2023 - 09:25

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

Portfolio CITY
CcpP

PM (PRF_PM1) 7.3.11
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Portfolio Management page 1
Portfolio Details - Investments
November 30, 2022

Purchase Stated YTM Daysto  Maturity

CUSIP Investment # Issuer Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate S&P 365 Maturity Date
LAIF
SYS3000 3000 Local Agency Invest. Fund 07/01/2018 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 2.007 2.007 1

Subtotal and Average 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 2.007 1
Medium Term Notes
037833AK6 MTNO098 APPLE INC 05/22/2018 1,000,000.00 990,040.00 993,212.52 2.400 AA+  3.298 153 05/03/2023
037833DB3 MTNO0112 APPLE INC 10/25/2022 1,000,000.00 945,370.00 914,486.00 2.900 4.905 1,746 09/12/2027
023135BX3 MTNO111 AMAZON.COM LLC 02/24/2022 1,000,000.00 891,370.00 962,522.34 1.000 AA 1963 1,258 05/12/2026
06406FADS5S MTNO0106 BANK OF NY MELLO 09/09/2019 1,000,000.00 982,070.00 1,009,011.00 2.200 A 1951 258 08/16/2023
06406RAL1 MTNO0109 BANK OF NY MELLO 02/10/2020 1,000,000.00 952,700.00 1,011,205.00 2.100 A 1850 693 10/24/2024
254687FK7 MTN0107 Walt Disney 12/12/2019 2,000,000.00 1,900,200.00 1,990,531.60 1.750 A- 1977 638 08/30/2024
478160CP7 MTNO113 Johnson & Johnson 10/25/2022 1,000,000.00 869,630.00 840,970.00 0.950 4593 1,735 09/01/2027
191216CL2 MTNO0108 COCA-COLA CO 12/12/2019 1,000,000.00 959,150.00 993,679.00 1.750 A+ 1.890 645 09/06/2024
594918BQ6 MTNO0104 MICROSOFT CORP 07/01/2019 1,000,000.00 982,670.00 999,000.00 2.000 AAA  2.025 250 08/08/2023
58933YAY1 MTNO0110 MERCK & CO INC 10/05/2021 1,000,000.00 895,370.00 991,420.00 0.750 A+ 0.950 1,181 02/24/2026
89236 TFNO MTNO099 TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 09/21/2018 1,000,000.00 988,450.00 999,500.00 3.450 A+ 3.461 293 09/20/2023
89236 TDK8 MTNO101 TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 03/26/2019 1,000,000.00 978,700.00 995,129.06 2.250 A+ 2.634 321 10/18/2023

Subtotal and Average 13,000,000.00 12,335,720.00 12,700,666.52 2.536 734
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
3133EJDE6 FAC0271 FED FARM CR BK 02/16/2018 2,000,000.00 1,991,720.00 1,998,598.80 2.570 AA+ 2.708 77 02/16/2023
3133EJSD2 FAC0276 FED FARM CR BK 10/02/2018 2,000,000.00 1,978,660.00 1,990,360.00 2.890 AA+  3.000 200 06/19/2023
3133EJK57 FAC0278 FED FARM CR BK 12/12/2018 2,000,000.00 1,975,720.00 2,005,564.87 3.080 AA+  2.840 235 07/24/2023
3133ENPX2 FAC0294 FED FARM CR BK 02/24/2022 1,000,000.00 938,710.00 997,642.00 1.800 AA+  1.870 995 08/22/2025
3133EJDV8 FAC0296 FED FARM CR BK 04/11/2022 2,000,000.00 1,930,120.00 2,037,426.79 3.150 AA+ 2747 1,572 03/22/2027
3133ENWP1 FAC0297 FED FARM CR BK 05/16/2022 2,000,000.00 1,942,600.00 2,000,000.00 2.625 AA+ 2625 532 05/16/2024
3133ENEJ5 FACO0301 FED FARM CR BK 06/17/2022 1,000,000.00 933,080.00 944,835.84 0.875 3.250 718 11/18/2024
3133ENV72 FACO0303 FED FARM CR BK 10/27/2022 1,000,000.00 1,011,560.00 998,356.00 4.500 4550 1,334 07/27/2026
3130A3KM5 FAC0268 Federal Home Loan Bank 01/10/2018 2,000,000.00 1,999,400.00 2,001,325.94 2.500 AA+  2.357 8 12/09/2022
3130A2UW4 FACO0285 Federal Home Loan Bank 12/11/2019 2,000,000.00 1,942,120.00 2,049,048.42 2.875 1.771 652 09/13/2024
3130AGWK7 FAC0289 Federal Home Loan Bank 02/07/2020 1,000,000.00 949,950.00 1,001,306.00 1.500 AA+ 1470 623 08/15/2024
3130A1XJ2 FAC0291 Federal Home Loan Bank 02/04/2021 1,000,000.00 972,790.00 1,051,883.06 2.875 AA+ 0.312 561 06/14/2024
3130A82Q9 FAC0293 Federal Home Loan Bank 02/24/2022 1,000,000.00 936,410.00 995,852.00 1.750 AA+ 1871 1,016 09/12/2025
3130ASDS5 FAC0300 Federal Home Loan Bank 06/17/2022 1,000,000.00 972,160.00 990,620.00 2.750 3.230 575 06/28/2024
3130AN4T4 FAC0302 Federal Home Loan Bank 10/24/2022 1,000,000.00 895,610.00 878,187.00 0.875 4.343 1,289 06/12/2026
3137EAEX3 FAC0298 Federal Home Loan Mortgage 05/13/2022 2,000,000.00 1,799,700.00 1,851,447.42 0.375 AA+ 2722 1,027 09/23/2025
3135G0W66 FAC0286 Fannie Mae 12/11/2019 2,000,000.00 1,896,900.00 1,993,020.00 1.625 AA+ 1.700 684 10/15/2024
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Portfolio Management Page 2
Portfolio Details - Investments
November 30, 2022

Purchase Stated YTM Daysto  Maturity
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate S&P 365 Maturity Date
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
3135G0W66 FAC0287 Fannie Mae 02/07/2020 2,000,000.00 1,896,900.00 2,011,260.00 1.625 AA+ 1500 684 10/15/2024
3135G0V75 FAC0288 Fannie Mae 02/07/2020 2,000,000.00 1,915,540.00 2,010,053.35 1.750 AA+ 1526 579 07/02/2024
3135G0V75 FAC0290 Fannie Mae 02/04/2021 1,000,000.00 957,770.00 1,030,532.13 1.750 AA+  0.259 579 07/02/2024
3135G0U43 FAC0292 Fannie Mae 02/04/2021 1,000,000.00 985,100.00 1,032,548.30 2.875 AA+  0.499 285 09/12/2023
880591EW8 FAC0295 Tennessee Valley Authority 02/24/2022 1,000,000.00 912,130.00 969,705.09  0.750 AA+ 1763 896 05/15/2025
880591CJ9 FAC0299 Tennessee Valley Authority 05/13/2022 1,000,000.00 1,067,090.00 1,123,379.66 6.750 AA+ 2894 1,066 11/01/2025

Subtotal and Average 34,000,000.00 32,801,740.00 33,962,952.67 2.258 658

Treasury Securities - Coupon
912828592 UST0029 US TREASURY 02/14/2019 1,000,000.00 977,340.00 987,069.26 1.250 2.525 242 07/31/2023
9128282D1 UST0030 US TREASURY 02/14/2019 1,000,000.00 975,200.00 987,472.35 1.375 2.432 273 08/31/2023
912828W48 UST0033 US TREASURY 05/13/2019 1,000,000.00 969,490.00 995,039.06 2.125 2.234 455 02/29/2024
912828W71 UST0034 US TREASURY 05/13/2019 1,000,000.00 967,730.00 994,687.50 2.125 2.240 486 03/31/2024
9128282U3 UST0035 US TREASURY 02/07/2020 2,000,000.00 1,912,040.00 2,017,666.34  1.875 1.493 639 08/31/2024
9128287W3 UST0036 US TREASURY 05/28/2021 1,000,000.00 906,480.00 989,911.69  0.250 0.561 942 06/30/2025
912828ZW3 UST0039 US TREASURY 08/11/2021 1,000,000.00 906,480.00 989,626.54  0.250 0.591 942 06/30/2025
912828ZT0 UsT0047 US TREASURY 12/08/2021 1,000,000.00 907,340.00 976,882.03  0.250 1.058 912 05/31/2025
9128287C7 UST0051 US TREASURY 12/09/2021 1,000,000.00 933,200.00 1,003,906.25 1.125 1.001 820 02/28/2025
912828778 UST0054 US TREASURY 04/08/2022 2,000,000.00 1,815,000.00 1,898,276.95 1.500 2.665 1,522 01/31/2027
9128282A7 UST0057 US TREASURY 06/17/2022 1,000,000.00 914,610.00 927,509.56 1.500 3.287 1,353 08/15/2026
912828X88 UST0059 US TREASURY 09/01/2022 1,000,000.00 938,240.00 959,556.97 2.375 3.285 1,626 05/15/2027
912828X88 UST0060 US TREASURY 09/01/2022 1,000,000.00 938,240.00 959,101.56 2.375 3.295 1,626 05/15/2027
9128287V5 UST0062 US TREASURY 09/01/2022 1,000,000.00 859,570.00 875,507.81  0.500 3.241 1,672 06/30/2027
912828YQ7 UST0064 US TREASURY 10/25/2022 1,000,000.00 915,940.00 897,823.26 1.625 4.180 1,430 10/31/2026
91282CAB7 UsST0037 US TREASURY 05/28/2021 2,000,000.00 1,806,100.00 1,978,687.40  0.250 0.576 973 07/31/2025
91282CAJ0 UST0038 US TREASURY 05/28/2021 1,000,000.00 899,840.00 987,818.02  0.250 0.620 1,004 08/31/2025
91282CAB7 UST0040 US TREASURY 08/11/2021 1,000,000.00 903,050.00 989,266.30  0.250 0.601 973 07/31/2025
91282CAJO UsT0041 US TREASURY 08/11/2021 1,000,000.00 899,840.00 988,409.68  0.250 0.586 1,004 08/31/2025
91282CAZ4 UsST0042 US TREASURY 08/09/2021 1,000,000.00 896,370.00 990,074.24  0.375 0.658 1,095 11/30/2025
91282CAB7 UsST0043 US TREASURY 10/05/2021 1,000,000.00 903,050.00 986,324.18  0.250 0.681 973 07/31/2025
91282CAT8 UST0044 US TREASURY 10/05/2021 2,000,000.00 1,792,500.00 1,967,002.06  0.250 0.707 1,065 10/31/2025
91282CCW9 UsST0045 US TREASURY 10/05/2021 1,000,000.00 888,130.00 992,500.00  0.750 0.907 1,369 08/31/2026
91282CCP4 UST0046 US TREASURY 10/05/2021 1,000,000.00 885,900.00 989,051.44  0.625 0.892 1,338 07/31/2026
91282CCF6 UsST0048 US TREASURY 12/09/2021 1,000,000.00 893,910.00 983,274.82  0.750 1.191 1,277 05/31/2026
91282CCJ8 UST0049 US TREASURY 12/09/2021 1,000,000.00 896,450.00 987,351.44  0.875 1.176 1,307 06/30/2026
91282CCz2 UST0050 US TREASURY 12/09/2021 1,000,000.00 890,820.00 985,809.51  0.875 1.210 1,399 09/30/2026
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Purchase Stated YTM Daysto  Maturity
CUsIP Investment # Issuer Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate S&P 365 Maturity Date
Treasury Securities - Coupon
91282CAM3 USTO0052 US TREASURY 02/24/2022 2,000,000.00 1,799,460.00 1,901,147.87 0.250 1.678 1,034 09/30/2025
91282CDG3 UST0053 US TREASURY 04/08/2022 1,000,000.00 897,970.00 936,228.42 1.125 2581 1,430 10/31/2026
91282CEHO0 USTO0055 US TREASURY 05/16/2022 1,000,000.00 963,520.00 996,500.00 2.625 2.750 866 04/15/2025
91282CCP4 UST0056 US TREASURY 06/17/2022 1,000,000.00 885,900.00 895,371.44 0.625 3.187 1,338 07/31/2026
91282CCz2 USTO0058 US TREASURY 06/17/2022 1,000,000.00 890,820.00 901,152.39 0.875 3.302 1,399 09/30/2026
91282CEW7 UST0061 US TREASURY 09/01/2022 1,000,000.00 973,980.00 997,755.04 3.250 3.300 1,672 06/30/2027
91282CFB2 UST0063 US TREASURY 09/01/2022 1,000,000.00 952,810.00 975,664.06 2.750 3.309 1,703 07/31/2027
Subtotal and Average 39,000,000.00 35,757,320.00 37,889,425.44 1.800 1,106
Total and Average 126,000,000.00 120,894,780.00 124,553,044.63 2.066 591
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
Portfolio Management
Portfolio Details - Cash

November 30, 2022

Page 4

Purchase Stated YTM Days to
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate S&P 365 Maturity
Money Market Fund

SYS39903-39902 39901 UNION BANK 07/01/2018 4,878,053.08 4,878,053.08 4,878,053.08 0.000 1
Subtotal and Average 1
Total Cash and Investments 130,878,053.08 125,772,833.08 129,431,097.71 2.066 591
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City of Manhattan Beach
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= TN G Investment Portfolio Summary
— As of November 30, 2022
PORTFOLIO PROFILE Nov 30, 2022 Oct 31, 2022 Sep 30, 2022 Aug 31, 2022 Jul 31, 2022
Total Book Value (Excluding Trust Funds) $124,553,045 $124,553,045 $127,010,065 $127,239,505 $130,236,392
Increase/(Decrease) from Prior Period - (2,457,020) (229,440) (2,996,887) (2,998,458)
Percentage Change 0.0% (1.9%) (0.2%) (2.3%) (2.3%)
Average Yield to Maturity (365 Days) 2.066% 1.991% 1.808% 1.669% 1.624%
Increase/(Decrease) from Prior Period 0.076% 0.183% 0.139% 0.045% 0.060%
PORTFOLIO ALLOCATIONS
By Security Value (Par) Percent Par YTM| [Time Horizon Percent
LAIF* $40,000,000 31.75% 2.007%| [Next 12 months 44%
Medium Term Notes 13,000,000 10.3% 2.536%| |Months 13-24 18%
Federal Agencies 34,000,000 27.0% 2.258%| |Months 25-36 17%
U.S. Treasuries 39,000,000 31.0% 1.800%| [Months 37-48 11%
Total $126,000,000 100.0% 2.065%| [Months 49-60 9%
*LAIF YTM as of November 30, 2022 Total 100.0%

RECENT ACTIVITY
Security Date of Activity = Maturity Date Purchase (Par) Maturing/Call YTM
T - 1.625% Coupon 10/24/2022 10/31/2026 1,000,000 4.180%
MTN - 2.9% Coupon 10/24/2022 9/12/2027 1,000,000 4.905%
MTN - 0.95% Coupon 10/24/2022 9/1/2027 1,000,000 4.593%
FHLB - 0.875% Coupon 10/24/2022 6/12/2026 1,000,000 4.343%
FFCB - 4.5% Coupon 10/24/2022 7/27/2026 1,000,000 4.550%
Total Purchases $5,000,000 4.514%
Matured: T - 2% Coupon 8/1/2022 7/31/2022 2,000,000 2.681%
Matured: T - 2% Coupon 8/1/2022 7/31/2022 1,000,000 2.510%
Matured: TVA - 1.875% Coupon 8/15/2022 8/15/2022 2,000,000 2.793%
Matured: TVA - 1.875% Coupon 8/15/2022 8/15/2022 1,000,000 2.493%
Matured: MTN - 2.5% Coupon 10/15/2022 10/15/2022 1,000,000 2.640%
Matured: T - 2% Coupon 10/31/2022 10/31/2022 1,000,000 2.250%
Total Maturing/Calls $8,000,000 2.605%
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i Investment Portfolio Summary

— As of November 30, 2022

nancE~

FUNDS HELD IN TRUST Value

Police/Fire Refunding Bonds $35.98

Fire Station 2 COPs 60.81

Marine Avenue Refunding Bonds 1.25

Pension Obligation Bonds 2,436.89

Metlox & Water/Wastewater Refunding Bonds 8,327.40

UUAD Assessment Refunding Bonds 512,323.66

UUAD Assessment District 12 & 14 403,578.84

UUAD Assessment District 4 204,036.73

PARS Investment Trust 2,761,607.27

Total Funds Held in Trust $3,892,408.83

As of November 30, 2022
US Treasuries Yield Curve

www.treas.gov

5.00% -
N R—
/ :\:
4.00% - 5 —
/ >
3.00% -
Portfolio, 2.066%
2.00% -
LAIF, 2.007%
1.00% -
0.00%
3-Month 6-Month 2-Year 5-Year 10-Year
=@==September 2022 3.22% 3.71% 3.86% 3.70% 3.52%
==fe=October 2022 3.87% 4.31% 4.38% 4.18% 3.98%
== November 2022 4.32% 4.61% 4.50% 4.06% 3.89%

Monthly yields are interpolated by the Treasury from the daily yield curve.
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH HELD TO MATURITY
Portfolio Maturity Structure Rolling 60 Months
December 2022 through November 2027
Mth Mat. YTM  Inv Call Amt (Mth Mat. YTM  Inv Call Amt |Mth Mat. YTM  Inv Call Amt (Mth Mat. YTM  Inv Call Amt (Mth Mat. YTM Inv Call Amt
Dec 22 12/9/22 2.4% FHLB nc $2.0M |Dec 23 Dec 24 Dec 25 Dec 26
Jan 23 Jan 24 Jan 25 Jan 26 Jan 27 1/31/27 2.67% T nc $2.0M
Feb23 2/16/23 2.7% FFCB nc $2.0M |Feb24 2/29/24 223% T nc $1.0M [Feb25 2/28/25 1.00% T nc $1.0M |Feb 26 2/24/26 0.95% MTN MWwW:10 $1.0M [Feb 27
Mar 23 Mar 24 3/31/24 2.24% T nc $1.0M [Mar 25 Mar 26 Mar 27  3/22/27 2.75% FFCB nc $2.0M
Apr 23 Apr 24 Apr25 4/15/25 275% T nc $1.0M |Apr 26 Apr 27
May 23 5/3/23 3.3% MTN MwW:15 $1.0M |May 24 5/16/24 2.63% FFCB nc $2.0M [May 25 5/15/25 1.76% TVA nc $1.0M |May 26 5/31/26 1.19% T nc $1.0M |May 27 5/15/27 3.28% T nc $1.0M
5/31/25 1.06% T nc $1.0M 5/12/26 1.96% MTN nc $1.0M 5/15/27 3.29% T nc $1.0M
Jun23 6/19/23 3.0% FFCB nc $2.0M |Jun24 6/14/24 0.31% FHLB nc $1.0M [Jun25 6/30/25 0.56% T nc $1.0M |Jun26 6/30/26 1.18% T nc $1.0M |Jun27 6/30/27 3.30% T nc $1.0M
6/28/24 3.23% FHLB nc $1.0M 6/30/25 0.59% T nc $1.0M 6/12/26 4.34% FHLB nc $1.0M 6/30/27 3.24% T nc $1.0M
Jul23  7/24/23 2.8% FFCB nc $2.0M |Jul 24 7/2/24  1.53% FNMA nc $2.0M [Jul25 7/31/25 0.58% T nc $2.0M |Jul26 7/31/26 0.89% T nc $1.0M |Jul27  7/31/27 3.31% T nc $1.0M
7131123 2.5% T nc $1.0M 712124  0.26% FNMA  nc $1.0M 7/31/25 0.60% T nc $1.0M 7/31/26 319% T nc $1.0M
7/31/25 0.68% T nc $1.0M 7/27/26 4.55% FFCB nc $1.0M
Aug 23 8/31/23 2.4% T nc $1.0M |Aug 24 8/15/24 1.47% FHLB nc $1.0M |Aug 25 8/31/25 0.62% T nc $1.0M |Aug 26 8/31/26 0.91% T nc $1.0M |Aug 27
8/8/23 2.0% MTN Mw:125 $1.0M 8/30/24 1.98% MTN 7/30/24 $2.0M 8/31/25 059% T nc $1.0M 8/15/26 3.29% T nc $1.0M
8/16/23 2.0% MTN 6/16/23  $1.0M 8/31/124  1.49% T nc $2.0M 8/22/25 1.87% FFCB nc $1.0M
Sep23 9/20/23 3.5% MTN nc $1.0M |Sep24 9/6/24 1.89% MTN 9/6/24 $1.0M |Sep25 9/12/25 1.87% FHLB nc $1.0M |Sep26 9/30/26 121% T nc $1.0M |Sep27 9/12/27 4.91% MTN nc $1.0M
9/12/23 0.5% FNMA nc $1.0M 9/13/24 1.77% FHLB nc $2.0M 9/23/25 2.72% FHLMC nc $2.0M 9/30/26 3.30% T nc $1.0M 9/1/127 4.59% MTN nc $1.0M
9/30/25 1.68% T nc $2.0M
Oct23 10/18/23 2.6% MTN nc $1.0M |Oct24 10/15/24 1.70% FNMA nc $2.0M [Oct25 10/31/25 0.71% T nc $2.0M |Oct26 10/31/26 2.58% T nc $1.0M |Oct 27
10/15/24 1.50% FNMA  nc $2.0M 10/31/26 4.18% T nc $1.0M
10/24/24 1.85% MTN 9/6/24  $1.0M
Nov 23 Nov 24 11/18/24 3.25% FFCB nc $1.0M [Nov25 11/30/25 0.66% T nc $1.0M |Nov 26 Nov 27
11/1/25 2.89% TVA nc $1.0M
Total By Year (excl LAIF) $16.0m $23.0m $22.0m $14.0m $11.0m
% of Total Securities (excl LAIF) 19% 27% 26% 16% 13%
% of Total Investments (incl LAIF) 44% 18% 17% 11% 9%
Total Securities 68%  $86.0M
LAIF 32% $40.0M
Total Investments 100%  $126.0M

Shaded rows indicate months with significant cash inflows.
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City of Manhattan Beach
Investment Policy Compliance Chart

As of November 30, 2022
Dollar Compliance Percentage Compliance Term Compliance
Instrument % of Total Limit Compliant? Limit Compliant? Limit Compliant?
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $40,000,000 31.7% $75,000,000 Yes Temporary Suspension
Treasury Securities
US Treasury $39,000,000 31.0% 5 Years Yes
Total U.S. Treasuries (34) $39,000,000 31.0%
Medium Term (Corporate) Notes
Coca-Cola 1,000,000 0.8% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Amazon 1,000,000 0.8% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Total Consumer Goods Sector $2,000,000 1.6% 10.0% Yes
Toyota Motor Credit 2,000,000 1.6% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Bank of NY 2,000,000 1.6% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Total Financial Sector $4,000,000 3.2% 10.0% Yes
Johnson & Johnson 1,000,000 0.8% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Merck 1,000,000 0.8% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Total Pharmaceuticals Sector $2,000,000 1.6% 10.0% Yes
Apple Inc 2,000,000 1.6% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Microsoft Corp 1,000,000 0.8% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Total Technology Sector $3,000,000 2.4% 10.0% Yes
Walt Disney Co 2,000,000 1.6% 5.0% Yes 5 Years Yes
Total Communication Services Sector $2,000,000
Total Medium Term Notes (12) $13,000,000 10.3% 20.0% Yes
Federal Agencies
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) $9,000,000 71% 33.3% Yes 5 Years Yes
Federal Farm Credit (FFCB) 13,000,000 10.3% 33.3% Yes 5 Years Yes
Fannie Mae (FNMA) 8,000,000 6.3% 33.3% Yes 5 Years Yes
Freddie Mac (FHLMC) 2,000,000 1.6% 33.3% Yes 5 Years Yes
Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA) 2,000,000 1.6% 33.3% Yes 5 Years Yes
Total Federal Agencies (23) $34,000,000 27.0% 60.0% Yes
Total Portfolio $126,000,000 100.0%
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

TREASURER'S REPORT
November 30, 2022

Investments

LAIF

Treasury Securities

Federal Agency Issues-Coupon
Medium Term Notes

Subtotal Investments

Demand Deposit/Petty Cash
Cash in Bank
Petty Cash

Subtotal Demand Deposit

Subtotal City Cash & Investments

Bond Funds Held in Trust
Police Fire Refunding
Fire Station 2 COPs
Marine Ave Park Refunding
Metlox & Water/Wastewater Refunding
Utility Assessment Districts
Pension Obligation Bonds
Subtotal Bonds Held in Trust

Investment Trust Funds
PARS Pension Rate Stabilization Trust

Treasurer's Balance

City Council Meeting

January 17, 2023

Book Value
$40,000,000.00
37,889,425.44
33,962,952.67
12,700,666.52

$124,553,044.63

$4,878,053.08
2,771.41
$4,880,824.49

$129,433,869.12

$35.98

60.81

1.25
8,327.40
1,119,939.23
2,436.89

$1,130,801.56

2,761,607.27

$133,326,277.95
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PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
A as of 12/14/22

£y — :
¥ Ligyiovt

PMIA Average Monthly Quarterly Performance
Effective Yields(!) Quarter Ended 09/30/22
November  2.007 LAIF Apportionment Rate”?:  1.35
October  1.772 LAIF Earnings Ratio’”:  0.00003699565555327
September  1.513 LAIF Fair Value Factor:  0.980760962

PMIA Daily':  1.63%
PMIA Quarter to Date'?): 1.29%
PMIA Average Life': 304

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (2)
11/30/22
$203.7 billion

Corporate
Commercial Bonds
Time Paper 0.26%
Deposits 4.54% Loans
2.58% 0.18%

Certificates of
Deposit/Bank Notes
6.63%

Agencies
19.46%

Treasuries
66.35%

Chart does not include $3,542,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.002%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Daily rates are now available here. View PMIA Daily Rates

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment
pursuant to Government Code 20825 (c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public
Utility Code 3288 (a).

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2)State of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

City Council Meeting
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City of Manhattan Beach

Finance Department

Month End Report November 30, 2022
Fiscal Year 2022-2023
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City of Manhattan Beach

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Statement of Revenues & Expenditures
As of November 30, 2022

Year-to-Date

Expenditures Encumbrances

Current Year Activity
Adjusted Adjusted
Fund Budget YTD % Budget
No. Revenues Revenues Realized Expenditures

General Fund 100 $86,669,227 $23,370,734 27.0% $86,029,658 $30,510,364
Street Lighting & Landscaping Fund 201 390,822 1,821 0.5% 665,796 193,107
Gas Tax Fund 205 1,798,763 732,570 40.7% 2,075,257 189,603
Asset Forfeiture 210 41,800 18,748 44.9% 135,497 9,783
Police Safety Grants 211 159,000 131,991 83.0% 209,693 24,500
Prop A Fund 230 883,003 415,667 47.1% 788,363 278,599
Prop C Fund 231 712,451 566,068 79.5% 3,511,593 453,735
AB 2766 Fund 232 47,500 17,277 36.4% 673 280
Measure R 233 547,088 390,633 71.4% 1,175,677 42,348
Measure M 234 7,121,033 308,680 4.3% 7,461,244 66,439
Measure W 240 1,611,500 37,609 2.3% 2,349,197 47,738
Capital Improvements Fund 401 1,605,438 753,258 46.9% 8,794,476 1,178,556
Bond Construction Fund 402 - 231,228 n/a 5,405,236 1,683,307
Underground Assessment District Construction 403 - 109,865 n/a 1,552,206 59,586
Water Fund 501 16,472,500 3,792,085 23.0% 28,519,324 11,399,476
Stormwater Fund 502 344,484 59,656 17.3% 2,139,873 494,981
Wastewater Fund 503 3,628,000 1,210,626 33.4% 5,411,858 889,170
Parking Fund 520 3,983,200 2,052,551 51.5% 2,861,687 870,346
County Parking Lots Fund 521 1,363,000 617,024 45.3% 953,214 79,712
State Pier & Parking Lot Fund 522 833,500 423,891 50.9% 795,910 164,096
Insurance Reserve Fund 601 7,549,860 3,204,494 42.4% 8,278,953 5,832,736
Information Systems Reserve Fund 605 3,698,533 1,541,052 41.7% 4,738,564 1,266,359
Fleet Management Fund 610 2,772,827 1,101,053 39.7% 4,593,948 1,162,420
Building Maintenance & Operation Fund 615 2,195,831 705,169 32.1% 2,596,244 721,547
Special Assessment Debt Service 710 714,150 5,355 0.7% 700,450 663,875
Special Assessment UAD 19-12 19-14 Fund 711 606,106 6,313 1.0% 609,007 499,453
Special Assessment UAD 19-4 Fund 712 337,613 3,496 1.0% 341,813 278,506
City Pension Fund 801 264,480 833 0.3% 196,680 79,088
PARS Investment Trust 804 50,000 20,531 41.1% - -

$146,401,709 $41,830,277 28.6% $182,892,091 $59,139,709

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

$1,078,647
5,322
1,106,479
27,747
30,193
6,560
1,522,432
883,198
548,515
1,101,650
3,022,727
3,721,929
244,019
10,612,188
164,360
1,145,960
22,831
49,595
191,516
605,617
1,734,406
377,588

$28,203,478

% of Year

41.7%

%

Utilized

36.7%
29.8%
62.5%
27.7%
26.1%
36.2%
56.3%
41.6%
78.7%
8.2%
48.9%
47 .8%
100.0%
19.6%
77.2%
30.8%
37.6%
31.2%
8.4%
26.8%
72.8%
39.5%
63.1%
42.3%
94.8%
82.0%
81.5%
40.2%

32.3%
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General Fund

Street Lighting & Landscaping Fund
Gas Tax Fund

Asset Forfeiture

Police Safety Grants

Prop A Fund

Prop C Fund

AB 2766 Fund

Measure R

Measure M

Measure W

Capital Improvements Fund

Bond Construction Fund

Underground Assessment District Construction
Water Fund

Stormwater Fund

Wastewater Fund

Parking Fund

County Parking Lots Fund

State Pier & Parking Lot Fund

Insurance Reserve Fund

Information Systems Reserve Fund

Fleet Management Fund

Building Maintenance & Operation Fund
Special Assessment Debt Service
Special Assessment UAD 19-12 19-14 Fund
Special Assessment UAD 19-4 Fund

City Pension Fund

PARS Investment Trust
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Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Citywide Revenues

Fund

No.

100
201
205
210
211
230
231
232
233
234
240
401
402
403
501
502
503
520
521
522
601
605
610
615
710
711
712
801
804

City of Manhattan Beach

As of November 30, 2022

Original
Budget

$86,669,227
390,822
1,798,763
41,800
159,000
883,003
712,451
47,500
547,088
5,921,033
1,611,500
1,605,438

16,472,500
344,484
3,628,000
3,983,200
1,363,000
833,500
7,549,860
3,698,533
2,772,827
2,195,831
714,150
606,106
337,613
264,480
50,000

$145,201,709

Budget
Adjustments

$0

1,200,000

$1,200,000

$146,401,709

Current Year Activity

Adjusted  Year-to-Date

Budget Actuals
$86,669,227 $23,370,734
390,822 1,821
1,798,763 732,570
41,800 18,748
159,000 131,991
883,003 415,667
712,451 566,068
47,500 17,277
547,088 390,633
7,121,033 308,680
1,611,500 37,609
1,605,438 753,258
- 231,228
- 109,865
16,472,500 3,792,085
344,484 59,656
3,628,000 1,210,626
3,983,200 2,052,551
1,363,000 617,024
833,500 423,891
7,549,860 3,204,494
3,698,533 1,541,052
2,772,827 1,101,053
2,195,831 705,169
714,150 5,355
606,106 6,313
337,613 3,496
264,480 833
50,000 20,531

$41,830,277

Unrealized
Amount

63,298,493
389,001
1,066,193
23,052
27,009
467,336
146,383
30,223
156,455
6,812,353
1,573,891
852,180

(231,228)
(109,865)

12,680,415
284,828
2,417,374
1,930,649
745,976
409,609
4,345,366
2,157,481
1,671,774
1,490,662
708,795
599,793
334,117
263,647
29,469

$104,571,432

% of Year
41.7%

%
Realized

27.0%
0.5%
40.7%
44.9%
83.0%
47.1%
79.5%
36.4%
71.4%
4.3%
2.3%
46.9%
100.0%
100.0%
23.0%
17.3%
33.4%
51.5%
45.3%
50.9%
42.4%
41.7%
39.7%
32.1%
0.7%
1.0%
1.0%
0.3%
41.1%

28.6%
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City of Manhattan Beach

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Citywide Expenditures
As of November 30, 2022

% of Year
41.7%
Current Year Activity

Fund Original Budget Adjusted Year-to-Date Available %
No. Budget Adjustments* Budget Actuals Encumbrances Budget Utilized
General Fund 100 $85,275,151 $754,507 $86,029,658 $30,510,364 $1,078,647 $54,440,648 36.7%
Street Lighting & Landscaping Fund 201 612,022 53,774 665,796 193,107 5,322 467,367 29.8%
Gas Tax Fund 205 1,575,138 500,119 2,075,257 189,603 1,106,479 779,175 62.5%
Asset Forfeiture 210 107,750 27,747 135,497 9,783 27,747 97,967 27.7%
Police Safety Grants 211 155,000 54,693 209,693 24,500 30,193 155,000 26.1%
Prop A Fund 230 780,646 7,717 788,363 278,599 6,560 503,204 36.2%
Prop C Fund 231 1,260,138 2,251,455 3,511,593 453,735 1,522,432 1,535,426 56.3%
AB 2766 Fund 232 673 - 673 280 - 393 41.6%
Measure R 233 760,138 415,539 1,175,677 42,348 883,198 250,130 78.7%
Measure M 234 5,870,138 1,591,106 7,461,244 66,439 548,515 6,846,290 8.2%
Measure W 240 1,200,000 1,149,197 2,349,197 47,738 1,101,650 1,199,808 48.9%
Capital Improvements Fund 401 6,442,589 2,351,887 8,794,476 1,178,556 3,022,727 4,593,193 47.8%
Bond Construction Fund 402 - 5,405,236 5,405,236 1,683,307 3,721,929 - 100.0%
Underground Assessment District Construction 403 1,285,750 266,456 1,552,206 59,586 244,019 1,248,601 19.6%
Water Fund 501 13,304,706 15,214,618 28,519,324 11,399,476 10,612,188 6,507,660 77.2%
Stormwater Fund 502 1,836,564 303,309 2,139,873 494,981 164,360 1,480,532 30.8%
Wastewater Fund 503 4,710,392 701,466 5,411,858 889,170 1,145,960 3,376,729 37.6%
Parking Fund 520 2,698,608 163,079 2,861,687 870,346 22,831 1,968,511 31.2%
County Parking Lots Fund 521 953,214 - 953,214 79,712 - 873,502 8.4%
State Pier & Parking Lot Fund 522 737,458 58,452 795,910 164,096 49,595 582,219 26.8%
Insurance Reserve Fund 601 8,243,352 35,601 8,278,953 5,832,736 191,516 2,254,701 72.8%
Information Systems Reserve Fund 605 4,276,387 462,177 4,738,564 1,266,359 605,617 2,866,588 39.5%
Fleet Management Fund 610 2,490,440 2,103,508 4,593,948 1,162,420 1,734,406 1,697,123 63.1%
Building Maintenance & Operation Fund 615 2,195,831 400,413 2,596,244 721,547 377,588 1,497,108 42.3%
Special Assessment Debt Service 710 700,450 - 700,450 663,875 - 36,575 94.8%
Special Assessment UAD 19-12 19-14 Fund 711 609,007 - 609,007 499,453 - 109,554 82.0%
Special Assessment UAD 19-4 Fund 712 341,813 - 341,813 278,506 - 63,307 81.5%
City Pension Fund 801 196,680 - 196,680 79,088 - 117,592 40.2%

PARS Investment Trust 804 - - - - - - -
$148,620,035 $34,272,056 $182,892,091 $59,139,709 $28,203,478 $95,548,904 47.8%

*Budget Adjustments include City Council-approved adjustments during the current year and encumbrances carried forward from the prior year.
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City of Manhattan Beach

Percent of Year

> R4
(TG Fiscal Year 2022-2023 General Fund Major Revenue Trends 4L.7%
o s
— November 30, 2022
~nanct
Fund Year-To-Date Actuals FY 2023
Major Revenue Accounts No. 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Adj Budget Realized
Property Taxes 100 1,108,623 1,180,089 1,293,478 1,369,646 1,295,740 824,597 38,049,313 2.2%
Sales & Use Tax 100 3,778,091 3,801,368 4,041,448 3,294,389 4,311,560 4,838,676 9,260,000 52.3%
Franchise Tax (a) 100 324,281 326,909 316,483 299,254 289,135 198,376 1,135,000 17.5%
Hotel Tax 100 1,750,697 1,906,547 2,192,832 915,719 2,109,006 3,045,913 4,025,000 75.7%
Business License Tax 100 253,432 377,112 436,630 691,497 989,699 565,514 3,600,000 15.7%
Real Estate Transfer Tax 100 374,591 415,056 466,293 339,188 663,510 246,602 810,000 30.4%
Building Permits 100 794,408 722,003 702,786 621,607 639,924 768,695 1,532,712 50.2%
Parking Citations 100 1,052,148 934,035 863,258 701,140 891,113 932,091 1,875,000 49.7%
Interest Earnings 100 344,380 440,580 555,322 470,235 315,894 2,360,592 637,522 370.3%
Marriott Hotel Rent 100 698,053 806,420 987,326 443,005 636,865 569,188 1,350,000 42.2%
Vehicle in Lieu 100 - - - - - - 17,000 0.0%
Building Plan Check Fees 100 858,867 827,131 732,195 840,706 781,471 668,285 1,755,000 38.1%
Total Major Revenue Accounts 11,337,572 11,737,250 12,588,051 9,986,387 12,923,917 15,018,530 64,046,547 23.4%
Over/(Under) Prior Year 399,678 850,802 (2,601,664) 2,937,530 2,094,613
Percent Change From Prior Year 3.5% 7.2% (20.7%) 29.4% 16.2%
Other Revenues 6,557,028 8,229,100 6,627,225 5,840,017 6,299,404 8,352,204 22,622,680 36.9%
Total General Fund Revenues 17,894,599 19,966,350 19,215,276 15,826,404 19,223,320 23,370,734 86,669,227 27.0%
General Fund Major Revenue Sources M Fiscal Year 2022-23
November 30, 2022 Fiscal Year 2021-22
Property Taxes
Sales & Use Tax
Franchise Tax (a)
Hotel Tax
Business License Tax
Real Estate Transfer Tax
Building Permits
Parking Citations
Interest Earnings
Marriott Hotel Rent
Building Plan Check Fees
$0 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 $5,000,000

(a) The structure of payments for the some of the franchise fees has changed resulting in lower initial revenues at the beginning of the fiscal year as compared to prior years. This
revenue will self adjust throughout the year to better align with prior full-year numbers.
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City of Manhattan Beach

Fiscal Year-To-Date General Fund Trends
Through November Year-Over-Year

Percent of Year
41.7%

Property Taxes

Sales & Use Tax

Business License Tax

$40,000,000 - $12,500,000 - $5,500,000 -
$32,000,000 - $10,000,000 - $4,400,000 -
$24,000,000 - $7,500,000 - $3,300,000 -
$16,000,000 - $5,000,000 - $2,200,000 -
$8,000,000 - $2,500,000 - $1,100,000 -
$O === mmm  mem s omes o $0 - $0 ____,_-_,_-_,_._,_._,_-_\
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Real Estate Transfer Tax Franchise Tax Interest Earnings
$1,500,000 - $2,000,000 - $2,500,000 -
$1,250,000 - 1
$1,000,000 $1,500,000 1 52000,000
e $1,500,000 -
$750,000 - $1,000,000 -
$500,000 - $1,000,000 -
$250,000 | $500,000 - $500,000 -
50 | o/l H H H N = 50 |
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Building Permits Building Plan Check Fees Parking Citations
$2,200,000 - $2,500,000 - $2,400,000 -
$1,650,000 - $2,000,000 - $1,800,000 -
$1,500,000 -
$1,100,000 - $1,200,000 -
$1,000,000 -
$0 ]—v—l—v—l—v—l—v—l—v—l $0 -]—v—l—v—l—v—l—v—l—v—l $0 -
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Hotel Tax Marriott Hotel Rent
$6,000,000 - $1,800,000 -
$4,500,000 -
$1,200,000 -
$3,000,000 -
$600,000 -
$1,500,000 -
$0 - $0 -

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Page 84 of 948



City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

Management Services

Finance

Human Resources
Parks and Recreation

Police
Fire

Community Development

Public Works

Information Technology

City of Manhattan Beach

Fiscal Year 2022-2023 General Fund Expenditures by Department
As of November 30, 2022

Dept
No.

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

Original
Budget

$4,359,023
3,819,223
1,622,969
9,131,405
33,631,799
15,286,191
6,782,954
10,641,587

$85,275,151

Budget

Adjustments'

$154,258
23,665
92,701
83,084
4,509
14,395
83,329
298,566

$754,507

Current Year Activity
Adjusted YTD
Budget Expenditures
$4,513,281 $1,774,800
3,842,888 1,371,838
1,715,670 653,597
9,214,489 3,510,383
33,636,308 12,067,519
15,300,586 5,358,056
6,866,283 2,336,186
10,940,153 3,437,986
$86,029,658  $30,510,364

YTD

Encumbrances

$424,762
201,420
72,755
131,578
15,839
14,395
75,242
142,656

$1,078,647

Available
Budget

$2,313,720
2,269,631
989,318
5,572,529
21,552,950
9,928,135
4,454,855
7,359,511

$54,440,648

1Budget Adjustments include City Council-approved adjustments during the current year and encumbrances carried forward from the prior year.

% of Year
41.7%

%
Used

48.7%
40.9%
42.3%
39.5%
35.9%
35.1%
35.1%
32.7%

36.7%
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Balance Sheet Accounts
As of November 30, 2022

Account

Description
Parks & Recreation

Established Purpose

Amount

and upgrades.

100-21501 Tree and Bench Donations 2003 Donations for trees & benches. $ 6,797
100-21702 |Joslyn Foundation Deposits 1997 Joslyn Center Donations. 6,558
100-21705 |Pumpkin Race 2013 Sponsorship revenue/expenses for Pumpkin Race. 18,540
100-21706 |Recreation Sponsorships 2017 Sponsorship revenue/expenses for other programs. 15,000
802-21708 |Public Art Development Fees 2003 Funded through a portion of development fees. Used to fund Public Art. 2,214,279
Police
100-21410 |Reserve Force Deposits 1997 Funded through donations. Reserve Officer equipment, training, etc. $ 1,945
100-21405 |K9 Deposits 1997 Funded through donations. Used for K9 Equipment. 530
100-21408 |Victims Assistance Deposits 1997 Property that is forfeited permanently and goes to auction. The funds are deposited for Victims Assistance programs. 3,423
100-21411 |Every 15 Minutes Deposits 1998 Funded through donations. Every 15 Minutes Program. In conjunction with Mira Costa (MBUSD). 4,356
100-21409 |Explorer Scout Deposits 1997 Funded through donations. Explorer events, special equipment, etc. 10,915
100-21404 |Neighborhood Watch Deposits 1997 Property that is forfeited permanently and goes to auction. The funds are deposited for various Neighborhood Watch uses. 9,371
100-21407 |Equipment Deposits 1997 Funded through donations. Used for Various Special Equipment. 23,128
100-21412 |Graux Trust (Police) 2014 Donation gift from the Graux Trust. 8,893
100-21402 |Inmate Welfare Deposits 1997 Funds generated through inmate telephone in the jail. Use for Inmate welfare, i.e. new mattresses, periodicals, hewspapers, 45,891
books, etc.
Fire
100-21453 |Paramedic Trust Deposits 1997 Donations to Fire operations. $ 7,295
100-21451 |Graux/Rotary Trust (Fire) 2014 Donation gift from the Graux Trust. 1,756
100-21452  |[Customer Deposits 2012 Donations from public to fire services. 653
100-21913 |Fire Technology Replacement 2020 Funded through a fee of 5% of annual Fire Inspection Permits. The purpose of this technology fee is to recover the cost 16,744
associated with replacement of existing system, upgrades to the existing and new system, and maintenance costs associated
with the system.
Community Development
100-21602 |Tree Penalties for lllegal Removal 2018 Fines for illegally removed trees for the planting of new trees. $ 77,255
100-21601 |General Plan Maintenance 2010 Surcharge taken from permits to fund updates for General Plan (i.e., Mobility Plan, Housing Element, Land Use, etc.). 484,622
100-21608 |Seismic Fees 1998 A portion of this fee is paid quarterly by the City to the Department of Conservation (DoC) along with a quarterly report. 61,459
Balance of fee is used for data utilization, and seismic education incorporating data interpretations from data of the strong-
motion instrumentation program.
100-21609 |Congestion Management Plan 2002 Fees that are charged for projects that increase traffic; Planning correction checklist has section for CMP, where a 68,440
spreadsheet calculates trips/cost; county program on hold for number of years. Funds are to be used for transportation
improvements.
100-21610 |[BSA Revolving Fund Fee 2009 Fee identified during Building permit application. A portion of this fee is paid quarterly by the City to the CA Building Standards 16,136
Commission (BSC) along with a quarterly report. Fee paid to BSC based on calculations in the report.
100-21616 |SB 1186 Disability Access & Education 2014 Fee charged on permits, a portion of which is available yearly for Building Inspector training on Title 24, CASp (Certified 90,711
Access Specialist Program), and SB 1186.
100-21914 |Energov Technology Replacement 2020 Funded through a fee of 3% of Building Permits. The purpose of this technology fee is to recover the cost associated with 119,449
replacement of existing system, upgrades to the existing and new system, and maintenance costs associated with the
system.
Information Technology
100-21311 [Time Warner PEG Deposit 1997 Public, Education, and Governmental Access. MBtv (city government cablecast and webcast) capital expenditures, repairs $ 560,176
and upgrades.
100-21312 |Verizon PEG Deposit 2007 Public, Education, and Governmental Access. MBtv (city government cablecast and webcast) capital expenditures, repairs 322,758
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Total $ 4,197,082
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1400 Highland Avenue Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 STAF F RE Po RT
www.manhattanbeach.gov ¢ (310) 802-5000

Agenda Date: 1/17/2023

TO:
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH:
Bruce Moe, City Manager

FROM:
George Gabriel, Assistant to the City Manager

SUBJECT:

Status Update on Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023 Chamber of Commerce Work Plan Contract (City
Manager Moe).

RECEIVE REPORT

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the update on the fiscal year 2022-2023
Chamber of Commerce Work Plan agreement.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
There are no fiscal implications associated with the recommended action. However, it should be
noted that the value of the contract for this fiscal year amounts to $47,585.

BACKGROUND:

At the July 19, 2022, meeting, City Council adopted Resolution No. 22-0108 approving the fiscal
year 2022-2023 Manhattan Beach Chamber of Commerce Work Plan agreement in the amount
of $47,585. The agreement requires the Chamber to provide a status report on tasks completed
thus far in January 2023. Additionally, once the agreement also requires that on or before June
30, 2023, the Chamber shall submit a report to City detailed information on overall project
management and achievement of goals as compared to the work plan and budget set forth in
the agreement.

DISCUSSION:

Consistent with prior agreements, the Chamber of Commerce Work Plan agreement
(Attachment) lists several programs and services proposed by the Chamber that are intended to
improve the local economy. These can be broadly divided into services that: 1) improve the
hospitality climate in Manhattan Beach through production of better marketing materials and

City of Manhattan Beach Page 1 Printed on 1/11/2023
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File Number: 23-0004

more strategic outreach; 2) provide programs to improve local business engagement and
education; and 3) continue sponsorship of events hosted by the Chamber.

As required by the agreement with the City, the Chamber has provided a document titled, “Semi
Annual Work Plan Progress/Update” (Attachment) to the City. The Chamber reported that work
has commenced work upon all 9 tasks identified in the agreement. As of January 10, 2023, one
task has been completed but expects to complete the remaining eight items prior to contract
expiration (June 30, 2023). Most notably, an excerpt from the updated by the Chamber states:

“Thus far in Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023 the MBCC has had a busy and productive year.
Some key accomplishments include: 1) hiring a new Chamber team member, 2)
Implementation of the MB Pier Review, a bi-monthly newspaper sent directly to all
Manhattan Beach residents, businesses, and chamber members, 3) Printed and
distributed the annual Community & Destination Guide, 4) Producing two Candidates
Forums, and 5) Ended the calendar year with two successful events in the Best of
Manhattan and the Holiday Mixer Extravaganza.”

CONCLUSION:
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the update on the fiscal year 2022-2023
Chamber of Commerce Work Plan agreement.

LEGAL REVIEW:
The City Attorney has reviewed this report and determined that no additional legal analysis is
necessary.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Semi Annual Work Plan Progress/Update (Provided by Chamber of Commerce)
2. Agreement - Chamber of Commerce (2022)

City of Manhattan Beach Page 2 Printed on 1/11/2023
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Manhattan Beach Chamber of Commerce/City of Manhattan Beach
Semi Annual Work Plan Progress/Update
January 17, 2023

Introduction/Opening Remarks

The Manhattan Beach Chamber of Commerce (MBCC) values its relationship with the City of
Manhattan Beach and has the responsibility of the economic well-being of our community by
advocating for businesses, promoting business growth and development, and improving the
quality of life for all citizens. Thus far in Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023 the MBCC has had a busy
and productive year. Some key accomplishments include: 1) hiring a new Chamber team
member, 2) Implementation of the MB Pier Review, a bi-monthly newspaper sent directly to all
Manhattan Beach residents, businesses, and chamber members 3) Printed and distributed the
annual Community & Destination Guide, 4) Producing two Candidates Forums, and 5) Ended
the calendar year with two successful events in the Best of Manhattan and the Holiday Mixer
Extravaganza.

Membership in all areas continues to grow with numerous Ribbon Cuttings taking place and the
creation of a New Member Orientation meeting. An annual Calendar of Events has been
published that includes Monthly Networking Mixers as well as Signature Event Dates, Bi-
Monthly Educational Seminars, and New Member Orientations. The Chamber continues to work
closely with the City Staff on important issues, events, and ongoing activities throughout the
Community. Below are summaries of each Work Plan item the Chamber is progressing on or
has completed as reflected in the approved agreement with the City and Chamber.

l. Local Marketing Programs:

Manhattan Beach Map Seminars (Task Status — IN PROGRESS)

The Chamber is in the process of contracting with a Map Production Company and
anticipates beginning production of the Map in February 2023 with completion by May 1,
2023, for distribution in time for the Summer Season. Specific plans on distribution are
being finalized. Due to competing priorities the initial timing has shifted slightly.

Online Visitor Resource Center Search Engine Optimization (SEO) (Task Status —
IN PROGRESS)

With the creation and roll out of the Chamber’s Visitor Website
www.manhattanbeachexperience.com, the Chamber is finalizing a contract with an SEO
provider, and it is anticipated to be operational by February 1, 2023. Originally, the plan
was to have SEO in place from the beginning and due to staff shortages much of the
Visitor Website work has centered around the underlying database, working with City
Staff on ensuring that hospitality related businesses are included, as well as adding
content to the Site. The Chamber will capitalize on its Community and Destination
Guide for additional content. Once the SEO contract is in place, metrics will be
developed to track relevant items such as website traffic, engagement, and “Popular
Pages,” to name a few.

On-line Ad and Pay Search - Geo Fencing (Task Status — IN PROGRESS)
In conjunction with and like SEO above, the Chamber is finalizing a contract with a
Marketing partner, and it is anticipated to be operational by February 1, 2023. The goal
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is to create a virtual geographic boundary around Manhattan Beach by means of GPS to
trigger an action such as a coupon, or notification. Hospitality Businesses can utilize this
to drive business into Manhattan Beach establishments. Key metrics will be developed
and tracked to maximize effectiveness on a go forward basis.

1. Business Education and Engagement

Sepulveda/Rosecrans/Artesia Corridor — Business Organization Committee (Task
Status — IN PROGRESS)

In accordance with the Work Plan, the Chamber has created a Corridor Committee
within the Chamber and has reached out to all the businesses on the “Corridor” on three
separate occasions to promote a meeting. Additional work is being done on reaching
the appropriate constituents for the Committee and a direct mailer is being developed
targeting ownership of the Buildings and the Businesses. The estimated expense for the
mailer is approximately $6,000. An initial Corridor Committee Meeting was held on
November 17, 2022, at the Residence Inn on Sepulveda Blvd. While the initial turnout
was low, a vital step in creating the Committee was accomplished with several key items
being discussed such as, expanded participation, Beautification of the Corridor, and City
involvement in future meetings. The next Corridor Committee meeting is scheduled for
January 19, 2023.

Business Safety/Education/Homelessness Seminars (Task Status — IN
PROGRESS)

In the original plan the Chamber anticipated quarterly Education Seminars and with the
lack of staff the initial Seminars were adjusted and the Chamber has scheduled the first
Educational Seminar on “Homelessness and Your Business” for January 11, 2023,
9:00am at the Joslyn Center. Additional Educational Seminars are scheduled on a bi-
monthly basis on a reoccurring basis following January 2023. Topics include and are
not limited to, Employee/Labor Law updates, Sexual Harassment Prevention, Fire
Safety, ADA Compliance, Cyber Security laws, emerging legislation, New Marketing
Trends, and Workplace Safety.

Young Entrepreneurs Academy (YEA) Investor Panel (Task Status — IN
PROGRESS)

This Year’s class of Young Entrepreneurs is the largest Class for Manhattan beach at 21
participants. The Highlight of the Year is the Investor Panel in the Spring where the
students present their Business Plan to the “Investor Panel,” like the “Shark Tank.” After
all the presentations are complete, the Panel awards money to each Student Presenter
and selects one Student to represent Manhattan Beach on a National Level at the
Saunders Scholarship Competition with over 1,000 other Young Entrepreneurs. Last
year the Manhattan Beach Student, Dallas Nurre, place third in the Nation and received
$20,000 in College Scholarships and $1,000 Cash prize. This year the Investor Panel is
scheduled for Wednesday April 12, 2023, from 4:30pm to 7:30pm

Meet the Neighbors (Task Status — IN PROGRESS)

The Chamber is planning the three “Meet the Neighbors” events for Spring 2023 in the
respective areas, Downtown, North Manhattan Beach, and the Corridor and will
collaborate with other entities such as the Downtown Business and Professional
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Association (DBPA), the North Manhattan Beach Business Improvement District, and the
Corridor Committee in curating these events

1. City Sponsored Events

Best of Manhattan Awards (Task Status — COMPLETE)

The 10" Annual Best of Manhattan at the Westdrift Hotel was a huge success with close
to 300 attendees enjoying the festivities that included a Champagne Reception with
passed Hors d’oeuvres, live DJ & Emcee, and for the first time, dancing. Additionally, the
Award Categories were streamlined and culminated with the First Responder Award
going to Retired MBPD Police Chief Derrick Abell, Hall of Fame Award to Chevron, and
the coveted “Best of Manhattan” to The Simms Group. Pulling this event off was a big
undertaking with a committee of eight Chamber Members, over ten volunteers, and the
Chamber Team. It was a fantastic night for all! In attendance from the City were Mayor
Napolitano, Mayor Pro Tem Montgomery, Council Member Franklin, MBPD Police Chief
Johnson, and City Staff. In accordance with the Contract and “Sponsor” Level $5,000
Benefits, the City of Manhattan Beach received a reserved Table of Ten, %2 Page Ad in
the Event Program, Logo on all printed and digital media, and an acknowledgement and
“Thank You!” in the MB Pier Review.

State of the City (Task Status — IN PROGRESS)

Working with City Staff, the Chamber is in the process of producing the State of the City
Event in March 2023. The tentative location is the Westdrift Hotel and dates are being
finalized. In accordance with the Contract and “Sponsor” Level $7,500 Benefits, the City
of Manhattan Beach will receive Two Tables of Ten, Full Page Ad in the Event Program,
Logo on all printed and digital media, Dedicated and Branded Email Blast, and an
acknowledgement and “Thank You!” in the MB Pier Review.

Annual Dues

The Manhattan Beach Chamber of Commerce is an association of businesses, entities, and
individuals organized to encourage a strong local economy by promoting commerce, sound
government, and an informed membership community. Partnering with us offers your business
valuable exposure, branding, and benefits, such as:

Complimentary listing in the Annual Destination Guide (print ads extra)

Complimentary business consulting & best practice information

Business to business referrals

Access to business development & networking events

Access to data, reports, statistics, and analytics

Access to exclusive discounts & programs, as offered

Access to current technology - social media platforms, marketing channels & enhanced

Member Portal on Chamber's website

e Advocate for all business-related issues (Chamber representation at government
meetings on all local, state, and federal levels)

e Ribbon cutting ceremony/grand opening
Member mailing list

e Dedicated E-blasts

Report Provided by David Archer, President/CEO
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated July 19, 2022,
(“Effective Date”) and is between the City of Manhattan Beach, a California municipal
corporation (“City”) and Manhattan Beach Chamber of Commerce, a non-profit
corporation (“Consultant”). City and Consultant are sometimes referred to herein as the
“Parties”, and individually as a “Party”.

RECITALS
A. Consultant is organized to encourage a strong local economy and quality of
life by promoting commerce, sound government, and an informed membership and
community.
B. Comprised of business leaders throughout the South Bay, Consultant has

special knowledge and experience to promote economic and business development,
including business attraction and retention programs, for the benefit of City.

C. City and Consultant have mutual interests in enhancing the economic
growth and vitality of the community in pursuit of the following goals:

a. To cultivate community involvement,
b. To encourage business alliances,

c. To nurture the growth and development of new and existing
businesses,

d. To create educational opportunities for community youth, and

e. To ensure that operation of the Chamber of Commerce is performed
in the most responsible, cost-effective, and efficient manner
possible.

D. City has previously contracted for economic and business development
services with the Consultant.

E. City desires to utilize the services of Consultant as an independent
contractor to provide business attraction and retention services.

F. Consultant represents that it is fully qualified to perform such services by
virtue of its experience and the training, education and expertise of its principals and
employees.

G. City desires to retain Consultant and Consultant desires to serve City to
perform these services in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Approved for Use 3/1/2021
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The Parties therefore agree as follows:
1. Consultant’s Services.

A. Scope of Services. Consultant shall perform the services described in the
Scope of Services (the “Services”) for economic and business development programs,
attached as Exhibit A. City may request, in writing, changes in the Scope of Services to
be performed. Any changes mutually agreed upon by the Parties, and any increase or
decrease in compensation, shall be incorporated by written amendments to this
Agreement.

B. Party Representatives. For the purposes of this Agreement, the City
Representative shall be the City Manager, or such other person designated in writing by
the City Manager (the “City Representative”). For the purposes of this Agreement, the
Consultant Representative shall be David Archer, President/CEO (the “Consultant
Representative”). The Consultant Representative shall directly manage Consultant’s
Services under this Agreement. Consultant shall not change the Consultant
Representative without City’s prior written consent.

C. Time for Performance. Consultant shall commence the Services on the
Effective Date and shall perform all Services by the deadline established by the City
Representative or, if no deadline is established, with reasonable diligence.

D. Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform all Services under this
Agreement in accordance with the standard of care generally exercised by like
professionals under similar circumstances and in a manner reasonably satisfactory to
City.

E. Personnel. Consultant has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel
required to perform the Services required under this Agreement. All of the Services
required under this Agreement shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision,
and all personnel engaged in the work shall be qualified to perform such Services.

F. Compliance with Laws. Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal,
state and local laws, ordinances, codes, regulations and requirements.

G. Permits and Licenses. Consultant shall obtain and maintain during the
Agreement term all necessary licenses, permits and certificates required by law for the
provision of Services under this Agreement, including a business license.

2. Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be from the Effective Date
through June 30, 2023, unless sooner terminated as provided in Section 12 of this
Agreement or extended.

3. Compensation.
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A. Compensation. As full compensation for Services satisfactorily rendered,
City shall pay Consultant at the hourly rates set forth in the Approved Fee Schedule
attached hereto as Exhibit B. In no event shall Consultant be paid more than $47,585
(the “Maximum Compensation”) for such Services.

B. Expenses. City shall only reimburse Consultant for those actual and
necessary expenses expressly set forth in Exhibit B. In no event shall reimbursable
expenses collectively exceed the total sum of $0.00.

C. Unauthorized Services and Expenses. City will not pay for any services not
specified in the Scope of Services, or reimburse for any expenses not set forth in Exhibit
B, unless the City Council or the City Representative, if applicable, and the Consultant
Representative authorize such services or expenses in writing prior to Consultant’s
performance of those services or incurrence of additional expenses. Any additional
services authorized by the City Council, or (where authorized) the City Manager shall be
compensated at the rates set forth in Exhibit B, or, if not specified, at a rate mutually
agreed to by the Parties. Any additional expense authorized by the City Council or (where
authorized) the City Manager shall be reimbursed in the amounts authorized by the City
Council or City Manager. City shall make payment for additional services and expenses
in accordance with Section 4 of this Agreement.

4, Method of Payment.

A. Invoices. Consultant shall submit to City an invoice, on a monthly basis,
for the Services performed pursuant to this Agreement. Invoices must be submitted to
George Gabriel, Assistant to the City Manager to ggabriel@manhattanbeach.gov. Each
invoice shall itemize the Services rendered during the billing period, hourly rates
charged, if applicable, and the amount due. City shall review each invoice and notify
Consultant in writing within ten Business days of receipt of any disputed invoice
amounts.

B. Payment. City shall pay all undisputed invoice amounts within 30 calendar
days after receipt up to the Maximum Compensation set forth in Section 3 of this
Agreement. City does not pay interest on past due amounts. City shall not withhold
federal payroll, state payroll or other taxes, or other similar deductions, from payments
made to Consultant. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, if Consultant is a
nonresident of California, City will withhold the amount required by the Franchise Tax
Board pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code Section 18662 and applicable
regulations.

C. Audit of Records. Consultant shall make all records, invoices, time cards,
cost control sheets and other records maintained by Consultant in connection with this
Agreement available during Consultant’s regular working hours to City for review and
audit by City.
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5. Independent contractor. Consultant is, and shall at all times remain as to City, a
wholly independent contractor. Consultant shall have no power to incur any debt,
obligation, or liability on behalf of City. Neither City nor any of its agents shall have control
over the conduct of Consultant or any of Consultant’s employees, except as set forth in
this Agreement. Consultant shall not, at any time, or in any manner, represent that it or
any of its officers, agents or employees are in any manner employees of City.

6. Information and Documents.

A. Consultant covenants that all data, reports, documents, discussion, or other
information (collectively “Data”) developed or received by Consultant or provided for
performance of this Agreement are deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed or
released by Consultant without prior written authorization by City. City shall grant such
authorization if applicable law requires disclosure. Consultant, its officers, employees,
agents, or subcontractors shall not without written authorization from the City Manager or
unless requested in writing by the City Attorney, voluntarily provide declarations, letters
of support, testimony at depositions, response to interrogatories or other information
concerning the work performed under this Agreement or relating to any project or property
located within the City. Response to a subpoena or court order shall not be considered
“voluntary,” provided Consultant gives City notice of such court order or subpoena.

B. Consultant shall promptly notify City should Consultant, its officers,
employees, agents or subcontractors be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena,
notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or
other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any party regarding this Agreement
and the work performed thereunder or with respect to any project or property located
within the City. City may, but has no obligation to, represent Consultant or be present at
any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding. Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with
City and to provide City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests
provided by Consultant. However, City’s right to review any such response does not imply
or mean the right by City to control, direct or rewrite the response.

C. All Data required to be furnished to City in connection with this Agreement
shall become City’s property, and City may use all or any portion of the Data submitted
by Consultant as City deems appropriate. Upon completion of, or in the event of
termination or suspension of this Agreement, all original documents, designs, drawings,
maps, models, computer files containing data generated for the Services, surveys, notes,
and other documents prepared in the course of providing the Services shall become City’s
sole property and may be used, reused or otherwise disposed of by City without
Consultant’s permission. Consultant may take and retain copies of the written products
as desired, but the written products shall not be the subject of a copyright application by
Consultant.

D. Consultant’s covenants under this Section shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.
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7. Conflicts of Interest. Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and
subcontractors, if any, shall comply with all conflict of interest statutes of the State of
California applicable to Consultant’s Services under this Agreement, including the
Political Reform Act (Gov. Code § 81000, et seq.) and Government Code Section 1090.
During the term of this Agreement, Consultant may perform similar Services for other
clients, but Consultant and its officers, employees, associates and subcontractors shall
not, without the City Representative’s prior written approval, perform work for another
person or entity for whom Consultant is not currently performing work that would require
Consultant or one of its officers, employees, associates or subcontractors to abstain from
a decision under this Agreement pursuant to a conflict of interest statute. Consultant shall
incorporate a clause substantially similar to this Section into any subcontract that
Consultant executes in connection with the performance of this Agreement.

8. Indemnification, Hold Harmless, and Duty to Defend.
A. Indemnities.

1) To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall, at its sole
cost and expense, defend, hold harmless and indemnify City and its elected officials,
officers, attorneys, agents, employees, designated volunteers, successors, assigns and
those City agents serving as independent contractors in the role of City officials
(collectively “Indemnitees”), from and against any and all damages, costs, expenses,
liabilities, claims, demands, causes of action, proceedings, expenses, judgments,
penalties, liens, and losses of any nature whatsoever, including fees of accountants,
attorneys, or other professionals and all costs associated therewith and the payment of
all consequential damages (collectively “Liabilities”), in law or equity, whether actual,
alleged or threatened, which arise out of, are claimed to arise out of, pertain to, or relate
to the acts or omissions of Consultant, its officers, agents, servants, employees,
subcontractors, materialmen, consultants or their officers, agents, servants or employees
(or any entity or individual that Consultant shall bear the legal liability thereof) in the
performance of this Agreement, including the Indemnitees’ active or passive negligence,
except for Liabilities arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the
Indemnitees as determined by court decision or by the agreement of the Parties.
Consultant shall defend the Indemnitees in any action or actions filed in connection with
any Liabilities with counsel of the Indemnitees’ choice, and shall pay all costs and
expenses, including all attorneys’ fees and experts’ costs actually incurred in connection
with such defense. Consultant shall reimburse the Indemnitees for any and all legal
expenses and costs incurred by Indemnitees in connection therewith.

2) Consultant shall pay all required taxes on amounts paid to
Consultant under this Agreement, and indemnify and hold City harmless from any and all
taxes, assessments, penalties, and interest asserted against City by reason of the
independent contractor relationship created by this Agreement. Consultant shall fully
comply with the workers’ compensation law regarding Consultant and Consultant’s
employees. Consultant shall indemnify and hold City harmless from any failure of
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Consultant to comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws. City may offset
against the amount of any fees due to Consultant under this Agreement any amount due
to City from Consultant as a result of Consultant’s failure to promptly pay to City any
reimbursement or indemnification arising under this subparagraph A.2).

3) Consultant shall obtain executed indemnity agreements with
provisions identical to those in this Section from each and every subcontractor or any
other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of Consultant in the performance
of this Agreement. If Consultant fails to obtain such indemnity obligations, Consultant
shall be fully responsible and indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Indemnitees from
and against any and all Liabilities at law or in equity, whether actual, alleged or
threatened, which arise out of, are claimed to arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the acts
or omissions of Consultant’s subcontractor, its officers, agents, servants, employees,
subcontractors, materialmen, consultants or their officers, agents, servants or employees
(or any entity or individual that Consultant’s subcontractor shall bear the legal liability
thereof) in the performance of this Agreement, including the Indemnitees’ active or
passive negligence, except for Liabilities arising from the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of the Indemnitees as determined by court decision or by the agreement of
the Parties.

B. Workers’” Compensation Acts not Limiting. Consultant’s indemnifications
and obligations under this Section, or any other provision of this Agreement, shall not be
limited by the provisions of any workers’ compensation act or similar act. Consultant
expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes or laws as to City, its officers,
agents, employees and volunteers.

C. Insurance Requirements not Limiting. City does not, and shall not, waive
any rights that it may possess against Consultant because of the acceptance by City, or
the deposit with City, of any insurance policy or certificate required pursuant to this
Agreement. The indemnities in this Section shall apply regardless of whether or not any
insurance policies are determined to be applicable to the Liabilities, tax, assessment,
penalty or interest asserted against City.

D. Survival of Terms. Consultant’s indemnifications and obligations under this
Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

9. Insurance.

A. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance. Consultant shall procure and at
all times during the term of this Agreement carry, maintain, and keep in full force and
effect, insurance as follows:

1) Commercial General Liability Insurance with a minimum limit of
$2,000,000.00 per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage and
a general aggregate limit of $2,000,000.00 per project or location. If Consultant is a
limited liability company, the commercial general liability coverage shall be amended so
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that Consultant and its managers, affiliates, employees, agents and other persons
necessary or incidental to its operation are insureds.

2) Automobile Liability Insurance for any owned, non-owned or hired
vehicle used in connection with the performance of this Agreement with a combined single
limit of $1,000,000.00 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. If Consultant
does not use any owned, non-owned or hired vehicles in the performance of Services
under this Agreement, Consultant shall obtain a non-owned auto endorsement to the
Commercial General Liability policy required under subparagraph A.1) of this Section.

3) Workers’ Compensation Insurance as required by the State of
California and Employer’s Liability Insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000.00 per
accident for bodily injury or disease. If Consultant has no employees while performing
Services under this Agreement, workers’ compensation policy is not required, but
Consultant shall execute a declaration that it has no employees.

4) Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions Insurance with minimum
limits of $2,000,000.00 per claim and in aggregate.

B. Acceptability of Insurers. The insurance policies required under this Section
shall be issued by an insurer admitted to write insurance in the State of California with a
rating of A:VII or better in the latest edition of the A.M. Best Insurance Rating Guide. Self-
insurance shall not be considered to comply with the insurance requirements under this
Section.

C. Additional Insured. The commercial general and automobile liability policies
shall contain an endorsement naming City and its elected and appointed officials, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds. This provision shall also apply
to any excess/umbrella liability policies.

D. Primary and Non-Contributing. The insurance policies required under this
Section shall apply on a primary non-contributing basis in relation to any other insurance
or self-insurance available to City. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by City,
its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers, shall be in
excess of Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

E. Consultant’s Waiver of Subrogation. The insurance policies required under
this Section shall not prohibit Consultant and Consultant’'s employees, agents or
subcontractors from waiving the right of subrogation prior to a loss. Consultant hereby
waives all rights of subrogation against City.

F. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured
retentions must be declared to and approved by City. At City’s option, Consultant shall
either reduce or eliminate the deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to City,
or Consultant shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and expenses.
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G. Cancellations or Modifications to Coverage. Consultant shall not cancel,
reduce or otherwise modify the insurance policies required by this Section during the term
of this Agreement. The commercial general and automobile liability policies required
under this Agreement shall be endorsed to state that should the issuing insurer cancel
the policy before the expiration date, the issuing insurer will endeavor to mail 30 days’
prior written notice to City. If any insurance policy required under this Section is canceled
or reduced in coverage or limits, Consultant shall, within two Business Days of notice from
the insurer, phone, fax or notify City via certified mail, return receipt requested, of the
cancellation of or changes to the policy.

H. City Remedy for Noncompliance. If Consultant does not maintain the
policies of insurance required under this Section in full force and effect during the term of
this Agreement, or in the event any of Consultant’s policies do not comply with the
requirements under this Section, City may either immediately terminate this Agreement
or, if insurance is available at a reasonable cost, City may, but has no duty to, take out
the necessary insurance and pay, at Consultant’'s expense, the premium thereon.
Consultant shall promptly reimburse City for any premium paid by City or City may
withhold amounts sufficient to pay the premiums from payments due to Consultant.

l. Evidence of Insurance. Prior to the performance of Services under this
Agreement, Consultant shall furnish City’s Risk Manager with a certificate or certificates
of insurance and all original endorsements evidencing and effecting the coverages
required under this Section. The endorsements are subject to City’s approval. Consultant
may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies to City.
Consultant shall maintain current endorsements on file with City’s Risk Manager.
Consultant shall provide proof to City’s Risk Manager that insurance policies expiring
during the term of this Agreement have been renewed or replaced with other policies
providing at least the same coverage. Consultant shall furnish such proof at least two
weeks prior to the expiration of the coverages.

J. Indemnity Requirements not Limiting. Procurement of insurance by
Consultant shall not be construed as a limitation of Consultant’s liability or as full
performance of Consultant’s duty to indemnify City under Section 8 of this Agreement.

K. Broader Coverage/Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains broader coverage
and/or higher limits than the minimums required above, City requires and shall be entitled
to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by Consultant. Any available
insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage
shall be available to City.

L. Subcontractor Insurance Requirements. Consultant shall require each of
its subcontractors that perform Services under this Agreement to maintain insurance
coverage that meets all of the requirements of this Section.
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10. Mutual Cooperation.

A. City’s Cooperation. City shall provide Consultant with all pertinent Data,
documents and other requested information as is reasonably available for Consultant’s
proper performance of the Services required under this Agreement.

B. Consultant’s Cooperation. In the event any claim or action is brought
against City relating to Consultant's performance of Services rendered under this
Agreement, Consultant shall render any reasonable assistance that City requires.

11. Records and Inspections. Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate
records with respect to time, costs, expenses, receipts, correspondence, and other such
information required by City that relate to the performance of the Services. All such
records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and shall be clearly identified and readily accessible. Consultant shall provide free access
to City, its designees and representatives at reasonable times, and shall allow City to
examine and audit the books and records, to make transcripts therefrom as necessary,
and to inspect all work, data, documents, proceedings and activities related to this
Agreement. Such records, together with supporting documents, shall be maintained for
a period of three years after receipt of final payment.

12. Termination of Agreement.

A. Right to Terminate. City may terminate this Agreement at any time, at will,
for any reason or no reason, after giving written notice to Consultant at least five calendar
days before the termination is to be effective. Consultant may terminate this Agreement
at any time, at will, for any reason or no reason, after giving written notice to City at least
60 calendar days before the termination is to be effective.

B. Obligations upon Termination. Consultant shall cease all work under this
Agreement on or before the effective date of termination specified in the notice of
termination. In the event of City’s termination of this Agreement due to no fault or failure
of performance by Consultant, City shall pay Consultant based on the percentage of work
satisfactorily performed up to the effective date of termination. In no event shall
Consultant be entitled to receive more than the amount that would be paid to Consultant
for the full performance of the Services required by this Agreement. Consultant shall have
no other claim against City by reason of such termination, including any claim for
compensation.

13. Force Majeure. Consultant shall not be liable for any failure to perform its
obligations under this Agreement if Consultant presents acceptable evidence, in City’s
sole judgment, that such failure was due to acts of God, embargoes, inability to obtain
labor or materials or reasonable substitutes for labor or materials, governmental
restrictions, governmental regulations, governmental controls, judicial orders, enemy or
hostile governmental action, civii commotion, fire or other casualty, or other causes
beyond Consultant’s reasonable control and not due to any act by Consultant.
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14. Default.

A. Consultant’s failure to comply with the provisions of this Agreement shall
constitute a default. In the event that Consultant is in default for cause under the terms
of this Agreement, City shall have no obligation or duty to continue compensating
Consultant for any work performed after the date of default.

B. In addition to the right to terminate pursuant to Section 12, if the City
Manager determines that Consultant is in default in the performance of any of the terms
or conditions of this Agreement, City shall serve Consultant with written notice of the
default. Consultant shall have ten calendar days after service upon it of the notice in
which to cure the default by rendering a satisfactory performance. In the event that
Consultant fails to cure its default within such period of time, City may, notwithstanding
any other provision of this Agreement, terminate this Agreement without further notice
and without prejudice to any other remedy to which it may be entitled at law, in equity or
under this Agreement.

15. Notices. Any notice, consent, request, demand, bill, invoice, report or other
communication required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing and
conclusively deemed effective: (a) on personal delivery, (b) on confirmed delivery by
courier service during Consultant’s and City’s regular business hours, or (c) three
Business Days after deposit in the United States mail, by first class mail, postage prepaid,
and addressed to the Party to be notified as set forth below:

TO CITY: TO CONSULTANT:

City of Manhattan Beach Manhattan Beach Chamber of Commerce
Attn: George Gabriel Attn: David Archer

1400 Highland Avenue 425 15" Street

Manhattan Beach, California 90266 Manhattan Beach, California 90266

COPY TO CITY ATTORNEY:

City of Manhattan Beach
Attn: City Attorney

1400 Highland Avenue
Manhattan Beach, CA 90266

16. Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity. In the performance
of this Agreement, Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee, subcontractor
or applicant for employment because of race, color, religious creed, sex, gender, gender
identity, gender expression, marital status, national origin, ancestry, age, physical
disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, sexual orientation or
other basis prohibited by law. Consultant will take affirmative action to ensure that
subcontractors and applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during
employment, without regard to their race, color, religious creed, sex, gender, gender
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identity, gender expression, marital status, national origin, ancestry, age, physical
disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information or sexual orientation.

17.  Prohibition of Assignment and Delegation. Consultant shall not assign any of
its rights or delegate any of its duties under this Agreement, either in whole or in part,
without City’s prior written consent. City’s consent to an assignment of rights under this
Agreement shall not release Consultant from any of its obligations or alter any of its
primary obligations to be performed under this Agreement. Any attempted assignment or
delegation in violation of this Section shall be void and of no effect and shall entitle City
to terminate this Agreement. As used in this Section, “assignment” and “delegation”
means any sale, gift, pledge, hypothecation, encumbrance or other transfer of all or any
portion of the rights, obligations, or liabilities in or arising from this Agreement to any
person or entity, whether by operation of law or otherwise, and regardless of the legal
form of the transaction in which the attempted transfer occurs.

18. No Third Party Beneficiaries Intended. This Agreement is made solely for the
benefit of the Parties to this Agreement and their respective successors and assigns, and
no other person or entity may have or acquire a right by virtue of this Agreement.

19. Waiver. No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to
City under this Agreement shall impair any right, power or remedy of City, nor shall it be
construed as a waiver of, or consent to, any breach or default. No waiver of any breach,
any failure of a condition, or any right or remedy under this Agreement shall be
(1) effective unless it is in writing and signed by the Party making the waiver, (2) deemed
to be a waiver of, or consent to, any other breach, failure of a condition, or right or remedy,
or (3) deemed to constitute a continuing waiver unless the writing expressly so states.

20. Final Payment Acceptance Constitutes Release. The acceptance by
Consultant of the final payment made under this Agreement shall operate as and be a
release of City from all claims and liabilities for compensation to Consultant for anything
done, furnished or relating to Consultant’s work or services. Acceptance of payment shall
be any negotiation of City’s check or the failure to make a written extra compensation
claim within ten calendar days of the receipt of that check. However, approval or payment
by City shall not constitute, nor be deemed, a release of the responsibility and liability of
Consultant, its employees, subcontractors and agents for the accuracy and competency
of the information provided and/or work performed; nor shall such approval or payment
be deemed to be an assumption of such responsibility or liability by City for any defect or
error in the work prepared by Consultant, its employees, subcontractors and agents.

21. Corrections. In addition to the above indemnification obligations, Consultant shall
correct, at its expense, all errors in the work which may be disclosed during City’s review
of Consultant’s report or plans. Should Consultant fail to make such correction in a
reasonably timely manner, such correction may be made by City, and the cost thereof
shall be charged to Consultant. In addition to all other available remedies, City may
deduct the cost of such correction from any retention amount held by City or may withhold
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payment otherwise owed Consultant under this Agreement up to the amount of the cost
of correction.

22. Non-Appropriation of Funds. Payments to be made to Consultant by City for
services performed within the current fiscal year are within the current fiscal budget and
within an available, unexhausted fund. In the event that City does not appropriate
sufficient funds for payment of Consultant’s services beyond the current fiscal year, this
Agreement shall cover payment for Consultant’s services only to the conclusion of the
last fiscal year in which City appropriates sufficient funds and shall automatically
terminate at the conclusion of such fiscal year.

23. Exhibits. Exhibits A and B constitute a part of this Agreement and are
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. If any inconsistency exists or arises
between a provision of this Agreement and a provision of any exhibit, or between a
provision of this Agreement and a provision of Consultant’s proposal, the provisions of
this Agreement shall control.

24. Entire Agreement and Modification of Agreement. This Agreement and all
exhibits referred to in this Agreement constitute the final, complete and exclusive
statement of the terms of the agreement between the Parties pertaining to the subject
matter of this Agreement and supersede all other prior or contemporaneous oral or written
understandings and agreements of the Parties. No Party has been induced to enter into
this Agreement by, nor is any Party relying on, any representation or warranty except
those expressly set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement may not be amended, nor
any provision or breach hereof waived, except in a writing signed by both Parties.

25. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are included solely for convenience
of reference and shall not affect the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement or
any of the rights or obligations of the Parties to this Agreement.

26. Word Usage. Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, (a) the words “shall,”
‘will” and “agrees” are mandatory and “may” is permissive; (b) “or” is not exclusive; and
(c) “includes” or “including” are not limiting.

27. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in respect to all provisions of this
Agreement that specify a time for performance; provided, however, that the foregoing
shall not be construed to limit or deprive a Party of the benefits of any grace or use period
allowed in this Agreement.

28. Business Days. “Business days” means days Manhattan Beach City Hall is open
for business.

29. Governing Law and Choice of Forum. This Agreement, and any dispute arising
from the relationship between the Parties to this Agreement, shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, except that any rule of
construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party
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shall not be applied in interpreting this Agreement. Any dispute that arises under or
relates to this Agreement (whether contract, tort or both) shall be resolved in a superior
court with geographic jurisdiction over the City of Manhattan Beach.

30. Attorneys’ Fees. In any litigation or other proceeding by which a Party seeks to
enforce its rights under this Agreement (whether in contract, tort or both) or seeks a
declaration of any rights or obligations under this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall
be entitled to recover all attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, and other costs actually incurred
in connection with such litigation or other proceeding, in addition to all other relief to which
that Party may be entitled.

31. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this
Agreement to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the validity of and
enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected and
continue in full force and effect.

32. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, all of
which shall be deemed an original, and all of which will constitute one and the same
instrument.

33. Corporate Authority. Each person executing this Agreement on behalf of his or
her Party warrants that he or she is duly authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf
of that Party and that by such execution, that Party is formally bound to the provisions of
this Agreement.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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The Parties, through their duly authorized representatives are signing this
Agreement on the date stated in the introductory clause.

City: Consultant:
City of Manhattan Beach, Manhattan Beach Chamber of Commerce
a California municipal corporation and Civic Association, a non-profit

corporation

DocuSigned by:

By: Brue Mat 8/22/2022 — Docusigned by:
) D1A130-56864A44’.... . M'l ay\w
N.ame' .Bruce Moe By' \--ZZDASS%ED1DA24D4...
Title: City Manager Name: David Archer ~ 8/5/2022
T it ~t/CEO
ATTEST:
By:
DocuSigned by: \I\TéAlj?ng:s?jsl?IHBUnn 8/5/2022
Bv: Lima Tamwra 8/22/2022 Title: Board Chairman
y' 975D2FFESDE4468E. ..
Name: Liza |lamura
Title: City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
DocuSigned by:
Brendan Kearna, Acting Citp Aty

By 161EC544119B456..

Name: “Quinir M-Barrow Brendan Kearns
Title: City-Attorney- Acting City Attorney

APPROVED AS TO FISCAL IMPACT:

DocuSigned by:

By Steve D Cvacdion

’ SB01ESDTB4124E9. .

Name: Steve S. Charelian8/9/2022
Title: Finance Director
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EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

City shall provide funding to the Manhattan Beach Chamber of Commerce for the period
of July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023, for business attraction and retention services.
The portfolio of services to be provided by the Chamber to the City is set forth below.

Budget
Work Plan Item Cost
I. Local Marketing
Manhattan Beach Map 5,000
Online Visitor Resource Center - Search Engine Optimization (SEO) 6,000
On-line Ad and Pay Search (Geo Fencing) 3,000
Sepulveda/Rosecrans/Artesia Corridor — Business Organization 10.000
Committee - $2,500 Quarterly ’
Local Marketing Subtotal 24,000
Il. Business Education and Engagement
Business Safety/Education/Homelessness Seminars - $750 Quarterly 3,000
Young Entrepreneurs Academy (YEA!) - Investor Panel 2,500
Meet the Neighbors, Business Information Exchange - $1,000 per 3.000
meeting '
Business Education and Engagement Subtotal 8,500

lll. City Sponsored Legacy Events
Best of Manhattan 5,000
State of the City 7,500

City Sponsored Legacy Events Subtotal 12,500

IV. Annual Membership Fee
TOTAL

2,585

47,585
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. Local Marketing Programs:

Description | Manhattan Beach Map

History: Historically Maps are one of the most requested items from the
Chamber by Residents and Visitors, and last Manhattan Beach Chamber
Map produced was in 2018 — 2019.

Strategy: After curating a map, the MBCC will integrate it with the “New”
Visitor Website as well as strategically distribute throughout the local
Business Community, LAX Hotels, Residents, and electronically.

Additionally, the Map is a key component in guiding our residents and
visitors alike and the Chamber will partner with Planning entities for the
annual events like the MB Open, International Surf Festival, etc., to
further distribute a Manhattan Beach Map.

Circulation 25,000+ to Businesses, Hotels & Hospitality Groups, City & Recreation
Facilities, Special Events, Group Functions, and Major Events

Timeline Commence work by October 2022 and complete by April of 2023

Allocation $5,000

Description Online Visitor Resource Center SEO

The New Visitor Website will be branded separately from the Chamber
and will highlight everything Hospitality Related for All associated
businesses in Manhattan Beach. Search Engine Optimization is critical
to the success in establishing the Visitor Website position near the top
of results for visitors to the South Bay/LA Area.

e Welcome to Manhattan Beach

e Manhattan Beach History

e Eat - Stay — Play - Shop Manhattan Beach

e All Events in Manhattan Beach

o Event/Wedding Resources
Deliverables | Go live with SEO in July 2022 with ongoing refinements as appropriate.
Develop analytics and adjust content based on digital intelligence, as
well as updates to City Council on a periodic basis.

Timeline Commence SEO in July 2022 - Ongoing

Allocation $500 per month for a total of $6,000
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On-line Ad and Pay Search - Geo Fencing
Description
A method of strategically assessing, targeting, and marketing to increase
awareness of visitor information for Manhattan Beach

e Strategic use of Google Analytics to retarget

e Social media and website digital intelligence

e Strategic hospitality focused digital marketing

e Re-targeting strategy for website view optimization
Deliverables | Digital reports analyzed for effectiveness and optimized to best serve the
target audience via digital communications, as well as updates to City
Council on a periodic basis.
Timeline Commence Geo Fencing in July 2022 - Ongoing

Allocation $250 per month for a total of $3,000

Description Sepulveda/Rosecrans/Artesia Corridor — Business Organization
Committee

Create a Business Organization Committee within the Chamber of
Commerce to coordinate and communicate with the Businesses along
the Sepulveda/Rosecrans/Artesia (Corridor). Committee Mission
Statement - As the leading advocate for Corridor, we work in partnership
with business and government to identify needs, develop strategies,
shape public policy, and implement programs that strengthen the
economic vitality of the Corridor. The Committee will mail all
Businesses, including representative(s) from the City, MBPD/MBFD, an
invitation to an initial Corridor meeting to establish the roles and
responsibilities, as well as, to hear the Businesses concerns and
challenges. The end goal is to facilitate regular meetings to discuss
opportunities and challenges with the Businesses, develop Marketing
Strategies for the Corridor that include events, themes, cooperation, and
attracting additional patrons and businesses. Estimated annual time
would be approximately 200 hours.

Deliverables | Initiate the Committee at the June 2022 Board Meeting. Adopt the
Mission Statement, Format, Benefits and Timing. Once established,
provide updates to City Council on a periodic basis that includes
meeting attendees, meeting notes, Committee action items, Marketing
updates, and Business feedback.

Timeline July 2022 - Send out an initial communication inviting all Businesses to
participate, and includes the Mission Statement, Benefits, and Next
Steps.

August — 2022 Hold initial meeting and every month following.
Allocation $10,000
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Il Business Education and Engagement

Description Business Safety/Education/Homelessness Seminars

Provide ongoing support and education regarding safety and compliance
matters in the workplace. Examples include but are not limited to
Homelessness, Sexual Harassment, Fire Safety, ADA Compliance,
Cyber Security laws, emerging legislation, etc.

Deliverables | Commence the Quarterly Seminars in August 2022

Timeline Quarterly 4 seminars

Allocation $750 Quarterly for a total of $3,000

Description | Young Entrepreneurs Academy (YEA) Investor Panel

The YEA program provides an 8-month curriculum that teaches
students, grades 6-12, how to conceptualize, research, brand, and
market a new business idea. Business plan writing, investor pitches and
mentorship from business leaders in the Manhattan Beach community
provide a circular business environment for young entrepreneurs to
strive and thrive.

The 2021-2022 class is comprised of 17 students.
e 16 Manhattan Beach residents
e 14 attend MBUSD schools
e Grades 6-12

Previous graduates are now successfully selling their products in local
businesses, thus supporting the local economy, and the made locally
and sold locally movement.

At the end of the program the students participate in an “Shark Tank” like
Investor Panel and following all presentations the Panel awards
monetary resources to the Young Entrepreneurs.

Instruction Facilitator - Nellie Ambrose

MBUSD Instructor - Rachel Thomas

Timeline School year 2022-2023

Allocation $2,500
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Il Business Education and Engagement cont’d

Description Meet the Neighbors

In an effort to link the Business Community to the Residents we will hold
neighborhood Business Information Exchange (BizEx) meetings at local
businesses whereby Residents can network with the Businesses and
have a facilitated conversation to discuss any areas of concern or needs
that affect both entities.

Deliverables | Provide 3 Opportunities for Businesses and Residents to meet and
converse in each designated area of Manhattan Beach, Downtown,
North, and the Sepulveda Corridor.

Timeline On-going

Allocation $1,000 Per Meeting for a total of $3,000

lll. City Sponsored Events

Description Best of Manhattan Awards

Recognize the Key Leaders in the Business Community and present
awards to outstanding Businesses and Individuals in numerous
categories.

Attendance | Approximately 300 attendees

Timeline Annual, In October

Allocation $5,000

Description | State of the City

A preeminent Annual Event that provides a forum for the Mayor,
Chamber President/CEO, City Officials, and Department Directors to
recap highlights of the previous year and to outline significant goals,
projects and plans for the coming year. A Community favorite!

Attendance Estimated attendance is 150

Timeline Annually, February/March

Allocation $7,500
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IV. Membership

Description Annual Membership Dues

The annual dues are separate from event and program sponsorships
and is based on the number of employees at each business.

Deliverables | All appropriate Chamber Benefits

Timeline Annual renewal

Allocation $2,585

REPORTS

On or before June 30, 2023, Chamber shall submit a report to City in a form acceptable
to the City Manager or his designee, which shall include, without limitation, detailed
information on overall project management and achievement of goals as compared to the
work plan and budget set forth in this Exhibit A. Additionally, Chamber shall provide a
presentations/status report to the City Council in January 2023 on tasks completed thus
far. A sample report and draft presentation is outlined below.

Draft Presentation
MBCC Semi Annual Work Plan Progress Presentation
MB Map Update Progress on Map / Distribution

SEO - Metrics

e Organic Traffic - Increased Traffic to Website

e Engagement - Where did users go on the Website, Time Spent, etc.

e Goals & Conversions - Conversion is an action counted when an interaction
occurs

e Landing Pages - What pages attracted the user

e Rankings & Keywords - Target Keyword Ranking & Overall Search Visibility

e Link Metrics - Growing Backlinks - an incoming hyperlink from one web page to
another website.

e Trends - Performance over time

e Commentary - Balanced mix of Data and Commentary

GEO Fencing — Metrics
e Cost per Mille (CPM) - Cost per Thousand Impressions
e Cost per Click (CPC) - Cost of the Audience Clicking or Interacting
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e Clickthrough Rate (CTR) - Ratio of how often ad is shown vs engaged with
e Traffic - Interaction with User
e Sales Metrics - Sales and Monthly Revenue

The Corridor - Meetings
e Number Held

Attendees

Notes

Action Items

Feedback

Business Safety/Education/Homelessness Seminars
e Event Held
e Attendees
e Topic Discussed
e Feedback

YEA Investor Panel - Report Provided by Council Member Participating in the
Panel

Meet the Neighbors
e Event Held
e Attendees
e Topic Discussed
e Action Items if Necessary
e Resolution if Necessary
e Feedback

Note — the presentation will have graphs, numbers, and commentary combined.
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EXHIBIT B
APPROVED FEE SCHEDULE

Disbursements shall be governed by the schedule below, contingent upon work item
completion percentage and their funding levels. First disbursement will be provided to
Chamber of Commerce on January 30, 2023. The second disbursement will be provided
on June 30, 2023.

Disbursement Amount Completion |Disbursement
Work Plan Item Percentage Amount
Manhattan Beach Map $5,000 50% $2,500
Online Visitor Resource Center - Search Engine $6,000 50% $3,000
Optimization (SEO)
First On-line Ad and Pay Search (Geo Fencing) $3,000 50% $1,500
Disbursement|Sepylveda/Rosecrans/Artesia Corridor—Business $10,000 50% $5,000
Organization Committee
Business Safety/Education/Homelessness Seminars $3,000 50% $1,500
Meet the Neighbors, Business Information Exchange $3,000 50% $1,500
Best of Manhattan $5,000 100% $5,000
State of the City $7,500 100% $7,500
Subtotal $27,500
Manhattan Beach Map $5,000 50% $2,500
Online Visitor Resource Center - Search Engine $6,000 50% $3,000
Optimization (SEO)
Second On-line Ad and Pay Search (Geo Fencing) $3,000 50% $1,500
Disbursement [Sepulveda/Rosecrans/Artesia Corridor — Business $10,000 50% $5,000
Organization Committee
Business Safety/Education/Homelessness Seminars $3,000 50% $1,500
Young Entrepreneurs Academy (YEA!) - Investor Panel $2,500 100% $2,500
Meet the Neighbors, Business Information Exchange $3,000 50% $1,500
Annual Membership Fee $2,585 100% $2,585
Subtotal $20,085
Total $47,585
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/""'-'\ _ MANHBEA-01 ZBRYANT
ACORE CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oATe o)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

propucer License # 0156036 GONTACT Zoya Bryant
560 N Paciie Cosat Hiymway PN, Ext: (310) 414-2100 1017 [FAX \or(310) 414-2101
Suite 2000 ML ss. Zoya@beachfinancialgroup.com
El Segundo, CA 90245
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A : Sentinel Insurance Company Limited 11000
INSURED INSURER B :
Manhattan Beach Chamber of Commerce INSURER C :
425 15th Street INSURERD :
Manhattan Beach, CA 90266
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE AL [SBR POLICY NUMBER S AR | ameY EXE LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR X 72SBABC5969 7M/2022 | 711/2023 |DBAVASEIORENTED T 1,000,000
I MED EXP (Any one person) $ 10’000
. PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X | poLicy D FES D Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
OTHER: $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY &ghgsg‘é'gﬁtf'”eﬁ LIMIT s 1,000,000
ANY AUTO 72SBABC5969 71112022 | 7/1/2023 | BoDILY INJURY (Per person) | §
OWNED SCHEDULED
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
X | HIRED X | NON-OWNFD PROPERTY DAMAGE
| A | AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident) $
$
A | X | UMBRELLA LIAB X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 72SBABC5969 71112022 | 7/1/2023 |, ccoate $ 2,000,000
DED ‘ X ‘ RETENTION § 10,000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN STATUTE ‘ ‘ ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] §
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) i . .
The City, its officers, officials, employees, designated volunteers and agents serving as independent contractors in the role of City officials, are additional
insured with respects to the General Liability policy. Coverage is Primary and Non-Contributory.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

. THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
The City of Manhattan Beach ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
1400 Highland Ave.

Manhattan Beach, CA 90266

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Yoyt

eﬁgﬁ%aﬁgpﬂﬁggﬂng © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. ﬁﬂdwtﬂr&m

January 17, 2023 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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POLICY NUMBER: 72 SBA BC5969 i

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - PERSON-ORGANIZATION

CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH ----------
1400 HIGHTLAND AVE
MANHATTAN BEACH,CA 90266

FormIH 12001185 T SEQ. NO. 001  Printed in U.S.A. Page 001
Process Date: 04/16/21
City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

Expiration Date: 07/01/22
Page 115 of 948
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bUSi ness resource center bizresourcecenter.com

E,

RESOURCES TO HELP YOUR BUSINESS GROW!

As a policyholder through USLI or Devon Park Specialty, you have access to many free and discounted services through
the Business Resource Center that will assist you in operating, growing and protecting your business. Consider the
following services and associated cost savings when deciding where to place your insurance!

HUMAN RESOURCES

» Free human resources consultation hotline to be used for personnel issues, including
harassment and discrimination, the Family and Medical Leave Act, disability, wage and
hours regulations and more

» Online library with information, forms and articles pertaining to human resources
» Resources for recruiting and training as well as termination and administration

=

PRE-EMPLOYMENT AND TENANT SCREENINGS

» Discounted background checks, including multi-court criminal database
searches, county criminal searches and more (first background check is free)

» Best practices for performing a background check
» Discounted tenant and drug screenings and motor vehicle reports (MVRSs) n .
PAYROLL AND TAXES
Try our cost-savings
» Discounted payroll processing and tax services tailored for either a small calculator to see
or large business how much you
could save!
CYBER RISK

» Materials about securing personal and payment card information

» Complimentary access to tools and resources that will help you understand your exposure
to a data breach and the importance of a response plan

MARKETING

» Suggested free and paid services, including email campaigns, photo editing, file management and
more, for web marketing for your business

» Suggested free and paid services for social media platforms, development, management and more

@ @@ ®

» Discounted promotional items, giveaways and signage

SAFETY

» Free on-site safety and occupational health consultation for your business
» Free personal credit report

» Disaster and emergency preparedness resources

» Discounted alcohol and food server safety training for your staff and servers

®

» Discounted CPR and first aid training

» Youth resources for concussion training, waivers of liability, recognizing the signs and
symptoms of child abuse, and more

of vendors, discounts and resources, visit bizresourcecenter.com.

BRC-Quote and Policy 7/21
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24/7 GLAIM REPORTING

In our continuing effort to provide you with excellent claim service, you may now report a claim
and get claim assistance 24 hours a day/7 days a week.

For claim reporting, call toll free 1-888-875-5231 or visit
USLI.COM and select the “report a claim” option.

For emergency claims requiring immediate assistance, please use the toll free option. Your call will
be referred to a claims professional who will respond within an hour of your call with direction and
assistance.

Thank you for placing your trust in our company. We pledge to work hard every day to earn
and maintain that trust.

USLI.COM

City Council Meeting | e = 8%?&? %137-3%%85

January 17, 2023
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP
CONSUMER DISCLOSURE NOTICE

CALIFORNIA

Please contact the agent or broker that has delivered your policy if
you have questions or need assistance. If you need the telephone
number of the agent or broker or need other assistance, please
contact us at:

1190 Devon Park Drive, Wayne, PA 19087
Toll Free Direct 1-888-523-5545
Compliance Department

Before you file a complaint with the California Department of
Insurance, you should first contact the insurance company, agent or
broker in an effort to resolve the issue(s). If you do not reach a
satisfactory resolution of the issue(s), then contact the California
Department of Insurance.

You may contact the California Department of Insurance to obtain
information or make a complaint.

California Department of Insurance
Consumer Communications Bureau

300 South Spring Street, South Tower
Los Angeles, CA 90013
1-800-927-HELP (4357) or 213-897-8921
TDD Number: 1-800-482-4TDD (4833)
www.insurance.ca.gov

CA Disc (08-19) Page 1 of 1
City Council Meeting Page 118 of 948
January 17, 2023
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[UEAL]] criskeub FREE PRIVACY BREAGH RISK MANAGEMENT RESOURCES

Every year, thousands of breaches are reported, exposing Key Features of the eRiskHub® Portal
millions of people’s personal information. The eRiskHub®

portal, powered by NetDiligence?®, is an effective way to Data Breach Calculators — Learn how to
combat privacy breaches and other types of cyber losses. estimate the cost of a breach, notification costs

and business interruption
With your USLI policy, you will receive
instructions on how to access and begin
using the eRiskHub® portal, a benefit that is
valued in excess of $1,200 a year!

Learning Center — Best practices articles, white
papers and webinars from leading technical and
legal experts. Highlighted topics include PCI
compliance and social engineering

eRiskHub® is the one-stop shop you need to become educated
about and prepared for a privacy breach. This free service is
available to USLI policyholders.

Security Training — Watch videos for best
practices in security and privacy awareness or
download a training guide

Using proprietary tools anchored in proven risk management
principals, NetDiligence® provides a full range of enterprise-
level information security, e-risk insurability and regulatory
compliance assessment and testing services. NetDiligence®
supports and is endorsed by some of the world’s largest

network liability insurance underwriters. . .
Ransomware Resources — A directory to quickly
How to start using this free offering: find external resources with expertise in pre- and

Risk Manager Tools — Assist you in managing
your cyber risk, including a self-assessment,

a sample website privacy policy and a tool for
HIPAA compliance

post-breach disciplines
» Go to eriskhub.com/usli

» Click “Register Now” to set up a free account Consultation — Breach Coach, HIPAA Coach and

» Create your own username and password; Security Coach available to assist you

your access code is 08451

City-Council-Meeting Page 119 of 948
January 17, 2023
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USLIL.COM
888-523-5545

Check Out Your New Employment Practices Liability Risk
Management Toolkit from PeopleSystems

Free Employment Practices Liability (EPL) Helpline
1-888-811-4182
(8 a.m. to 7:30 p.m. Eastern Time)

If a human resource consulting firm offered you their time and
expertise for free, would you lock their phone number and email
address in a drawer and never call? Of course not! Do you have
questions such as:
What are the current federal and state employment laws | need
to know?
What are “wage and hour” regulations? What does “exempt”
versus “non-exempt” mean?
How should | handle terminating, suspending or warning an
employee?
What type of human resources policies should | have in place?
How should | properly document performance issues and
disciplinary actions in an employee’s file?
What are appropriate and inappropriate questions to ask during
an employment interview?

What guidelines should | use to investigate a complaint of
discrimination or harassment?

PeopleSystems is just a free phone call or email away!

Online Human Resources Center
www.peoplesystems.com/USLI

To access the USLI policyholder features, click on

“Request for client login” and complete with your information. Please
take a moment to become familiar with the new PeopleSystems
Resource Center’s information.

Helpline to email your human resource questions: Now you
can email your questions via this web portal.

Human resource news center and recent employment law
changes:The news center keeps you up-to-date with recent
changes in state and federal employment laws and what they
mean to you as well as pertinent articles on employment issues
you need to know about.

Human resource manual and employment forms: You
will find “Best Practices” helpful for handling common human
resource issues. Issues may include conducting employee
evaluations and understanding employment laws such as
FLSA, FMLA and COBRA.

Human resource recommendations: You will also find
sample human resource policies regarding discrimination,
harassment, employment at-will and electronic
communications.

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

Page 120 of 948
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NUU 10/ 007 0D EEE KENEWAL CERTIFICATE sksksk

Renewal of Number Direct Bill Policy

United States Liability Insurance Company
1190 Devon Park Drive, Wayne, Pennsylvania 19087
No. NDO1573678C A Member Company of United States Liability Insurance Group

POLICY DECLARATIONS

NAMED INSURED AND ADDRESS:

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
425 15TH STREET

MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

POLICY PERIOD: (MO. DAY YR.) From: 06/25/2022 To: 06/25/2023 12:01 A.M. STANDARD TIME AT YOUR
MAILING ADDRESS SHOWN ABOVE

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION: Non-Profit Directors and Officers
IN CONSIDERATION OF THE RENEWAL PREMIUM STATED BELOW, EXPIRING POLICY NUMBER NDO1573678B IS RENEWED

FOR THE POLICY PERIOD STATED ABOVE. PLEASE ATTACH THIS RENEWAL CERTIFICATE TO YOUR EXPIRING POLICY.

THIS POLICY CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING COVERAGE PARTS FOR WHICH A PREMIUM IS INDICATED.
PREMIUM
Non Profit Management Liability Coverage Parts $1,192.00
TOTAL: $1,192.00
Coverage Form(s) and Endorsement(s) made a part of this policy at time of issue
See Endorsement EOD (1/95)
Agent:  BICHLMEIER INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. (2036) Issued: 06/08/2022 1:28 PM

730 South Pacific Coast Highway, Suite #201

Redondo Beach, CA 90277 %zﬁ%
By: Authorized Represe{faye

THESE DECLARATIONS TOGETHER WITH THE COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS, COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS,
UPC (08-07) COVERAGE PART COVERAGE FORM(S) AND FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS, IF ANY, ISSUED TO FORM A PART THEREOF,
COMPLETE THE ABOVE NUMBERED POLICY.

City Council Meeting Page 122 of 948
January 17, 2023
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EXTENSION OF DECLARATIONS

Policy No. NDO1573678C Effective Date: ~ 06/25/2022
12:01 AM STANDARD TIME AT YOUR MAILING ADDRESS

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS

The following forms apply to the Management Liability coverage part

Endt# Revised Description of Endorsements

DO CA 0517 California State Amendatory Endorsement

DO-100 05117 Directors and Officers Coverage Part

DO-101 05/17 Employment Practices Coverage Part

DO-211 0517 Insurance Operations Exclusion

DO-239 0517 Specified Person or Entity Exclusion

DO-283 05/17 Data and Security Plus Endorsement

DO-298 05/17 Amendment of Prior or Pending Litigation Exclusion
DO-GTC 05/17 General Terms and Conditions

Jacket 07/19 Policy Jacket

Citv @Wﬁ?ﬂmﬁﬁ&ed with an asterisk (*) have been added to this policy or have a new edition date and are attached with this cer‘t]!ig@jg 123 of 948

JanuahRPPr02023 All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. Page 1 of 1
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PLEASE READ YOUR POLICY CAREFULLY.

THE RETENTION.

No. NDO1573678C

ITEM I. PARENT ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ADDRESS

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
425 15TH STREET
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

ITEM III. LIMITS OF LIABILITY

a. Non Profit Directors & Officers $1,000,000

b. Non Profit Directors & Officers $1,000,000
ITEM IV. RETENTION: $0
ITEM V. PREMIUM: $737
RETROACTIVE DATE: Full Prior Acts
PRIOR OR PENDING LITIGATION See form DO-298

Employment Practices Liability Coverage Part
ITEM III. LIMITS OF LIABILITY

a. Employment Practices $1,000,000

b. Employment Practices $1,000,000
ITEM IV. RETENTION: $5,000
ITEM V. PREMIUM: $455
RETROACTIVE DATE: Full Prior Acts
PRIOR OR PENDING LITIGATION See form DO-298

NON PROFIT MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS

Effective Date: 06/25/2022

THIS IS A CLAIMS MADE POLICY COVERAGE FORM AND UNLESS OTHERWISE PROVIDED HEREIN, THE
COVERAGE OF THIS FORM IS LIMITED TO LIABILITY FOR CLAIMS FIRST MADE DURING THE POLICY
PERIOD, OR THE EXTENSION PERIOD, IF APPLICABLE. DEFENSE COSTS SHALL BE APPLIED AGAINST

12:01 AM STANDARD TIME

ITEM II. POLICY PERIOD: (MM/DD/YYYY) From: 06/25/2022 To: 06/25/2023
Non Profit Directors and Officers Liability Coverage Part

EACH CLAIM
IN THE AGGREGATE

EACH CLAIM

EACH CLAIM
IN THE AGGREGATE
EACH CLAIM

Ci d HESE HECLﬁﬁéTIONS ARE PART OF THE POLICY DECLARATIONS CONTAINING THE NAME OF THE INSURED AND THE E%Hgﬁ 55%?948

Jaywaryol 047083

Page 1 Of 2
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NON PROFIT MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS

PLEASE READ YOUR POLICY CAREFULLY.

THIS IS A CLAIMS MADE POLICY COVERAGE FORM AND UNLESS OTHERWISE PROVIDED HEREIN, THE
COVERAGE OF THIS FORM IS LIMITED TO LIABILITY FOR CLAIMS FIRST MADE DURING THE POLICY
PERIOD, OR THE EXTENSION PERIOD, IF APPLICABLE. DEFENSE COSTS SHALL BE APPLIED AGAINST

THE RETENTION.

No. NDO1573678C Effective Date: 06/25/2022
12:01 AM STANDARD TIME

Fiduciary Liability Coverage Part
ITEM Ill. LIMITS OF LIABILITY

a. Fiduciary Liability NOT COVERED
ITEM IV. RETENTION: NOT COVERED
ITEM V. PREMIUM: NOT COVERED

ITEM VI. Coverage Form(s)/Part(s) and Endorsement(s) made a part of this policy at time of issue:
See Endorsement EOD (01/95)

city CHESE HECLﬁﬁéTIONS ARE PART OF THE POLICY DECLARATIONS CONTAINING THE NAME OF THE INSURED AND THE PQLIGY BERIPB4 g
Jaywaryol 07083 Page 2 Of 2
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This Endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

NON PROFIT MANAGEMENT LIABILITY POLICY

SPECIFIED PERSON OR ENTITY EXCLUSION

It is hereby agreed that this endorsement applies to all purchased Coverage Parts:
The Company shall not be liable for Loss or Defense Costs in connection with any Claim:
1. brought by the person(s) or entity(ies) named below; or
2. brought against an Insured based upon, arising out of, directly or indirectly resulting from or in

consequence of the activities, operations, acts or failure to act of the following person(s) or
entity(ies):

Helen Duncan

All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged. This endorsement is a part of your
Policy and takes effect on the effective date of your Policy unless another effective date is shown.

DO 239 (05-17) Page 1 of 1
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m

COMFPENSATION

INS URAMNCE

FUND

IN REPLY REFER TO:

AUGUST 11, 2021 9108273-21

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

Dear Policyholder

Thank you for choosing us as your workers' compensation
insurance carrier.

This package contains your renewal documents as listed
on the following page. Please keep these together.

Qur goal is to provide you with fast, efficient, and the
most convenient service possible. We truly appreciate
your business. If you have any questions about the
information in this mailing, please contact your broker
—_— of record or your local State Compensation Insurance
Fund office.

—_— State Compensation Insurance Fund

BROKER COPY 5880 Owens Dr = Pleasanton, CA 94588-3900

City Council Meeting Page 128 of 948
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BROKER COPY

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

WORKERS’
INSURANCE POLICY

IN REPLY REFER TO:

9108273-21

COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY

STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND
Forms and Endorsements Applicable List Policy

FORM NUMBER

10963A
10217

10217

10217
10217
10217

10217

10217

10610D

FORM DESCRIPTIQON

ANNUAL RATING ENDORSEMENT
9904 - ENDORSEMENT AGREEMENT - WORDING CHANGE
ENDORSEMENT

1159 -ENDORSEMENT AGREEMENT-

COVID-19 REPORTING REQUIREMENT ENDORSEMENT -
CALIFORNIA
2029 -ENDORSEMENT AGREEMENT-

CALIFORNIA SHORT-RATE CANCELLATION
2089 -ENDORSEMENT AGREEMENT-

STATUTORY ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES - BILL RECEIVABLE
2437 -ENDORSEMENT AGREEMENT-

MEDICAL PROVIDER NETWORK ENDORSEMENT
2567 -ENDORSEMENT AGREEMENT-

TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE PROGRAM REAUTHORIZATION
ACT DISCLOSURE ENDORSEMENT
9961 -ENDORSEMENT AGREEMENT-

CLASS AND RATES AMENDED

POLICY HOLDER NOTICE

5880 Owens Dr = Pleasanton, CA 94588-3900

Page 129 of 948
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HOME OFFICE SAN FRANCISCO ANNUAL RATING ENDORSEMENT

IT IS AGREED THAT THE CLASSIFICATIONS AND RATES PER $100 OF REMUNERATION APPEARING
IN THE CONTINUQUS POLICY ISSUED TO THIS EMPLOYER ARE AMENDED AS SHOWN BELOW.

HERE ARE YOUR NEW RATES FOR THE PERIOD INDICATED. IF YOUR NAME OR ADDRESS SHOULD
BE CORRECTED OR IF INSURANCE IS NOT NEEDED FOR NEXT YEAR, PLEASE TELL US.

IMPORTANT THIS IS NOT A BILL CONTINUOUS PoLICY  9108273-21

SEND NO MONEY UNLESS STATEMENT IS ENCLOSED

THE RATING PERIOD BEGINS AND ENDS AT 12:01AM -08- -08-
PACLFIC STANDARD TIME RATING PERIOD 8-08-21 TO 8-08-22

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME DEPOSIT PREMIUM $0.00

425 15TH ST MINIMUM PREMIUM $500.00

MANHATTAN BEACH, CALIF 90266 PREMIUM ADJUSTMENT PERIOD QUARTERLY

R SC

NAME OF EMPLOYER-  MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
(A NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION)

CODE NO, PRINCIPAL WORK AND RATES EFFECTIVE FROM 08-08-21 TO 08-08-22

INTERIM

PREMIUM BASE BILLING

BASIS RATE RATE*

8742-1 SALESPERSONS——OQUTSIDE, 130000 .79 .73
8810-1 CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES--N.O.C. 0 .51 A7
8871-1 CLERICAL TELECOMMUTER EMPLOYEES—-N.O.C. 0 .25 .23

¥k kKX XXBUREAU NOTE INFORMATIQNY ¥k
FEIN 950968754

FEIN 956000742
FEIN 954525658

TOTAL ESTIMATED ANNUAL PREMIUM $945

i { ER COPY Page 130 of 948
COﬁ‘E %0 ND ISSUED AT SAN FRANC]&&FO AUGUST 11, 2021 POLICY L PA 1 OF 3
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HOME OFFICE SAN FRANCISCO ANNUAL RATING ENDORSEMENT

IT IS AGREED THAT THE CLASSIFICATIONS AND RATES PER $100 OF REMUNERATION APPEARING
IN THE CONTINUQUS POLICY ISSUED TO THIS EMPLOYER ARE AMENDED AS SHOWN BELOW.

HERE ARE YOUR NEW RATES FOR THE PERIOD INDICATED. IF YOUR NAME OR ADDRESS SHOULD
BE CORRECTED OR IF INSURANCE IS NOT NEEDED FOR NEXT YEAR, PLEASE TELL US.

IMPORTANT THIS IS NOT A BILL CONTINUQUS POLICY 9108273-21
SEND NO MONEY UNLESS STATEMENT IS ENCLOSED
THE RATING PERIOD BEGINS AND ENDS AT 12:01AM RATING PERIOD 8-08-21 TO 8-08-22

PACIFIC STANDARD TIME

* INTERIM BILLING RATES WILL BE USED ON PAYROLL REPORTS. THEY TAKE INTO ACCOUNT
RATING PLAN CREDITS (OR DEBITS) WHICH WILL APPLY AT FINAL BILLING AND AN
ESTIMATE OF YOUR PREMIUM DISCOUNT AS DETAILED BELOW.

RATING PLAN CREDITS (DEBITS) EFFECTIVE FROM 08-08-21 TO 08-08-22

RATING PLAN MODIFIER 0.92000
ESTIMATED PREMIUM DISCOUNT MODIFIER 1.00000

COMPOSITE FACTOR APPLIED TO BASE RATES TO DERIVE
INTERIM BILLING RATES 0.92000

Fekdddkdddd ikl dddh ikl ddodndndodedededededndndn e de de e e e e e de de e e e e e e de e e e e e e e e de e e e e e el

* ¥
* PREMIUM DISCOUNT SCHEDULE EFFECTIVE FROM 08-08-21 TO 08-08-22 *
* ESTIMATED MODIFIED PREMIUM IS DISCOUNTED ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING SCHEDULE: *
* FIRST ABOVE *
. * $5,000 $5,000 %*
* 0.0% 11.3% %*
* ¥

Fekdddkdddd ikl dddh ikl ddodndndodedededededndndn e de de e e e e e de de e e e e e e de e e e e e e e e de e e e e e el

THE ESTIMATED PREMIUM DISCOUNT IS5 BASED ON AN ESTIMATE OF YOUR PAYROLL, ACTUAL
PREMIUM DISCOUNT APPLIED AT FINAL BILLING WILL BE BASED ON THE ACTUAL PAYROLL
REPORTED ON YOUR POLICY AND SUBJECT TO AUDIT.

i { ER COPY Page 131 of 948
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HOME OFFICE SAN FRANCISCO

ANNUAL RATING ENDORSEMENT

IT IS AGREED THAT THE CLASSIFICATIONS AND RATES PER $100 OF REMUNERATION APPEARING
IN THE CONTINUQUS POLICY ISSUED TO THIS EMPLOYER ARE AMENDED AS SHOWN BELOW.

CONTINUOUS PoLicy 92108273-21

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS, PLEASE CONTACT YOUR LOCAL STATE FUND OFFICE BELOW:

CS5C — POLICY AT VACAVILLE

1020 VAQUERO CIRCLE

VACAVILLE , CA 95688
(877) 405-4545

Nothing herein contained shall be held to vary, alter, waive or extend

any of the terms, conditions
agreements or limitations of the Policy other than as herein stated.

When countersigned by a duly authorized officer or representative of the State Compensation Insurance
Fund, these declarations shall be valid and form part of the Policy.

M%g/ Lo S

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE PRESIDENT AND CEOQ

BROKER COPY

Coeﬁl)?g&%éimgginéhln ISSUED AT SAN FRANCISCO AUGUST 11, 2021 POLICY L P%% 13%0%8 3
Janeangi 7108823 rev.7- 2010
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 — ENDORSEMENT AGREEMENT BROKER COPY

&

COMPENSATION COVID-19 REPORTING REQUIREMENT
e uRaNcE ENDORSEMENT - CALIFORNIA 9108273-21
FUND RENEWAL
SC
HOME OFFICE 0-25-33-40
SAN FRANCISCO EFFECTIVE AUGUST 8, 2021 AT 12.01 A.M. PAGE 1 OF 4

ALLEFFECTIVE DATES ARE TO AUGUST 8, 2022 AT 12.01 A.M.
AT 12:01 AM PACIFIC

STANDARD TIME OR THE

TIME INDICATED AT

PACIFIC STANDARD TIME

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

IN ADDITION TO THE REQUIREMENTS UNDER PART 4, '"YOUR DUTIES
IF INJURY OCCURS" OF YOUR POLICY, IF YOU HAVE FIVE OR MORE
EMPLOYEES AND AN EMPLOYEE THAT IS NOT DESCRIBED IN
CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE SECTION 3212.87 TESTS POSITIVE FOR
COVID-19, YOU ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT THE FOLLOWING
INFORMATION AS PROVIDED BELOW,

REPORTING COVID-19 POSITIVE TESTS FROM JULY 6, 2020 TO
SEPTEMBER 17, 2020

PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE SECTION 3212.88(K) (2),
YOU ARE AWARE OF AN EMPLOYEE TESTING POSITIVE FOR COVID-19
ON OR AFTER JULY 6, 2020 AND PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 17, 2020,
YOU MUST REPORT TO YOUR CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR IN WRITING VIA
ELECTRONIC MAIL OR FACSIMILE WITHIN 30 BUSINESS DAYS OF
SEPTEMBER 17, 2020, ALL OF THE FOLLOWING:

1, AN EMPLOYEE HAS TESTED POSITIVE, FOR PURPOSES OF THIS
REPORTING, DO NOT PROVIDE ANY PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE
INFORMATION REGARDING THE EMPLOYEE WHO TESTED POSITIVE
FOR COVID-19 UNLESS THE EMPLOYEE ASSERTS THE INFECTION
IS WORK RELATED OR HAS FILED A CLAIM FORM PURSUANT TO
CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE SECTION 5401,

2, THE DATE THAT THE EMPLOYEE TESTS POSITIVE, WHICH IS THE
DATE THE SPECIMEN WAS COLLECTED FOR TESTING.

3. THE SPECIFIC ADDRESS OR ADDRESSES OF THE EMPLOYEE'S
CONTINUED

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR

LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.
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AT 12:01 AM PACIFIC
STANDARD TIME OR THE
TIME INDICATED AT
PACIFIC STANDARD TIME

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

CONTINUED,

SPECIFIC PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT DURING THE 14-DAY PERIOD
PRECEDING DATE OF THE EMPLOYEE'S POSITIVE TEST.

4, THE HIGHEST NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES WHO REPORTED TO WORK AT
EACH OF THE EMPLOYEE'S SPECIFIC PLACES OF EMPLOYMENT ON
ANY GIVEN WORK DAY BETWEEN JULY 6, 2020 AND SEPTEMBER
17, 2020.

REPORTING COVID-19 POSITIVE TEST FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2020 TO
JANUARY 1, 2023

PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE SECTION 3212,88(I), WHEN
YOU KNOW, OR REASONABLY SHOULD KNOW, THAT AN EMPLOYEE HAS
TESTED POSITIVE FOR COVID-19 BETWEEN SEPTEMBER 17, 2020 AND
JANUARY 1, 2023, YOU MUST REPORT TO YOUR CLAIMS
ADMINISTRATOR IN WRITING VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL OR FACSIMILE
WITHIN 3 BUSINESS DAYS ALL OF THE FOLLOWING:

1, AN EMPLOYEE HAS TESTED POSITIVE, FOR PURPOSES OF THIS
REPORTING, DO NOT PROVIDE ANY PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE
INFORMATION REGARDING THE EMPLOYEE WHO TESTED POSITIVE
FOR COVID-19 UNLESS THE EMPLOYEE ASSERTS THE INFECTION
IS WORK RELATED OR HAS FILED A CLAIM FORM PURSUANT TO
CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE SECTION 5401,

2, THE DATE THAT THE EMPLOYEE TESTS POSITIVE, WHICH IS THE
DATE THE SPECIMEN WAS COLLECTED FOR TESTING.

CONTINUED

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR
LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.
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MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

CONTINUED,

3. THE SPECIFIC ADDRESS OR ADDRESSES OF THE EMPLOYEE'S
SPECIFIC PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT DURING THE 14-DAY PERIOD
PRECEDING THE DATE OF THE EMPLOYEE'S POSITIVE TEST.

4, THE HIGHEST NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES WHO REPORTED TO WORK AT
THE EMPLOYEE'S SPECIFIC PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT IN THE 45-
DAY PERIOD PRECEDING THE LAST DAY THE EMPLOYEE WORKED AT
EACH SPECIFIC PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT,

LABOR CODE SECTION 3212,88(J) STATES THAT THE INTENTIONAL
SUBMISSION OF FALSE OR MISLEADING INFORMATION OR THE
FATLURE TO REPORT THE ABOVE INFORMATION AS REQUIRED MAY
SUBJECT YOU TO A CIVIL PENALTY IN THE AMOUNT OF UP TO
$10,000 TO BE ASSESSED BY THE LABOR COMMISSIONER.

FOR THE PURPOSES OF THESE REQUIREMENTS, CALIFORNIA LABOR
CODE SECTION 3212,88(M) PROVIDES THE FOLLOWING:

1. "COVID-19" MEANS THE 2019 NOVEL CORONAVIRUS DISEASE,

2. "TEST" OR "TESTING" MEANS A PCR (POLYMERASE CHAIN
REACTION) TEST APPROVED FOR USE OR APPROVED FOR
EMERGENCY USE BY THE UNITED STATES FOOD AND DRUG
ADMINISTRATION TO DETECT THE PRESENCE OF VIRAL RNA,
"TEST'" OR "TESTING" DOES NOT INCLUDE SEROLOGIC TESTING,
ALSO KNOWN AS ANTIBODY TESTING. '"TEST" OR "TESTING" MAY
INCLUDE ANY OTHER VIRAL CULTURE TEST APPROVED FOR USE OR

CONTINUED

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR

LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.
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COVID-19 REPORTING REQUIREMENT
ENDORSEMENT — CALIFORNIA 9108273-21
RENEWAL
SC
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TO AUGUST 8, 2022 AT 12.01 A.M.

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

CONTINUED,

APPROVED FOR EMERGENCY USE BY THE UNITED STATES FOOD AND
DRUG ADMINISTRATION TO DETECT THE PRESENCE OF VIRAL RNA
WHICH HAS THE SAME OR HIGHER SENSITIVITY AND SPECIFICITY
AS THE PCR TEST.

"A SPECIFIC PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT' MEANS THE BUILDING,
STORE, FACILITY, OR AGRICULTURAL FIELD WHERE AN EMPLOYEE
PERFORMS WORK AT THE EMPLOYER'S DIRECTION. "A SPECIFIC
PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT" DOES NOT INCLUDE THE EMPLOYEE'S
HOME OR RESIDENCE, UNLESS THE EMPLOYEE PROVIDES HOME
HEALTH CARE SERVICES TO ANOTHER INDIVIDUAL AT THE
EMPLOYEE'S HOME RESIDENCE.

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR

LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.
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AT 12:01 AM PACIFIC
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TIME INDICATED AT
PACIFIC STANDARD TIME

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

THE INSURANCE UNDER THIS POLICY IS LIMITED AS FOLLOWS:

IT IS AGREED THAT ANYTHING IN THE POLICY TO THE CONTRARY
NOTWITHSTANDING, SUCH INSURANCE A5 IS AFFORDED BY THIS
POLICY IS5 SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS:

IF YOU CANCEL THE POLICY AND A DISCLOSURE WAS PROVIDED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 481(C) OF THE CALIFORNIA INSURANCE
CODE, FINAL PREMIUM WILL BE BASED ON THE TIME THIS POLICY
WAS IN FORCE AND INCREASED BY THE SHORT-RATE CANCELLATION
TABLE BELOW:

SHORT-RATE CANCELLATION TABLE

FINAL PREMIUM BASED ON THE TABLE BELOW WILL NOT BE LESS
THAN THE MINIMUM PREMIUM FOR THIS POLICY.

DAYS = EXTENDED NUMBER OF DAYS
% = PERCENTAGE OF FULL POLICY PREMIUM

DAYS % DAYS % DAYS %
1 5% 2 6% 3-4 7%

5-6 8% 7-8 9% 9-10 10%
11-12 11% 13-14 12% 15-16 13%
17-18 14% 19-20 15% 21-22 16%
23-25 17% 26-29 18% 30-32 19%
33-36 20% 37-40 21% 41-43 22%
44-47 23% 48-51 247% 52-54 25%
55-58 26% 59-62 27% 63-65 28%

CONTINUED

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR

LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.
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AT 12:01 AM PACIFIC
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TIME INDICATED AT

PACIFIC STANDARD TIME

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

CONTINUED,
66-69  29% 70-73  30% 74-76 31%
77-80  32% 81-83  33% 84-87 34%
38-91 35% 92-94  36% 95-938 374
99-102 38% 103-105 39% 106-109  40%
110-113 41% 114-116 42% 117-120  43%
121-124 44% 125-127 453% 128-131 467%
132-135 47% 136-138 48% 139-142  49%
143-146 50% 147-149 51% 150-153  52%
154-156 53% 157-160 54% 161-164  55%
165-167 56% 168-171 57% 172-175  58%
176-178 59% 179-182 60% 183-187 61%
188-191 62% 192-196 63% 197-200  64%
201-205 65% 206-209 66% 210-214  67%
215-218 68% 219-223 69% 224-228 70%
229-232 71% 233-237 72% 238-241 73%
242-246 74% 247-250 75% 251-255 76%
256-260 77% 261-264 78% 265-269 79%
270-273 B80% 274-278 8l% 279-282  82%
283-287 83% 288-291 384% 292-296  85%
297-301 867 302-305 87% 306-310 88%
311-314 389% 315-319 90% 320-323 91%
324-328 927 329-332 93% 333-337  94%
338-342 95% 343-346 96% 347-351 97%
352-355 938% 356-360 99% 361-365 100%

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR
LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.
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MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

ANY CONTRADICTION BETWEEN THE POLICY AND THIS ENDORSEMENT
WILL BE CONTROLLED BY THIS ENDORSEMENT,

IT IS AGREED THAT THIS5 ENDORSEMENT AMENDS SECTION D, OF
PART FIVE OF THE POLICY.

YOUR POLICY HAS BEEN WRITTEN ON QUARTERLY ADJUSTHMENT
PERIOD, YOU WILL PAY ALL PREMIUM WHEN DUE,

PAYROLL REPORTS AND PREMIUM ARE DUE WITHIN 10 DAYS (TEN)
AFTER THE LAST DAY OF THE REPORTING PERIOD,

PAYMENT OF OUTSTANDING PREMIUM IS DUE WITHIN 10 DAYS (TEN)
FROM THE BILL DATE,

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR
LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.
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MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

ANY CONTRADICTION BETWEEN THE POLICY AND THIS ENDORSEMENT
WILL BE CONTROLLED BY THIS ENDORSEMENT,

THE STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND MEDICAL PROVIDER
NETWORK IS ESTABLISHED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CALIFORNIA LABOR
CODE 4600 ET SEQ AND APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DIVISION OF
WORKERS' COMPENSATION ADMINISTRATIVE DIRECTOR., THE INTENT
OF THE 2004 LEGISLATION REQUIRING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE
MEDICAL PROVIDER NETWORK IS INCREASED EMPLOYER CONTROL OVER
THE COSTS OF TREATING EMPLOYEE WORK RELATED INJURIES AND
DISEASE,

PART FOUR OF THE POLICY, YOUR DUTIES IF INJURY OCCURS, IS
AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:

IT IS AGREED THAT THE POLICYHOLDER SHALL REFER ALL WORK
RELATED INJURIES OR DISEASE TO THE STATE COMPENSATION
INSURANCE FUND MEDICAL PROVIDER NETWORK AT THE TIME OF AN
OCCUPATIONAL INJURY OR UFPON KNOWLEDGE OF AN OCCUPATIONAL
INJURY OR DISEASE,

IT IS FURTHER AGREED THAT WHEN AN EMPLOYEE NOTIFIES THE
POLICYHOLDER OF AN OCCUPATIONAL INJURY OR FILES A CLAIM FOR
WORKERS' COMPENSATION WITH THE POLICYHOLDER, THE POLICY-
HOLDER SHALL ARRANGE AN INITIAL MEDICAL EVALUATION AND
BEGIN TREATMENT WITHIN THE MEDICAL PROVIDER NETWORK. THE
POLICYHOLDER SHALL NOTIFY THE EMPLOYEE OF HIS OR HER RIGHT

CONTINUED

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR
LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.
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COUNTERSIGNED

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

CONTINUED,

TO BE TREATED BY A PHYSICIAN OF HIS5 OR HER CHOICE FROM
WITHIN THE MEDICAL PROVIDER NETWORK AFTER THE FIRST VISIT,.
THE POLICYHOLDER SHALL NOTIFY EMPLOYEE OF THE METHOD BY
WHICH THE LIST OF PARTICIPATING PROVIDERS MAY BE ACCESSED
BY EMPLOYEES,

IT IS FURTHER AGREED THAT IF AN INJURED EMPLOYEE DISPUTES
EITHER THE DIAGNOSIS OR THE TREATHMENT PRESCRIBED BY THE
TREATING PHYSICIAN, THE EMPLOYEE MAY SEEK THE OPINION OF
ANOTHER PHYSICIAN WITHIN THE MEDICAL PROVIDER NETWORK, IF
THE INJURED EMPLOYEE DISPUTES THE DIAGNOSIS OR TREATMENT
PRESCRIBED BY THE SECOND PHYSICIAN, THE EMPLOYEE MAY SEEK
THE OPINION OF A THIRD PHYSICIAN WITHIN THE MEDICAL
PROVIDER NETWORK,

IT IS FURTHER AGREED THAT THIS ENDORSEMENT IN NO WAY
AFFECTS THE RIGHTS OF AN INJURED WORKER TO PREDESIGNATE A
PHYSICIAN, AN EMPLOYEE MUST FILE WRITTEN NOTICE OF THE
PREDESIGNATION WITH THE EMPLOYER PRIOR TO THE DATE OF
INJURY. THE NOTICE MUST INCLUDE THE PHYSICIAN'S SIGNATURE
OF AGREEMENT TO THE PREDESIGNATION, AND THE FOLLOWING
CONDITIONS MUST APPLY:

THE PHYSICIAN IS THE EMPLOYEE'S REGULAR PHYSICIAN,

THE PHYSICIAN IS5 THE EMPLOYEE'S PRIMARY CARE PROVIDER WHO
HAS PREVIOQUSLY DIRECTED THE MEDICAL TREATMENT OF THE

CONTINUED

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR
LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.
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MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

CONTINUED,

EMPLOYEE AND RETAINS RECORDS OF THE TREATMENT AND MEDICAL
HISTORY.

THE EMPLOYER PROVIDES THE STAFF WITH NONOCCUPATIONAL GROUP
HEALTH COVERAGE IN A HEALTH-CARE SERVICE PLAN (SUCH AS AN
HMO/PPO PROGRAM) ,

OR
THE EMPLOYER PROVIDES NONOCCUPATIONAL HEALTH COVERAGE IN A
GROUP HEALTH PLAN OR A GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE POLICY, PER
LABOR CODE 4616.7.

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR

LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.
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TO AUGUST 8, 2022 AT 12.01 A.M.

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

THIS ENDORSEMENT ADDRESSES THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE
TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT OF 2002 AS AMENDED AND
EXTENDED BY THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE PROGRAM
REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2019, IT SERVES TO NOTIFY YOU OF
CERTAIN LIMITATIONS UNDER THE ACT, AND THAT YOUR INSURANCE
CARRIER IS CHARGING PREMIUM FOR LOSSES THAT MAY OCCUR IN
THE EVENT OF AN ACT OF TERRORISHM.

YOUR POLICY PROVIDES COVERAGE FOR WORKERS COMPENSATION
LOSSES CAUSED BY ACTS OF TERRORISM, INCLUDING WORKERS
COMPENSATION BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS DICTATED BY STATE LAW,
COVERAGE FOR SUCH LOSSES IS STILL SUBJECT TO ALL TERMS,
DEFINITIONS, EXCLUSIONS, AND CONDITIONS IN YOUR POLICY, AND
ANY APPLICABLE FEDERAL AND/OR STATE LAWS, RULES, OR
REGULATIONS,

DEFINITIONS

THE DEFINITIONS PROVIDED IN THIS ENDORSEMENT ARE BASED ON
AND HAVE THE SAME MEANING AS THE DEFINITIONS IN THE ACT. IF
WORDS OR PHRASES NOT DEFINED IN THIS ENDORSEMENT ARE
DEFINED IN THE ACT, THE DEFINITIONS IN THE ACT WILL APPLY,.

"ACT" MEANS THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT OF 2002, WHICH
TOOK EFFECT ON NOVEMBER 26, 2002, AND ANY AMENDMENTS
THERETO, INCLUDING ANY AMENDMENTS RESULTING FROM THE
TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE PROGRAM REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF
2019,

CONTINUED

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR
LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.
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AT 12:01 AM PACIFIC

STANDARD TIME
TIME INDICATED

OR THE
AT

PACIFIC STANDARD TIME

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

CONTINUED,

"ACT OF TERRORISM" MEANS ANY ACT THAT IS CERTIFIED BY THE
SECRETARY OF THE TREASURY, IN CONSULTATION WITH THE
SECRETARY OF HOMELAND SECURITY, AND THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF
THE UNITED STATES AS MEETING ALL OF THE FOLLOWING
REQUIREMENTS:

A, THE ACT IS AN ACT OF TERRORISHM.

B. THE ACT IS5 VIOLENT OR DANGEROUS5S TO HUMAN LIFE, PROPERTY
OR INFRASTRUCTURE.

C. THE ACT RESULTED IN DAMAGE WITHIN THE UNITED STATES, OR
OUTSIDE OF THE UNITED STATES IN THE CASE OF THE PREMISES
OF UNITED STATES MISSIONS OR CERTAIN AIR CARRIERS OR
VESSELS.

D, THE ACT HAS BEEN COMMITTED BY AN INDIVIDUAL OR
INDIVIDUALS AS PART OF AN EFFORT TO COERCE THE CIVILIAN
POPULATION OF THE UNITED STATES OR TO INFLUENCE THE
POLICY OR AFFECT THE CONDUCT OF THE UNITED STATES
GOVERNMENT BY COERCION,

"INSURED LOSS" MEANS ANY LOSS RESULTING FROM AN ACT OF
TERRORISM (AND, EXCEPT FOR PENNSYLVANIA, INCLUDING AN ACT
OF WAR, IN THE CASE OF WORKERS COMPENSATION) THAT IS
COVERED BY PRIMARY OR EXCESS PROPERTY AND CASUALTY
INSURANCE ISSUED BY AN INSURER IF THE LOSS OCCURS IN THE

CONTINUED

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR

LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.

COUNTERSIGNED AND ISSUED AT SAN FRANCISCO:  AUGUST 11, 2021
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ALLEFFECTIVE DATES ARE TO AUGUST 8, 2022 AT 12.01 A.M.
AT 12:01 AM PACIFIC

STANDARD TIME
TIME INDICATED

OR THE
AT

PACIFIC STANDARD TIME

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

CONTINUED,

UNITED STATES OR AT THE PREMISES OF UNITED STATES MISSIONS
OR TO CERTAIN AIR CARRIERS OR VESSELS.

"INSURER DEDUCTIBLE" MEANS, FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING ON
JANUARY 1, 2021, AND ENDING ON DECEMBER 31, 2027, AN AMOUNT
EQUAL TO 20% OF OUR DIRECT EARNED PREMIUMS DURING THE
IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING CALENDAR YEAR,

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

THE ACT LIMITS OUR LIABILITY TO YOU UNDER THIS POLICY. IF
AGGREGATE INSURED LOSSES EXCEED $100, 000,000,000 IN A
CALENDAR YEAR AND IF WE HAVE MET OUR INSURER DEDUCTIBLE, WE
ARE NOT LIABLE FOR THE PAYMENT OF ANY PORTION OF THE AMOUNT
OF INSURED LOSSES THAT EXCEEDS $100,000,000,000; AND FOR
AGGREGATE INSURED LOSSES UP TO $100,000,000,000, WE WILL
PAY ONLY A PRO RATA SHARE OF SUCH INSURED LOSSES AS
DETERMINED BY THE SECRETARY OF THE TREASURY.

POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE NOTICE

1. INSURED LOSSES WOULD BE PARTIALLY REIMBURSED BY THE
UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT. IF THE AGGREGATE INDUSTRY
INSURED LOSSES OCCURING IN ANY CALENDAR YEAR EXCEED
$200,000,000, THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT WOULD PAY 80%
OF OUR INSURED LOSSES THAT EXCEED OUR INSURER
DEDUCTIBLE.

CONTINUED

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR
LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.

COUNTERSIGNED AND ISSUED AT SAN FRANCISCO:  AUGUST 11, 2021
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425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

CONTINUED,

2, NOTWITHSTANDING ITEM 1 ABOVE, THE UNITED STATES
GOVERNMENT WILL NOT MAKE ANY PAYMENT UNDER THE ACT FOR
ANY PORTION,

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY TO WHICH IT IS ATTACHED
AND IS EFFECTIVE ON THE DATE ISSUED UNLESS OTHERWISE
STATED,

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR

LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.

COUNTERSIGNED AND ISSUED AT SAN FRANCISCO:  AUGUST 11, 2021
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ALL EFFECTIVE DATES ARE
AT 12:01 AM PACIFIC
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TIME INDICATED AT
PACIFIC STANDARD TIME

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME

425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266

ANYTHING IN THIS POLICY TO THE CONTRARY NOTWITHSTANDING, IT IS
AGREED THAT THE WORDING FOR THE FOLLOWING CLASSIFICATION APPEARING
IN THIS POLICY IS CHANGED TO READ-

CLASS DESCRIPTION OF WORK

8871-1 CLERICAL TELECOMMUTER EMPLOYEES——N.O.C.

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR

LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.

COUNTERSIGNED AND ISSUED AT SAN FRANCISCO: AUGUST 11, 2021
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MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 15TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CA 90266
ANY CONTRADICTION BETWEEN THE POLICY AND THIS ENDORSEMENT WILL
BE CONTROLLED BY THIS ENDORSEMENT.
IT IS AGREED THAT THE FOLLOWING CLASSIFICATION(S) IS (ARE)
HEREBY ADDED TO AND MADE A PART OF THIS POLICY.
RATE(S) EFFECTIVE UP TO 8/08/22 -
INTERIM
STANDARD BASE BILLING
CLASS DESCRIPTION OF WORK RATE* RATE*
8871-1 CLERICAL TELECOMMUTER EMPLOYEES—-N.O.C. .25 .23

IF THIS CLASSIFICATION CHANGE RESULTS IN INCREASED POLICY PREMIUM,
YOU ARE ENTITLED, AS PROVIDED BY INSURANCE CODE SECTION 11753.1,
TO REQUEST THAT THE CLASSIFICATION DECISION BE RECONSIDERED BY
THE STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND, PLEASE CONTACT YOUR LOCAL
DISTRICT OFFICE,

*THE BASE RATE IS PROVIDED FOR YOUR INFORMATION, IT IS THE RATE
WHICH STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND HAS FILED WITH THE
DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE., THE INTERIM BILLING RATE WILL BE USED
ON PAYROLL REPORTS., IT TAKES INTO ACCOUNT RATING PLAN CREDITS
(OR DEBITS) WHICH WILL APPLY AT FINAL BILLING.

NOTHING IN THIS ENDORSEMENT CONTAINED SHALL BE HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE
OR EXTEND ANY OF THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS, OR LIMITATIONS OF THIS
POLICY OTHER THAN AS STATED. NOTHING ELSEWHERE IN THIS POLICY SHALL BE
HELD TO VARY, ALTER, WAIVE OR LIMIT THE TERMS, CONDITIONS, AGREEMENTS OR
LIMITATIONS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT.

COUNTERSIGNED AND ISSUED AT SAN FRANCISCO: AUGUST 11, 2021
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Dear Policyholder:

These endorsements amend and are part of your policy.
Please keep them with your documents for future reference.

If you have any questions concerning these endorsements,
Please contact your local State Fund office.

BROKER COPY
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POLICYHOLDER NOTICE Page 1 of 3

YOUR RIGHT TO RATING AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION
PN 04 99 01H (Ed. 05-20)

FOLICY NO. $108273-21
NR SC

MANHATTAN BEACH CHAMBER OF COMME
425 16TH ST
MANHATTAN BEACH, CALIF 90266

1. Information Available to You

A. Information Available from Us - State Compensation Insurance Fund
(1) General questions regarding your policy should be directed to:

State Fund, Small Commercial Service Center
1020 Vaquero Circle
Vacaville, CA 95688
Telephone: 888-782-8338
Website: www.statefundca.com

(2) Dividend Calculation. If this is a participating policy (a policy on which a dividend may be paid), upon
payment or non-payment of a dividend, we shall provide a written explanation to you that sets forth the
basis of the dividend calculation. The explanation will be in clear, understandable language and will
express the dividend as a dollar amount and as a percentage of the earned premium for the policy year
on which the dividend is calculated.

Pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 10 CCR 2503 (b), under California Law it is unlawful

for an insurer [us] to promise the future payment of dividends under an unexpired workers’ compensation
policy or to misrepresent the conditions for dividend payment. Dividends are payable only pursuant to
conditions determined by the [our] Board of Directors or other governing board [of the Company] following
policy expiration. Forfeiture of a right to, reduction in the amount of, or delay in the payment of a policyholder’'s
dividend due to the policyholder’s failure to accept renewal of the policy or subsequent policies issued

by the same insurer is illegal and constitutes an unfair practice.

(3) Claims Information. Pursuant to Sections 3761 and 3762 of the California Labor Code, you are

entitled to receive information in our claim files that affects your premium. Copies of documents will be
supplied at your expense during reasonable business hours.

—_— For claims covered under this policy, we will estimate the ultimate cost of unsettled claims for statistical

purposes eighteen months after the policy becomes effective and will report those estimates to the Workers'
Compensation Insurance Rating Bureau of California (WCIRB) no later than twenty months after the

policy becomes effective. The cost of any settled claims will also be reported at that time. At twelve-month
intervals thereafter, we will update and report to the WCIRB the estimated cost of any unsettled claims

and the actual final cost of any claims settled in the interim.The amounts we report will be used by the
WCIRB to compute your experience modification if you are eligible for experience rating.

B. Information Available from the Workers' Compensation Insurance Rating Bureau of
California

(1) The WCIRB is a licensed rating organization and the California Insurance Commissioner's designated
statistical agent. As such, the WCIRB is responsible for administering the California Workers' Compensation
Uniform Statistical Reporfing Plan--1995(USRP) and the California Workers' Compensation Experience
Rating Plan--1995(ERP). WCIRE contact information is: WCIRE, 1221 Broadway, Suite 900,
Oakland, CA 94612, Attn: Customer Service; 888-229-2472 (phone); 415-778-7272 (fax); and

customerservice@wecirb.com (email). The regulations contained in the USRP and the ERP are
available for public viewing through the WCIRB's website at wcirb.com.

City Council Meeting BROKERPa@QPoYSMS
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POLICYHOLDER NOTICE
Your Right to Rating and Dividend Information

FOLICY NO. $108273-21
NR SC

(2) Policyholder Information. Pursuant to California Insurance Code (CIC) Section 11752.6, upon written

request, you are entitled to information relating to loss experience, claims, classification assignments, and
policy contracts as well as rating plans, rating systems, manual rules, or other information impacting your
premium that is maintained in the records of the WCIRB. Complaints and Requests for Action requesting
policyholder information should be forwarded to: WCIRB, 1221 Broadway, Suite 900, Oakland, CA 94612,
Attn: Custodian of Records. The Custodian of Records can be reached at 415-777-0777 (phone) and
415-778-7272 (fax).

(3) Experience Rating Form. Each experience rated risk may receive a single copy of its current

Experience Rating Form/Worksheet free of charge by completing a Policyholder Experience Rating
Worksheet Request Form on the WCIRB's website at wcirb.com/ratesheet. The Experience Rating
Form/Worksheet will include a Loss-Free Rating, which is the experience modification that would have
been calculated if $0 (zero) actual losses were incurred during the experience period. This hypothetical
rating calculation is provided for informational purposes only.

Dispute Process
You may dispute our actions or the actions of the WCIRB pursuant to CIC Sections 11737 and 11753.1.

Our Dispute Resolution Process. You may request in writing that we reconsider a change in a

classification assignment that results in an increased premium. You may also request, in writing, that we
review the manner in which our rating system has been applied in connection with the insurance

afforded or offered you. Written requests that we reconsider or review our actions should be forwarded to:
State Compensation Insurance Fund, Attention: Manager, Customer Assistance Program, 5880 Owens
Drive, Pleasanton, CA 94588 or call us at 925-460-6530 or fax us at 925-460-6633.

Disputing the Actions of the WCIRB. If you have been aggrieved by any decision, action, or omission
to act of the WCIRBE, you may request, in writing, that the WCIRB reconsider its decision, action, or omission

to act. You may also request, in writing, that the WCIRB review the manner in which its rating system has
been applied in connection with the insurance afforded or offered you. For requests related to classification
disputes, the reporting of experience, or coverage issues, your initial request for review must be received

by the WCIRB within 12 months after the expiration date of the policy to which the request for review

pertains, except if the request involves the application of the Revision of Losses rule. For requests related

to your experience modificaton, your initial request for review must be received by the WCIRB within 6 months
after the issuance, or 12 months after the expiration date, of the experience modification to which the request
for review pertains, whichever is later, except if the request for review involves the application of the

Revision of Losses rule. If the request involves the Revision of Losses rule, the time to state your appeal

may be longer. (See Section VI, Rule 7 of the ERP).

You may commence the review process by sending the WCIRB a written Inquiry. Written Inquiries should be
sent to: WCIRB, 1221 Broadway, Suite 900, Oakland, CA 94612, Attn: Customer Service. Customer Service
can be reached at 888-229-2472 (phone), 415-778-7272 (fax) and customerservice@wcirb.com (email).

If you are dissatisfied with the WCIRB's decision upon an Inquiry, or if the WCIRB fails to respond within

90 days after receipt of the Inquiry, you may pursue the subject of the Inquiry by sending the WCIRB a
written Complaint and Request for Action. After you send your Complaint and Request for Action, the WCIRB
has 30 days to send you written notice indicating whether or not your written request will be reviewed.

If the WCIRB agrees to review your request, it must conduct the review and issue a decision granting or
rejecting your request within 80 days after sending you the written notice granting review. If the WCIRB
declines to review your request, if you are dissatisfied with the decision upon review, or if the WCIRB fails to
grant or reject your request or issue a decision upon review, you may appeal to the Insurance Commissioner

City Council Meeting BROKERPa@QPoYSMS
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as described in paragraph I1.C., below. Written Complaints and Requests for Action should be forwarded to:
WCIRB, 1221 Broadway, Suite 900, Oakland, CA 94612, Attn: Complaints and Reconsiderations.

The WCIRB's contact information is 888-229-2472 (phone), 415-371-5204 (fax) and
customerservice@wcirb.com (email).

California Department of Insurance - Appeals to the Insurance Commissioner. After you follow
the appropriate dispute resolution process described above, if (1) we or the WCIRB decline to review your
request, (2) you are dissatisfied with the decision upon review, or (3) we or the WCIRB fail to grant or reject
your request or issue a decision upon review, you may appeal to the Insurance Commissioner pursuant to CIC
Sections 11737, 117528, 11753.1 and Title 10, California Code of Regulations, Section 2509.40 et seq. You
must file your appeal within 30 days after we or the WCIRB send you the notice rejecting review of your
Complaint and Request for Action or the decision upon your Complaint and Request for Action. If no written
decision regarding your Compaint and Request for Action is sent, your appeal must be filed within 120 days
after you sent your Complaint and Request for Action to us or to the WCIRB. The filing address for all appeals
to the Insurance Commissioner is:

Administrative Hearing Bureau
California Department of Insurance
1901 Harrison Street, 3rd Floor
Oakland, California 94612
415-538-4243

You have the right to a hearing before the Insurance Commissioner, and our action, or the action of the
WCIRB, may be affirmed, modified or reversed.

Resources Available to You in Obtaining Information and Pursuing Disputes

Policyholder Ombudsman. Pursuant to California Insurance Code Section 11752.6, a policyholder
ombudsman is available at the WCIRB to assist you in obtaining and evaluating the rating, policy, and
claims information referenced in | A. and |.B., above. The ombudsman may advise you on any dispute
with us, the WCIRB, or on an appeal to the Insurance Commissioner pursuant to Section 11737 of the
Insurance Code. The address of the policyholder ombudsman is WCIRB, 1221 Broadway, Suite 900,
Oakland, CA 94612, Attn: Policyholder Ombudsman. The policyholder ombudsman can be reached at
415-778-7159 (phone), 415-371-5288 (fax) and ombudsman@wcirb.com (email).

California Department of Insurance - Information and Assistance. Information and assistance
on policy questions can be obtained from the Department of Insurance Consumer HOTLINE, B00-927-
HELP (4357) or insurance.ca.gov. For questions and correspondence regarding appeals to the
Administrative Hearing Bureau, see the contact information in paragraph II.C.

This notice does not change the policy to which it is attached.
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1400 Highland Avenue Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 STAF F RE Po RT
www.manhattanbeach.gov ¢ (310) 802-5000

Agenda Date: 1/17/2023

TO:
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM:
Bruce Moe, City Manager

SUBJECT:

a. Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance No. 23-0002:
An Ordinance of the City of Manhattan Beach Amending Title 1 (General Provisions) of the
Manhattan Beach Municipal Code to add Chapter 1.14 Regarding Rehearings

b. Adoption of Urgency Ordinance No. 23-0003-U:
An Urgency Ordinance of The City of Manhattan Beach Amending Title 1 (General
Provisions) of the Manhattan Beach Municipal Code to add Chapter 1.14 Regarding
Rehearings and Declaring the Urgency Thereof

c. Making a Determination of Exemption under the California Environmental Quality Act (City
Manager Moe).

ADOPT ORDINANCE NOS. 23-0002 AND 23-0003-U

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Ordinance Nos. 23-0002 and 23-0003-U.

BACKGROUND:

On January 9, 2023, the City Council introduced Ordinance No. 23-0002, an Ordinance of the
City of Manhattan Beach Amending Title 1 (General Provisions) of the Manhattan Beach
Municipal Code To Add Chapter 1.14 Regarding Rehearings. The codified provisions in the
Urgency Ordinance are identical to the codified provisions in both Ordinance No. 23-0002 and
Urgency Ordinance No. 23-0002-U.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 23-0002
2. Urgency Ordinance No. 23-0003-U

City of Manhattan Beach Page 1 Printed on 1/11/2023
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ORDINANCE NO. 23-0003-U

AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF
MANHATTAN BEACH AMENDING TITLE 1 (GENERAL
PROVISIONS) OF THE MANHATTAN BEACH MUNICIPAL
CODE TO ADD CHAPTER 1.14 REGARDING
REHEARINGS AND DECLARING THE URGENCY
THEREOF

THE MANHATTAN BEACH CITY COUNCIL HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council hereby amends Title 1 (“General Provisions”) of
the Manhattan Beach Municipal Code by adding Chapter 1.14 to read as follows:

“1-14 - REHEARINGS
1.14.010 - Rehearings on Certain Housing Projects.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Municipal Code or City’s Local Coastal
Program, the City Council has complete authority to rehear or consider again any action
taken on an application for a housing development project, as defined in Section
65589.5 of the Government Code, or any amendment thereto, if both of the following
circumstances apply:

A. The application requires a precise development plan or site development permit;
and

B. The action is the subject of: threatened or pending litigation; or a notice of
violation by the state Department of Housing and Community Development,
other state agency, or federal government.

Any proceeding authorized under this section shall be conducted in the same
manner and with the same public notice provided for the proceeding in which the
decision was initially rendered.”

Section 2. On October 18, 2022, the City Council denied an application for a
precise development plan and related entittements for a housing development.
Subsequently the applicant filed a lawsuit challenging the denial and the state
Department of Housing and Community Development filed a notice of violation stating
that the denial violated state housing laws. The notice states that if the City does not
reconsider the Project, the state “may move forward with any of the actions authorized
by California Government Code section 65585, subdivision (j), including, but not limited
to, referral to the California Office of the Attorney General.” Based upon the foregoing
facts, the City Council finds and determines that it is necessary to adopt this Ordinance
on an urgency basis for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health or safety.
For these reasons, the public peace, health, safety and welfare require that this
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Ordinance take effect immediately. This is an urgency ordinance within the meaning of
Government Code Section 36937(b) and shall take effect immediately.

Section 3. The City Council hereby finds that it can be seen with certainty that
there is no possibility that the adoption of this Ordinance will have a significant effect on
the environment. Itis therefore exempt from California Environmental Quality Act review
pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines (California Code of
Regulations, Title 14, 88 15000 et seq.).

ADOPTED January 17, 2023.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

STEVE NAPOLITANO
Mayor

ATTEST:

LIZA TAMURA
City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

QUINN M. BARROW
City Attorney
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ORDINANCE NO. 23-0002

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH
AMENDING TITLE 1 (GENERAL PROVISIONS) OF THE
MANHATTAN BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE TO ADD
CHAPTER 1.14 REGARDING REHEARINGS

THE MANHATTAN BEACH CITY COUNCIL HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council hereby amends Title 1 (“General Provisions”) of
the Manhattan Beach Municipal Code by adding Chapter 1.14 to read as follows:

“1-14 - REHEARINGS
1.14.010 - Rehearings on Certain Housing Projects.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Municipal Code or City’s Local Coastal
Program, the City Council has complete authority to rehear or consider again any action
taken on an application for a housing development project, as defined in Section
65589.5 of the Government Code, or any amendment thereto, if both of the following
circumstances apply:

A. The application requires a precise development plan or site development permit;
and

B. The action is the subject of: threatened or pending litigation; or a notice of
violation by the state Department of Housing and Community Development,
other state agency, or federal government.

Any proceeding authorized under this section shall be conducted in the same
manner and with the same public notice provided for the proceeding in which the
decision was initially rendered.”

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds that it can be seen with certainty that
there is no possibility that the adoption of this Ordinance will have a significant effect on
the environment. It is therefore exempt from California Environmental Quality Act review
pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines (California Code of
Regulations, Title 14, 88 15000 et seq.).
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ADOPTED January , 2023.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

STEVE NAPOLITANO
Mayor

ATTEST:

LIZA TAMURA
City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

QUINN M. BARROW
City Attorney
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1400 Highland Avenue Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 STAF F RE Po RT

www.manhattanbeach.gov ¢ (310) 802-5000

Agenda Date: 1/17/2023

TO:
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH:
Bruce Moe, City Manager

FROM:
Steve S. Charelian, Finance Director
George Gabriel, Assistant to the City Manager

SUBJECT:

Consideration of a Resolution Declaring an Intention to Provide for Annual Levy and Collection
of Assessments for the North Manhattan Beach Business Improvement District and Setting
February 21, 2023, for a Public Hearing (Finance Director Charelian).

ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 23-0011

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-0011 announcing the City's
intention to renew and set assessments for the North Manhattan Beach Business Improvement
District (North MB BID) for 2023, and set the public hearing for February 21, 2023.

FISCAL IMPLICATION:

There is no budgetary or other financial implication associated with the adoption of the
Resolution of Intention. At the current rate, the assessment levied collects approximately
$25,000 per year. Prior to the pandemic, assessments collected were approximately $28,000
per year.

BACKGROUND:

From 1969 to 2004, a North MB BID existed (then called North End BID) for commercial
properties located along the northern portion of Highland Avenue and a few businesses located
along Rosecrans Avenue just east of Highland. This Business Improvement District, formed
under the Parking and Business Improvement District Law of 1965, was fairly limited in scope
and was used mainly to address parking acquisition and construction.

In December 2004, City Council approved revamping the North MB BID because it was
apparent that opportunities for increased parking were limited. Business owners in this area
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File Number: 23-0039

were interested in using the accumulated funds (then totaling around $300,000) for promotional
purposes and to create an identity for North Manhattan Beach. As a result, this BID was
dissolved to form a new BID pursuant to the Parking and Business Improvement Area Law of
1989 (Streets and Highway Code Section 36500), which permits funds to be used for broad
purposes such as marketing, promotions, capital improvements, and special events. Districts
and the associated assessments were also required to be renewed annually.

On February 21, 2023, the City Council will hold a public hearing to consider the request from
the North MB BID’s Advisory Board to renew the district and levy the associated assessments
calculated as an 80% surcharge on business license fees to a maximum of $500.

DISCUSSION:

The purpose of the Resolution is to announce the City's intention to renew the BID, establish the
method of assessment, outline the activities and services to be funded by the assessment, and
to set the date for a formal public hearing. The funding for the BID is established through an 80%
surcharge on the business license tax, not-to-exceed $500 for any individual business.

On January 4, 2023, the BID’s Advisory Board met to discuss the proposed projects and activity
plan, along with the associated budget for the coming year. At that time, the Advisory Board
discussed the activity plan (Attachment), revised bylaws (Attachment) reviewed the budgetary
material. Thereafter, a special meeting to continue discussing the attachments was scheduled.
The BID Advisory Board approved the activity plan, budget and revised bylaws. The BID now
requests that the City Council consider adopting the Resolution of Intention (Attachment).

The BID has used its funds in recent years to beautify and upkeep the area. These activities
include all of the following: maintaining curb extensions with landscaping and irrigation at
certain intersections, installing directories with area maps, enhanced crosswalk treatments,
power washing of sidewalks, purchase of branding signs, planting of sidewalk trees, and the
installation of an entry monument on Rosecrans Avenue. The BID also provides community
events during the year such as the winter Holiday Stroll. The BID currently has reserves of
approximately $420,300.

The BID has elected an Advisory Board for 2023 which will be presented for Council ratification
at the February 21, 2023, City Council meeting. The full roster of board members-elect,
applicable titles and business representations are as follows (in alphabetical order):

Abbot Lawrence IV - Pancho’s

Harry Ashikian* - Salvatore’s Shoe Repair

Jessica Jordan - Fishbar

Justin Maxwell - North End Caffe

Lorenzo Pitera* (Vice Chairperson) - Baja Sharkeez

Mike Simms (Chairperson) - Nick and Son’s Market

Roxanne Faire* (Secretary) - Aesthetics on Highland

Councilmember Franklin currently serves as the BID’s City Council representative with
Councilmember Montgomery as the alternate.
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If adopted by the City Council, this Resolution of Intention will be circulated to all business
owners within the BID as notification of the public hearing on February 21, 2023. In addition, a
notice advertising the public hearing will be placed in The Beach Reporter. At the public
hearing, all proponents and opponents of the proposed Business Improvement District will have
an opportunity to present information to the City Council.

CONCLUSION:

The North Manhattan Beach Business Improvement District Advisory Board and City staff
recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-0011 announcing the City's intention
to renew and to set assessments for the North Manhattan Beach Business Improvement District
for 2023, and setting the public hearing for February 21, 2023.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 23-0011

2. 2023 Annual Budget and Activity Plan
3. Revised North MB BID Bylaws
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RESOLUTION NO. 23-0011

A RESOLUTION OF THE MANHATTAN BEACH CITY COUNCIL
DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO PROVIDE FOR ANNUAL
LEVY AND COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE
NORTH MANHATTAN BEACH BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT, PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA STREETS &
HIGHWAYS CODE SECTION 36500, AND SETTING A TIME
AND PLACE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING THEREON

WHEREAS, the Manhattan Beach City Council formed a Parking and Business
Improvement District in North Manhattan Beach, pursuant to California Streets and
Highways Code Section 36500 et. seq.;

WHEREAS, the North Manhattan Beach Business Improvement District Advisory
Board met on January 4, 2023 and January 10, 2023, and supported the proposed
operating program and budget of the North Manhattan Beach Business Improvement
District for 2023; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to continue the assessment on businesses
within the Parking & Business Improvement District to allow the business owners
within the District to utilize the funds for a range of services and activities that will
promote and enhance North Manhattan Beach.

THE MANHATTAN BEACH CITY COUNCIL HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:
SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct.

SECTION 2. The Parking and Business Improvement District is known as the
North Manhattan Beach Business Improvement District (hereinafter referred to as the
“District”).

SECTION 3. The District’'s physical boundaries include all operating businesses
along Highland Avenue from 45th Street to the North and to 32nd Place to the South
and along Rosecrans Avenue from Highland Avenue to the West to the 500 block of
Rosecrans Avenue to the East. A map identifying the specific, legal boundary for the
District is available for review in the Finance Director’s Office.

SECTION 4. All businesses, with the exception of home-based businesses,
commercial property owners who lease to licensed businesses, and residential rental
units, within the boundaries of said District, as described herein, are subject to the
provisions of the additional assessment which will be levied annually to pay for all
improvements and activities within the District.

SECTION 5. The assessment methodology for funding the services and activities
of the District shall be a surcharge of 80% on the business license tax, not to exceed
$500.00 per business license.
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SECTION 6. The funds generated by the business license surcharge shall be
used for the following purposes:

Parking and Transportation
Marketing and Promotions
Special Events

Capital Improvements
Management Services

SECTION 7. The City Council will convene a public hearing regarding the levying
of assessments by the District on February 21, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., City Council
Chambers, 1400 Highland Avenue, Manhattan Beach, to consider testimony of all
interested parties for or against the levying of assessments by the District, the extent of
the District, and the activities and services which shall be provided through the District.

SECTION 8. This Resolution shall be provided to each business owner within
the District seven days of the date of adoption by the City Council.

SECTION 9. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution.
ADOPTED January 17, 2023.
Ayes:
Noes:

Absent:
Abstain:

STEVE NAPOLITANO
Mayor
ATTEST:

LIZA TAMURA
City Clerk
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Location:

Stakeholders:

Improvements
and Activities:

Method of
Financing:

Assessment:

Collection:

Governance:

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

The general area surrounding the Rosecrans Avenue and Highland Avenue
intersection (See AttachmentA). Specific boundaries are:

e (North to South) the extent of the Highland AvenueRight-
Of-Way from the northernmost City line at45th Street to

32" Place on the south.

» (Eastto West) the extent of Rosecrans Avenue Right-
Of- Way from Bell Avenue to the west side of
Highland Avenue.

North Manhattan Beach Businesses - All business license holders
in the North Manhattan Beach area, with the exception of
home- based businesses, residential rental units, commercial
property owners and residents.

A. Capital Improvement Project Design
B. Marketing, Social Media & Advertising
C. Project Implementation

D. Professional Communications

Benefit-based assessments on City Business License Tax.

An 80% surcharge on the City Business License Tax not toexceed

$500.00.

The fees are collected in March/April of each year with the
Business License Tax. The funds shall be retained, including
interest earned, in a designated fund and disbursed through
the City. Approximately $25,000 per year.

A City Council-ratified Advisory Board serves to make
recommendations to the City Council for the North Manhattan
Business Improvement District (BID) on such topics as budget and
assessments. The Advisory Board consists of up to seven (7)
members composed of area business owners or resident ex-
officio members. There must be a quorum to conduct a meeting
and adherence to the Brown Act. The City Council ratifies the
board members annually once the membership has held its
election (typically in December). It is anticipated that the

Advisory Board will meet at least once per month, on the ond
Wednesday at 6:00 PM. In delivering BID improvements and
activities, the Advisory Board will strive to meet the following Page 165 of 948



objectives:

e Maximize coordination with the City and
othercivic organizations to leverage
resources.

e Identify streetscape, landscape and other improvements,
and create an identity plan for North Manhattan Beach.

e Provide accountability to business owners who pay
assessments.

Maintaining the

District: The City Council maintains the district by adopting a Resolution of
Intention. A Public Hearing shall be held around 30 days after the
adoption of the Resolution of Intention. If there is insufficient protest
from owners representing over 50% of the assessments to be paid, the
BID assessment willcontinue.

Benefits of the

District: The BID allows for streetscape, signage and landscape
improvements, and the creation of a North Manhattan Beach
identity through integrated marketing efforts such as promotions,
branding and advertising.

The BID shall provide key promotional and organizational support
through a variety of functions that directly benefit its ratepayers as well as
the City; such as:
e Enhancing the appearance of North Manhattan Beach
through signage, landscaping, improvements etc.
* Establishing and implementing a North Manhattan vision and
image that is in line with the rest of Manhattan Beach and
reflects the good health and economic vitality of the entire City;
making the City an attractive venue for business.
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ACTIVITY PLAN

The BID activity plan for 2023 includes the following items:

A. Continue using www.northmanhattanbeach.org and www.visitnorthmanhattanbeach.com
for visitor and community outreach and marketing. Maintain and enhance the digital
presence of the North Manhattan Beach district through public engagement (surveys,
individual outreach), website, social media (Instagram @visitnorthmanhattanbeach
@northmanhattanbeach, Facebook @northmanhattanbeachca
@visitnorthmanhattanbeach, twitter @VisitNorthMB) and e-notifications.

B. Trademark and begin to utilize approved North Manhattan Beach Logo.

C. Explore the feasibility of becoming a professional non-profit association similar to the
Downtown Manhattan Beach Business Professional Association (DBPA).

D. Solicit professional services to manage and administer Advisory Board priorities and
responsibilities identified in the Activity Plan including contracting for Executive Coordinator

and Social Media Coordinator positions.

E. Continue to develop North Manhattan Beach branding using the new approved logo
throughout the district (Pole flags with approval and permits from the City, refurbish the
North Manhattan Beach welcome monument on Rosecrans utilizing the new color scheme

and logo).

F. Solicit Bids for Public Art and work with the City Public Arts Commission for installation and
placement.

G. Continue to develop event and partnership opportunities to draw more foot traffic and
awareness to North Manhattan Beach.

H. Continue to establish participation and support for the NMB BID among NMB businesses.

l.  Continue to grow the annual NMB BID Holiday Stroll and establish additional collaborative

events.

J. Collaborate with Manhattan Beach’s Environmental Sustainability Division, Traffic Engineer,
Community Development Department and Public Works Department to implement
programs for alternative e-transportation. This program will promote electric alternatives
and draw much needed foot traffic to our NMB BID Businesses.

City Council Meeting a. Explore a weekly e-bike, golf carts and e-scooters community outreach progagen1éh of 948
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an agreed upon evening when businesses would benefit from additional patrons in
the BID. We will confer with BID businesses to select a preferred evening. This
program may include:
i. Safe e-bike, electric scooter, etc. parking
ii. Anumber (quantity to be determined by City) of parking spaces to convert to
golf cart only parking during designated times
iii. Consideration of golf cart only parking spaces in the BID (Preferably in
locations not already allocated for parking)
iv. Review of opportunities for additional bike & e-bike parking in the BID.

K. Continue to work with Public Works on the implementation of string lights on NMB BID light
poles owned by the City throughout the BID (Highland Ave. from 32nd-45th Streets and on
north side of Rosecrans up to Veranda'’s and the south side of Rosecrans just past El
Tarasco.) This program with not only create a beautiful evening ambiance lighting up the
NMB BID boundaries, but it will also provide inviting lighting and a welcoming feeling to our

evening customers.

L. Update the community on the status of the crosswalks and other street markings and street
repairs north of Rosecrans after the construction done in this area. Collaborate with the
City on the replacement of the crosswalks and intersection design at the intersection of
Rosecrans & Highland also affected by the construction in the area. Continue to work on
the functionality of the lighting of the crosswalks south of Rosecrans.

M. Continue the Highland Avenue improvement discussions with Community Development,
Traffic Engineering and Public Works to find solutions to improve the safety of Highland
Ave. especially north of Rosecrans where there are not enough crosswalks, they need to
more visual indicators and implement solutions to reduce the excessive speed in the area.

N. Continue discussions to find additional parking solutions. Establish contact with Chevron to
discuss the Chevron parking in this area.

O. Continue collaborating with the Downtown Business District and the Manhattan Beach
Chamber of Commerce to best serve our NMB BID Businesses.
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North Manhattan Beach Business Improvement District Reserves

FY 2021-2022 Actuals

Beginning Reserve Balance July 1, 2021 $420,300.4
Revenues 35,039.39
Interest 4,816.05
Expenditures (69,288.93)
Ending Reserve Balance as of June 30, 2022 $390,866.92
FY 2022-2023 Budget

Beginning Reserve Balance July 1, 2022 $390,866.92
Budgeted Revenues () 25,000.00
Estimated Interest 5,000.00
Projected Ending Reserve Balance as of June 30, 2023 (2) $420,866.92

(1) Budgeted Revenues are projected based on business license tax assessments notto exceed $500

annually per business.
(2) The Projected Endling Reserve Balance is based on actual reserves at
the beginning ofthe fiscal year adjusted for projected revenuves withno

estimated expenditures

Notable Annual Expenditures

FY 2022-2023 Budget

Estimated Expenditures Amount
Executive Coordinator Services S 31,200
Social Media Coordinator Services S18,000.00
Holiday Stroll Expenses $12,000.00
TOTAL | S 61,200.00

ATTACHMENT A
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BYLAWS FOR THE NORTH MANHATTAN BEACH
BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
ADVISORY BOARD

ARTICLE 1. GOVERNANCE AND SCOPE.

On January 4, 2005, the City Council of the City of Manhattan Beach approved
Ordinance No. 2071 to form the North End Manhattan Beach Business Improvement

District ['North MB.BID"] pursuant to Parking and Business Improvement Area Law of
1989, being California Streets and Highways Code Sections 53500 through 5355],
as amended from time to time (the “Act”).

Section 36530 of the Act provides that the City Council shall appoint an advisory
board which shall make a recommendation to the City Council on the expenditure
of revenues derived from the levy of assessments, on the classification of business
and the method and basis of levying assessments. Section 36533 of the Act
provides that the advisory board shall cause to be prepared a report for each
fiscal year for which assessments are to be levied and collect to pay the costs of
the improvements and activities described in the report.

By its minute motion on December 21, 2004, the City Council appointed the advisory
Board pursuant to Section 36530 (the “Advisory Board”). These Bylaws provide the

rules and regulations that govern the operation and management of the Advisory
Board.

ARTICLE 2. MISSION STATEMENT.

The Advisory Board serves at the pleasure of the City Council and is advisory only.
The Advisory Board shall make recommendations to the City Council on the

expenditure of revenues from the North MB BID assessments, pursuant to Ordinance
No. 2017, for services and improvements that directly and principally benefit its
business members, namely:

e Parking & Transportation;

e Marketing and Promotions;

e Special Events;

e Capital Improvements; and

e Management Services.

ARTICLE 3. ADVISORY BOARD.

3.1 Advisory Board.

Pagelof9 Updated: January 17, 2023
City Council Meeting Page 171 of 948
January 17, 2023



BYLAWS FOR THE NORTH MANHATTAN BEACH
BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
ADVISORY BOARD

The City Council appointed a seven member Advisory Board on December 21, 2004.
3.2 Officers.

The Advisory Board shall have a chairperson, vice-chairperson and recording
secretary, elected biennially by BID members. [Article 4, Advisory Board Election] The
chair or vice-chair may serve as recording secretary. One person shall not serve as
chair and vice-chair.

The Chairperson shall exercise overall responsibility for the Advisory Board.

Specific responsibilities include, but are not limited to:
1) Conducting and maintaining meeting decorum consistent with the Manhattan
Beach Civility Policy (Appendix A);
2) Preparing agendas;
3) Interfacing with city-council delegate/alternate, finance department and
other city staff;
4) Testifying to the City Council.
The Vice-Chair shall serve as chair, in event of the chairperson or secretary being
temporarily absent or otherwise unavailable, as result of resignation, removal,

incapacitation or other reasons.

The Recording-Secretary shall prepare the official record of the Advisory Board
meetings. Specific responsibilities include, but are not limited to: 1) Providing notice of
all meetings in accordance with the Brown Act; 2) Prepare meeting minutes for
Advisory Board approval; and 3) Amend them per Advisory Board direction; and, 4)
Maintain the records of the Advisory Board. In the event that the secretary is unable to
carry out these duties, such responsibilities will be designated to the following
positions in this order: 1) Contracted management services (i.e. Executive Coordinator),
2) Vice Chair, 3) City Staff Liaison.

3.3. Term of Service and Vacancies.

Officers shall serve for two years, January 1 to December 31, with no term limits. In
case of vacancy, the board may appoint a qualified person to fill the vacancy by
unanimous vote, in an agendized action at a noticed meeting. Vacancies may also
remain until the next annual election, provided that the board has at least a quorum

of members. An appointment anytime during the year after the Public Hearing
requires ratification by the North MB BID City-Council delegate or alternate.
3.4. Compensation.
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BYLAWS FOR THE NORTH MANHATTAN BEACH
BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
ADVISORY BOARD

Officers, Advisory Board members and North MB BID members shall not receive
compensation in any form.

3.5. Conflict of Interest.

Advisory board members shall abstain from participating in any matter that comes

before them, for which, the business represented by that board member may have
any direct or indirect economic interest, exclusive of the benefits that accrue to all BID
members. If a conflict of interest may exist, the board member shall recuse himself or
herself from discussion, consideration and voting.

3.6. Removal.

Board members should attend all meetings, unless excused by the chairperson or
vice-chair.

When a board-member fails to attend three meetings during a single calendar year,
the Advisory Board may consider removal by majority vote, in an agendized action at
a noticed meeting.

ARTICLE 4. ADVISORY BOARD ELECTION.

Every two years, the Advisory Board shall hold an election to fill up to seven seats on

the board at the first meeting in December, prior to the City Council consideration of
a resolution declaring an intention to provide for annual levy and collection of
assessments.

4. Candidate Qualifications.

No business member may nominate more than one candidate, including themselves

for the Advisory Board.
No candidate may represent more than one business.
4.2. Election Schedule.

60 days prior to the election, staff shall notify BID members of the election, by U.S.

Mail and by email. The notification shall include, but not limited to: 1) Instructions and
schedule for candidate filings; 2) Candidate qualification requirements; 3) Summary
of current board; 4) City-staff liaison contact information; and 5) Election procedure,
including that for officers.

Candidates must file a written application with the city-staff liaison or designee, no
earlier than 45 days before the election and no later than 5:00 PM thirteen (13) days
before the day of the election.

4.3. Applications.
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BYLAWS FOR THE NORTH MANHATTAN BEACH
BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
ADVISORY BOARD

Candidates shall file by any means with the city-staff liaison identified above, a
written application in any format. In addition to a statement of intent to become
an Advisory Board member for the North MB.BID, the application shall include: 1)
Name; 2) Address, not necessarily in Manhattan Beach; 3) Phone number
preferably cell; and 4) Email address. If representing a business, the application
shall include a certified letter from said business owner authorizing the
representation prior to election proceedings.

Applicants may include a statement not exceeding 200 words regarding their
qualifications for membership on the board. Staff shall distribute these qualifications
to North MB BID members at least 14 days before the election.

4.4. Candidate Certification.

Upon receiving applications, the city-staff liaison shall promptly review and verify

that the filings comply with requirements above. If any discrepancies discovered in
an application, staff shall immediately inform the applicant and facilitate
corrections, if possible. For candidates representing a business, staff shall directly
and independently verify with the business that they authorize the candidate
representation.

4.5 Advisory Board Election Procedure.

To commence the election agenda item, staff shall distribute election materials and
ballots to the BID members and summarize the election process, including
subsequent election of officers by the newly elected board.

After the staff testimony, the candidates may make a two-minute statement
regarding their qualifications. Candidates need not attend the election and may
designate another person to present their statement.

To vote, BID members or representative that has a certified letter from said BID
member authorizing their representation, must attend the election meeting unless a
significant unforeseen circumstance occurs and the City staff liaison is notified prior
to the election. Each BID business present shall have only one ballot, regardless of
how many attendees associated with the business present. The voting representative
for the business shall not represent any other business. No other persons attending
the election may vote.

Vote counting shall occur at a public meeting of the Advisory Board. The results shall
identify the winning candidates, but not their relative standings or vote totals. Staff
shall file all voting records and ballots with the City Clerk.
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Voting Ties and More than Two Use Classifications Elected.

In the case of a tie for the seventh seat, immediately after the election, BID members
shall vote on a runoff between only the two tied candidates. In the event of another
tie, the staff liaison shall resolve the tie with a coin toss.

4.6. Election of Officers.

Immediately after the general election, the newly-elected Advisory Board shall

elect officers. Any North MB BID business that is subject to the assessment and in
attendance at the meeting may nominate one member of the newly-elected
Advisory Board for any of the three offices. Newly-elected board members may
nominate themselves. To qualify, each nominee must orally accept their
nomination. All newly-elected board members may vote for one nominated
individual per office. The candidate receiving the most votes wins the office, even if
a plurality, rather than a majority. In event of a tie, a coin toss shall resolve the tie.

4.7. Swearing in of Officers.

Officers shall not take office, until their election ratified by the City Council.

As an exception, newly-elected board members may vote for officers, per Section 4.6
above, before the city council ratifies the election. If the council does not ratify the
election, then the eventual Advisory Board must conduct another election of officers.

ARTICLE 5. ADVISORY BOARD MEETINGS, AGENDAS AND MINUTES.
5.1. Regular Meetings.

The Advisory Board should meet once every month, at a time, date, and location
determined by a majority of the Board. The meeting can occur at a facility within the
boundaries of the North End areq, having adequate seating capacity and provide
free parking available for the public. Alternatively, the Advisory Board may meet ata
City facility, including City Hall. Socially distant meeting can be held via software
designated by the North MB BID if allowed by the Brown Act.

For Advisory Board meetings, the recording secretary or designee shall notice North
MB BID members, the staff liaison and the city-council delegate/alternate by email,
no earlier than two weeks before the meeting and no later than four days before the
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ADVISORY BOARD

meeting. The noticing email shall include the agenda in the body of the email.
Section 4.2 requires different noticing for elections.

Prior to the date, all advisory-board meetings shall have a posting on the city
website calendar. Notices to board members, the city liaison and the city-council
delegate/alternate shall include as attachments, all documents submitted for
consideration at the meeting.

If after the one-week deadline above, BID members or the public submit documents
to the Advisory Board, the recording secretary shall also enter those materials into
the public record.

5.2. Regular Meeting Procedures.

Because the North MB BID constitutes a city entity, it shall comply with the Ralph M.
Brown Act (being California Government Code Sections 54950 through 54963, as
amended from time to time) when matters within the subject matter of the district are
heard, discussed, or deliberated, and with the California Public Records Act (being

California Government Code Sections 6250 through 6276.48) for all records
relating to activities of the district.

The chairperson shall conduct the meeting pursuant to Roberts Rules of Order.
Specifically, all attendees may address every agenda item for three minutes. The
chair has discretion to award additional time for testimony by individual attendees.

Meeting Minutes.

The Recording-Secretary or designee (per Article 3.2) shall:

1) Within one week of the meeting, distribute draft minutes for review by the
Executive Coordinator or city-staff liaison,
2) Amend the minutes per direction by the Board at a noticed public hearing; and,

3) Through the city clerk office, enter the approved minutes into the public record. No
other person may amend the minutes or direct amendment of the minutes.

5.3. Special Meetings.

The chairperson may schedule special meetings of the Advisory Board. These special
meetings shall comply with procedural requirements for regular meetings above,
except that: 1) Noticing shall occur no later than five days before the meeting; and, 2)
After the meeting, the recording secretary shall enter into the public record all
documents considered by the board.

Quorum.
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ADVISORY BOARD

A maijority of the board shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of conducting its
business and exercising its powers and for all other purposes, but a smaller number
may adjourn from time to time until a quorum is obtained. For example if there are 7
advisory board members then 4 advisory board members would create a quorum.
Action may be taken by the Advisory Board upon a vote of a majority of a quorum,
unless a higher vote is required by law.

5.4 Code of Conduct.
All Members of the Advisory Board shall adhere to the City Policy regarding code of

conduct and meeting decorum.

ARTICLE 6. ANNUAL REPORT

6.1. Annual Report.

Annually in January, the Advisory Board shall approve the annual report, no later
than the first city-council meeting in February.

The annual report shall include the information required by the Act, and shall include:
1) Improvements and activities planned for the coming year; 2) Estimated costs of
said items; 3) The financial balance sheet for the past year; and 4) Proposed
amendments to the bylaws.

ARTICLE 7. CITYSTAFF LIAISON PARTICIPATION.
The Advisory Board shall request the City Manager to designate a City staff person to

assist the Advisory Board with its notices for public meetings and the conduct of its
elections. In the event that the City does not provide staff for the Advisory Board, the
Advisory Board shall vote appoint one or more members of the North MB BID to
provide such services. In the case of the annual election, the appointed members
cannot be nominated to serve on the Advisory Board. The City liaison may not be
able to attend every monthly advisory board meeting. The monthly meetings will be
lead and run by the North MB BID chairperson.

ARTICLE 8. BYLAWS AMENDMENT.
The Advisory Board may modify these bylaws and shall submit to the City Council a

copy of its current bylaws with the annual report.
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Date Created: 08/6/2019
Approved By: City Council
SUBIJECT: Manhattan Beach Civility Policy

officials, and the public.

Department Responsible: ~ Management Services

Promote mutual respect, civility, and orderly conduct among City employees, clected

MANHATTAN BEACH CIVILITY POLICY
(AMENDED AND RESTATED AUGUST 6, 2019)

RECITALS

1. Manhattan Beach elected officials and employees will treat
members of the public with respect and expect the same in return. The City
is committed to maintaining orderly administrative processes in keeping City
administrative offices free from disruptions. The City is committed to
maintaining a safe, productive and harassment-free work environment for
all of its City employees.

2. This policy promotes mutual respect, civility and orderly
conduct among City employees, elected officials, and the public. This policy
is not intended to deprive any person of his or her right to freedom of
expression, but only to maintain, to the extent possible and reasonable, a
safe, productive and harassment-free workplace for City staff and a safe
and non-threatening environment for visitors and customers. The City
encourages professional, respectful, and courteous communication and
discourages hostile, intimidating, or otherwise disruptive actions. The City
seeks public cooperation with this endeavor.

PROVISIONS:
A. Rules of Civility

1. Allinteractions between City staff, City elected officials and members of the

public will be conducted in a respectful manner.
2. Threats, including threats of violence, will not be tolerated.

3.

Members of the public will refrain from any behavior that disrupis or

threatens to disrupt City government operations, including any of the

following:

a) Insulting, demeaning, intimidating, or offensive communications;

b) Harassment or intimidation of any City staff, City elected official, or
member of the public;

c) Willful destruction of property damage;
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Subject: Manhattan Beach Civility Policy
d) Conduct that threatens to provoke a violent reaction; and
e) A continuing pattern of disruptive behavior.

B. Enforcement Protocols.

The City will take the following steps to promote compliance with this Civility Policy.
The City reserves the right to take additional measures as necessary, including
establishing a separate protocol for interactions between City staff and a member
of the public.

1. Official Warning

If a member of the public violates this Civility Policy, staff will issue an oral warning
and provide that person with a copy of this policy before taking further action unless
the behavior of the member of the public requires a more severe response. This
warning, which should clearly identify both the offending behavior and potential
consequences that will arise if such behavior persists, will provide the member of
the public with an opportunity to improve his or her behavior before the City takes
more serious action, such as removal from the premises.

2. Suspension from the Government Building

If a member of the public does not improve his or her behavior in response to an
official warning, the City will request the individual leave the premises for a short
period of time). This temporary suspension from City property provides the
member of the public with an opportunity to “cool down” and reflect on his or her
treatment of City staff.

3. Cease and Desist Letter

If a member of the public does not improve his or her behavior in response to an
official warning or brief suspension, the City will respond by sending a “cease-and-
desist” lefter. The letter will identify both the prohibited conduct and the City's
potential remedies. A “cease-and-desist” letter will put the member of the public
on notice of the potentially serious consequences of his or her conduct.

4. Additional Measures

As noted above, nothing in this policy precludes additional action where warranted.
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1400 Highland Avenue Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 STAF F RE Po RT

www.manhattanbeach.gov ¢ (310) 802-5000

Agenda Date: 1/17/2023

TO:
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH:
Bruce Moe, City Manager

FROM:

Steve S. Charelian, Finance Director

Mike Grafton, Equipment Maintenance Supervisor
Mario Hernandez, Purchasing Supervisor

SUBJECT:

Consider Awarding Bid No. 1290-23 to McGovern Commercial for the Purchase of Seven
Patrol Vehicles for the Police Department in the Amount of $289,691 and Approving an
Additional Appropriation of $178,043 from the Fleet Management Fund (Finance Director
Charelian).

A) APPROVE

B) APPROPRIATE FUNDS

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council:

a) Award Bid No. 1290-23 to McGovern Commercial for the purchase of seven Ford
Interceptor Utility patrol vehicles for the Police Department in the amount of $289,691;
and

b) Appropriate an additional $178,043 from the Fleet Management Fund.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

The total cost for the purchasing and outfitting seven Ford Interceptor Utility patrol vehicles is
$289,691 and $130,000 respectively. Funds totaling $241,648 are budgeted in the Fiscal Year
(FY) 2022-2023 Fleet Management Fund for the purchase and oultfitting of these vehicles. To
accommodate the cost of purchasing and outfitting additional vehicles, an appropriation of
$178,043 is required from the unreserved Fleet Management Fund balance.

BACKGROUND:
McGovern Commercial has seven Ford Interceptors in stock and will ship them within three
weeks of receiving a purchase order from the City. Three Ford Interceptor Utility patrol vehicles
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are budgeted for replacement during this current fiscal year (FY 2022-2023). In FY 2021-2022 a
purchase order for one patrol vehicle was issued, but as the vendor has not been able to fulfill
the order, the purchase will be canceled and be included as part of this order. With delays in
vehicle production and continued chip shortages relating to the COVID-19 pandemic, staff
intends to advance the purchase of three patrol vehicles currently scheduled for replacement in
FY 2023-2024 in order to utilize the vendor’s current stock rather than risk future delays to
replacement.

Currently, it is commonplace for vehicle manufacturers to submit quotes for vehicles that have
not been built yet, close vehicle ordering windows prematurely, and have lead times of over 12
months. With this low supply of vehicles, it is rare to find a dealer with one vehicle and City staff
have managed to find seven available vehicles through one dealer. The City extended the
search to the East Coast, which is where McGovern Commercial is headquartered. McGovern
typically supplies vehicles to much larger municipalities and government agencies and as such
is able to meet our needs of seven Ford Interceptors.

DISCUSSION:

This purchase is for seven replacement vehicles for the Police Department. The vehicles
proposed to be replaced are over nine years old, with an average mileage of 100,000, and have
reached the end of useful serviceability for the department’s purposes. These vehicles are used
by the patrol officers. The selection of the replacement vehicle has been approved by the using
department and the City’s Equipment Maintenance Supervisor.

The Request for Bids was posted on the City’s website, as well as OpenGov, a public bid
notification board. A total of two bid responses were received for this vehicle. The attached bid
comparison lists the aggregate price, including sales tax, fees and payment discounts (the
lowest bid is indicated in bold font).

Based on this bid, staff recommends that the City Council award Bid No. 1290-23 to the lowest
responsive bidder, McGovern Commercial, for the purchase of seven Ford Interceptor Utility
patrol vehicle in the amount of $289,691. The new vehicles will arrive in approximately one
month.

PUBLIC OUTREACH:

This bid was advertised on the City’s website, as well as OpenGov, a public bid notification
board.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

The City has reviewed the proposed activity for compliance with the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) and has determined that the activity is not a “Project” as defined under
Section 15378 of State CEQA Guidelines; therefore, pursuant to Section 15060(c)(3) of the
State CEQA Guidelines the activity is not subject to CEQA. Thus, no environmental review is
necessary.

LEGAL REVIEW:
The City Attorney has reviewed this report and determined that no additional legal analysis is
necessary.

City of Manhattan Beach Page 2 Printed on 1/11/2023
City Council Meeting Page 182 of 948
January 17, 2023



File Number: 23-0042

ATTACHMENT:
1. Bid No. 1290-23 Comparison for Patrol Vehicle
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Estimate

Date:

Customer ID:

Manhattan Beach Police Department

Attn: Mike Sweeney

43D
51R
549
76R
53M
86P
87R
18D

IOLN

Transportation

Special Instructions:

Salesperson:

2022 Ford Police Interceptor Utility AWD White $ 34,702.00
Dark Car Feature $ 24.25
Driver Side Unity LED Spotlight $ 383.15
Power Heated Mirrors $ 58.20
Reverse Sensing System $ 266.75
SYNC Voice Activated System $ -
Front Headlamp Housing $ -
Rear View Camera Relocate to Mirror $ -
Rear Liftgate Lock Disable Delete $ -
Immediate Off Lot Need Stock $ 3,500.00
Delivery to DPW $ 2,450.00
Custom or Special Orders are Non-Refundable Vehicle Subtotal
This Estimate is for Budgetary Purposes and is Not a Guarantee of Cost for

Services. Upfit Subtotal
Estimate is Based on Current Information From Client About the Project

Requirments Grand Total

Actual Cost May Change Once Project Elements are Finalized

12/21/2022

ManhattanBeachPD

Michael Chase
508-280-6603

$ 242,914.00

$ 169.75

$ 2,682.05

$ 407.40

$ 1,867.25

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ 24,500.00

$ -

$ 17,150.00

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -
$248,040.45
$41,650.00
$289,690.45
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Agenda Date: 1/17/2023

TO:
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH:
Bruce Moe, City Manager

FROM:

Steve S. Charelian, Finance Director

Julie Bondarchuk, Financial Controller

Libby Bretthauer, Financial Services Manager

SUBJECT:
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Finance Director Charelian).
RECEIVE AND FILE

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file this report.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

There are no fiscal implications associated with the recommended action. The results of fiscal
year (FY) 2021-2022 are summarized below, and are included in the attached Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR).

BACKGROUND:

The City’s financial policies require an annual audit performed by an external auditor. An audit is
also required to obtain the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from
the Government Financial Officers Association (GFOA) and is oftentimes a requirement for
grants or federal awards. This year, the annual audit consists of the interim audit (completed in
April 2022) and the final audit (completed in October 2022). During these audits, the external
auditors prepare audit working papers in compliance with the General Accepted Government
Auditing Standards (GAGAS). These working papers document the information gathered during
an audit and provide evidence that sufficient information was obtained by the auditor to support
the audit opinion.

The audit results and the FY 2021-2022 ACFR financial statements were presented and
discussed with the Finance Subcommittee at the December 15, 2022, meeting.
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The audit firm of Lance, Soll and Lunghard (LSL) issued the City an unmodified opinion on the
FY 2021-2022 financial statements, which are prepared in all material respects and complying
with governmental accounting practice. The opinion is issued once auditors obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence to the financial statements due to their testing. An unmodified
opinion is the best possible outcome.

DISCUSSION:

Attached to this report is the City’s ACFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. This
independent audit report is prepared with the assistance of the City’s auditor, Lance, Soll and
Lunghard (LSL), the certified public accountancy firm selected by the City Council. Staff would
like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the auditor’s professionalism and diligence in the
completion of the audit.

The attached report contains detailed information about the City’s financial results for FY
2021-2022. The document, which is in an industry-standard format, is organized as follows:

Introductory Section

The Introductory Section includes the City’s transmittal letter providing an executive summary of
the financial and economic events characterizing FY 2021-2022. A review of the transmittal
letter will help the reader understand the City's organizational structure and provides
performance highlights of the City’s most significant funds and operations.

Financial Section

The Financial Section presents the independent auditor’s report and Financial Statements. The
auditor’s report contains two main sections: the Audit Opinion and the Management Discussion
& Analysis (MD&A).

Audit Opinion

The Audit Opinion, worded in an industry standard format, provides a statement by the auditor
attesting to the fair presentation of financial data in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles and government accounting standards.

Management Discussion & Analysis (MD&A)

The required MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements, which comprise three components: 1) Government-wide financial statements, 2)
Fund Financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements, which is an overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City of Manhattan Beach for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2022.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These
statements utilize full accrual accounting (which recognizes revenue in the period it is earned,
and expenses in the period occurred) as is done in private industry. The statements included in
this section are the statement of net position and the statement of activities. Both
government-wide statements are designed to show the annual increase or decrease in net
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assets and, in doing so, distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety,
public works, planning, building and safety, and recreation. The City’s business-type activities
include water, wastewater, stormwater, and parking.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements include governmental funds reported on a budgetary modified
accrual basis (which recognizes revenues when they become available and measurable and,
with a few exceptions, recognizes expenditures when liabilities are incurred), and proprietary
funds reported on a full accrual basis. Major governmental funds (General Fund) and major
enterprise funds (Water, Wastewater, Parking) are shown individually, while non-major funds are
aggregated into a single column (full details are listed later in the document). Internal service
funds are considered minor proprietary funds and are aggregated following enterprise funds.

The Notes to the Financial Statements section follows, which provides financial disclosures
about the City’s financial statements. That section is followed by the Combining Financial
Statements & Schedules and the Statistical Section. The combining statements are presented
in the traditional fund manner and report on the details of all non-major funds which appear on a
combined basis in the front of the document. The Statistical Section, not subject to audit review
and testing, provides general trend information presenting financial and economic data over
time.

The first attachment to this report is the Letter of Transmittal, which has been extracted from the
FY 2021-2022 ACFR. The Letter of Transmittal provides an overview of the financial information
contained in the statements. In addition, there is discussion of:

o Profile of the Government

e Budget Process

e Financial Policies

e Major Initiatives

o Factors Affecting Financial Condition
e Executive Financial Overview

Staff recommends that the reader, at a minimum, review the Letter of Transmittal and MD&A
portion of the report. Both the Letter of Transmittal and MD&A can be referenced in the
introductory sections of the ACFR.

Highlights and Trends

As of June 30, 2022, the City’s net position totaled $273.7 million government-wide, a decrease
of $70.7 million from the prior year. This increase is attributed to a net operating surplus $71.2
million across all funds. The large surplus is due the City recording a net pension asset, which
offset expenses in each function.

Governmental Funds
Total net position in Governmental Activities (General, Capital Improvements, and Special
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Revenue) was $156.4 million, an increase of $65.2 million from the prior year. Revenue in the
Governmental Activities totaled $102.3 million, an increase of $11.9 million (13.1%) from the
prior year driven by the recovery from the pandemic which resulted in an operating surplus of
$7.0 million across the governmental funds. Expenditures totaled $35.4 million, down $66.3
million (65.2%) compared to the prior year due the prior year payment of the pension liability
from the issuance of pension obligation bonds. Total fund balances increased $65.2 million to
$156.4 million.

General Fund balance was at $39.8 million, up $7.2 million compared to the prior year.
Contributing to the increase were American Rescue Plan Act funds totaling $4.2 million and
higher revenues across all tax categories due to the recovery from the pandemic. Transfers out
totaled $4,365,153, which included $2,183,688 to the Stormwater Fund and $113,869 to the
Street Lighting Fund to relieve deficit fund balances due to operations. General Fund support to
the Stormwater Fund and Street Lighting Fund will continue unless a Proposition 218
assessment vote can be passed to fund operations going forward. Additional transfers included
$1,400,000 to the Bond Construction Fund for Fire Station #2 and $667,596 to the Capital
Improvement Project Fund ($492,596 according to the pension policy and $175,000 to fund
additional projects).

Enterprise Funds

The total Business-Type Activities net position totaled $117.3 million, up $5.4 million from the
prior year. Fund revenues totaled $24.7 million, a decrease of $375,686. Operating expenses
totaled $20.4 million, a decrease of $1.2 million from the prior year. Operating income totaled
$5.9 million, up $2.8 million from the prior year. Although the fund balance increased,
unrestricted net position of $41.3 million decreased $10.2 million compared to the prior year
due to the construction of capital projects that absorb working capital and increase investments
in capital assets.

Pension Contributions

In May 2021, the City issued pension obligations bonds, which virtually eliminated its unfunded
liability with CalPERS by replacing it with bonded debt. By issuing the POBs, the City was able
to finance 100% of the current net pension liability (NPL) at a true interest cost of 2.72%, 4.43%
lower than the CalPERS discount rate of 7.15% at the time of issuance. Moreover, the POBs
allow the City to budget level debt service payments at $5.5 million annually rather than trying to
balance the budget for escalating Net Pension Liability (NPL) payments that would have
eventually risen up to $10 million by 2032. The City is estimated to save $43.5 million in NPL
payments over 25 years.

CalPERS investment returns were 21.3% for FY 2020-21, which resulted in a $51.9 million net
pension asset on the FY 2021-22 ACFR. The pension income offsets a significant amount of
expenses in the functional categories, primarily in Public Safety. It is also important to approach
yearly CalPERS returns with a long-term outlook as CalPERS published a preliminary return of
negative 6.1% in FY 2021-22, which will be reflected in next year’s financial statements.

Managing pension liabilities and meeting retirement obligations remain one of the City’s
biggest challenges. Over 95% of retirement costs are attributable to the City’s Governmental
Funds and growing pension costs have the potential to crowd out other funding needs. The City
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has therefore developed an Unfunded Pension Liability Policy to provide a guideline on
addressing future NPL. Future pension costs and liabilities will be monitored continuously and
addressed to ensure they do not grow substantially.

In closing, staff is pleased to report that the FY 2021-2022 financial audit resulted in the City
once again receiving an unmodified opinion. Furthermore, City Council General Fund policy
reserves remain fully funded at the end of FY 2021-2022.

The City Manager and Finance Director wish to recognize the dedication, hard work, and
attention to detail of all departments during the year that enables the City to achieve the
unmodified opinion. Special recognition is in order for Finance staff, particularly Julie
Bondarchuk and Libby Bretthauer. Mr. Brian Gruber, CPA & Partner with the audit firm of LSL,
will also be present during the City Council meeting on January 17, 2023 to answer questions.

LEGAL REVIEW:
The City Attorney has reviewed this report and determined that no additional legal analysis is
necessary.

ATTACHMENT/ATTACHMENTS:

1. Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
2. Report on Internal Control (Management Letter)

3. Audit Communication Letter
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City Hall 1400 Highland Avenue =~ Manhattan Beach, CA 90266-4795
Telephone (310) 802-5000 FAX (310) 802-5001 TDD (310) 546-3501

January 11, 2023

Honorable Mayor, Councilmembers and Citizens of Manhattan Beach
Manhattan Beach City Hall
Manhattan Beach, California 90266

We are pleased to present the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the City of Manhattan Beach
for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2022. This report has been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles as set forth in the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). We are also pleased to report that the City has received an unmodified
opinion from the independent auditor, meaning that financial statements are presented, in all material
respects, in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

The City’s financial policies require an external independent audit be performed annually, and that the
auditor’s opinions be included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). Further, it
states that the results be reviewed with the Finance Subcommittee, which met with the auditor and
discussed the results on December 15, 2022.

Responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the fairness of presentation, including all footnotes and
disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate
in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position
and results of operations of the various funds of the City. All material statements and disclosures
necessary for the reader to obtain a thorough understanding of the City’s financial activities have been
included.

City management is responsible for establishing and maintaining fiscal internal controls designed to
safeguard the assets of the government from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure that accounting data
is accurately compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes
that the cost of controls should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and the valuation of costs
and benefits require estimates and judgments by management.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Lance, Soll & Lunghard, CPAs, an accounting
firm selected by the City Council, based on a recommendation from the Finance Subcommittee. The
independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for
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rendering an unmodified opinion and that the City of Manhattan Beach’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP).

The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this
report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of the Management Discussion and Analysis.
This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the Management Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A) and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditor.

Profile of the Government

The City of Manhattan Beach is located in the South Bay region of Los Angeles County. The current
population' is 34,902. The City encompasses approximately four square miles.

Incorporated in 1912 under the general laws of the State of California, the City operates under the
Council-Manager form of government. The City Council is comprised of five members elected
at-large for overlapping four-year terms. Each member may serve as Mayor for a nine-month period
once during his or her four-year term in office. The City Treasurer is also elected to a four-year term
and serves as the chairperson for the Finance Subcommittee. City Councilmembers are limited to two
consecutive terms. The City conducts its elections with statewide elections scheduled in November.

The City Council is responsible for, among other things, passing ordinances, adopting the budget,
appointing committees, and appointing the City Manager and City Attorney. The City
Councilmembers also serve as the governing body of the Manhattan Beach Capital Improvements
Corporation (please see Note 1 in the ACFR for more information).

In addition, the City Council appoints the members of the following advisory Boards and

Commissions:
Planning Commission Parking and Public Improvements Commission
Parks & Recreation Commission Board of Building Appeals
Library Commission Business Improvement District Advisory Boards

Cultural Arts Commission

The City is a full-service municipality, and provides a variety of services to the community, including:

Police services Fire and paramedic services
Culture and recreation Building and safety

General government Water and wastewater utilities
Stormwater management Parking facilities

Street and landscape maintenance

! State of California, Department of Finance, E-1 Population Estimates for Cities. Sacramento, California, May 2022.
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Budget Process

The City operates on an annual budget schedule. The budget development process begins in January
of each year. Line-item budget development is accomplished through the City’s financial system,
which allows each department to build its budget using computerized worksheets. Each department is
responsible for developing the Materials & Supplies line items and part-time employee salaries. The
remaining Salary & Benefit information is calculated and entered by the Finance Department.

The Finance Director, in coordination with the applicable operating departments, provides the
City Manager with proposed revenue projections. These revenue estimates are reviewed with the
department budget requests to determine available funding levels for the fiscal year. Supplemental
budget requests (new personnel, services or equipment) are subject to City Manager review and
approval before becoming part of the proposed operating budget. This process applies to all
governmental and enterprise funds.

The City Manager and Finance Director meet with the departments to review all operating
expenditures and budget change requests. After this final review and approval by the City Manager,
the proposed budget document is presented to the City Council in May. Budget study sessions and a
public hearing are then held by the City Council. The budget is adopted by resolution prior to June 30.

During the fiscal year, the budget can be amended as necessary to meet the City’s needs.
The City Council has the legal authority to amend the budget at any time. Department Heads and their
designated representatives may only authorize expenditures based on appropriations approved by
City Council action, and only from accounts under their organizational responsibility. Actual
expenditures may exceed budget appropriations by line-item. However, total expenditures within each
fund may not exceed the total appropriation for that fund. The City Manager has the authority and
discretion to approve interdepartmental appropriation transfers as long as they are within the same
fund. Inter-fund transfers require a budget amendment by the City Council.

Financial Policies

In fiscal year 1997-1998, the City Council approved the City’s first set of financial policies, designed
to promote sound financial management and ensure that the City’s fiscal integrity remains intact as
staff and Councilmembers change. The Policies are reviewed and re-adopted every year with the
City’s Operating Budget in June.

While presenting General Fund balance in accordance with GASB pronouncements, the City Council
has established certain policy “reserves” within what GASB defines as the unassigned category. The
unassigned category is the residual classification of fund balance that is not in restricted or committed
classifications. In the General Fund section of this transmittal letter, General Fund unassigned balance
is broken down in accordance with City Council Financial Policy.

Long Term Planning

Each year during the budget process, the City develops a five-year forecast of revenues and
expenditures for all funds. During the most recent budget cycle, the forecast concluded that unassigned
General Fund balance is at risk of declining if conservative revenue estimates and on-going transfers
out to other funds continue. The transfers out are currently necessary to support the Stormwater Fund
and Street Lighting and Landscape Fund deficits, which may only be mitigated by a Proposition 218
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vote. However, by proactively discussing long-term forecasts and plans, the City Council will be able
to take action early and smooth out any operational impacts. The most recent five-year forecast can be
found in the fiscal year 2022-2023 Adopted Budget, available online at
www.manhattanbeach.gov/budget.

Major Initiatives
Business Assistance Initiatives during COVID-19

The City relies on sales tax as a notable source of revenue. The COVID-19 pandemic and California’s
related declaration of a State of Emergency, which included restrictions on commerce such as capacity
limitations and prohibitions on in-person dining, impeded the performance of many local businesses
and impacted sales tax revenues. In response to these economic pressures, the City launched an
emergency Business Loan Program to promote the economic viability of financially impacted local
businesses. Fourteen local businesses received loans totaling $125,000 in amounts ranging from
$5,000 to $10,000. One recipient has already repaid their loan in full. The repayment and interest
accrual for the remaining thirteen loans will begin after the City issues an affirmative declaration that
the local emergency is no longer in effect. Even as pandemic restrictions ease, the City remains
committed to adapting to the community’s needs during the remaining stages of the pandemic.

Manhattan Village Mall Enhancement Project

On December 2, 2014, the City Council approved the Mall Expansion Project with additional
conditions. The approval allowed construction of Phases 1 and 2, and deferred Phase 3 (Fry’s corner)
for future public review and input. On December 20, 2016, the City Council endorsed the updated
site plan, which includes as Phase 1, the consolidation and expansion of the Macy’s property, totaling
60,000 square feet, and construction of a parking structure. This phase was completed in late
2018. Phase 2 encompasses refinement of the plaza area and improved parking and circulation
elements, with new restaurants and retail uses totaling 50,000 square feet, which is largely completed.
The shopping center now totals approximately 646,000 square feet and brought a variety of new
restaurants and retail elements to the mall portfolio. Additionally, there were several amendments to
the project to capitalize on to changing economic and retail trends, as well as customer and tenant
needs. Beyond the original approvals, the City worked closely with the developer and property owners
to add a new building pad for commercial uses (currently Sushi Roku and Boa Steakhouse), which
commenced construction in 2021 and was completed in 2022. Furthermore, with the Fry’s operation
going out of business, the City expects that entitlements for Phase 3 of the project will be initiated by
the developer in the near future.

Sepulveda Corridor Plan

The Sepulveda Boulevard corridor is a major transportation corridor for the South Bay region. In
Manhattan Beach, this corridor runs north-south through the heart of the City, functions as a
commercial corridor and houses major tenants such as the Manhattan Village Mall and Shopping
Center, Target, Toyota, Skechers Headquarters, as well as medical facilities, financial institutions,
salons, fitness studios, eateries, automotive shops, and other local businesses.

At the November 7, 2017, City Council meeting, the City Council approved the Sepulveda Corridor
Initiatives Work Plan and establishment of a Working Group. The various planning initiatives focused
on economic vitality, planning, parking, traffic and corridor beautification. Corresponding Zoning
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Code changes were adopted in March 2019. The new regulations increase flexibility in development
standards, which fosters versatility in land uses and, in turn, encourages establishment of
revenue-generating uses within the corridor. One such example is the allowance of additional height
for hotel projects on key larger sites through the Use Permit public hearing process. In June 2021, the
City Council approved a new hotel at 600 South Sepulveda Boulevard under these regulations.
Commercial parking standards, which affect commercial uses in the Corridor and in other commercial
zoning districts, are in the process of being updated and are scheduled to be completed in 2023.

Peripherally related to the Sepulveda Corridor Initiatives, the City also approved a major reinvestment
of a 53,181 square-foot parcel at 250 — 400 N. Sepulveda Boulevard in July 2021. Sunrise Assisted
Living will be developing a 79,772 square-foot assisted living facility, which is currently in plan check
and slated to begin construction in 2023.

Sepulveda Bridge Widening Project

The Sepulveda Bridge is located on Sepulveda Boulevard (State Route 1) between Rosecrans Avenue
and 33rd Street. The bridge and its approaches from both the north and south sides include three lanes
in each direction, and serves an average of 71,000 vehicles per day. The project will widen the east
side of the structure to provide a fourth northbound lane to remove the existing bottleneck in that
area. Sepulveda Boulevard, including the bridge, is owned and maintained by Caltrans. Due to the
local significance of the roadway, the City entered into an agreement with Caltrans in February 2009
to widen the bridge as a joint project, with the City taking the lead and Caltrans serving in a supporting
role. Since then, the City secured project funding and worked with Caltrans to update seismic retrofit
plans in accordance with recent code changes. Grants totaling $15.9 million were awarded for the
project, partially offsetting the total estimated cost of $18.2 million. Construction of the bridge
commenced in 2020 and was completed in December 2022.

Peck Reservoir Replacement Project

The Peck Reservoir Facility, at 1800 Peck Avenue, was built in 1957. At 65-plus years old, it had
exceeded its useful life and was in need of a full replacement. This reconstruction project was
identified as a top priority and recommended as part of the 2010 Water System Master Plan. The
replacement of the Peck Reservoir will help ensure the long-term dependability of the water system in
our community. The Peck Reservoir Replacement Project consists of the demolition of the existing
7.5-million gallon, partially buried concrete reservoir, pump station, and other facilities situated within
the existing 2.7-acre property. A new 8-million gallon reservoir, booster pump station building, and
groundwater filtration treatment plant are being constructed at the same location. The City is in the
construction phase of the project and expects to complete the approximately $40 million project in
Spring/Summer 2023.

Fire Station No. 2 Replacement

The Fire Station No. 2 Replacement Project is located at the southeast corner of Rowell Avenue and
Manhattan Beach Boulevard at 1400 Manhattan Beach Boulevard. The project will replace the
original Fire Station No. 2 constructed on that same site in 1954. The original station no longer met
current needs of the Fire Department due to changes over time in staffing requirements, services
provided, fire apparatus design and new building code requirements. A 2017 study assessing the
facility identified numerous building deficiencies, most notably in the building’s seismic force
resisting system, and led the report’s author to conclude the fire station was no longer adequate to
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serve as an essential facility. The study recommended replacing the facility due to numerous and
significant building code issues that were too costly to fix as well as increasingly costly
maintenance. A design consultant was retained by the City in 2018 and proposed designs were
presented to the public later that same year. Preliminary Planning documents were subsequently
approved by the Planning Commission and the City Council with final plans approved in early
2021. Construction of the new two-story 8,400 square foot facility began in November 2021 with
completion anticipated by Summer 2023.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates.

The economic and cultural shock from the COVID-19 pandemic was sudden and unprecedented. The
California Governor declared a state of emergency on March 5, 2020, and the City of Manhattan Beach
declared a local state of emergency on March 13, 2020. These declarations were both still in effect
through the end of the 2021-2022 fiscal year. However, as of October 2022, the Governor announced
the declaration is scheduled to end on February 28, 2023.

Local Economy

Local businesses have begun to recover from the “Safer-At-Home Order” that ended as of
June 15, 2021. The State created the “SMARTER Plan” to combat the virus without the strict physical
restrictions. While the certain effects of the pandemic may linger on for some time, the City is steadily
recovering and this is reflected in the City’s increased tax and rent revenues in the current year.

The South Bay region is home to a number of industries
including aerospace, entertainment, technology, leisure and
tourism, and manufacturing. Economists report that the South
Bay area has strong fundamentals including high levels of
education, high incomes and competitive industries. The most
recently available figures indicate that Manhattan Beach has
a 3.2% unemployment rate, compared to Los Angeles County e
at 4.5% and the State of California at 4.1%?.

South Bay

The region typically fares better than some other areas of the
State during weak economic conditions. However, few, if any,
industries have been unhurt by the COVID-19 pandemic. In | Pacific Ocean San Pedro Bay
particular, local hotels experienced a drop in occupancy rates
due to declines in travel and tourism. Additionally, retail and restaurant establishments, including
many “boutique”-style small businesses, were severely impacted by the “Safer-At-Home” public
health orders and lack of tourism.

Although the COVID-19 pandemic is was still ongoing in FY 2021-2022, several major revenues
including, Sales Tax, Transient Occupancy Taxes, and Business License Taxes exceeded
pre-pandemic levels indicting the local economy and travel/tourism to the area has significantly
recovered.

2 State of California, Employment Development Department, November 2022 (Final)
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The City’s largest General Fund revenue source, Property Tax, grew by 5.1% ($1.9 million) in
FY 2021-2022. Assessed valuations, which indicate tax revenue and help propel property tax growth,
are projected to increase by 6.75% in FY 2022-2023, driven by demand and resulting price escalations
in the local housing market. Single-family homes valued at pre-1978 levels (before Proposition 13)
continue to turn over, resulting in higher assessed valuations being added to the property tax rolls.
Roughly 14.7% of single-family parcels within the City remain assessed at pre-1978 values.

Long-Term Pension Liability and Issuance of Pension Obligation Bonds

As a service organization, labor accounts for the majority of the City’s costs - approximately 57% in
the General Fund. As a proactive measure, and to take advantage of historically low borrowing rates,
the City issued Pension Obligation Bonds (POBs) in May 2021. During the sale process, over
$708 million in orders were received for the City’s available $91 million in POBs. This transaction
replaced all of the City’s pension liability for debt service. The final spread levels achieved the lowest
spreads in the POB market ever issued in the California market, reflecting the strength of the City’s
conservative financial management and AAA credit rating, and resulting in a True Interest Cost (TIC)
of 2.72%. Issuance of the POBs also stabilized rising pension liability costs by creating level debt
service payments of $5.5 million over the next 22 years and resulted in a net pension asset of
$51.9 million in FY 2021-2022. Through the final maturity date in 2043, the potential pension
UAL budgetary savings totals $43.5 million.

EXECUTIVE FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

This top level overview is presented as a supplement to the more detailed and comprehensive analysis
presented in the MD&A. As such, it serves to highlight key financial performance indicators for our
major funds. We encourage readers to review the MD&A for a further analysis of the City’s financial
condition.

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City of Manhattan Beach. The General Fund
balance increased by $7,206,576 from 2021. The increase is attributable to net revenues over
expenditures of $11,039,101 offset by Other Financing Sources (transfers-in, transfers-out) equal to
negative $3,832,525. Transfers-in included $532,628 from the County Parking Lot Fund in line with
the contract with the County of Los Angeles. Offsetting this fund balance increase, transfers-out
comprised of subsidies to other funds to support operations, including $2,183,688 to the Stormwater
Fund and $2,181,465 to various nonmajor Governmental Funds.

The Pension Trust Fund and the PARS Investment Trust Fund is included in the General Fund balance.
At the end of fiscal year 2022, the total General Fund balance equaled $39.8 million, of which
$3.0 million is either nonspendable or restricted and $58,007 is assigned to City retirement plans,
leaving an unassigned fund balance of $36.8 million. Within the unassigned fund balance,
City Council has established earmarks for financial policies and economic uncertainties of
$20.0 million, leaving $16.8 million available for use at City Council’s discretion.
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Nearly all General Fund revenue categories increased from the prior year due to the steady recovery
from the economic impacts of the COVID-19 Pandemic. Changes from the prior year for each category
are noted in the table below:

Increase/
Revenue Category 2022 Actual 2021 Actual (Decrease) %
Property Tax $38,703,861 $36,823,265 $1,880,596 5.1%
Other Taxes (Sales, Hotel, Business License, etc.) 24,291,290 16,938,737 $7,352,553 43.4%
Licenses and Permits (Building, Construction, Film Permits) 3,983,079 3,577,333 $405,746 11.3%
Fines (Parking Citations, Vehicle Code Fines) 2,358,731 1,443,177 $915,554 63.4%
Use of Money and Property (Interest, Rents and Ground Leases) 1,647,517 2,479,805 ($832,288) (33.6%)
Received From Other Agencies (Vehicle License Fees, Grants) 4,801,637 5,228,799 ($427,162) (8.2%)
Senvice Charges (Plan Check Fees, P&R Class, Ambulance Fees) 8,091,082 6,531,768 $1,559,314 23.9%
Interfund Charges (Admin Senice Charge) 3,738,160 3,731,425 $6,735 0.2%
Miscellaneous* 2,076,767 1,300,483 $776,284 59.7%

$89,692,124 $78,054,792 $11,637,332

*Includes proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets.

With the City’s relatively high property values, Property Taxes continue to be the main revenue source
totaling 43% of all General Fund revenues. Property Taxes have been a stable source of funds,
including during the Great Recession, with a $1.9 million (5.1%) increase over the prior year.

In the Other Taxes category, the City’s next largest revenue sources, Sales Taxes and Transient
Occupancy (Hotel) Taxes, were both directly and significantly impacted by Safer-At-Home orders in
prior year. Sales Tax, totaling $10.5 million in FY 2021-2022, ended the year $2.4 million (30.3%)
above the prior year. Transient Occupancy (Hotel) Taxes, which totaled $5.6 million, increased by
$3,2 million (134.5%) compared to the prior year as tourism and travel makes a recovery from the
pandemic. Business License Tax, which is based on gross receipts, increased $1.4 million (37.8%)
over the prior year to $5.2 million. Additionally, Real Estate Transfer Tax increased $200,507 (17.7%)
to $1.2 million reflecting strong demand in the local housing market.

Building permit revenue increased by $476,760 (33.3%) and other construction permits decreased
$29,373 (3.9%) compared to the prior year. Although activity was impacted by the pandemic, the
reduction in building permits was also attributed to significant one-time commercial project permits,
such as for the Manhattan Village Mall, in the prior year.

In the Use of Money & Property category, the most significant driver of the $0.8 million (33.6%)
decrease was the impact on historically low interest rates on interest revenues and investment earnings.
An investment loss was booked at $2.9 million compared to a gain of $1.7 million in FY 2020-2021.
Additionally, rents and leases increased $266,104 (10.1%) compared to the prior year due to the which
was significantly impacted by a loss of percentage rent revenues due to lower occupancy rates at one
major hotel.

The increase in Service Charges was primarily due to the increase in Parks and Recreation facility
reservation and recreation classes reopening in the current year after restrictions from COVID-19 were
lifted in June 2020-21. Overall, these fees were up $1.6 million (80.7%) from the prior year.
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On an overall basis, General Fund revenues totaled $89.7 million, up by $11.6 million or 14.9% from
the prior year and outperformed the final budget by $6.7 million (excluding transfers in).

General Fund expenditures totaled $78.7 million in FY 2021-2022, a decrease of nearly $78.1 million
over the prior fiscal year and about $2.7 million under the final budget. The issuance of 2021 POBs in
accounts for $85.5 million of the prior year expenditures. When compared to the prior year’s actual,
Salaries and Benefits decreased by approximately $87.6 million entirely attributable to the CalPERS
Pension Liability payments funded by the POBs. When adjusting for the POBs, the salaries and
benefits decreased $2.2 million compared to the prior year. Materials and Services, which includes
Contract and Legal Services, increased by $2.3 million or 23.5% from the prior year, mainly due to
reinstatement of contract services in FY 2021-2022 that had been reduced or eliminated in the prior
year during COVID-19 restrictions.

Other Funds
Underground Assessment District

Three Utility Undergrounding Assessment Districts (19-4, 19-12, 19-14) were approved by property
owners in FY 2019-2020. Construction of all other previously approved underground districts was
completely managed by the utility companies for lump sum pricing. For these three districts, the City’s
Public Works Department is directly overseeing construction and, as a result, the bond proceeds
(revenues) and expenditures are flowing through a City governmental fund. Property owners were
given an opportunity to prepay their assessment in cash or to pay in annual installments following the
issuance of bonds. Construction commenced in 2020 following the cash collection period and
subsequent sale of bonds for remaining assessments. Completion of the utility undergrounding projects
is expected in 2023.

Capital Improvement Fund

Although a non-major fund in FY 2021-2022, the Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Fund is
important to highlight given its significance in managing general governmental infrastructure and
facilities capital projects. In FY 2021-2022, CIP Fund total revenues were $1.5 million and
expenditures were $3.3 million.

As of June 30, 2022, the total balance of the CIP Fund is $5.9 million. A list of major capital projects
at year end include:

$373,322 — Facilities Improvements

$60,565 — Fire Station 2 Replacement Project

$312,835 — Street Projects

$385,278 — Polliwog Park Playground Resurfacing and Equipment Replacement Project
$1,352,659 — Other projects in design or construction including various facility projects and
HVAC replacement projects.

Although some of these projects, such as the Polliwog Park Facilities, will be offset by grants, it should
be noted that on-going projected revenues of $1.5 million less debt service of $1.2 million result in a
steady state excess of only $0.3 million. General Fund transfers, grants or new revenues will be
required to finance larger scale projects in the future.
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Enterprise, Internal Service, and Special Revenue Funds

This group includes the City’s enterprises such as Water, Wastewater, Stormwater and Parking funds;
internal service funds such as Fleet, Insurance, Building Maintenance and Information Technology;
and Special Revenue funds including Gas Tax, Proposition A & C, Measure R, Measure M, Measure
W, Asset Forfeiture, etc. Among this group, several funds deserve attention.

For several years, the Water Fund continued to build resources for planned capital improvements
needed to sustain the utility’s operation and infrastructure. In FY 2021-2022, net income from
operations totaled $2.9 million, an increase of $1.0 million (53.9%). Operating revenue from sales and
service charges decreased by $237,489 (1.5%), while operating expenses (labor, materials, services,
etc.) decreased by $1.3 million (9.2%) due to increased capitalized costs and a decrease in project
costs expensed as maintenance. Until recently, water rates had remained unchanged since 2014. After
a prop 218 process, the City Council adopted new water rates on June 7, 2022 to align revenues with
current operational and capital costs to maintain the City’s water system and provide water service.
The new rates went into effect in November 2022.Accumulated fund balances provide resources for
planned capital improvements to the utility’s infrastructure, estimated at $36.8 million over the next
five years, including the replacement of Peck Reservoir which is estimated to cost nearly $39.0 million.
The remaining balance on the project at the end of FY 2021-2022 is $14.8 million.

In FY 2021-2022 the net operating income for the Wastewater Fund was $1.6 million versus
$1.8 million in the prior year, a decrease of $142,152 or 8%. Operating revenue was relatively flat
compared to the prior year while operating expenses increased $105,395 or 5.7%. Wastewater rates
were last adjusted along with the water rates in January 2010. Similar to the recent water rate study,
an analysis is underway to determine appropriate rate increases needed to fun necessary capital
improvements to the wastewater system. Since the Wastewater revenues are based on water
consumption, water conservation efforts also result in lower Wastewater revenues without the benefit
of lower operational costs as is the case in the Water Fund, where conservation results in less pumping
and less water being purchased.

Continuing an ongoing trend of losses, the Stormwater Fund net operating loss in FY 2021-2022 was
$1.4 million. Accumulated losses for the prior five fiscal years total over $4.5 million. The
combination of fixed fees and rising costs requires General Fund subsidies. The General Fund
transferred $2,183,688 in FY 2021-2022 to support operations. Additionally, due to legislative
mandates, additional capital improvements will result in increased costs. Current assessments were set
in 1996. A Proposition 218 assessment vote will be necessary to adjust assessments. Measure W,
which is a Los Angeles County-wide stormwater parcel tax passed in November 2018, will provide
some relief, but the City’s funding allocation will not fully eliminate the operational deficits given
restrictions written into the allowable use of funds.

The Parking Funds net operating income for FY 2021-2022 was $2.0 million, up $1.6 million or
442.4% from the prior year. Operating revenue increased $1.3 million, up 39.6% compared to the
prior year, due to an increase in street parking meter rates in September 2020 as well as impacts from
COVID-19 “Safer-At-Home” orders in the prior year. Total operating expenses of $2.6 million were
down $311,463 or 10.7% from the prior year due to decreased materials and service expenses. Future
capital improvement projects, such as the reconstruction of dated parking structures, as well as debt
service on bond principal will require an increase in cash flow.
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Street Lighting and Landscape Fund

The Street Lighting and Landscape Fund continues to run deficits each year. For FY 2021-2022,
expenditures exceeded revenues by $82,504. As in the case of the Stormwater Fund, assessments have
been constant for over 20 years. Because there is no fund balance to draw upon, the General Fund
contributes the entire amount needed for continued operations. These contributions will be necessary
until a Proposition 218 assessment vote is successful in raising the assessment rates and revenues.

Insurance Reserve Fund

For FY 2021-2022 the net position for the Insurance Fund increased $3,130,405. Prior to fiscal year
2022, the unpredictable nature of claims payments, compounded by rising medical costs and claim
judgments, caused internal service fund charge-outs to fall behind funding needs in previous years.
However, in FY 2021-2022, claims insurance recoveries increased $6,729,699 or 93.6% due to the
insurance recovery of an old case resulting in a positive fund balance.

Custodial Funds

The custodial fund group includes debt service funds held in trust on behalf of Utility Undergrounding
Assessment Districts (UUAD). The City refunded the outstanding bonds of five Underground Districts
in March 2018 to take advantage of lower interest rates and reduce assessments for property owners.
Interest rates for the new refunding bonds were set at a uniform annual rate of 3.00%, compared to the
previous rates that ranged from 4.72% to 4.95%. The 2018 refunding bonds mature in September 2026.

Debt service on the bonds issued for the three UUAD Districts (19-4, 19-12, and 19-14) formed in
FY 2019-2020 range in interest rates from 2.00% to 3.00%. These bonds mature in September 2040.

OTHER INFORMATION

Manhattan Beach’s history of prudent financial decision-making has earned and maintained a sound
financial condition. In fact, Standard & Poor’s reaffirmed the City’s AAA Credit Rating on
July 20, 2021. Established reserves remain funded, and the City continues to operate efficiently and
effectively, all while continuing to provide outstanding services for the community.

Acknowledgments: This report was made possible through the efforts and teamwork of the highly
dedicated Finance staff. Special thanks to Julie Bondarchuk and Libby Bretthauer. Appreciation is
also expressed to the City Council and City Treasurer for their interest and support, which made this
presentation possible. Finally, thanks to the City’s auditing firm of Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP for
their professionalism and diligence in assisting in the preparation this year-end financial report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Manhattan Beach, California

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Manhattan Beach,
California, (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 5 to the financial statements, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City adopted
new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. = PrlmeGIobal
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Manhattan Beach, California

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if, there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Other Reporting Responsibilities
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison schedules for the General Fund, the schedules of
changes in net pension liability and related ratios, the schedule of investment returns, the schedule of
proportionate share of the net pension liability, the schedules of employer plan contributions, and the
schedule of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios, and the schedule of contributions, as listed in
the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Manhattan Beach, California

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules (supplementary information) are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory section and statistical section but does not include the basic financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements does not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are
required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 11, 2023, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

%,,&/%WW

Brea, California
January 11, 2023
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Manhattan Beach, we offer our readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Manhattan Beach for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022. We encourage readers to consider this information in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i to xi of this
report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Government-Wide Financial Basis

o Asof June 30, 2022, the City’s total net position Citywide (including all governmental and business
type activities) totaled $273,717,256, an increase from the prior fiscal year of $70,712,690 or 34.8%
due to operations.

o Governmental net position for the fiscal year totaled $156,437,394 an increase of
$65,270,973 or 71.6%. This increase is due to revenues totaling $102,314,757
(program revenues of $31,605,483 and general revenue of $7,709,274), transfers out of
$1,651,060 less activity expenses of $35,392,724.

o Business-type activity net position totaled $117,279,862, an increase of $5,441,717 or
4.9%. This change in net position is a result of operations (program revenues of
$25,786,083, negative non-program revenues of $1,062,380, expenses of $20,435,076,
transfers in of $1,651,060 and prior adjustment of negative $497,970 due to a correction
of processor fee payments).

e Unrestricted net position, which may be used to meet the government’s on-going obligations within
certain parameters and requirements, totaled $77,340,952. This is an increase of $57,732,188 or
294.4% from FY 2020-2021.

e Governmental Activities

o Governmental Unrestricted Net Position of $35,997,886 increased $67,910,652 from the
prior year. Unrestricted net position is defined as total net position less the difference
between capital assets and accumulated depreciation less associated bonding including
premiums/discounts. The significant increase can be primarily attributed to the CalPERS
pool experiencing a strong rate of return of 21.3%. This resulted in an overall pension
income of $45,950,552, of which approximately 93% was allocated to governmental funds.
See Note 10 for additional information.

o The City implemented GASB Statement No. 87 (Accounting for Leases) during
FY 2021-2022. This accounting standard recognized assets and liabilities for leases that
were previously classified as operating expenses/income. The City record lease receivable
of $24,988,459 which were offset by deferred lease inflows of $24,788,395 and leases
payable of $2,090,304. See Note 5 for additional information.

e Business Type activities

o Unrestricted Net Position of $41,343,066, decreased by $10,178,464 compared to the prior
year primarily due to the construction of capital projects including the Peck Reservoir
replacement project. The City anticipates a lower unrestricted net position in the near future
when large projects, such as reconstruction of Peck Reservoir, absorb working capital and
correspondingly increase investment in capital assets.
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o Citywide capital assets (land, work in progress, completed) net of depreciation increased by
$20,145,455 (See Note 6). Governmental net capital assets increased by $5,384,588. Net capital
additions of $10,523,855 were offset by depreciation expense of $5,100,708 and net disposals of
$38,559. Business-type net capital assets increased by $14,760,867; additions were $16,102,488,
which were offset by depreciation expense of ($1,341,621). Future expenditures for capital projects
will not affect the overall net position of the government-wide position as the expenditure would be
offset by an increase in non-current assets but may have an impact on the level of working capital.

e The City’s bond debt increased by $3,582,015 during FY 2021-2022 (See Note 7). This increase is
attributable to the issuance of the 2021 Fire Station No. 2 Certificate of Participation bonds in the
amount of $7,440,000 and the 2021 Refunding Certificate of Participation bonds in the amount of
$5,925,000, which defeased the 2012 Metlox and Water/Wastewater refunding COPs of
$6,985,000 less the scheduled principal pay down of issued bonds and changes in bond
premium/discount by both governmental activities $2,903,845 and business-type activities
$(105,860).

o General liability and workers compensation insurance claim reserves decreased by $249,389
(See Note 14). Decrease in workers’ compensation claims activity resulted in a reserve decrease
of $327,254 while general liability claims activity resulted in an increase in general liability reserves
of $77,865. This year, the City recorded 50% of the incurred but not reported (IBNR) reserves
based on the 50% confidence level on the actuarial report.

Fund Financial Basis — Governmental Funds

e As of June 30, 2022, the General Fund balance was $39,817,477. Fund expenditures exceeded
revenues by $11,039,101 due to regular operations. Other sources (uses) were net transfers out
of $3,832,525, resulting in a net change of $7,206,576.

e Governmental Funds (General, Capital Improvement and Special Revenue) revenue totaled
$103,421,329, an increase of $14,701,859, (16.6%) from FY 2020-2021. The increase is primarily
attributable to the City’s steady recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic. For example, in
FY 2021-2022 transient occupancy tax (TOT) revenue increased $3,203,538, whereas in the prior
year TOT revenue experienced a significant decrease due to the pandemic.

e Governmental Funds expenditures totaled $96,393,841, down $82,308,125 (46.1%) from the prior
year. The variance was due to the prior year issuance of POB of $91,275,000 of which $89,385,711
was allocated to governmental funds. Capital expenditures were up $3,631,093 due a number of
projects entering the construction phase, including $2,026,927 of project expenditures. Total
governmental fund revenue exceeded expenditures by $7,027,488, wholly increase in Capital and
Public Work projects in the Prop C and Underground Assessment funds.

e General Fund net transfers-out totaled $3,832,525. Transfers-out included $2,183,688 to the
Stormwater Fund, $1,400,000 to the Safety and Civic Center Construction Fund, $667,596 to the
Capital Improvement Fund and $113,869 to the Street Lighting and Landscape Fund. Transfers in
consisted of $532,628 from the County Parking Lot Fund. Transfers are required to maintain
adequate funding levels or eliminate deficits (See Note 4 for more information).

City Council Meeting 8 Page 223 of 948
January 17, 2023



USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT
Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements,
which is comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Reporting on the City as a Whole

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred inflows/outflows of
resources and liabilities, with the difference between these items reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the City of Manhattan Beach is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs on a full-accrual basis, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide statement of activities has two components:

Governmental Activities

This is a consolidation of all governmental funds and includes the General Fund, Capital Improvements
Funds, Special Revenue Funds and Internal Service Funds. These funds are supported by taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, grants, and charges for services. Expenses include materials and labor,
depreciation, and amortization of prepaid pension obligations. Governmental fund expenditures for
payment of principal on long-term debt and capital assets are excluded. All intra-governmental charges
and expenses and transfers within governmental funds are eliminated.

All internal service fund expenses and depreciation on capital assets are fully allocated to each
functional program. Expenses are classified among the following programs: general government, public
safety, culture and recreation, and public works. Program activities that produce revenues or receive
grant support are applied against program expenses to yield the net expenses. Revenues that cannot
be attributed to a specific program, such as taxes and interest (e.g. General Revenues), are shown
separately. The total of General Revenues, less net program expenses, generates the change in net
position. Total net position of governmental activities differs from fund balances of governmental funds
by long-term assets (capital and prepaid pension), long-term liabilities and the total of internal service
fund net position.

Business Type Activities

All enterprise funds (Water, Wastewater, Stormwater and Parking Funds) are included in Business
Type activities. These activities have been traditionally presented as enterprise funds and tie directly
to the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net position — Proprietary Funds, as shown
in the Funds section of this report.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 27 to 29 of this report.
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Reporting on the City’s Most Significant Funds

Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Manhattan Beach, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end
of the fiscal year. In effect, the budgetary governmental fund statements are working capital flow of funds
statements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers
may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Following
the governmental funds Balance Sheet, and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances, there are respective reconciliations of the fund balance to Statement of Net position, and Net
Change in Fund Balances — total governmental funds to change in net position of governmental activities.
As discussed above, the reconciliations include treatment of capital expenditures, depreciation, changes in
capital assets, long-term debt, prepaid pension costs, full accrual versus modified accrual and change in
net position of internal service funds.

The City of Manhattan Beach maintains thirteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General fund and Proposition C Fund, which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other nonmajor governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in the fund financial statements section of this report.

The City of Manhattan Beach currently operates on an annual budget cycle. The FY 2021-2022 Budget
was adopted on June 15, 2021. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for each
governmental fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 31-43 of this report.

Proprietary funds: Proprietary funds account for goods and services provided to customers and for cost
recovery via service charges. There are two types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds which provide
services to outside users (residents and businesses of Manhattan Beach), and internal service funds, which
provide services to City departments. The City uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles,
information technology, shared building and maintenance costs, and City-wide insurance costs. Because
these services predominantly benefit the governmental function, they have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and related intra-governmental
charges and transfers have been eliminated accordingly, except for charges and transfers to the enterprise
funds, which are quasi-internal transactions.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. All four internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds
is provided in the form of combining statements. Three of the City’s seven enterprise funds are considered
major funds and presented as such in the fund financial statements. The three non-major funds,
Stormwater, County Parking Lot, and State Pier and Parking lots, are presented individually in the
combining statements.
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The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds, proprietary
and internal service funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 121-152 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 45-95 of this report.

The City as Trustee

Other information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees and the
budget-to-actual financial comparisons for the General Fund. The City has elected to present this
information within the basic financial statement and financial statement sections of the report. Note 10 and
Note 11 provides detailed analysis of City retirement plans.

All of the City’s fiduciary activities are reporting distinctly in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Assets and
Liabilities. These figures are not combined with other financial statements because the City cannot use
these assets to finance present or future operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets
reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As noted earlier, net position serves as an indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the
City of Manhattan Beach, net position totaled $273,717,256 at June 30, 2022 versus $203,004,566 at
June 30, 2021 —an increase of $70,712,690. The increase is primarily driven by the issuance of the Pension
Obligation Bonds (POBs) in FY 2020-2021 which were used to pay down the net pension liability. The
combination of the POBs and a 21.3% investment return from CalPERS in FY 2020-2021 resulted in a net
pension asset in FY 2021-2022 of $51,888,750 compared to a net pension liability of $90,283,344 in the
prior year.

Net position of the City’s Governmental activities amounted to $156,437,394 an increase from the prior
year of $65,270,973. On the table of Net Position below, $105,850,112 is net investment in capital assets’
such as land, buildings, machinery, infrastructure, equipment and other improvements; restricted net
position of $14,589,396 is equal to total of section 115 investment, restricted City capital projects and
Special Revenue Fund resources restricted for debt service, capital projects, post-employment benefits, or
for Special Revenue Fund resources that are subject to external restrictions on use. Governmental
activities’ unrestricted net position increased by $67,910,652 from the prior year to $35,997,886 primarily
due to paying down of the City’s unfunded liability and net pension asset recorded in FY 2021-2022.
Significant components of non-current liabilities include 1) net City Plan pension liability of $170,400; 2) net
OPEB liability of $4,861,472; 3) leases payable of $1,095,503; 4) bonds payable totaling $101,477,122; 5)
accrued workers compensation and liability claims and judgments of $7,030,500; and 6) accrued employee
benefits of $3,819,254.

Net position of the City’s Business-type activities totaled $117,279,862. This represents an increase from
prior year of $5,441,717. Net investments in capital assets (land, buildings, machinery, equipment, etc.)
totals $75,545,929, while $390,867 is restricted for business improvement district use. Significant
components of non-current liabilities include: 1) bonds payable totaling $8,281,457; 3) net OPEB liability of
$197,482; and 4) accrued employee benefits of $95,811. Business-type activities’ unrestricted net position
decreased by $10,178,464 from the prior year to $41,343,066, primarily driven by an increase of capital
project activity.

! Net investment in capital assets is calculated by taking total capital assets net of depreciation, less
corresponding bonds and lease payable, less the balance of unamortized bond premium, plus deferred
charges on refunding bonds.
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City of Manhattan Beach Net Position

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities
2022 2021 2022 2021
Current Assets $109,032,971 $ 87,734,490 $ 47,274,205 $ 61,028,882 $ 156,307,176 $ 148,763,372
Total Capital Assets Net of Depreciation 127,221,756 121,837,168 82,667,386 67,906,519 209,889,142 189,743,687
Other Non-Current Assets 74,653,705 - 1,078,444 - 75,732,149 -
Total Assets $ 310,908,432 $ 209,571,658 $ 131,020,035 $ 128,935,401 $ 441,928,467 $ 338,507,059
Deferred Charge on Refunding $ 305,782 $ 337,970 $ - 3 - $ 305,782 $ 337,970
Deferred Pension Related Items 67,059,708 109,089,874 144,100 2,222,890 67,203,808 111,312,764
Deferred OPEB Related Items 8,202,446 9,510,450 333,198 314,741 8,535,644 9,825,191
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 75,567,936 $ 118,938,294 $ 477,298 $ 2,537,631 $ 76,045,234 $121,475,925
Current Liabilities $ 33,524,729 $ 28,903,178 $ 4,788,851 $ 8,184,583 $ 38,313,580 $ 37,087,761
Non-Current Liabilities 118,454,251 205,039,677 8,574,750 11,435,277 127,029,001 216,474,954
Total Liabilities $151,978,980 $ 233,942,855 $ 13,363,601 $ 19,619,860 $165,342,581 $ 253,562,715
Deferred Leases Inflows $ 24,788,395 $ - $ - 8 - $ 24,788,395 § -
Deferred Pension Related Items 50,125,165 3,145,795 726,056 6,592 50,851,221 3,152,387
Deferred OPEB related items 3,146,434 254,881 127,814 8,435 3,274,248 263,316
Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 78,059,994 $ 3,400,676 $ 853,870 $ 15,027 $ 78,913,864 $ 3,415,703
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 105,850,112 $ 110,223,781 $ 75,545,929 $ 59,896,315 $ 181,396,041 $ 170,120,096
Restricted 14,589,396 12,855,406 390,867 420,300 14,980,263 13,275,706
Unrestricted 35,997,886 (31,912,766) 41,343,066 51,521,530 77,340,952 19,608,764

Total Net Position $ 156,437,394 $ 91,166,421 $ 117,279,862 $ 111,838,145 $ 273,717,256  $ 203,004,566

The City’s total change in net position amounts to an increase of $70,712,690. Governmental activities’
total net position increased by $65,270,973. Business-type activities’ total net position increased by
$5,441,717.
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The following table condenses the Government-wide Statement of Activities and Change in Net Position
for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021:

City of Manhattan Beach Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities

2022 2021 2022 2021

Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 23,671,048 $ 20,975,876 $ 25,786,083 $ 25,064,633 $ 49,457,131 $ 46,040,509
Operating Contributions and Grants 1,578,282 813,280 - - 1,578,282 813,280
Capital Contributions and Grants 6,356,153 7,465,878 - - 6,356,153 7,465,878
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 39,491,986 37,598,821 - - 39,491,986 37,598,821
Other Taxes 27,914,432 19,678,156 - - 27,914,432 19,678,156
Use of Money and Property 1,150,538 2,481,570 (1,458,512) (21,070) (307,974) 2,460,500
Other 2,152,318 1,440,844 396,132 55,826 2,548,450 1,496,670
Total Revenues $102,314,757 $ 90,454,425 $ 24,723,703 $ 25,099,389 $127,038,460 $115,553,814
Expenses:
General Government $ 14,877,262 $ 17,133,923 $ - $ - $ 14,877,262 $ 17,133,923
Public Safety (8,739,663) 49,746,507 - - (8,739,663) 49,746,507
Public Works 17,978,786 26,157,349 - - 17,978,786 26,157,349
Culture & Recreation 8,399,151 7,966,453 - - 8,399,151 7,966,453
Interest on Long-Term Debt 2,877,188 678,619 - - 2,877,188 678,619
Water, Waste, Storm - - 16,315,735 17,117,034 16,315,735 17,117,034
Parking - - 4,119,341 4,557,379 4,119,341 4,557,379
Total Expenses $ 35,392,724 $101,682,851 $ 20,435,076 $ 21,674,413 $ 55,827,800 $123,357,264
Revenues Over Expenses 66,922,033 (11,228,426) 4,288,627 3,424,976 71,210,660 (7,803,450)
Special ltems - (148,434) - 148,434 - -
Transfers In (Out) (1,651,060) 421,631 1,651,060 (421,631) - -

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $ 65,270,973 $ (10,955,229) $ 5,939,687 $ 3,151,779 $ 71,210,660 $ (7,803,450)

Net Position - Beginning $ 91,166,421 $105,834,753 | | $111,838,145 $108,735,487 | | $203,004,566 $214,570,240
Restatement of Net Position - (3,713,103) (497,970) (49,121) (497,970)  (3,762,224)
Net Position - June 30 (Year End) $156,437,394 $ 91,166,421 $117,279,862  $111,838,145 | | $273,717,256 $203,004,566

Changes in Net Position - Governmental Activities

The City’s governmental activities in FY 2021-2022 increased net position by $65,270,973 compared to a
decrease of $14,668,332 in FY 2020-2021.

Total revenues increased by $11,860,332, while total expenses decreased by $66,290,127. Property taxes
increased by $1,893,165, other taxes such as sales and transient occupancy tax increased by $3,203,358
and $3,203,358, respectively. Charges for services increased by $2,695,172 attributable to the
reinstatement of enhanced services being provided after the pandemic shut down. The decrease in total
expenses of $66,290,127 is due to the pay down of the City’s unfunded actuarial liability in the prior year.
Salaries of $38,292,878 and benefits of $5,264,743 (excluding pension and workers compensation) were
virtually flat. Materials and services were $20,930,232, a decrease of $1,201,628 compared to the prior
year.
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Total governmental activities revenue of $102,314,757, excluding transfers-out of $1,651,060, is broken
out as follows:

Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities FY 2022

Operating/Capital
Contributions and
Grants 8%

Transient Occupancy
| : Taxes 6%
— Business License Tax
' 5%

Sales Tax 13%

__ Use of Money &
} Property 1%

T Franchise Fees 1%

Charges for
Services 239

“_Real Estate Transfer
Taxes 2%

\_Other 2%

Property Tax 39%

Functional expenses (excluding interest on debt) for the years ending June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021
were as follows:

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
2022 2021 2022 2021
General Government $14,877,262 $17,133,923 ($5,989,314) ($7,360,701)
Public Safety (8,739,663) 49,746,507 13,107,555 (46,072,332)
Culture and Recreation 8,399,151 7,966,453 (4,723,177) (5,862,450)
Public Works 17,978,786 26,157,349 (3,305,117) (12,453,715)

$32,515,536 $101,004,232 ($910,053) ($71,749,198)

The total cost of services decreased from the prior year by $68,488,696 (67.8%), while the net cost of
services decreased by $70,839,145 (98.7%) from the prior year. The decrease is primarily attributed to the
pay down of the City’s unfunded actuarial liability through the issuance of pension obligation bonds in
FY 2020-2021 and a CalPERS net investment return of 21.3%. This resulted in $45,950,552 of pension
income that was allocated across the functional expenses. Total costs for Public Safety decreased by
$58,486,170, General Government decreased by $2,256,661, Culture and Recreation increased by
$432,698, and Public Works decreased by $8,178,563.
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The following chart illustrates governmental revenues and expenses by function for the year ended

June 30, 2022.

Governmental Activities Revenue and Expenses by

Function/Program

Year Ended June 30, 2022

$20,000,000

$10,000,000 I

-$10,000,000
General
Government
M Program Revenue 58,887,948
M Expenses $14,877,262

Public Safety

$4,367,892
(58,739,663)

Change in Net Position - Business Type Activities

(excludes interest on long-term debt)

Culture.& Public Works
Recreation

$3,675,974 $14,673,669
$8,399,151 $17,978,786

In fiscal year 2021-2022, total revenues for the City’s business-type activities amounted to $24,723,703.
Operating revenues totaled $25,786,083 and interest revenues totaled negative $1,458,512. Expenses
totaled $20,435,076 of which operating expenses equaled $20,164,296, and non-operating expenses
(including debt interest expense) totaled $270,780. Total income from operations was $6,017,919 while net
income before transfers was $4,288,627. After net transfers-in totaling $1,651,060, net position increased
by $5,939,687 compared to an increase of $3,003,345 in FY 2020-2021. The restatement of net position
was due to a correction of prior year processor fee payments totaling negative $497,970.
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Operating Revenues by Source - Business Type Activities FY 2022

Total Operating Revenue - $26,182,215
Includes grants

Waste Water Parking Operations (All
$3,568,144 Funds)
14% $6,806,235
26%
Stormwater
$338,814
1% \
Water
$15,469,022
59%

Operating Income varied across the business-type activities in FY 2021-2022.

A year-over-year

comparison is presented below. Further analysis of the major funds is discussed later in this report.

Net Operating Income/(Loss) for Business-Type Activities

$3,500,000
$2,500,000
$1,500,000
$500,000 . .
($500,000) I I
($1,500,000) S W c Parki
Water Waste Water Parking torm :dter ounty a.r ng
(non major) (non major)
W 2022 $2,940,120 1,629,397 1,965,725 (1,438,833) 549,465
m 2021 $1,910,852 1,771,549 362,406 (1,121,827) 494,232
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In recent years, GASB has released Statements 68, 74, 75, 87. These statements have a significant
financial impact on the City’s Financial Statements and in particular, the government-wide statements.
Public agencies must recognize the net noncurrent liabilities (accrued liabilities less fiduciary assets) of
pension plans and other postemployment benefit plans. Due to the magnitude of these net liabilities, the
City’'s government-wide net position is significantly reduced. In addition, since these liabilities must be
amortized over a fixed period of time, there will be an increase demand on future working capital. For this
reason, the City issued POBs in May 2021.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - GASB 68

Net pension asset $51,888,750 is most significant due to its impact on the City’s reported Net Position. Net
position is comprised of three components - Net investment in capital assets, Restricted and Unrestricted.
Governmental and Business-type activities’ net position captures the corresponding share of net pension
asset. In the case of Governmental activities (which absorb over 95% of pension expense for general
government, public safety, public works and recreation employees), the result is a net pension asset of
$50,810,306. Net pension asset attributed to public safety for sworn employees is $35,484,453. Due to the
significantly smaller employee population in Business-type activities, these funds have a much smaller net
pension asset of $1,078,444. Because of the significant impact of pension liabilities on the City’s financial
status, a thorough explanation is included at the end under the section Effect of Pension Activity on Net
Position.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions — GASB 74/75

In FY 2017-2018, the City implemented the pronouncements of GASB 74 and GASB 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB). GASB 74 replaces the
requirements for GASB 43 and 57. GASB 75 replaces the requirements for GASB 45. The purpose of
GASB 74 and GASB 75 is to establish new accounting and financial reporting standards for OPEB that is
provided to employees by state and local governments.

The City has a two retiree medical plans that fall under the definition of an OPEB plan under the criteria set
by GASB 74/75. One is the City plan, which provides a fixed stipend to qualifying retirees until age 65. The
other is a contribution to all retirees who enroll in the CalPERS medical plan as mandated by the
Public Employee Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA).

The plans are financed by actuarially determined contributions and interest earnings. The funds are held in
a Section 115 trust fund managed by California Employees’ Retirement Benefit Trust (CERBT), which is
under the CalPERS umbrella. There was a change of assumptions in FY 2020 regarding implied subsidy
into the OPEB liability, which caused the City’s funding status to change from super funded to having a net
OPEB liability. This year, a higher discount rate caused a significant decrease in total OPEB liability of
$19,203,210 to $17,850,316. Taking into account the deferred outflows and inflows related to the net
OPEB liability, the City recognized an OPEB expense of $1,108,336.

As of the valuation date, current plan fiduciary net position totaled $12,791,362 and the total OPEB liability
totaled $17,850,316, resulting in a net OPEB liability of $5,058,954 government-wide. The Governmental
Activities share of net OPEB liability was $4,861,472 and the Business-Type Activities reported a net
OPEB liability of $197,482.

Please refer to Note 12 for more information on the post-employment benefit plans.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Governmental Funds

As of the end of the 2022 fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds ending fund balances totaled
$63,915,185, an increase of $14,076,350 (28.2%) in comparison with the prior year.

Within the Governmental Funds total, $36,823,324 (57.6%) constitutes unassigned fund balance. The
unassigned fund balance exists only in the General Fund. The remainder of the fund balance ($27,091,861)
is non-spendable, restricted or committed indicating these funds are not available for new spending
because it has already been committed for on-going capital projects, advanced to other funds for legally
restricted use, long term notes receivable, or for legally-required debt service reserves.

Notwithstanding Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements, the City Council
has established earmarks within the unassigned category for working capital and budgetary capital planning
initiatives. Of the $36.8 million unassigned governmental fund balance noted above, $19.5 million has been
designated by City Council policy.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Manhattan Beach. At the end of the 2021-22
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $36,823,324 while total fund balance was
$39,817,477. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents
5.6 months of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 6.1 months of
General Fund expenditures.

During the year, General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $11,039,101. The non-spendable
portion of fund balance increased $213,396 from the prior year due to the addition of leases receivable and
increases in inventory and prepaid costs. The increase in fund balance of $7,206,576 was primarily due to
various revenue increases that exceeded conservative budget estimates resulting from COVID-19.

Net transfer activity of negative $3,832,525 were due to the following transfers:

e $2,183,688 was transferred to the Stormwater Fund to relieve a deficit fund balance due to
operations.

e $532,628 of excess revenues from the County Parking Lot Fund was transferred to the General
Fund in line with the contract with the County of Los Angeles.

e $1,400,000 was transferred to the Safety and Civic Center Construction fund for the Fire Station
No. 2 reconstruction project.

e $113,869 was transferred to the Street Lighting Fund to relieve a deficit fund balance.

e $492,596 of the Pension Obligation Bond savings and $175,000 was transferred to the Capital
Improvement fund to provide funding for capital projects.

Please see Note 4 for more information.
Other Governmental Funds

The Gas Tax Fund had total revenues of $2,650,928. These revenues are dedicated to street maintenance
as well as street infrastructure projects. Gas Tax Fund expenditures totaled $1,760,945 for maintenance
projects such as street resurfacing and improvements.

The Street Lighting Fund continues to run deficits each year. For FY 2021-2022, expenditures exceeded
revenues by $82,504. Since there is no fund balance to draw upon, the General Fund contributes the entire
amount to make up for the deficit in the Street Lighting Fund. These contributions will be necessary until a
Proposition 218 assessment vote is successful in raising the assessment rates and revenues. In fiscal year
2021-2022 $113,869 was transferred in providing an ending fund balance of $101,364 for future
extraordinary expenditures.
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Other non-major governmental funds include all Special Revenue funds use exclusively to account for
intergovernmental and assessment proceeds, which are restricted in use by law. The funds within category
include the Prop C and A funds, the Measure R, Measure M and Measure W funds, the AB2766 fund, the
Asset Forfeiture fund and the Police Safety Grant fund. Monies received in these funds are primarily used
for the maintenance of streets, parks, local transportation programs and the purchase of safety and
fuel-efficient equipment.

Capital Project funds serve to plan and manage the construction and maintenance of non-enterprise
projects which are funded through dedicated revenue sources and General Fund transfers. The City adopts
a five-year capital project plan in which City Council priorities are planned. The Capital Improvement fund,
Safety and Civic Center Construction fund and Underground Assessment District Fund are non-major funds
covered in that City-wide plan.

At the end of fiscal year 2021-2022, total fund balance of $12,224,799 in the Capital Project Funds was
committed to capital projects.

A partial list of identified long-term project commitments at year-end includes:

$1.3 million for Annual Facilities Capital Maintenance Program
$2.9 million for the Senior and Scout House improvements
$2.0 million for the Polliwog Playground Park Facilities

$1.5 million for the School District Project

$1.0 million for various Right-of-Way projects

During Fiscal Year 2021-2022, the Capital Improvement Project Fund balance decreased by $320,221
(5.2%). Total revenues of $1,524,354 were up $33,550 (2.3%). Current year revenues were offset by
capital and maintenance expenditures of $2,161,955 and debt service of $1,120,542.

Of the $1,524,354 in total revenues to the Capital Improvement Fund, certain dedicated revenues described
below totaled $1,520,708 in FY 2021-2022. The following revenues are earmarked for funding general
government capital improvement projects in the effort to maintain and enhance City infrastructure:

Hotel Tax: 15% of the Transient Occupancy Tax has been dedicated to funding CIP’s, generating
$878,554 in revenue for the year, which is $458,177 (109%) above prior year levels as the City is
recovering from pandemic-related impacts to the travel and tourism industries.

Parking Meter Rates: Fifty cents of the $2.00 per hour on-street parking meter rates is dedicated to
capital improvements. This source generated revenue of $549,602 this fiscal year, up $85,954 (18.5%)
from the prior year.

Parking Citation Rates: Most parking citations include four dollars dedicated to the CIP fund. For
FY 2021-2022, revenue of $92,552 was realized; an increase of $18,616 (25.2%) from the prior year.

Capital Improvement Fund expenditures totaled $3,282,497. Capital outlay expenditures totaled
$1,928,409, operating expenditures of $233,546, and debt service of $1,120,542. Capital expenditures
exceeding $100,000 consisted of:

e $373,322 — Facilities Improvements
e $60,565 — Fire Station 2 Replacement Project
e $312,835 — Street Projects
e $385,278 — Polliwog Park Playground Resurfacing and Equipment Replacement Project
+ $1,352,659 — Other projects in design or construction including various facility projects and HVAC
replacement projects.
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Underground Assessment District Fund

In fiscal year 2019-20, residents in three district (19-4, 19-12, and 19-14) approved the undergrounding of
utilities by a Proposition 218 ballot. As a result, the Manhattan Beach City Council authorized the issuance
of bonds to finance the Utility Underground Project in these three assessment districts. Bond assessments
are paid by homeowners over a period of 20-years through the annual consolidated property tax bill.

Bond proceeds and payoffs totaled $18,573,325 was received in FY 2019-20 to fund the project and will be
drawn down upon as the project progresses. In FY 2021-2022, negative revenues of $85,862 were reported
due to negative investment returns and expenditures totaled $2,026,927, resulting in an ending fund
balance of $2,122,303.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds consist of enterprise funds and internal service funds. The enterprise funds
include Water, Wastewater and Parking Funds (major funds), as well as Stormwater and both the County
and State Pier & Parking Lot Funds (which are considered non-major). Internal service funds include
Insurance Reserve, Information Technology, Fleet Management and Building Maintenance and Operations.

Enterprise (Business) Funds

At year-end, total net position of all enterprise funds amounted to $117,279,862. Net investment in capital
assets totaled $75,545,929 and $390,867 is restricted for a business improvement district. The balance of
$41,343,066 is unrestricted net position. This presentation mirrors the statement of net position of Business
Type Activities included in the Government-wide Financial Statements section.

Overall, the combined net income of enterprise funds was $4,288,627 before transfers. Operations resulted
in a $5,939,687 increase in net position. Transfer activity included a net transfer-out of $532,628 from the
County Parking Lots Fund to the General Fund. Also included in the transfer activity was a net transfer-in
off $2,183,688 to the Stormwater fund from the General Fund.

Several enterprise funds are worth noting:

e The Water Fund has been utilizing its reserves for planned capital improvements needed to sustain
the utility’s operation and infrastructure. Net income from operations totaled $2,940,120, an
increase from the prior year which had net operating income of $1,910,852. Revenue from sales
decreased by 1.5%, while operating expenses (labor, materials, services, etc.) decreased by 9.2%
due to more projects qualifying for capitalization rather than regular repairs and maintenance.
Accumulated fund balances provide resources for planned capital improvements to the utility’s
infrastructure, estimated at $36.8 million over the next five years. Fund balance is expected to
decrease in FY 2022-2023 due to the anticipated completion of the Peck Reservoir project which
has a remaining project balance of $14.8 million at the end of FY 2021-2022.

e The Wastewater fund net operating income for FY 2021-2022 was $1,629,397 versus $1,771,549
in FY 2020-2021, a decrease of $142,152, or 8.0%. Operating revenues were relatively flat
compared to the prior year while operating expenses increased $105,395 or 5.7%. It is important
to note that Wastewater revenues are based on water consumption, and increases or decreases
in consumption due to water conservation efforts also impact Wastewater revenues.

e The Parking Fund net operating income for FY 2021-2022 was $1,965,725, up $1,603,319 or
442.4% from the prior year. Operating revenue increased $1,291,856, up 39.6% compared to the
prior year, due to an increase in street parking meter rates in September 2020. Total operating
expenses of $2,588,040 were down $311,463 or 10.7% from the prior year due to decreased
materials and service expenses. Total increase in net position for FY 2021-2022 was $1,718,882
while unrestricted net position is $1,940,018. Future capital improvement projects as well debt
service on bond principal will require an increase in cash flow.

City Council Meeting 20 Page 235 of 948
January 17, 2023



« The Stormwater Fund net operating loss in FY 2021-2022 totaled $1,438,833. This loss is a
continuation of prior year net losses in FY 2020-2021 ($1,121,827), FY 2019-2020 ($703,035),
FY 2018-2019 (702,283), FY 2017-2018 ($1,307,998), FY 2016-2017 ($656,955), FY 2015-16
($771,508), FY 2014-2015 ($424,468), FY 2013-2014 ($420,831), and FY 2012-2013 ($57,093).
The combination of fixed assessments (that have remained unchanged since 1996) and rising costs
currently requires a General Fund cash subsidy. The General Fund transferred $2,183,688 in
FY 2021-2022 to relieve the operational deficit and fund necessary capital improvements in addition
to $1,317,480 in FY 2020-2021 and $298,337 in FY 2019-2020. Unrestricted net position is
$2,556,998. Additional capital improvements due to legislative mandates will also result in
increased costs in the near future. Ongoing transfers from the General Fund will be necessary. A
Proposition 218 assessment vote will be necessary to properly fund operations in the long run.

Internal Service Funds

Total net position of the Internal Service Funds was $7,997,129. Unrestricted net position of the internal
service funds at the end of the year was $4,596,381, the difference of $3,400,748 being Fleet Management
Fund vehicles net of depreciation. Total net position increased by $3,378,289 primarily due to the increase
in insurance recoveries collected in FY 2021-2022.

The Insurance Fund net position at year-end was $1,440,962, compared to negative $1,684,443 in the prior
year. Net position increased since revenues exceeded expenses by $3,130,405. The increase in revenues
was driven by the insurance recovery of claims over the self-insured retention. Claims expense increased
by $3,660,711 to $9,648,523. For comparison, prior year workers compensation and liability paid claims
expense are below:

FY 2021-2022 $9.60 million
FY 2020-2021 5.74 million
FY 2019-2020 5.65 million
FY 2018-2019 5.10 million
FY 2017-2018 8.08 million
FY 2016-2017 6.35 million
FY 2015-2016 6.66 million
FY 2014-2015 6.56 million
FY 2013-2014 5.17 million
FY 2012-2013 3.77 million
FY 2011-2012 4.96 million

The unpredictable nature of workers compensation and liability claims activity causes these fluctuations in
claims expense from year to year. The City continually looks for ways to proactively manage risk and reduce
these costs.

Net position in the Fleet Fund increased by $424,410, to $6,812,868. Capital purchased totaled $232,492
in FY 2021-2022. Accumulated working capital will be used for the purchase of large vehicles such fire
trucks as well as maintenance trucks and police vehicles.

Net position in the Building Maintenance and Operations Fund is negative $512,876 due to the Pension
Obligation Bonds (POB) Payable of $662,205 and Net OPEB liability of $82,284. The negative net position
will be relieved by increased charges to user departments, which will be used to pay down liabilities. Even
with issuance of POBs, it will take an indefinite amount of years to relieve negative net position short of
modifying the method of charge outs, for example, adding a surcharge to maintenance charges or transfer
from the General Fund.

The Information Systems Fund has a net position of $256,175. Net OPEB liability totals $125,073. The
operating expenditure is offset by departmental charge-outs borne primarily by the General Fund.

City Council Meeting 21 Page 236 of 948
January 17, 2023



General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Estimated and Actual Revenues

General Fund revenues were estimated at $82,557,754 in the FY 2021-2022 Adopted Budget. Subsequent
budget changes were due to the following amendments:

e $51,789 Homeland Security Grant

e $150,000 Local Early Advanced Planning (LEAP) Grant awarded for the City’s General Plan
housing element update and environmental documentation

e $230,519 in Measure H and E County grant funding

e $50,000 in police grant funding

Actual General Fund Revenues of $89,692,124 (excluding transfers) exceeded the final budget of
$83,040,062 by $6,652,062 due to conservative budgeting in FY 2021-2022.

Revenues other than property tax that are driven by the economy such as sales tax, transient occupancy
tax (TOT) and recreation programs are almost fully recovered from the economic slowdown resulting from
the pandemic. TOT and sales tax exceeded the budget by $1,308,291 and $1,556,612, respectively. Use
of Money and Property underperformed the budget by $1,894,818 mainly due to the required “mark to mark”
or fair value investment reporting loss of $1,813,587. Fines and Forfeitures outperformed the final budget
by $328,731 mainly due to higher parking citation revenue.

Appropriations and Expenditures

The General Fund adopted budget included $77,894,972 in appropriations. The final amended General
Fund appropriations budget increased overall to $80,112,454 due to several budget adjustments including
the carry forward of prior year encumbrances and budget adjustments approved by City Council as follows:

$1,772,937 for various contract services

$150,000 for the election of the “MB Citizens for Schools” Measure
$32,642 for additional materials and supplies

$174,073 for capital project and purchases

$50,000 towards Public Safety special details funded by awarded grants

Overall, revenue exceeded expenditures (excluding transfers) by $38,269,698. When accounting for the
net transfers out of $3,657,525, the net change in fund balance is $7,381,576. The ending fund balance
was $39,992,477 and should provide sufficient liquidity to meet General Fund expenditures in
fiscal year 2022-23.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: Government-wide, the City’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) as of June 30, 2022 is $209,889,142. This is an increase from the prior year of $20,155,455.
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, park improvements, roadways, sewer, storm
drains, vehicles, computer equipment, furniture and other equipment.
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Land

Buildings

Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles

Infrastructure

Invested in Joint Venture (RCC)
Right-To-Use Assets

Work in Progress

City of Manhattan Beach Capital Assets

Governmental Activities

2022

$33,634,565
28,582,625
1,373,843
3,168,256
46,338,412
1,971,505
2,053,243
10,099,307

$33,634,565
29,437,243

43,154,939

2021

1,610,478
3,975,755

2,079,864

7,944,324

(Net of depreciation)

Business-Type Activities

2022
$2,607,434
15,078,726

1,813,118
29,681,972

33,486,136

2021
$2,607,434
15,078,724

554,376
30,771,396

18,894,589

$36,241,999
43,661,351
3,186,961
3,168,256
76,020,384
1,971,505
2,053,243
43,585,443

$36,241,999
44,515,967
2,164,854
3,975,755
73,926,335
2,079,864

26,838,913

$127,221,756 $121,837,168

$82,667,386 $67,906,519 $209,889,142 $189,743,687

Governmental

Capital assets additions totaled $7,290,984 for projects in progress and $3,232,871 for capital purchases
for a total capital asset addition of $10,523,855. This increase was offset by accumulated depreciation of
$5,100,708 and net deletions of $38,559, resulting in a net increase in assets of $5,384,588.

Business-type

During the fiscal year, Business-type capitalized net expenditures totaled $16,102,488 for projects in
progress. This increase was offset by depreciation of $1,341,621, resulting in a net increase in assets of
$14,760,867.

Please refer to Note 6 for additional information on the City’s capital assets.

Long-Term Liabilities: Total long-term liabilities Citywide (excluding unamortized bond premiums) equal
$136,533,592, an increase of $3,191,496 from fiscal year 2020-21. The variance was due to the issuance
of Certificate of Participation Bonds to fund the Fire Station No. 2 project and to refund the Metlox COPs of
$7,440,000 and $5,925,000, respectively, a decrease in insurance claim reserves of $249,389
(principally workers compensation), a decrease in accrued leave $184,419 and an increase in leases
payable as a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 87. Governmental liabilities increased by
$5,024,427 while business type liabilities decreased by $1,832,931. The following table is a condensation
of Note 7, Note 8 and Note 14.

City of Manhattan Beach Outstanding Liabilities (Excluding Bond Premium)

Governmental Activities
2022 2021

Business-Type Activities

2022 2021

Marine Avenue Park Refunding COPs $4,410,000 $4,730,000 - - $4,410,000 $4,730,000
Capital Equipment Lease - - - - - -
Police & Fire Facility Refunding COPs 6,090,000 6,635,000 - - 6,090,000 6,635,000
2021 Fire Station No. 2 COPs 7,335,000 - - - 7,335,000 -
Leases Payable 2,090,304 2,090,304 -
Accrued Employee Leave & Benefits 4,652,548 4,839,426 116,715 114,256 4,769,263 4,953,682
Metlox and Water/Wastewater Refunding COPs - - - 1,195,000 - 1,195,000
Metlox Parking Refunding COPs - - - 6,500,000 - 6,500,000
2021 Refunding COPs - - 5,925,000 - 5,925,000 -
Pension Obligation Bonds 86,288,700 89,388,310 1,821,300 1,886,690 88,110,000 91,275,000
Insurance Claim Reserves 17,804,025 18,053,414 - - 17,804,025 18,053,414
Total Long Term Liabilities $128,670,577 $123,646,150 $7,863,015 $9,695,946 $136,533,592 $133,342,096
Current portion of Long Term (due within one year 17,099,844 15,696,923 682,204 790,932 17,782,048 16,487,855

Long Term Liabilities - Non Current

$111,570,733

$107,949,227

$7,180,811

$8,905,014

$118,751,544

$116,854,241

Principal obligations for existing long-term bonded debt were reduced in accordance with existing debt
service schedules. For the details regarding components of long-term liabilities including debt service
schedules, please refer to Note 7.
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Ongoing claims in Insurance Claim Reserves are due to liability and workers compensation claims. The
decrease of $249,389 is due to offsetting claim reserve activity. Workers’ compensation claim reserves
decreased by $327,254 while liability reserves increased by $77,865.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 3.75% of its
total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the City of Manhattan Beach (fiscal year 2021-2022)
is $832 million.

EFFECT OF PENSION ACTIVITY ON NET POSITION

The City contracts with the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) to provide
retirement benefits for all full time employees and qualified part time employees. City plans cover qualified
miscellaneous and safety employees as further described in Note 10.

The implementation of GASB 68 in fiscal year 2014-15 fundamentally changed the presentation of financial
statements. Public agencies are required to recognize net pension liabilities (NPL), which are equal to the
gross pension liability less fiduciary assets. Further, public agencies rely on CalPERS to provide valuations
of these pension-related fiduciary assets and liabilities. Due to the timing of CalPERS reports, the
measurement date for the City’s retirement reporting lags by one year.

CalPERS makes actuarial assumptions and projections regarding the population of employees such as
salary progression, expected date of retirement, mortality, turnover and, most importantly, the rate of return
on investments. With this information, CalPERS actuaries determine the accrued pension liability.
CalPERS also determines the value of its fiduciary net position (cash and investments). Ideally, the
difference between the accrued pension liability and fiduciary net position would be zero. However, in recent
years, CalPERS actual results have deviated significantly from assumptions and investment return
projections.

It is fundamental to keep in mind that pension results presented in any year's ACFR, is based on a
measurement date as June 30, prior year. Therefore, measurement date for this years ACFR is
June 30, 2021.

The City issued Pension Obligation Bonds in FY 2020-2021, which converted the City’s previously reported
net pension liability to a bonds payable. Additionally, the CalPERS investment returns during measurement
period 2020-2021 was approximately 21.3% resulting in a net pension asset as of June 30, 2022 of
$51,888,750 (using the latest available measurement date as of June 30, 2021). To compare, the City’s
CalPERS plans as of June 30, 2021 (using a measurement date as of June 30, 2020) was liability of
$90,283,344 — a difference of $142,172,094.

The City’s pension income was $45,950,552 million in FY 2021-2022 (based on the measurement date of
June 30, 2021) due to recognized (Fiscal 2021 measurement) City Contributions (normal and amortization)
of $100,774,019 million, changes in net deferrals of negative $91,807,790 million and decrease to NPL of
$142,172,094. The City’s contribution (deferred) to CalPERS in FY 2021-2022 was $4.4 million, compared
to $100.8 million in FY 2020-21. Contributions in FY 2022-2023 are budgeted at $4.7 million. The decrease
in future contributions is due to the City issuing pension obligations bonds which replaces the pension
liability payments to CalPERS.

Note 10 provides a breakdown by group (Miscellaneous and Public Safety) and other relevant information.
Of particular importance is the sensitivity analysis table indicating outcomes of changes to CalPERS
assumed discount rate. For the measurement year ending June 30, 2021, the discount used for
measurement purposes was 7.15%. As indicated in the sensitivity analysis table, any reduction in the
discount rate leads to an increased net pension liability as well as greater current service costs. The City
recognizes these rising costs and is consistently working on mitigating impacts to City services. This is
disclosed in Note 10 as a subsequent event to the actuarial methods and assumption.
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In May 2021, the City has issued pension obligations bonds (POBs), which virtually eliminated unfunded
liability by replacing it with bonded debt. The decision to issue POBs was made based on (1) an escalating
amortization table that would incrementally increase NPL payments up to $4 million annually in the next
10 years, (2) historically low interest rates, and (3) a CalPERS discount rate of 7.15%. By issuing the POBs,
the City was able to finance 100% of the current NPL at a true interest cost of 2.72%, 4.43% lower than the
CalPERS discount rate. Moreover, the POBs allow the City to budget debt service payments at a level of
$5.5 million annually rather than trying to balance the budget for escalating NPL payments that will
eventually rise up to $10 million by 2032. While there is little effect to the City’s net position in the short
term, the POBs are estimated to save the City $43.5 million in NPL payments over the next 25 years.

Notwithstanding the issuance of POBs and strong current year return, managing future pension costs and
meeting retirement obligations remain one of the City’s biggest challenges. Over 95% of retirement costs
are attributable to the City’s Governmental Funds and growing pension costs have the potential to crowd
out other funding needs. The City has therefore developed an Unfunded Pension Liability Policy to provide
a guideline on addressing future NPL. Future pension costs and liabilities will be monitored continuously
and addressed so that it does not grow substantially.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

In June 2022, the City Council adopted the budget for FY 2022-2023. The original budget estimates General
Fund revenues at $86,669,227 (compared to FY 2021-2022 at $82,260,057) and expenditures of
$85,275,151 (compared to FY 2021-2022 at $77,698,292), resulting in an anticipated surplus of $1,394,076
in FY 2022-2023. The anticipated surplus is primarily comprised of projected increased revenues from
property tax and transient occupancy tax.

Of the City’s major General Fund revenue sources, the single biggest revenue source, property tax, has
been unaffected by the pandemic due to high demand and low inventory. Property tax, which outperformed
budget in FY 2021-2022, is expected to increase in FY 2022-2023 by 3.9% over the FY 2021-2022 actuals.
Sales tax is projected to increase 3.0% from the FY 2020-2021 actuals. Transient Occupancy Taxes is
projected to increase 16.0% as the resurgence in travel and tourism continues after the pandemic.

General Fund budgeted expenditures are higher by $7,576,859 compared to fiscal year 2021-2022 budget
primarily due to increases in contract services, departmental supplies, and adjustments for inflation.
Budgeted salaries ($37,057,502) increased by $1,639,846 compared to the FY 2021-2022 budget, while
employee benefits ($13,860,979) decreased by $261,528 due to the issuance of POBs which transferred
the pension liability payments into debt service payments. Materials and services ($18,345,318) are higher
by $4,869,426 due to reinstating several cost cutting measures implemented during the pandemic to
balance the budget.

The City continues its focus on capital improvements. Expenditures of $149.8 million
(including carryover projects) are planned over the next five years for utility, street and facility projects.
$85.1 million of that amount is for water, wastewater, and stormwater projects, but this does not include
future mandated improvement projects under the federal National Pollution Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES). Approximately $38.2 million has been budgeted for street and roadway needs as well as,
$16.4 million for general facilities (including parking facilities). These projects will ensure continued
functionality of vital systems, traffic flow and community facilities.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the financial position of the
City of Manhattan Beach for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Finance Department, 1400 Highland Avenue, Manhattan Beach, California 90266.
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022

Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Accrued interest
Grants
Leases
Prepaid costs
Due from other governments
Due from OPEB Trust Fund
Inventories
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent

Total Current Assets

Leases receivable

Net pension asset - PERS

Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred charge on refunding
Deferred pension related items
Deferred OPEB related items
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll
Accrued interest
Unearned revenue
Deposits payable
Long-term liabilities due within one year:

Leases payable

Bonds payable

Accrued employee benefits

Accrued workers comp/liability claims and judgments

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long term liabilities due in more than one year
Leases payable
Bonds payable
Accrued employee benefits
Accrued workers comp/liability claims and judgments
Total pension liability - City Plans
Net OPEB liability

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred leases inflows

Deferred pension related items
Deferred OPEB related items

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Public safety

Recreation

Public works

Capital projects

Debt service

Pension benefits

Business improvement districts
Unrestricted

Total Net Position
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Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 91,313,830 $ 45,487,881 $ 136,801,711
624,882 1,235,378 1,860,260
4,741,461 - 4,741,461
447,369 - 447,369
64,860 - 64,860
1,145,060 - 1,145,060
13,585 - 13,585
7,249,014 - 7,249,014
362,642 - 362,642
106,650 381,406 488,056
1,603,036 - 1,603,036
1,360,582 169,540 1,530,122
109,032,971 47,274,205 156,307,176
23,843,399 - 23,843,399
50,810,306 1,078,444 51,888,750
43,733,872 36,093,570 79,827,442
83,487,884 46,573,816 130,061,700
201,875,461 83,745,830 285,621,291
310,908,432 131,020,035 441,928,467
305,782 - 305,782
67,059,708 144,100 67,203,808
8,202,446 333,198 8,535,644
75,567,936 477,298 76,045,234
4,334,613 3,180,960 7,515,573
3,521,141 540,043 4,061,184
962,139 - 962,139
247,131 161,292 408,423
2,694,174 - 2,694,174
4,765,211 224,352 4,989,563
994,801 - 994,801
4,398,700 661,300 5,060,000
833,294 20,904 854,198
10,773,525 - 10,773,525
33,524,729 4,788,851 38,313,580
1,095,503 - 1,095,503
101,477,122 8,281,457 109,758,579
3,819,254 95,811 3,915,065
7,030,500 - 7,030,500
170,400 - 170,400
4,861,472 197,482 5,058,954
118,454,251 8,574,750 127,029,001
151,978,980 13,363,601 165,342,581
24,788,395 - 24,788,395
50,125,165 726,056 50,851,221
3,146,434 127,814 3,274,248
78,059,994 853,870 78,913,864
105,850,112 75,545,929 181,396,041
549,448 - 549,448
688,527 - 688,527
283,245 - 283,245
10,351,689 - 10,351,689
1,113,451 - 1,113,451
1,603,036 - 1,603,036
- 390,867 390,867
35,997,886 41,343,066 77,340,952

$ 156,437,394

$ 117,279,862

$ 273,717,256
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2022

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Contributions Contributions
Expenses Services and Grants and Grants
Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 14,877,262 $ 8,737,206 $ 150,742 $ -
Public safety (8,739,663) 4,145,094 222,798 -
Culture and recreation 8,399,151 3,675,974 - -
Public works 17,978,786 7,112,774 1,204,742 6,356,153
Interest on long-term debt 2,877,188 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 35,392,724 23,671,048 1,578,282 6,356,153
Business-Type Activities:
Water 12,575,813 15,108,592 - -
Stormwater 1,780,079 336,494 - -
Wastewater 1,959,843 3,556,257 - -
Parking 2,786,561 4,532,825 - -
County Parking Lot 790,829 1,339,384 - -
State Pier and Parking Lot 541,951 912,531 - -
Total Business-Type Activities 20,435,076 25,786,083 - -
Total Primary Government $ 55,827,800 $ 49,457,131 $ 1,578,282 $ 6,356,153
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose
Transient occupancy taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Business licenses taxes
Real estate transfer taxes
Use of money and property
Other
Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Position
Net Position at Beginning of Year
Restatement of Net Position
Net Position at End of Year
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ (5,989,314) $ - $ (5,989,314)
13,107,555 - 13,107,555
(4,723,177) - (4,723,177)
(3,305,117) - (3,305,117)
(2,877,188) - (2,877,188)
(3,787,241) - (3,787,241)

- 2,532,779 2,532,779
- (1,443,585) (1,443,585)

- 1,596,414 1,596,414

- 1,746,264 1,746,264

- 548,555 548,555

- 370,580 370,580

- 5,351,007 5,351,007

(3,787,241) 5,351,007 1,563,766
39,491,986 - 39,491,986
6,464,049 - 6,464,049
13,217,943 - 13,217,943
1,217,755 - 1,217,755
5,175,626 - 5,175,626
1,839,059 - 1,839,059
1,150,538 (1,458,512) (307,974)
2,152,318 396,132 2,548,450
(1,651,060) 1,651,060 -
69,058,214 588,680 69,646,894
65,270,973 5,939,687 71,210,660
91,166,421 111,838,145 203,004,566
- (497,970) (497,970)

$ 156,437,394 $ 117,279,862 $ 273,717,256
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Accrued interest
Grants
Leases
Prepaid costs
Due from other governments
Due from OPEB Trust Fund
Inventories
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agents

Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payables

Accrued payroll

Unearned revenues

Deposits payable

Interest payable

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues
Deferred leases inflows

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory
Prepaid costs
Lease receivable
Restricted for:
Public safety
Recreation
Public works
Capital projects
Debt service
Pension benefits
Commiitted to:
Capital projects
Assigned to:
Assigned to City retirement plans
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
$ 37,868,891 $ 28,357,273 $ 66,226,164
595,533 27,899 623,432
4,658,761 82,700 4,741,461
447,369 - 447,369
- 64,860 64,860
24,988,459 - 24,988,459
13,585 - 13,585
4,517,215 2,731,799 7,249,014
362,642 - 362,642
6,010 - 6,010
1,603,036 - 1,603,036
1,113,451 247,131 1,360,582
$ 76,174,952 $ 31,511,662 $ 107,686,614
$ 1,868,160 $ 2,232,077 $ 4,100,237
2,570,720 881,335 3,452,055
962,139 - 962,139
1,289,032 1,403,515 2,692,547
4,763,470 1,741 4,765,211
- 247,131 247,131
11,453,521 4,765,799 16,219,320
115,559 2,648,155 2,763,714
24,788,395 - 24,788,395
24,903,954 2,648,155 27,552,109
6,010 - 6,010
13,585 - 13,585
200,064 - 200,064
- 549,448 549,448
- 688,527 688,527
- 283,245 283,245
- 10,351,689 10,351,689
1,113,451 - 1,113,451
1,603,036 - 1,603,036
- 12,224,799 12,224,799
58,007 - 58,007
36,823,324 - 36,823,324
39,817,477 24,097,708 63,915,185
$ 76,174,952 $ 31,511,662 $ 107,686,614
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022

Fund balances of governmental funds $ 63,915,185

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets net of depreciation have not been included as financial resources
Capital assets $ 200,983,218
Accumulated depreciation (77,281,865) 123,701,353

Governmental funds report all pension contributions as expenditures, however, in the
statement of net position, the excess of the plan fiduciary net position over the plan
total liability is reported as a net pension asset 48,804,530

For bond refundings, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt is reported as a deferred charge on refunding in the Statement
of Net Position. 305,782

Governmental funds report all pension contributions as expenditures. However,
the net pension liability has a measurement date of June 30, 2021, and pension
contributions subsequent to the measurement date are reclassified as deferred
outflows of resources. 4,105,641

Deferred outflows of resources reported for the pension plan for government-wide
statements are amortized:

Differences between expected and actual experiences 302,608
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 21,120,070
Adjustment due to difference in proportions 1,329,085 62,718,728

Deferred outflows of resources reported for OPEB for government-wide
statements are amortized:
Differences between expected and actual experiences 7,433
Change of assumptions 7,642,458 7,649,891

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds:

Pension Obligation Bonds (82,901,299)
COPS Payable (17,835,000)
Lease Payable (1,969,941)
Compensated Absences (4,652,548)
Unamortized bond premiums/discounts (1,752,123) (109,110,911)

Governmental funds report all OPEB contributions as expenditures, however, in the
statement of net position, the excess of the OPEB plan liability over the OPEB actuarial
liability is reported as a net OPEB liability. (4,533,983)

Deferred inflows of resources reported for OPEB for government-wide
statements are amortized:

Differences between expected and actual experiences (1,879,297)
Changes of assumptions (37,929)
Difference between projected and actual return on assets (1,017,247) (2,934,473)

Governmental funds report all pension contributions as expenditures, however, in the
statement of net position, the excess of the total pension liability over the plan fiduciary
net position is reported as a net pension liability (170,400)

Deferred inflows of resources reported for the pension plan for government-wide
statements are amortized:

Differences between expected and actual experiences (6,242,935)
Adjustment due to difference in proportions (35,689,908)
Difference in proportionate share (6,841,949) (48,774,792)

Revenues reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds and recognized
in the statement of activities. These are included in the intergovernmental revenues
in the governmental fund activity. 2,763,714

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as equipment management and self-insurance, to individual funds.
The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds must be added to the

statement of net position. 7,997,129
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 156,437,394
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Public works
Capital outlay:
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Public works
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Trustee fees and bond issuance cost

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Issuance of long-term debt

Bond premium

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances:
Beginning of Year

End of Year
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Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds

$ 62,995,151 $ 4,475,486 $ 67,470,637
3,983,079 3,634 3,986,713
4,801,637 8,887,302 13,688,939
11,829,242 551,514 12,380,756
1,647,517 (496,979) 1,150,538
2,358,731 92,552 2,451,283
2,076,767 215,696 2,292,463
89,692,124 13,729,205 103,421,329
14,975,284 - 14,975,284
41,611,175 194,933 41,806,108
6,947,767 598,447 7,546,214
8,528,320 7,710,504 16,238,824
- 2,730,533 2,730,533

- 385,278 385,278

1,137 4,766,010 4,767,147
4,191,660 667,145 4,858,805
2,396,080 481,525 2,877,605
1,600 206,443 208,043
78,653,023 17,740,818 96,393,841
11,039,101 (4,011,613) 7,027,488
532,628 2,951,791 3,484,419
(4,365,153) (770,326) (5,135,479)
- 7,440,000 7,440,000

- 1,259,922 1,259,922
(3,832,525) 10,881,387 7,048,862
7,206,576 6,869,774 14,076,350
32,610,901 17,227,934 49,838,835
$ 39,817,477 $ 24,097,708 $ 63,915,185

Page 252 of 948



City Council Meeting 34 Page 253 of 948
January 17, 2023



CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current period.

Cost of assets capitalized

Right to use assets

Depreciation expense

Right to use assets amortization

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of long term debt principal consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Also, governmental funds report the
effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are amortized in the Statement of Activities
Proceeds from debt issued
2021 Fire Station No. 2 Certificates of Participation
Premium on bond issued
Lease
Repayment of bond principal:
Police & Fire Facility 2013 Refunding Certificates of Participation
Marine Avenue Park 2016 Refunding Certificates of Participation
Fire Station 2021 Certificates of Participation
2021 Pension Obligation Bonds
Lease principal payments
Amortization of bond premiums
Amortization of deferred charges on refunding

Compensated absences expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

Accrued interest for long-term liabilities. This is the net change in accrued interest
for the current period.

Pension obligation expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.

OPEB expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Revenues reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds and recognized
in the statement of activities. These are included in the intergovernmental revenues
in the governmental fund activity.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as equipment management and self-insurance, to individual funds.
The net revenues (expenses) of the internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

City Geumitddeetngancial Statements. 35
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$ 7,242,410
2,880,746
(3,336,045)

(947,158)

(7,440,000)
(1,259,922)
(2,880,746)

545,000
320,000
105,000
2,978,000
910,805
94,144

(32,188)

$ 14,076,350

5,839,953

(6,659,907)

186,878

266,122

50,305,070

(1,015,210)

(1,106,572)

3,378,289

$ 65,270,973
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Assets:
Current:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Inventories
Restricted:
Cash with fiscal agent

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent:
Net pension asset
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred pension related items
Deferred OPEB related items

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities:
Current:
Accounts payable
Accrued payables
Accrued interest
Deferred revenues
Deposits payable
Accrued compensated absences
Workers' compensation claims
Accrued claims and judgments
Leases payable
Bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent:
Net OPEB liability
Accrued compensated absences
Workers' compensation claims
Accrued claims and judgments
Leases payable
Bonds payable

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred pension related items
Deferred OPEB related items

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for business improvement district
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

City GoeinolleblRatinghcial Statements.
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Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Parking
$ 21,963,129 $ 15,592,284 $ 2,873,062
940,017 259,974 3,589
381,406 - -
17,385 8,553 143,602
23,301,937 15,860,811 3,020,253
626,354 258,173 87,077
49,860,184 10,818,962 18,333,661
50,486,538 11,077,135 18,420,738
73,788,475 26,937,946 21,440,991
90,328 29,026 10,437
151,328 95,796 34,706
241,656 124,822 45,143
1,709,874 179,567 416,479
397,784 77,870 28,344
16,421 8,079 136,792
25 - 410
20,904 - -
182,164 86,316 385,757
2,327,172 351,832 967,782
89,690 56,777 20,570
95,811 - -
1,540,678 676,876 5,890,532
1,726,179 733,653 5,911,102
4,053,351 1,085,485 6,878,884
421,689 173,814 58,623
58,049 36,747 13,313
479,738 210,561 71,936
49,195,141 10,491,780 12,204,429
- - 390,867
20,301,901 15,274,942 1,940,018
$ 69,497,042 $ 25,766,722 $ 14,535,314
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Business-Type Activities -

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Other Activities -
Enterprise Internal Services
Funds Totals Funds
Assets:
Current:
Cash and investments $ 5,059,406 $ 45,487,881 $ 25,087,666
Receivables:

Accounts 31,798 1,235,378 1,450
Inventories - 381,406 100,640
Restricted:

Cash with fiscal agent - 169,540 -

Total Current Assets 5,091,204 47,274,205 25,189,756

Noncurrent:
Net pension asset 106,840 1,078,444 2,005,776
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation 3,654,579 82,667,386 3,520,403
Total Noncurrent Assets 3,761,419 83,745,830 5,526,179
Total Assets 8,852,623 131,020,035 30,715,935
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred pension related items 14,309 144,100 235,339
Deferred OPEB related items 51,368 333,198 552,555
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 65,677 477,298 787,894
Liabilities:
Current:
Accounts payable 875,040 3,180,960 234,376
Accrued payables 36,045 540,043 69,086
Accrued interest - 161,292 -
Deferred revenues - - 1,627
Deposits payable 223,917 224,352 -
Accrued compensated absences - 20,904 -
Workers' compensation claims - - 9,036,287
Accrued claims and judgments - - 1,737,238
Leases payable - - 44,899
Bonds payable 7,063 661,300 132,612
Total Current Liabilities 1,142,065 4,788,851 11,256,125
Noncurrent:
Net OPEB liability 30,445 197,482 327,492
Accrued compensated absences - 95,811 -
Workers' compensation claims - - 6,348,000
Accrued claims and judgments - - 682,500
Leases payable - - 75,464
Bonds payable 173,371 8,281,457 3,254,788
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 203,816 8,574,750 10,688,244
Total Liabilities 1,345,881 13,363,601 21,944,369
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred pension related items 71,930 726,056 1,350,373
Deferred OPEB related items 19,705 127,814 211,958
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 91,635 853,870 1,562,331
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 3,654,579 75,545,929 3,400,748
Restricted for business improvement district - 390,867 -
Unrestricted 3,826,205 41,343,066 4,596,381
Total Net Position $ 7,480,784 $ 117,279,862 $ 7,997,129
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Operating Revenues:
Sales and service charges
Interdepartmental charges
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries

Employee benefits

Contract and professional services
Materials and services

Utilities

Administrative service charges
Internal services

Leases and rents

Claims expense

Depreciation expense

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest revenue
Interest expense

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Changes in Net Position

Net Position:
Beginning of Fiscal Year, as originally reported
Restatements

Beginning of Fiscal Year, as restated
Changes in Net Position

End of Fiscal Year

City GoeinolleblRatinghcial Statements.
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Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Parking
$ 15,108,592 $ 3,556,257 $ 4,532,825
360,430 11,887 20,940
15,469,022 3,568,144 4,553,765
1,074,016 301,568 100,285
85,800 104,820 16,628
7,378,508 118,738 535,775
1,561,874 170,708 969,475
237,682 69,925 126,249
1,564,347 857,891 534,000
- - 53,433
626,675 315,097 252,195
12,528,902 1,938,747 2,588,040
2,940,120 1,629,397 1,965,725
(945,659) (402,622) (48,322)
(46,911) (21,096) (198,521)
(992,570) (423,718) (246,843)
1,947,550 1,205,679 1,718,882
$ 1,947,550 $ 1,205,679 $ 1,718,882
$ 68,047,462 $ 24,561,043 $ 12,816,432
(497,970) - -
67,549,492 24,561,043 12,816,432
1,947,550 1,205,679 1,718,882
$ 69,497,042 $ 25,766,722 $ 14,535,314
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Operating Revenues:
Sales and service charges
Interdepartmental charges
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries

Employee benefits

Contract and professional services
Materials and services

Utilities

Administrative service charges
Internal services

Leases and rents

Claims expense

Depreciation expense

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest revenue
Interest expense

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

Total Nonoperating
Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Changes in Net Position

Net Position:

Beginning of Fiscal Year, as originally reported

Restatements

Beginning of Fiscal Year, as restated
Changes in Net Position

End of Fiscal Year

City GoeinolleblRatinghcial Statements.
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Business-Type Activities -

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Other Activities-
Enterprise Internal
Funds Totals Service Funds
$ 2,588,409 $ 25,786,083 $ -
- - 20,839,479
2,875 396,132 37,535
2,591,284 26,182,215 20,877,014
142,050 1,617,919 2,303,677
34,410 241,658 783,618
1,540,598 9,573,619 1,586,937
226,172 2,928,229 2,141,169
75,482 509,338 119,471
276,240 3,232,478 -
- 53,433 -
666,005 666,005 -
- - 9,648,523
147,650 1,341,617 817,505
3,108,607 20,164,296 17,400,900
(517,323) 6,017,919 3,476,114
(61,909) (1,458,512) -
(4,252) (270,780) (79,791)
- - (18,034)
(66,161) (1,729,292) (97,825)
(583,484) 4,288,627 3,378,289
2,183,688 2,183,688 -
(532,628) (532,628) -
$ 1,067,576 $ 5,939,687 $ 3,378,289
$ 6,413,208 $ 111,838,145 $ 4,618,840
- (497,970) -
6,413,208 111,340,175 4,618,840
1,067,576 5,939,687 3,378,289
$ 7,480,784 $ 117,279,862 $ 7,997,129
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Wastewater Parking
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers and users $ 15,066,209 $ 3,583,618 $ 4,561,857
Cash received from interfund service provided - - -
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (13,247,692) (1,630,717) (2,026,432)
Cash paid to employees for services (1,852,888) (352,113) (132,587)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (34,371) 1,600,788 2,402,838
Cash Flows from Non-Capital
Financing Activities:
Cash transfers out - - -
Cash transfers in - - -
Principal paid on pension obligation bonds (37,976) (15,653) (5,280)
Interest paid on pension obligation bonds (26,295) (11,671) (3,937)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Non-Capital Financing Activities (64,271) (27,324) (9,217)
Cash Flows from Capital
and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from capital debt 673,870 331,526 6,187,349
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (14,994,012) (1,095,032) (2,947)
Principal paid on capital debt (844,621) (415,498) (6,750,156)
Interest paid on capital debt (30,244) (14,184) (232,762)
Cash from sale of property - - -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Capital and Related Financing Activities (15,195,007) (1,193,188) (798,516)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received (945,659) (402,622) (48,322)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Investing Activities (945,659) (402,622) (48,322)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents (16,239,308) (22,346) 1,546,783
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 38,219,822 15,623,183 1,469,881
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 21,980,514 $ 15,600,837 $ 3,016,664

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 2,940,120 $ 1,629,397 $ 1,965,725
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Net position restatement for payment processing fees (497,970) - -
Depreciation 626,675 315,097 252,195
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 96,442 15,474 8,092
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense - - -
(Increase) decrease in inventory (227,835) - -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (2,277,446) (413,455) 192,500
Increase (decrease) in accrued payables (509,396) 41,429 (1,318)
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable (1,285) - -
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability (1,821,767) (670,187) (245,493)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability (17,236) (26,122) (9,464)
Increase (decrease) in deferred pension related items 1,622,234 672,135 227,189
Increase (decrease) in deferred OPEB related items 30,634 37,020 13,412
Increase (decrease) in workers' compensation claims - - -
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments - - -
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 2,459 - -
Total Adjustments (2,974,491) (28,609) 437,113
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities $ (34,371) $ 1,600,788 $ 2,402,838
Non-Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Bond premium amortization $ 8,243 $ 4,348 $ 23,824
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers and users
Cash received from interfund service provided
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital
Financing Activities:

Cash transfers out

Cash transfers in

Principal paid on pension obligation bonds

Interest paid on pension obligation bonds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital

and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from capital debt
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Cash from sale of property

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Net position restatement for payment processing fees
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense
(Increase) decrease in inventory
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued payables
Increase (decrease) in deposits payable
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability
Increase (decrease) in deferred pension related items
Increase (decrease) in deferred OPEB related items
Increase (decrease) in workers' compensation claims
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities

Non-Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Bond premium amortization
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Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Governmental

Other Activities-

Enterprise Internal
Funds Totals Service Funds
$ 2,639,175 $ 25,850,859 $ 44,885
- - 20,839,479
(2,888,002) (19,792,843) (13,669,246)
(184,466) (2,522,054) (2,849,141)
(433,293) 3,535,962 4,365,977
(532,628) (532,628) -
2,183,688 2,183,688 -
(6,478) (65,387) (121,610)
(4,832) (46,735) (86,814)
1,639,750 1,538,938 (208,424)
- 7,192,745 -
(10,493) (16,102,484) (232,492)
- (8,010,275) (47,857)
- (277,190) (3,851)
- - 20,525
(10,493) (17,197,204) (263,675)
(61,909) (1,458,512) -
(61,909) (1,458,512) -
1,134,055 (13,580,816) 3,893,878
3,925,351 59,238,237 21,193,788
$ 5,059,406 $ 45,657,421 $ 25,087,666
$ (517,323) $ 6,017,919 $ 3,476,114
- (497,970) -
147,650 1,341,617 817,505
281,173 401,181 5,723
- - 92
- (227,835) 1,832
(103,921) (2,602,322) 27,439
1,607 (467,678) 68,608
(233,282) (234,567) -
(291,736) (3,029,183) (5,045,160)
(14,013) (66,835) (126,631)
276,696 2,798,254 5,202,547
19,856 100,922 185,670
- - (327,254)
- - 77,865
- 2,459 -
84,030 (2,481,957) 889,863
$ (433,293) $ 3,535,962 $ 4,365,977
$ - $ 36,415 $ -
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Special assessments

Cash and investments with fiscal agents

Total Assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total Liabilities
Net Position:
Restricted for other governments
Total Net Position
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Custodial
Fund
Special
Assessment

$ 1,774,640

89,523

1,118,420

2,982,583

1,980
1,980

2,980,603
2,980,603
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Additions:
Special assessments
Interest income

Total Additions

Deductions:
Professional services
Principal payment
Interest expenses

Total Deductions

Changes in Net Position

Net Position

Beginning of the Year, as originally reported

Restatement

Beginning of Fiscal Year, as restated
Changes in Net Position

End of the Year
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$

$

$

$

Custodial
Fund
Special
Assessment

Redemption

1,659,113
243

1,659,356

7,330
1,205,000
258,730

1,471,060

188,296

(15,528,982)

18,321,289

2,792,307
188,296

2,980,603
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1: Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Description of the Reporting Entity

The City of Manhattan Beach, California (the City), was incorporated on
December 12, 1912, under the laws of the State of California and enjoys all the rights and
privileges applicable to a general law city. It is governed by an elected five-member
council. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, these financial statements present the City of Manhattan Beach
(the primary government) and its component unit, the Manhattan Beach Capital
Improvements Corporation. The component unit is included in the reporting entity
because of the significance of its operational or financial relationships with the City of
Manhattan Beach. It is governed by the City Council of the City of Manhattan Beach and
its activities exclusively benefit the City, therefore it is presented as a blended component
unit. Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Manhattan Beach Capital
Improvements Corporation.

Blended Component Unit

Manhattan Beach Capital Improvements Corporation - The Manhattan Beach
Capital Improvements Corporation (the Corporation) is a nonprofit public benefits
corporation, organized under the laws of the State of California in September 1996,
pursuant to the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Laws (Title |, Division 2, Part 2,
Section 5110). The sole purpose of the Corporation is to issue debt for capital
improvements. Certificates of participation are debt issued by the Corporation
providing the holder an interest, i.e. the right to participate in the lease payments paid
by the City to the Corporation. There are no separately issued financial statements
for this entity.

b. Accounting and Reporting Policies

The City adopted GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements, which established accounting and financial reporting standards for
financial statements of state and local governments.

c. Description of Funds

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds, each of which
is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts recording cash and other financial resources, together with all related liabilities
and residual equities or balances and changes therein. These funds are segregated for
the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance
with special regulations, restrictions or limitations.

In accordance with the City’s municipal code and budget, several different types of funds
are used to record the City’s financial transactions. For financial reporting purposes, such
funds have been categorized and are presented as follows:

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - to account for all unrestricted resources except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1: Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Special Revenue Funds - to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than for major capital projects) that are restricted by law or administrative
action to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Funds - to account for financial resources segregated for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by
Enterprise or Internal Service Funds. In recent years, the Underground Assessment
District Fund was added to this category.

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise Funds - to account for operations where it is the stated intent that costs of
providing services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges, or where determination of net income is
deemed appropriate.

Internal Service Funds - to account for insurance reserve, information systems,
building maintenance and operations, and fleet management services provided to the
departments of the City on a continuing basis, which are financed or recovered
primarily by charges to the user departments.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Custodial Funds - to account for special assessment collections for debt service for
the underground assessment bonds that the City remits to the fiscal agent.

d. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Funds

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The City government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position
and a Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position. These statements present
summaries of Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities for the City.
Fiduciary Activities of the City are not included in these statements.

These statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets, deferred
infows and outflows of resources, and liabilities, including capital assets and
infrastructure as well as long-term debt are included in the accompanying Statement
of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net position. Under
the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which the
benefit is incurred. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the
direct expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. The types of program
revenues for the City are reported in three categories: 1) charges for services,
2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
Charges for services include revenues from customers or applicants who purchase,
use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function.
Grants and contributions include revenues restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenue are reported instead as general revenue.
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CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Government-wide financial statements do not provide information by fund; they
simply distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. The City’s
Statement of Net Position includes current and noncurrent assets and liabilities, as
well as deferred inflows and outflows of resources.

Financial Statement Classification

In the government-wide financial statements, net position is classified in the following
categories:

Net Investment in capital assets - This category groups all capital assets into one
component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances
of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital
assets reduce this category.

Restricted Net Position - This category presents restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributions or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents the net position of the City, not
restricted for any project or other purpose.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of
Revenue, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balances for all major governmental
funds and aggregated nonmajor funds. An accompanying schedule is presented to
reconcile and explain the differences in fund balance as presented in these
statements to the net position presented in the government-wide financial
statements. The City has presented all major funds that met the qualifications of
GASB Statement No. 34.

All governmental funds are accounted for by using a current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilities are generally included in the governmental fund balance sheet. Related
operating statements of these funds present increases (revenues and other financing
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in fund balance.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental funds as the
basis for recognizing revenues. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are susceptible to accrual and consequently recognized when they become
both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction
can be readily determined, and “available” means that the transaction amount is
collectible within the current period or soon thereafter (generally 60 days after
year-end) to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Revenues considered
susceptible to accrual include property taxes and sales taxes collected after
year-end, earned and uncollected investment interest income, uncollected rents and
leases and unbilled service receivables. Revenues from such items as license and
permit fees, fines and forfeitures and general service charges are not susceptible to
accrual because they are generally not measurable until received in cash.
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The government reports unearned revenue on its balance sheet for grant monies
received before the City has a legal claim to them, such as grant funds received prior
to incurring qualified expenses. In subsequent periods, the unearned revenue is
removed once revenue recognition criteria are met and the City has established legal
claim to the resources.

Governmental fund expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred. Principal and interest on long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities
when they are due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service fund
for payments to be made early in the following year.

Proprietary Funds Financial Statements

Proprietary funds financial statements include a Statement of Fund Net Position, a
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Net Position, and a
Statement of Cash Flows. All proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus and use the accrual basis of accounting.
Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
at the time liabilities are incurred. With this measurement focus, all assets, deferred
outflows/inflows of resources and liabilities (current and long-term) resulting from the
operations of these funds are included in the Statement of Net Position. Accordingly,
the proprietary fund Statement of Net Position presents assets, deferred
inflows/outflows of resources and liabilities classified into their respective current and
long-term categories.

The City’s internal service funds are presented in the proprietary funds financial
statements. Because the principal users of the internal services are the City’s
governmental activities, the financial statements of the internal service funds are
consolidated into the governmental activities column when presented in the
government-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the cost of these
services is reported in the appropriate functional activity.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the City’s proprietary funds are charges to customers for
services. Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

There is no look-back adjustment on the statement of fund net position and the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position for the enterprise
funds’ participation in the internal services funds because these transactions are paid
in cash, therefore there is no internal balance related to what can be considered a
quasi-external transaction.
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Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

e.

Major Funds

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 34 (GASB 34) requires the
City to report all major funds in the basic financial statements. In accordance with
GASB 34, the following funds are classified as major governmental funds:

General Fund — used to account for all unrestricted resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. This fund accounts for general
citywide operations.

The following funds are classified as major proprietary funds:

Water Fund - used to account for the operation of the City’s water utility system.
Revenues are generated from user fees, which are adjusted periodically to meet
the costs of administration, operation, maintenance and capital improvements to
the system. In fiscal year 1997, funds the City completed a comprehensive utility
fee study and issued certificates of participation for the purpose of upgrading the
City’s water and wastewater systems.

Wastewater Fund - used to account for the maintenance and improvements of
the City’s sewer system. Revenues are derived from a user charge placed on the
water bills. In fiscal year 1997, the City completed a comprehensive utility fee
study and issued certificates of participation for the purpose of upgrading the
City’s water and wastewater system.

Parking Fund - used to account for the general operations and maintenance of
City parking lots and spaces. Revenues are generated from the use of these
properties.

Property Tax Calculator

Property tax revenue is recognized on the modified accrual basis, that is, in the
fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied providing they become available.
Available means due or past due and receivable within the current period and collected
within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter
(not to exceed 60 days) to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The County of
Los Angeles collects property taxes for the City. Tax liens attach annually as of 12:01 AM
on the first day in January prior to the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Taxes are
levied on both real and personal property, as it exists on that date. The tax levy covers
the fiscal period July 1 to June 30. All secured personal property taxes and one-half of
the taxes on real property are due November 1; the second installment is due February 1.
All taxes are delinquent, if unpaid, by December 10 and April 10, respectively. Unsecured
personal property taxes become due on March 1 of each year and are delinquent, if
unpaid, on August 31.
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f. Cash and Investments
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers cash and cash
equivalents as short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they present insignificant risk of
changes in value because of changes in interest rates. The City follows the practice of
pooling cash and investments of all funds except for funds in its 125 medical flex plan; its
Section 115 Trust, and its outstanding Water and Wastewater; Marine Avenue Sports
Field; and Metlox, Police & Fire Facility bonded debt, which are held by outside trustees.

Investments

Investments are shown at fair value, in accordance with GASB Statements No. 31 and
No. 72. The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the proprietary fund types consider all
cash and investments to be cash equivalents, as these funds participate in the citywide
cash and investment pool.

d. Restricted Cash and Investments

Certain proceeds of debt issues, as well as certain resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is
limited by applicable bond covenants.

Additionally, the City established the PARS Post-Employment Benefits Trust as a
tax-exempt trust within the meaning of Section 115 of the IRS Code and relevant
statutory provisions of the State of California for the purpose of pre-funding pension
obligation and/or OPEB obligation. The City’s adoption and operation of the Trust has no
effect on any of the current or former employee’s entitlement to post-employment
benefits. The balances and activities of the Trust are irrevocably dedicated to funding
future post-employment benefit obligations. The assets will benefit the City through
reduced future cash flow demands on the City’s General fund resources and continue to
be assets of the City. These amounts are reflected as restricted cash and investments in
the General fund.

h. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, machinery and equipment, right-to-use machinery and
equipment, buildings and improvements, right-to-use building and improvements,
intangibles, and infrastructure (roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets, walk-streets
and sidewalks, parks and recreation improvements), are reported in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets and infrastructure are defined by the City as assets
with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and $100,000 respectively (amount not
rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation.
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Capital assets are reported net of accumulated depreciation on the Statement of
Net Position. Depreciation is provided for on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Asset Years
Equipment 5-20
Right-to-use Equipment 5-20
Vehicles 3-20
Buildings/Improvements 40 - 100
Right-to-use Buildings/Improvements 40 - 100
Water and Sewer Systems 30-50
Other Infrastructure 15-100

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed.

i. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Financial Position reports a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to future
periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then. The government reports deferred outflows of resources for pension
contributions made after the actuarial measurement date which will be recognized in the
following year, for the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
and OPEB plan investments, the difference between expected and actual experience, the
changes of assumptions, adjustments due to the difference in proportions, and the
difference in proportionate share. The government also reports deferred outflows for
deferred charges on debt refunding. A deferred charge on refunding results from the
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount
is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Financial Position and the Governmental Fund
Balance Sheet report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net assets that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The government has several items that qualify for
reporting in this category:

1. Unavailable revenue reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The
governmental funds report unavailable revenues from grant revenues. These
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period
when they become available.

2. Pension and OPEB related deferred inflows are reported only on the Statement
of Net Position. The government reports deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions arising from certain changes in the net pension liability, net pension
asset, or net OPEB asset. Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to
changes in the net pension liability, net pension asset, and net OPEB asset are
recognized systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in the year the
change occurs. The remaining amounts are to be recognized in future periods.
The recognition period differs depending on the source of the change, and they
currently are amortized over 5 years or the average remaining service life time.
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3. A deferred inflow of resources related to leases is reported for the value of lease
receivable payments to be recognized as an inflow of resources in a systematic
and rational manner over the term of the lease agreements.

j- Net Pension Liability

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information
about the fiduciary net position of the Plan and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
the CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to
liability and asset information within certain defined timeframes. For the pension plan
administered under the California Public Employee’s Retirement System (CalPERS), the
following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date: June 30, 2020
Measurement Date: June 30, 2021
Measurement Period: July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

k. Net Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Liability

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the City’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from
the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. For this
purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to
liability and asset information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the
following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date: June 30, 2021
Measurement Date: June 30, 2021
Measurement Period: July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021
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I. Interfund Transfers

As a general rule, interfund transactions have been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this rule are payments in lieu or charges for current
service between the City’s enterprise activity and the City’s governmental funds.
Elimination of these transactions would distort the direct costs and program revenues for
the various functions. Certain eliminations have been made regarding interfund activities,
payables and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have
been eliminated except those representing balances between the governmental activities
and the business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated
in the total primary government column.

In the Statement of Activities, internal service fund transactions have been eliminated;
however, those transactions between governmental, business-type, and fiduciary
activities have not been eliminated.

m. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary funds financial statements, long-term obligations
are recorded as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the effective interest
method.

In the governmental fund financial statements, long-term obligation, bond discounts and
premiums are recognized as other financing sources or uses when incurred. Issuance
costs are recorded as a current year expenditure.

The City has recorded all judgment and claim liabilities resulting from workers’
compensation and liability insurance claims in the Insurance Reserve Fund, which is a
component of the Internal Service funds group. The recorded liability is based upon an
estimate of reported claims as provided by an analysis of a third-party administrator.
Reported short-term and long-term estimated losses and reserves of $10,773,525 and
$7,030,500 respectively, are recorded in the Insurance Reserve Fund.

Only the short-term liability is reflected as a current liability in all applicable governmental
fund types; the remainder of the liability is reported as long-term debt in the Statement of
Net Position.

n. Vacation and Sick Leave

The City’s policy is to record the cost of vested vacation and sick leave as it is earned.
Vacation is payable to employees at the time a vacation is taken or upon termination of
employment. At termination, employees are eligible to convert 50% of unused sick time to
service credit; however, sworn fire safety personnel, upon service retirement, may opt to
cash out 50% of the value of unused sick leave.

Miscellaneous and sworn police employees may accrue compensated time off in lieu of
payment for overtime hours. Overtime hours are banked at either time-and-a-half or
straight-time hours depending upon the nature of the overtime worked. The dollar value
of these hours is included as an employee benefits liability as shown in the balance
sheet.
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o. Allocation of Interest Income
The City pools all non-restricted cash for investment purchases and allocates interest
income based on month-end cash balances. Interest earned by restricted Cash is posted

to their respective accounts.

p. Other Accounting Policies

Inventories - Inventories of materials and supplies are carried at cost on a
weighted-average basis. The City uses the consumption method of accounting for
inventories.

Prepaid items - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting
periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial
statements.

q. Estimates

The accompanying financial statements require management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

r. Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted
(e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate
the amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be
made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the
government’s policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before
unrestricted net position is applied.

s. Fund Balance Flow Assumption

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted
and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund
balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned,
and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements, a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be
applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been
depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when
the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose,
committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned
fund balance is applied last.

t. Fund Balance Policy

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the
nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes.

e Non-spendable fund balance is the portion of fund balance that cannot be spent
due to form. Examples include inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term loans,
and notes receivable, unless the proceeds are restricted, committed or assigned.
Also, amounts that must be maintained intact legally or contractually, such as the
principal of a permanent fund are reported within the non-spendable category.
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e Restricted fund balance is the portion of fund balance that is subject to externally
enforceable limitations by law, enabling legislation or limitations imposed by
creditors or grantors. The government itself can establish limitations on the use
of resources through either a commitment (committed fund balance) or an
assignment (assigned fund balance).

e The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used
only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s
highest level of decision-making authority. The governing council is the highest
level of decision-making authority for the government that can, by adoption of an
ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted,
the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action is
taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.

e Assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government
for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed.
The governing council (council) has by resolution authorized the finance director
to assign fund balance. The council may also assign fund balance as it does
when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and
appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated budget. Unlike
commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an
additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an
assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to
either remove or revise a commitment.

e Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification that includes all spendable
amounts in the General Fund not contained in other classifications.

Note 2: Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability
Deficit Fund Balance and Net Position
At June 30, 2022, the Building Maintenance and Operations Fund has a deficit net
position of $512,876. The deficit is the result of non-current liabilities and will be resolved
by future revenues and contributions from other funds.

Note 3: Cash and Investments

As of June 30, 2022, cash and investments were reported in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Governmental Funds $ 69,189,782
Internal Service Funds 25,087,666
Business-Type Activities 45,657,421
Fiduciary Funds 2,893,060

Total Cash and Investments $ 142,827,929

The City pools all cash and investments that is available for use for all funds, including
fiduciary funds. Unrestricted and restricted cash and investments, as indicated in the
government-wide statement of net position, do not include fiduciary cash and investments.
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Cash and Investments (Continued)

These cash amounts are included in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position — Fiduciary
Funds. Each fund type's position in the pool is reported on the Combined Balance Sheet as
cash and investments. The City has adopted an investment policy, which authorizes it to
invest in various investments.

a. Deposits

At June 30, 2022, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits after outstanding checks and
deposits in transit was $7,777,750 and the bank balance was $10,393,330. The
$2,615,580 difference represents outstanding checks and other reconciling items.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan
associations to secure a City's deposits by pledging government securities with a value of
110% of an entity's deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to secure
City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of a
City's total deposits. The City’s Treasurer may waive the collateral requirement for
deposits that are fully insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC. The collateral for deposits in
federal and state chartered banks is held in safekeeping by an authorized Agent of
Depository recognized by the State of California Department of Banking.

The collateral for deposits with savings and loan associations is generally held in
safekeeping by the Federal Home Loan Bank in San Francisco, California as an Agent of
Depository. These securities are physically held in an undivided pool for all
California public agency depositors. Under Government Code Section 53655, the
placement of securites by a bank or savings and loan association with an
"Agent of Depository" has the effect of perfecting the security interest in the name of the
local governmental agency.

Accordingly, all collateral held by California Agents of Depository are considered to be
held for, and in the name of, the City.

b. Authorized Investments

Under provisions of the City’s Investment Policy, and in accordance with Section 53601
of the California Government Code, the City may invest in the following types of
investments:

e Securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies

Certificates of Deposit (or Time Deposits) placed with commercial banks and/or
savings and loan associations

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

Bankers Acceptances

Commercial Papers

Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool) Demand Deposits
Passbook Savings Account Demand Deposits

Federally Insured Thrift and Loan

Repurchase Agreements

Medium-Term Corporate Notes

Floaters or step-ups with market driven interest rate adjustments
Mutual Funds of highest ratings
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The City’s investment policy does not allow the use of reverse-repurchase agreements
and, accordingly, the City did not borrow through the use of reverse-repurchase
agreements at any time during the year.

c. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

The above investments do not address investment of debt proceeds held by a bond
trustee. Investments of debt proceeds held by a bond trustee are governed by provisions
of the debt agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government
Code or the Entity’s investment policy.

d. Investments in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the
Treasurer of the State of California. LAIF is overseen by the Local Agency Investment
Advisory Board, which consists of five members, in accordance with State statute. The
State Treasurer's Office audits the fund annually. The fair value of the position in the
investment pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

The City is required to disclose its methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair
value of its holdings in LAIF. The City relied upon information provided by the
State Treasurer in estimating the City’s fair value position of its holdings in LAIF. The City
had a contractual withdrawal value of $48,000,000 whose pro-rata share of fair value was
estimated by the State Treasurer to be $47,382,020.

e. GASB Statement No. 31

The City adopted GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, as of July 1, 1997.
GASB Statement No. 31 establishes fair value standards for investments in participating
interest earning investment contracts, external investment pools, equity securities, option
contracts, stock warrants and stock rights that have readily determinable fair values.
Accordingly, the Entity reports its investments at fair value in the balance sheet.

All investment income, including changes in the fair value of investments, is recognized
as revenue in the operating statement.

Methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value. The City maintains investment
accounting records and adjusts those records to “fair value” on an annual basis for
material amounts. The City’s investment custodian provides market values on each
investment instrument on a monthly basis for material amounts. The investments held by
the City are widely traded in the financial markets and trading values are readily available
from numerous published sources. Material unrealized gains and losses are recorded on
an annual basis and the carrying value of its investments is considered fair value. For the
year ended June 30, 2022, the book value of investments exceeded fair value the by
$2,931,589.

f. Credit Risk
The City's investment policy limits investments in medium-term notes (MTN’s) to those

rated in the top three rating categories by two of the three largest nationally recognized
rating services at time of purchase. As of June 30, 2022, the City's investment in
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medium-term notes consisted of investments with Microsoft Corp., Berkshire Hathaway
Inc., Coca Cola Co., United Parcel Service, Costco Wholesale Corp., Apple Inc., Oracle
Corp, Toyota Motor Credit Corp., US Bank NA Cincinnati, Bank of New York Mellon
Corp., and Walt Disney Company. All MTN'’s were rated “A” or higher by Moody’s at time
of purchase. Investment in government agencies issued by the Federal National
Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Banks, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation, and the Federal Farm Credit Banks were rated “Aaa” by Moody’s and “AA+”
by Standard & Poor’s. Asset-Backed Securities were rated “Aaa” by Moody’s and “AAA”
by Standard & Poor’s.

All securities were investment grade and were legal under state and city policies.
Investments in U.S. government securities are not considered to have credit risk;
therefore, their credit quality is not disclosed. As of June 30, 2022, the City's investments
in external investment pools and money market mutual funds are unrated.

g. Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will
not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City
does not have a policy for custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2022, none of the City’s deposits or investments was exposed to custodial
credit risk.

h. Concentration of Credit Risk

The City’s investment policy imposes restrictions for certain types of investments with any
one issuer for the following types of investments. With respect to concentration of credit
risk, as of June 30, 2022, the City is in compliance with its investment policy’s
restrictions.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, the city is exposed to credit risk if it has
invested more than 5% of its total investments in any one issuer. The following issuers
are above 5% of the total investments: Federal Home Loan Bank (7.48%),
Federal Farm Credit (9.13%), and Fannie Mae (5.99%). These government-sponsored
investments are backed by the federal government and are below the City’s investment
policy limit of 33.33% of total investments.

i. Interest Rate Risk

The City's investment policy limits investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The City's investment
policy states that no investment can mature more than five years from the date of
purchase in line with state code requirements. The only exception to these maturity limits
shall be the investment of the gross proceeds of tax-exempt bonds. The City has elected
to use the segmented time distribution method of disclosure for its interest rate risk.
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Note 3: Cash and Investments (Continued)
j. Fair Value Measurement and Application

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Debt securities
classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy use a market approach to measure fair
value. The City’s pricing vendor, through rules based logic, utilizes valuation techniques
that reflect market participants’ assumptions and vary by asset class and per
methodology, and maximizes the use of relevant observable data including quoted prices
for similar assets, benchmark yield curves and market corroborated inputs.

The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2022:

Fair Value
Level
Investment Type Total Uncategorized 1 2 3
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 47,382,020 $ 47,382,020 $ - % - % -
US Treasury and Agency Notes 70,273,330 - 35,773,440 34,499,890 -
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 12,647,910 - - 12,647,910 -
Total Investments $ 130,303,260 $ 47,382,020 $ 35,773,440 $ 47,147,800 $ -

As of June 30, 2022, the City had the following investments and original maturities:

Remaining Investment Maturities
6 months 6 months 1t03 More than Fair
or less to 1 year years 3 years Value

Pooled investments:

Local Government Fund $ 47,382,020 $ - $ - $ - $ 47,382,020
US Treasury and agency notes - - 24,913,110 45,360,220 70,273,330
Meduim-term notes - - 6,960,420 5,687,490 12,647,910
$ 47,382,020 $ - $ 31,873,530 $ 51,047,710 130,303,260

Investment with Fiscal Agents:
PARS pension 1,603,037
Utility undergrounding 1,118,421
Water/Wastewater, Metlox Refunding bonds 169,540
Marine certificates of participation 75,151
Police & Fire certificate of participation refunding bonds 107,631
Fire Station 2 COPs 139,500
Pension Obligation Bonds 1,038,300
4,251,580
Demand deposits 7,777,750
Other deposits 493,317
Petty cash 2,022
8,273,089

$ 142,827,929
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Note 4: Interfund Transactions

Interfund Transfers

With City Council approval, resources may be transferred from one fund to another.
Transfers between individual funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are
presented below:

Transfers in

Nonmajor Nonmajor
General Governmental Enterprise
Fund Funds Funds Total
Transfers Out

General Fund $ - $ 2,181,465 $ 2,183,688 $ 4,365,153
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - 770,326 - 770,326
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 532,628 - - 532,628
Total $ 532,628 $ 2,951,791 $ 2,183,688 $ 5,668,107

The interfund transfers scheduled above resulted from a variety of City initiatives
including the following:

e The General Fund transferred a total of $2,181,465 to Nonmajor Governmental funds
as follows:
$113,869 to support operations in the Street Light Fund.
$1,400,000 to the Safety and Civic Center Construction Fund for Fire
Station 2 design.
$492,596 of the Pension Obligation Bond savings to the Capital Improvement
Fund per the City’s Pension policy to provide additional capital.
$175,000 to provide funding for capital projects.
e The General Fund also transferred $2,183,688 to the Stormwater Fund to support
operations.
e Nonmajor Governmental transferred $770,326 for the cost of Fire Station 2 design
per bond documents.
e Nonmaijor Proprietary transferred $532,628 to the General Fund to cost of the fund
for operations.

Note 5: Leases

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 87 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. The
primary objective of this statement is to enhance the relevance and consistency of
information about governments' leasing activities. This statement establishes a single model
for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an
underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and
an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable
and a deferred inflow of resources. For additional information, refer to the disclosures below.
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Leases (Continued)

a.

Leases Receivable and Deferred Inflows of Resources

The City is reporting lease receivable of $24,988,459 at June 30, 2022. For the fiscal
year, the City reported lease revenue of $1,337,489 and lease interest revenue of
$303,582. These leases are summarized as follows:

Lease

Lease Lease Interest

Lease Receivable Revenue Revenue
Bay Club Manhattan Beach, LLC $ 11,297,362 $ 522,544 $ 136,618
Verizon 16/Valley Lease 1,100,249 82,247 13,380
Manhattan Beach Hotel TRS, LLC 3,991,556 372,095 50,444
Metlox LLC 6,884,750 196,118 81,850
New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 1,664,788 106,116 20,037
United State Post Office 39,407 52,198 1,062
Lemonde Storage 10,347 6,171 191

$ 24,988,459 $ 1,337,489 $ 303,582

Bay Club Manhattan Beach LLC. — In May 2017, the City entered into an amended lease
with Bay Club Manhattan Beach, LLC for the property known as the Manhattan Country
Club which includes an office building, a tennis complex, a parking lot and slope
easement parcels. Based on the lease agreement, the City will receive monthly payment
through December 2043.

Verizon 16/Valley Lease — In June 2010, the City entered into a lease agreement with
SMSA Limited Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless for certain parcel of property for the
installation and maintenance of utility wires, poles, cables, conduits and pipes for an
initial term of 5 years with extensions up to four five-years terms. The City will receive
monthly installments on the first day of each month.

Manhattan Beach Hotel TRS, LLC — In March 1983. the City entered into a ground lease
with Manhattan Beach Hotel properties, a California general partnership for unimproved
property for tenant to build and operate a hotel and golf course. The term of the lease is
for fifty (50) years commencing March 1983. The City is receiving an initial annual rent of
$400,000 payable in monthly installments.

Metlox LLC — in May 2002, the City entered into a disposition & development agreement
and ground lease with Metlox LLC for three building pad parcels located on top of a
subterranean parking structure to be constructed as part of the project. The term of the
lease is for 55 years commencing on May 2002 with the right. Rent to the City is due in
monthly installments.

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC — In September 2018, the City entered into a structure
lease agreement with New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC for ground and rooftop space for
the placement of tenant’s antenna and communication equipment. The original term of
the lease is for five years with four automatic five-year terms renewal. Rent is due to the
city in monthly installments and will increase annually by 5% in year two of he initial
agreement.
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Note 5: Leases (Continued)

United State Post Office — in April 2018, the City leased approximately 1,900 square feet
of interior space and additional space to the United States Postal Service. The lease
terminates at the end of March 2023. The annual rent to the City is $53,000 payable
in equal installments at the end of each month.

Lemonade Storage — In February 2019, the City entered into a five-years lease
agreement with Lemonade Restaurant Group LLC for storage space in the
Metlox Parking Structure. The lease term asks for monthly rent payments to the City

The principal and interest payments expected to maturity are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Principal Interest
Fiscal Year Payment Payment Total
2023 $ 1,145,060 $ 290,251 $ 1,435,311
2024 1,123,988 277,044 1,401,032
2025 1,140,783 264,000 1,404,783
2026 1,162,387 250,744 1,413,131
2027 1,184,659 237,237 1,421,896
2028 - 2032 6,282,863 974,230 7,257,093
2033 - 2037 4,927,844 628,835 5,556,679
2038 - 2042 3,854,362 376,142 4,230,504
2043 - 2047 1,921,340 178,893 2,100,233
2048 - 2052 1,099,820 105,180 1,205,000
2053 - 2057 1,145,353 39,565 1,184,918

$ 24,988,459 $ 3,622,121 $ 28,610,580

b. Lease Payable and Right to Use Lease Assets

The City leases certain facilities from the Manhattan Beach Unified School District and
miscellaneous equipment from various companies for the City’s operation. The terms of
these leases expired in fiscal year 2023-24 and 2024-25. Initial leases liability was
recorded in the amount of $3,048,966. As of June 30, 2022, the value of the lease
payable is $2,090,304. In fiscal year 2021-22, the City paid $994,090 on these leases
including an embedded an interest rate of 1.162%.

Right-to-use leased assets at June 30, 2022 include the following:

Amount of
Leased Capital ~ Accumulated
Lease Underlying Asset Assets Amortization
Manhattan Beach Unified School District facilities $ 2551402 $§ 850,467
Solar trash bins 86,211 27,225
Pitney Bowes postage equipment 10,541 3,514
AIS multifunction copiers 400,812 114,517
Total $ 3048966 $ 995723
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Note 6:

Leases (Continued)

Future principal and interest requirements to maturity for each lease liability are as

follows:
Governmental Activities
Principal Interest Total
Fiscal Year Payments Payments Payments
2023 $ 994,801 $ 24,289 $ 1,019,090
2024 1,032,465 12,730 1,045,195
2025 63,038 347 63,385
$ 2,090,304 $ 37,366 $ 2,127,670

Capital Assets and Depreciation

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has reported all capital assets including
infrastructure in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position. The City elected to use the
basic approach as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 for all infrastructure reporting,
whereby depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation have been recorded. The
following table presents the capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2022:

City Council Meeting
January 17, 2023

Governmental Activities
Land
Construction-in-progress
Buildings
Streets / Roadways
Recreation
Fleet Management

Total Capital Assets,
Not Being Depreciated

Buildings and structures
Right-to-use building and structure
Machinery and equipment
Right-to-use machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Streets / Roadways
Parks & Recreation
Investment in Joint Venture (RCC)

Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Structures
Right-to-use building and structure
Machinery and Equipment
Right-to-use machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure

Streets / Roadways

Parks & Recreation
Investment in Joint Venture (RCC)

Total Accumulated
Depreciation

Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated, Net

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net

Ending Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
June 30, 2021 Transfers additions (deletions) June 30, 2022
$ 33,634,565 $ - % - 8 - $ 33,634,565

549,714 - 2,750,099 - 3,299,813
7,111,158 (5,136,001) 3,910,644 - 5,885,801
283,452 - 397,749 - 681,201

- - 232,492 - 232,492
41,578,889 (5,136,001) 7,290,984 - 43,733,872
44,106,833 - - - 44,106,833
- - 2,551,402 - 2,551,402
5,887,264 - 132,189 - 6,019,453
- - 497,564 - 497,564
12,601,969 - - (224,707) 12,377,262
64,690,887 5,136,001 - - 69,826,888
22,688,011 - - - 22,688,011
3,692,998 - 51,716 (46,655) 3,698,059
153,667,962 5,136,001 3,232,871 (271,362) 161,765,472
14,669,590 - 854,618 - 15,524,208
- - 850,467 - 850,467
4,276,786 - 368,824 - 4,645,610
- - 145,256 - 145,256
8,626,214 - 768,940 (186,148) 9,209,006
36,418,203 - 1,547,645 - 37,965,848
7,805,756 - 404,883 - 8,210,639
1,613,134 - 160,075 (46,655) 1,726,554
73,409,683 - 5,100,708 (232,803) 78,277,588
80,258,279 5,136,001 (1,867,837) (38,559) 83,487,884
$ 121,837,168 $ - $ 5423147 $ (38,559) $ 127,221,756
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Note 6: Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)
Ending Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
June 30, 2021  Transfers additions (deletions) June 30, 2022
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land - Water $ 307,967 $ - $ - 8 - $ 307,967
Land - Stormwater 857,650 - - - 857,650
Land - Parking 1,441,817 - - - 1,441,817
Construction-in-progress 18,894,589  (1,510,937) 16,102,484 - 33,486,136
Total Capital Assets,
Not Being Depreciated 21,502,023  (1,510,937) 16,102,484 - 36,093,570
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and structures - Parking 18,163,159 - - - 18,163,159
Machinery and equipment
Parking 1,803,942 1,510,937 - - 3,314,879
Water 34,369,244 - - - 34,369,244
Storm water 7,703,405 - - - 7,703,405
Wastewater 16,304,359 - - - 16,304,359
Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated 78,344,109 1,510,937 - - 79,855,046
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and structures - Parking 3,084,435 - - - 3,084,435
Machinery and equipment
Parking 1,249,566 - 252,191 1,501,757
Water 15,257,768 - 626,679 - 15,884,447
Stormwater 4,769,316 - 147,650 - 4,916,966
Wastewater 7,578,528 - 315,097 - 7,893,625
Total Accumulated
Depreciation 31,939,613 - 1,341,617 - 33,281,230
Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated, Net 46,404,496 1,510,937 (1,341,617) - 46,573,816
Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Net $ 67,906,519 $ - $14,760,867 $ - $ 82,667,386
Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:
Governmental Activities:
General government $ 206,756
Public safety 1,143,530
Public works 481,720
Parks and recreation 2,451,197
Internal service funds 817,505
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 5,100,708
Business-Type Activities:
Water $ 626,675
Wastewater 315,097
Parking 252,195
Stormwater 147,650
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities $ 1,341,617
City Council Meeting 64 Page 285 of 948

January 17, 2023



CITY OF MANHATTAN BEACH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2022

Note 7: Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended
June 30, 2022:

Balance Balance Due in
June 30, 2021  Adjustments * Defeased Additions Deletions June 30, 2022 One Year

Governmental Activities:

Leases payable (Note 5) $ - $3,048966 $ -3 - § 958662 $ 2,090,304 $ 994,801
Certificates of participation:
Marine Ave Park refunding COP Series 2016 4,730,000 - - - 320,000 4,410,000 335,000
2013 Police and Fire Refunding COP 6,635,000 - 545,000 6,090,000 560,000
2021 Fire Station No. 2 COP - 7,440,000 105,000 7,335,000 125,000
2021 Pension Obligation Bonds 89,388,310 - - - 3,099,610 86,288,700 3,378,700
Total Governmental $ 100,753,310  $3,048,966 $ - §$7,440,000 §5,028,272 106,214,004  $ 5,393,501
Unamortized premium 1,752,122

$ 107,966,126
Business-Type Activities:
Certificates of participation
2012 Metlox and Water/Wastewater

Refunding COP $ 7,695,000 $ - $6,985000 $ - $ 710,000 $ - 38 -
2021 Refunding COPs - - 5,925,000 - 5,925,000 590,000
2021 Pension Obligation Bonds 1,886,690 65,390 1,821,300 71,300

Total Business Type $ 9,581,690 $ - $6,985000 $5,925000 $ 775,390 7,746,300 $ 661,300
Unamortized premium 1,196,457
$ 8,942,757

* Adjustments are the result of the GASB Statement No. 87 implementation.

a. Marine Avenue Certificates of Participation Series 2016

On November 9, 2016, the City issued $5,905,000 Certificate of Participation Series 2016
(Marine Field Refunding) to refund the outstanding balance of the Variable Rate Demand
Refunding Certificates of Participation Series 2002. The Certificates represents the
proportionate interest on the lease payments to be made by the City as rent for the use of
certain real property located in the City and consisting of the police department and fire
department headquarter facility. The Certificates bear interest at a rate of 3% to 4% with
principal ranging from $265,000 to 465,000 and maturing on January 2033. The balance
at June 30, 2022, includes an unamortized bond premium of $283,774 which will be
amortized over the life of the issue.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Marine Avenue Certificates of
Participation Series 2016 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 335,000 $ 150,300 $ 485,300
2024 345,000 136,900 481,900
2025 360,000 123,100 483,100
2026 370,000 108,700 478,700
2027 390,000 93,900 483,900

2028-2032 2,145,000 266,550 2,411,550
2033 465,000 13,950 478,950
Total $ 4,410,000 $ 893,400 $ 5,303,400
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In the event of a default, there is no remedy of acceleration of the total lease payments
due over the term of the lease agreement and the trustee is not empowered to sell the
leased premises and use the proceeds of such a sale to redeem the 2016 certificates or
pay debt service thereon. The city will be liable only for lease payments on an annual
basis, and the trustee will be required to seek a separate judgment each year for the
year’s defaulted lease payments.

b. 2013 Police and Fire Facility Refunding Certificates of Participation

In February 2013, the City issued $10,510,000 of Certificates of Participation,
Series 2013, to advance refund the 2004 Police and Fire Certificates of Participation
(2004 COP). The payments under the lease agreement are due January and July of each
year until maturity in January 2032 and include interest rates ranging from 2% to 4%. The
proceeds were used to purchase U.S. Government securities that were placed in an
irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating resources for all future debt service
payments of the refunded debt. The balance at June 30, 2022, includes an unamortized
bond premium of $250,422 which will be amortized over the life of the issue.

The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $595,473.
This amount is being deferred as an outflow of resources and amortized over the
remaining life of the refunded debt. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2022 is
$305,782.

Annual debts service requirements to maturity for the 2013 Police and Fire Certificates of
Participation are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 560,000 $ 215263 $ 775,263
2024 575,000 198,463 773,463
2025 600,000 175,463 775,463
2026 620,000 151,463 771,463
2027 650,000 126,663 776,663

2028-2032 3,085,000 279,231 3,364,231
Total $ 6,090,000 $ 1,146,546 $ 7,236,546

In the event of a default, there is no remedy of acceleration of the total lease payments
due over the term of the lease agreement and the trustee is not empower to sell the
leased premises and use the proceeds of such a sale to redeem the 2013 certificates or
pay debt service thereon. The city will be liable only for lease payments on an annual
basis, and the trustee will be required to seek a separate judgment each year for the
year’s defaulted lease payments.

c. 2021 Fire Station COP

In August 2021, the City of Manhattan Beach issued $7,440,000 of Certificates of
Participation (COP) to pay a portion of the costs to constructing and equipping a fire
station and related improvements and pay certain costs of issuance. The payments under
the lease agreement are due January and July of each year until maturity in
January 2051 and include interest rates ranging from 3% to 5%. The COP includes an
unamortized premium of $1,217,926 at June 30, 2022, which will be amortized over the
life of the issue.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the 2021 Fire Station Certificates of
Participation are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 125,000 279,000 404,000
2024 135,000 272,750 407,750
2025 140,000 266,000 406,000
2026 145,000 259,000 404,000
2027 155,000 251,750 406,750
2028-2032 905,000 1,134,000 2,039,000
2033-2037 1,150,000 890,750 2,040,750
2038-2042 1,410,000 634,050 2,044,050
2043-2047 1,650,000 379,500 2,029,500
2048-2051 1,520,000 115,000 1,635,000

Total $ 7,335,000 $ 4,481,800 $ 11,816,800

In the event of default, there is no remedy of acceleration of the total lease payments due
over the term of the lease agreement and the Trustee is not empowered to sell the
leased premises and use the proceeds of such a sale to redeem the 2021 Certificates or
pay debt service. The City will be liable for the Lease payment on an annual basis and
the Trustee would be required to seek a separate judgement each year for the year’s
defaulted lease payments.

d. 2012 Metlox and Water/Wastewater Refunding Certificates of Participation

In July 2012, the City of Manhattan Beach issued $12,975,000 of fixed rate Certificates of
Participation (COP) to refund the City’s 2003 Metlox Public Improvements Certificates of
Participation and the 1996 Water and Wastewater Improvement Project Certificates of
Participation. The payments under the lease agreement are due January and July of
each year with interest rates ranging from 2% to 4% and mature through January 2032.
In December 2021, the City issued $5,925,000 Refunding Certificates of Participation
Series 2021 to refund the 2012 Metlox and Water/Wastewater Refunding Certificates of
Participation. The proceeds of the Refunding Certificates of Participation Series 2021 will
be used to establish an Escrow Fund to refund and defease all the outstanding
2012 Certificates of Participation. The moneys deposited with the Escrow Agent will,
together with any other funds held by the Escrow Agent, be sufficient to make full and
timely payment of the principal and interest on the 2012 Certificates. As a result, the 2012
Certificates of Participation is now defeased. The defeasance of the 2012 Certificates of
Participation with the Refunding Certificates of Participation Series 2021 resulted in a net
present value saving of $746,043.

e. 2021 Refunding Certificates of Participation

In November 2021, the City of Manhattan Beach issued $5,925,000 of fixed rate
Refunding Certificates of Participation Series 2021 to refund the Certificates of
Participation (Metlox and Water/Wastewater Refunding) Series 2012 (“the Certificates”).
The payments under the lease agreement are due January and July of each year with an
interest rate of 5% and mature through 2032. The COP includes an unamortized
premium of $1,196,457 at June 30, 2022, which will be amortized over the life of the
issue.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the 2021 Fire Station Certificates of
Participation are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 590,000 $ 161,292 $ 751,292
2024 640,000 266,750 906,750
2025 670,000 234,750 904,750
2026 705,000 201,250 906,250
2027 490,000 166,000 656,000

2028-2032 2,830,000 437,750 3,267,750
Total $ 5,925,000 $ 1,467,792 $ 7,392,792

In the event of default, there is no remedy of acceleration of the total lease payments due
over the term of the lease agreement and the Trustee is not empowered to sell the
leased premises and use the proceeds of such a sale to redeem the 2021 Certificates or
pay debt service. The City will be liable for the Lease payment on an annual basis and
the Trustee would be required to seek a separate judgement each year for the year’s
defaulted lease payments.

f. 2021 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds

In May 2021, the City of Manhattan Beach issued $91,275,000 of Taxable Pension
Obligation Bonds (POB). The bonds were issued to pay the City’s unfunded accrued
actuarial lability to the California Public Employees Retirement System with respect to the
City’s defined benefit retirement plans for City employees. The payments under the
agreement are due January and July of each year with interest rates ranging from 0.12%
to 2.79% and mature through January 2043.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the 2021 Taxable Pension Obligation
Bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 3,450,000 2,072,521 5,522,521
2024 3,465,000 2,063,068 5,528,068
2025 3,495,000 2,043,872 5,538,872
2026 3,530,000 2,009,411 5,539,411
2027 3,580,000 1,967,546 5,547,546

2028-2032 18,965,000 8,818,544 27,783,544

2033-2037 21,410,000 6,467,981 27,877,981

2038-2042 24,780,000 3,180,104 27,960,104
2043 5,435,000 169,300 5,604,300
Total $ 88,110,000 $ 28,792,347 $ 116,902,347

The bonds are not secured by any property other than the funds that the City has actually
deposited with the trustee. If the City is in bankruptcy, it may not be obligated to make
any further deposits with the Trustee, it may not be obligated to make any further
allocations to the Bonds, and it may not be obligated to turn over to the Trustee any
moneys that have been allocated to the Bonds in the City treasury. As a result, the Bonds
would likely be treated as unsecured obligations of the City in the bankruptcy case.
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At June 30, 2022, the total citywide accrued liability for compensated absences amounted to
$4,769,263. $4,652,548 relates to general government services and $116,715 to
business-type activities. The governmental activities liability is generally liquidated by the
General Fund and the business-type activities liabilities are liquidated by the corresponding
proprietary funds. The following is a summary of changes in compensated absences liabilities
for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Balance Balance Due in
June 30, 2021 Additions Deletions June 30, 2022 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences $ 4839426 $ 2,888,821 $§ 3,075699 $ 4,652,548 $ 833,294
Business-Type Activities:
Compensated Absences 114,256 79,616 77,157 116,715 20,904
Total Business Type $ 4953682 $§ 2968437 $ 3,152,856 $ 4769263 $ 854,198

Note 9: Non-City Obligation

Reported in the custodial fund are special assessment tax bonds related to various special
assessment districts included within the City. In March 2018, the City refunded the
outstanding bonds for Underground Assessment Districts 04-1, 04-3, 04-5, 05-2 and 05-6.
These bonds were issued for the purpose of financing the construction of certain public
improvements within the underground utility assessment districts. The amount refunded was
$6,245,000. The sources of the refunding were bond proceeds of $4,995,000, balance in the
capital improvement fund, current year assessments, and net reduction in bond reserve
requirements. In December 2019, the City issued two separate limited obligation
improvement bonds totaling $9,390,000 under provisions of the Improvement Bond Act of
1915, for Underground Assessment Districts 19-12 and 19-14 and in March 2020, the City
issued $5,245,000 for Underground District 19-4. These bonds were issued for the purpose
of financing the construction of certain public improvements within the underground utility
assessment districts. The bonds are secured solely by the subject properties and the
amounts held in respective reserve and bond funds. The bonds are not secured by the
general taxing power of the City of Manhattan Beach and the City has not pledged credit for
payment thereof. The debt outstanding as June 30, 2022, consists of the following:

Original Oustanding
Description Amount 6/30/2022
Reassessment District No. 2018 Limited Obligation Refunding Binds, Series 2018 $ 4,995,000 $ 2,925,000
Assessment District No. 19-12 Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, 2019 Series A 4,605,000 4,420,000
Assessment District No. 19-14 Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds 2019, Series A 4,785,000 4,590,000
Assessment District No. 19-4 Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds, 2020 Series A 5,245,000 5,030,000
Total $ 16,965,000
Note 10: CalPERS Retirement Plans
Net Pension Deferred Pension Deferred Pension Pension
Liability/(Asset) Outflows Inflows Expense/(Income)
CalPERS Plans
Miscellaneous Plan $  (16,404,297) $ 1,989,211 $  (11,044,067) $ (551,307)
Safety - Police Plan (24,273,686) 44,423,679 (27,529,127) (31,104,211)
Safety - Fire Plan (11,210,767) 20,790,918 (12,278,027) (14,295,034)
Total CalPERS (51,888,750) 67,203,808 (50,851,221) (45,950,552)
City Plans
Supplemental Retirement Plan 52,385 - - (6,055)
Single Highest Year Plan 118,015 - - (12,830)
Total City Plans 170,400 - - (18,885)
Total $ (51,718,350) $ 67,203,808 $ (50,851,221) $ (45,969,437)
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Note 10: CalPERS Retirement Plans (Continued)
a. Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan
Plan Description

The Miscellaneous Plan of the City of Manhattan Beach is an agent
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). A full description of the pension plan
regarding number of employees covered, benefit provisions, assumptions
(for funding, but not accounting purposes), and membership information are listed in their
respective June 30, 2020 Annual Actuarial Valuation Reports. Details of the benefits
provided can be obtained in Appendix B of the actuarial valuation reports. This report and
CalPERS’ audited financial statements are publicly available reports that can be obtained
at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications.

Benefit Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of
full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age
50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability
benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic
Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement
2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified
by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. The plan provisions and benefits in effect at
June 30, 2021 measurement date, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Plan

Tier | * PEPRA
Hire date Prior to or on On or after
December 31,2012 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age minimum 50 yrs minimum 52 yrs
o/ _ o,
. 1:426% - 2.418% 1.000% - 2.500%,
Monthly benefits, as a % of 50 yrs - 63+ yrs, 52 vrs - 67+ vrs
eligible compensation respectively Y +yrs,
respectively
Required employee contribution rates 7.000% 7.250%
Required employer contribution rates (1) 9.100% 9.100%

* Closed to new entrants
(1) Blended rate.

Benefit payments are calculated using the benefit formula above multiplied by the number
of years of service and highest single year of compensation for Tier 1 or highest three
year average of compensation for PEPRA.
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Note 10: CalPERS Retirement Plans (Continued)

At June 30, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of the plan:

Number of Participants
Miscellaneous Plan

Description Classic PEPRA
Active members 130 174
Transferred members 113 27
Terminated members 253 107
Retired members and
beneficiaries 186 7
Total 682 315

Contribution Description

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual
basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in
the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial
valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute
the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of
employees. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended.
Payments made by the employer to satisfy contribution requirements that are identified
by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements are classified as
plan member contributions.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the employer contributions recognized as an addition
to net pension asset for the Miscellaneous Plan was $31,985,066.

Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

The City’s net pension liability/(asset) is measured as the total pension liability, less the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability/(asset) of the Miscellaneous
Plans is measured as of June 30, 2021, using an annual actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2020. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the
net pension liability/(asset) is shown below.
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Note 10: CalPERS Retirement Plans (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension

Liability/(Asset)
Valuation Date June 30, 2020
Measurement Date June 30, 2021
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.50%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

. 1

Mortality Rate Table Derived using CalPERS’ membership data for all funds

Post Retirement Benefit The lesser of contract COLA or 2.50% until Purchasing

Increase Power Protection Allowance floor on purchasing power
applies, 2.50% thereafter

' The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities of
mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-
retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality improvement
using 90% of Scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details on this table,
please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from
December 2017 that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Changes of Assumptions
For the measurement date of June 30, 2021, there were no changes in assumptions.
Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using
a building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension
fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and
the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for
each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash
flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected
rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and
adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses. The expected real rates of
return by asset class are as followed:
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CalPERS Retirement Plans (Continued)

Assumed Asset Real Return Real Return
Asset Class (1) Allocation Years 1-10 (2) Years 11+ (3)
Public Equity 50.00% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.00% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.00% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.00% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Asset 13.00% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.00% 0.00% -0.92%
Total 100.00%

(1) In the System's ACFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in
Short-term Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt
Securities.

(2) An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period.
(3) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions
from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based
on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Subsequent Events

On July 12, 2021, CalPERS reported a preliminary 21.3% net return on investments for
fiscal year 2020-21. Based on the thresholds specified in CalPERS Funding Risk
Mitigation policy, the excess return of 14.3% prescribes a reduction in investment
volatility that corresponds to a reduction in the discount rate used for funding purposes of
0.20%, from 7.00% to 6.80%. Since CalPERS was in the final stages of the four-year
Asset Liability Management (ALM) cycle, the board elected to defer any changes to the
asset allocation until the ALM process concluded, and the board could make its final
decision on the asset allocation in November 2021.

On November 17, 2021, the board adopted a new strategic asset allocation. The new
asset allocation along with the new capital market assumptions, economic assumptions
and administrative expense assumption support a discount rate of 6.90%
(net of investment expense but without a reduction for administrative expense) for
financial reporting purposes. This includes a reduction in the price inflation assumption
from 2.50% to 2.30% as recommended in the November 2021 CalPERS Experience
Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. This study also recommended modifications
to retirement rates, termination rates, mortality rates and rates of salary increases that
were adopted by the board. These new assumptions will be reflected in the GASB 68
accounting valuation reports for the June 30, 2022, measurement date.
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Note 10: CalPERS Retirement Plans (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

The following table shows the changes in net pension liability/(asset) recognized over the

measurement period.

Total Pension

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Fiduciary

Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability/(Assets)
(@) (b) (c)=(a)-(b)
Balance at: 6/30/2020 (Valuation Date) $ 122,455,775 $§ 93,984,083 § 28,471,692
Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:
Service Cost 2,650,267 - 2,650,267
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 8,598,669 - 8,598,669
Difference between Expected and Actual Experience (820,321) - (820,321)
Contribution from the Employer - 31,975,816 (31,975,816)
Contributions from Employees - 1,231,319 (1,231,319)
Net Investment Income - 22,191,353 (22,191,353)
Benefit Payments including Refunds of Employee
Contributions (5,398,971) (5,398,971) -
Administrative Expense - (93,884) 93,884
Net Changes During 2020-21 5,029,644 49,905,633 (44,875,989)

Balance at: 6/30/2021 (Measurement Date) $

127,485,419 $ 143,889,716

$ (16,404,297)

City Council Meeting
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability/(asset) of the Plan as of the measurement
date, calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the net pension
liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-
point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.15 percent) than the current
rate:

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Rate Discount Rate +1%
(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
Plan's Net Pension $ 731,982 $ (16,404,297) $ (30,511,037)

Liability/(Assets)